Integrated Report 2019

About this report

Our Integrated Report is our principal communication interface with our
shareholders and other stakeholders in Datatec Limited who have a vested
interest in our company and its commitment to create value and ensure a
sustainable business for the future.
Scope and boundary
The Integrated Report endeavours to present
an overview of the financial, economic,
environmental, social and governance
performance of the Group for the year
1 March 2018 to 28 February 2019 (“FY19”).
Datatec’s aim is to present a holistic overview
of the value the Group seeks to create for
stakeholders by communicating content that
is useful and relevant in an open and balanced
manner. The report summarises the Group’s
strategy, business model, operations, risks,
stakeholder interests and its approach to
sustainability that takes account of resources
employed in its business activities and
resources and groups on which Datatec
has an impact.
The information disclosed encompasses all
divisions and subsidiaries of Datatec Limited,
across all regions of operation unless
indicated otherwise. These same entities are
included in the Group’s consolidated annual
financial statements as set out on pages 96
to 195 of this report. There was no change to
the scope, or any measurement techniques
used.
Datatec published its FY19 results on
16 May 2019 which is the effective date of this
Integrated Report with the exception of the
following:
• Chairman’s review pages 20 and 21
dated 31 May 2019.
• Notice of AGM and form of proxy pages
196 to 204 dated on publication date in
June 2019.

Assurance
To ensure the integrity of sustainability
reporting in the Integrated Report, the
Group has a formal combined assurance
model in place, which includes
management, external audit, internal audit
and other independent assurance providers.

Forward-looking statements
The Integrated Report may contain
statements regarding the future financial
performance of the Group which may
be considered to be forward-looking
statements. By their nature, forward-looking
statements involve risk and uncertainty, and

although the Group has taken reasonable
care to ensure the accuracy of the
information presented, no assurance can
be given that such expectations will prove
to have been correct.
The Group has attempted to identify
important factors that could cause actual
actions, events or results to differ materially
from those described in forward-looking
statements. There may be other factors that
cause actions, events or results not to be as
anticipated, estimated or intended. It is
important to note that:
• unless otherwise indicated, forwardlooking statements indicate the Group’s
expectations and have not been reviewed
or reported on by the Group’s external
auditors;
• actual results may differ materially from
the Group’s expectations if known and
unknown risks or uncertainties affect its
business, or if estimates or assumptions
prove inaccurate;
• the Group cannot guarantee that any
forward-looking statement will materialise
and, accordingly, readers are cautioned
not to place undue reliance on these
forward-looking statements; and
• the Group disclaims any intention and
assumes no obligation to update or revise
any forward-looking statement even if
new information becomes available, as
a result of future events or for any other
reason, other than as required by the
JSE Listings Requirements.

The Annual Financial Statements included in
this Integrated Report have been audited by
the external auditors, Deloitte & Touche.

Framework
The following frameworks have been applied
in the preparation of the Integrated Report:
• King IV™ Report on Corporate
Governance in South Africa (copyright
and trademarks are owned by the
Institute of Directors in Southern Africa
NPC and all of its rights are reserved)
• Companies Act 71 of 2008
• JSE Listings Requirements
• The International Integrated Reporting
Framework
• Discussion Papers issued by the South
African Integrated Reporting Committee
(“IRC”) and the International Integrated
Reporting Council (“IIRC”)
• International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) – applied in preparing
the consolidated annual financial
statements on pages 96 to 195 and
all financial data derived therefrom
elsewhere in the Integrated Report.

Jens Montanana
Chief Executive Officer

Ivan Dittrich
Chief Financial Officer

Responsibility statement and
review
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
and the Board acknowledge their
responsibility to ensure the integrity of this
Integrated Report.
It is the Board’s opinion that the Integrated
Report addresses all material issues and
matters, and fairly presents the Group’s
integrated performance.
It has been reviewed by the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee, the Board,
Company Secretary, sponsor and investor
relations consultants.

Johnson Njeke
Chairman: Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee
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Communities

These icons refer to our strategic objectives:
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving
Business
shareholder returnsBusiness developmentdevelopment
Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Enhancing competitiveness and profitabi

Enhancing
competitiveness and
profitability

Improving shareholder returns

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Business development

Further information can be found on page 8.

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Datatec was founded in 1986 and has
been listed on the JSE since 1994.

Datatec is an international
ICT solutions and services group
operating in more than 50 countries
across six continents.
Datatec’s portfolio of businesses
operates in the high-value, fast
growing sectors of the global
ICT market and is split into
three core divisions:

1
2

Logicalis acts as a customer advocate with some of
the world’s leading technology companies including
Cisco, IBM, Microsoft, Oracle, HPE, NetApp and
VMware.

Technology
Distribution

Logicalis operates in Europe, North America, Latin
America, the Asia-Pacific region and Africa.

3
Information
available
Further info online
on our website
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Our vision

With over 6 500 employees
across more than 25 countries
worldwide, Logicalis is a leading
provider of global IT solutions
and managed services.

Logicalis drives digital enablement through a variety
of services including:
• Integrated and professional services
• Lifecycle and managed services
• Cloud solutions.

Integration
and Managed
Services

Consulting
and Financial
Services

Integration and Managed Services

Communities

To be a global leader in speciality, high-value ICT
solutions through distribution and integrated
services businesses, in collaboration with leading
vendor technology partners.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

We have built an extensive global footprint through
our entrepreneurial expansion and aim to continue
to add technology agility and service excellence to
deliver value to all stakeholders.
Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Technology Distribution

A value-added technology
distributor of industry-leading
solutions in cyber security,
network infrastructure, unified
communications products, data
centre solutions and channel
services.
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Consulting and Financial Services
Analysys Mason

Consulting and research
specialists in telecoms, media
and technology (“TMT”).
Datatec Financial Services

established to provide
innovative financial solutions
to Datatec group customers.

The company goes to market under the Westcon and
Comstor brands. Westcon International’s portfolio of
market leading vendors includes: Cisco, Avaya,
Extreme, Juniper, Check Point, F5, Palo Alto and
Symantec.

Analysys Mason

The company’s 15 000+ partners are supported
by over 3 000 employees working in operations
across over 50 countries. Westcon International
operates 18 logistics and staging facilities.

Datatec Financial Services

Analysys Mason is a global consultancy and research
firm specialising in telecommunication, media and
technology and offers strategic, trusted advisory,
modelling and market intelligence services.
Datatec Financial Services is a specialist team of
financial experts who support the Datatec Group of
companies alongside any partnering organisations,
by providing customers with a financed alternative
method of acquiring technology hardware, software
and services.
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Statement of commitment to good
governance and assurance

Datatec believes that good corporate
governance contributes to enhanced
accountability, fairness and
transparency. Good governance exists
in an environment where roles and
responsibilities are clearly defined,
forums are conducive to robust debate
and performance is regularly reviewed.
We outline our progress and describe
our governance efforts over the next
few pages.

A
King IV™ compliance schedule can
Further info online
be found at www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

The Board exercises independent
judgement on all issues reserved
for its review and approval, while
simultaneously considering the
needs of stakeholders, and takes full
responsibility for the management,
direction and performance of the Group.
Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

To ensure we make and execute good
decisions, which are transparently in the
interest of Datatec, its shareholders and
other stakeholders, the Board works
continuously to maintain and develop
its governance framework.
Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Stephen Davidson
Chairman
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COMBINED ASSURANCE GUIDE

Chairman’s statement on
corporate governance

The Datatec Board is committed to
providing effective leadership to the
Group. The Board embraces the
principles of ethical leadership in
setting and implementing Datatec’s
strategy and is guided by the principles
of the King IV™* Report on Corporate
Governance in South Africa (“King IVTM”),
the Companies Act, 2008 (“Companies
Act”), the JSE Listings Requirements
and all other applicable laws,
standards and codes.
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MANAGEMENT
(first line of
defence)

INTERNAL
ASSURANCE
PROVIDERS
(second and third
line of assurance)

EXTERNAL
ASSURANCE
PROVIDERS

Strategy
Operations
Finance and IT
Human
resources
• Stakeholder
relations and
management
oversight

• Legal services
• Risk
management
• Regulatory
compliance
• Company
secretary
• Health, safety
and environment

• Sustainability and
insurance
• External assurance
• External assessors
• Regulatory
inspector
• Third-party
assurance
providers

•
•
•
•

COMBINED ASSURANCE

Datatec combined assurance
model
A combined assurance framework
for monitoring and evaluating the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls is in place throughout the
Group. This framework deploys and
co-ordinates internal and external
assurance providers to report on the
effectiveness or otherwise of the
internal controls.
The combined assurance model is
designed to ensure optimisation of the
assurance coverage obtained from
management, internal assurance
providers and external assurance
providers on the risk areas affecting the
Group. Within Datatec, there are a
number of assurance providers that
either directly or indirectly provide the
Board and management with certain
assurances over the effectiveness of
those controls that mitigate the risks as
identified during the risk assessment
process. Collectively, the activities of
these assurance providers are referred
to as the combined assurance
framework.
Further info online

For
more information on the combined
Cross reference to sections
in this report
assurance
model, please refer to the
risk report – page 65.
Communities

Application of King IV™

Good corporate governance as
envisaged in King IV™ is both pivotal
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

and integral to every critical aspect of
value creation. As such, the complete
impact of the Board’s application of
King IV™, as it relates to governance
and how it affects value creation,
cannot be captured through a singlesection disclosure. Accordingly, in the
various sections of this Integrated
Report, we have endeavoured to
demonstrate how the Board applies
the principles of King IV™ to govern,
create, sustain and grow value for the
Group as well as achieve the intended
outcomes of the King IV™ Code. This
theme will be one that is reflected in
this Integrated Report and subsequent
ones.
Further information on the Group’s
Further info online
application
of King IV™ can be found
on www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Board confirmation

The Board acknowledges its responsibility
for the integrity of this report.
Communities

The directors confirm they have
collectively assessed the content and
believe it addresses the material
matters that substantively affect the
organisation’s ability to create value
over the short, medium and long term
and is a fair representation of the
integrated performance of the Group.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

* Copyright and trademarks are owned by
the Institute of Directors in Southern Africa
NPC and all of its rights are reserved.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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@DatatecGroup
http://www.linkedin.com/company/datatec

Key Company information
Datatec Limited registration number:
1994/005004/06
ISIN:
ZAE000017745
JSE Main Board:
Computer Services
Listing date:
1994
Share code:
DTC
Shares in issue at 28 February 2019:
219 200 000
(of which 14 315 held in treasury)

Online
• Direct access to all our reports
• Our website has detailed investor,
sustainability and business information

Feedback from Datatec’s shareholder
engagement roadshows has been
used to identify matters to report on.
The Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee, which has oversight
responsibility for the Integrated Report,
has applied its mind to the preparation
and presentation of the report. It has
concluded that the report has been
presented in accordance with the IIRC
and recommended the report for
approval by the Board of directors.
The Board has therefore approved the
2019 Integrated Report for release to
stakeholders.

The Board is committed to providing
effective leadership to the Group and
fully embraces the principle of ethical
leadership in setting and implementing
the strategy and Group’s approach to
governance, guided by principles of
King IV™.
In addition, the Board takes full
responsibility for the management,
direction and performance of the Group
by exercising independent judgement
on all issues reserved for its review and
approval while taking cognisance of the
needs of stakeholders.

www.datatec.com
Many shareholders are now benefiting
from more accessible information
and helping the environment too. If
you have not already tried it, visit our
online Integrated Report website on
your mobile device by scanning the QR
code with a QR code reader smart app.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Statement of commitment to good
governance and assurance continued
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Datatec is committed to maintaining the highest standards of ethics and business
conduct. The Group has a Code of Conduct (“the Code”) detailing the standards
expected from all Datatec employees, including addressing specific matters such
as bribery and corruption. The Code is uniformly applied across all divisions.
Ethics

The Code is founded on the
10 principles of the United Nations
Global Compact and the OECD policy
guidelines for preventing corruption.
It is reviewed annually.
All Datatec employees are required to
undertake annual training on the Code.
Westcon International and Logicalis
organise this training through an annual
online programme which is also utilised
by Datatec Financial Services and
Datatec head office employees.
Analysys Mason has an annual
employee briefing session.
The Datatec Social and Ethics
Committee and the Datatec Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee monitor
implementation of the Code. The
divisions are required to report any
unethical or fraudulent conduct in
contravention of the Code to the
Datatec Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee and the Datatec Social and
Ethics Committee and to provide
formal semi-annual assurance to the
Board on these matters.

Our values
Our business
philosophy has
its roots in an
entrepreneurial
culture. We are
committed to
being ethical, honest,
socially responsible
corporate citizens
and strive to be an
employer of choice,
attracting, developing
and retaining talented
people.

We value business
partnerships and we
work towards creating
shareholder value
by developing a bestin-class portfolio of
actively managed
businesses operating
in the high-value, fast
growing sectors of
the ICT market.

We live by
the following values:

Further info online

Information available
in the risk report.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

The Group has a whistleblowing
hotline for anonymous reporting of
any unethical conduct. Westcon
International and Logicalis also operate
separate whistleblowing hotlines for
their employees. All the hotlines are
operated by third-party suppliers
independently of the Group and
divisions.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

INNOVATION
We embrace
change and creativity
to deliver the best
practical outcomes

Datatec
values

EMPOWERMENT
We encourage
initiative and provide
opportunities
for our people

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Any complaints received via the hotlines
or any other means are investigated
in accordance with the Group’s
procedures for investigating complaints.
These procedures are under the
direction of the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee and the results
of any investigations are reported to the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
No significant incidents of unethical
behaviour were reported at Group or
divisional level during the year.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

EXCELLENCE

PARTNERSHIPS

We strive to exceed
expectations and be the
best that we can be,
maintaining the highest
level of quality

We build strong
relationships and
alliances to achieve
success for the
long term

INTEGRITY
We champion an
environment of honesty,
transparency, fairness
and high moral
standards

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
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Datatec’s strategy is to improve shareholder returns over the
medium term through a combination of corporate and business
development actions aimed at enhancing the competitiveness
and profitability of its subsidiaries and operating divisions.

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

ENHANCING
COMPETITIVENESS
AND PROFITABILITY
IMPROVING
SHAREHOLDER
RETURNS

Westcon
Logicalis
Logicalis’ strategy is to be the IT
partner of choice for customers, and to
gain scale, capability and market share
in its main markets.

Westcon International’s strategy is to
be the leading go-to-market distribution
partner for vendors in the networking
and cyber security market serving
international markets in Europe, the
Middle East, Africa and across the
Asia-Pacific region.

The Group provides leadership and sets the direction and strategy for each business, together with
divisional management. It identifies potential areas for growth and supports the realisation of growth
either organically or through acquisition by allocating capital and financing.
The Group targets revenue growth, EBITDA margins and return on invested capital (“ROIC”) to drive
financial returns.
The Group’s decentralised operating model, extensive geographic footprint, positioning across the ICT
value chain and strong vendor and customer relationships combine to create a strategic competitive
advantage.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Strategic roadmap
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Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

The Group is committed to improving performance across the business and
has identified the following strategic priorities:
DATATEC GROUP

01

Government, municipalities, regulators

02

Improving shareholder returns

IMPROVING
SHAREHOLDER
RETURNS

Business development

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

• Consolidate Logicalis’ position
through organic and acquisition
activities
• Continue to look for optimum
value realisation opportunities
• Focus on process efficiency
• Leverage common services and
digital distribution platforms

ENHANCING
COMPETITIVENESS
AND PROFITABILITY
• Improve revenue growth,
EBITDA and cash generation
in Logicalis
• Improve revenue growth and
profitability in Westcon
International
• Improve working capital and
operating cash flow in Westcon
International
• Reduce central costs in
Westcon International
• Improve quality of earnings
and profit margins

LOGICALIS
•
•
•
•
•

Focus on improving the services and annuity revenue mix
Grow sales of IT products and services that drive cloud-based solutions
Continued bolt-on acquisitions
Focus on cost reduction activities in legacy areas of the business
Add to the capabilities of the common services platform to ensure it remains a business enabler

WESTCON
•
•
•
•
•

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

• Continuing share repurchases
• Growth in market share
• Closing the valuation gap

03

Improving shareholder returns

Focus on revenue growth and overall profitability
Continued focus on cost management and operational performance
Improve working capital and operating cash flow generation
Reduce central costs to below 1% of gross revenue
Improve internal delivery of shared services

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
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2019 DELIVERY
Strategic progress: DATATEC GROUP

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

Continued share buy-backs

23.8 million shares repurchased

12-month return to profitability in Westcon International

Significant improvement in EBITDA

Improve accounts receivables and net working capital in Westcon International

Significant improvement in DSO

Consolidate Logicalis’ position through organic and inorganic actions

Strong Logicalis performance; three acquisitions made
in FY19 resulting in US$54 million revenue and
US$4 million EBITDA

Continue to look for optimum value realisation opportunities

Progress made in all divisions; continued focus in FY20

Strategic progress: LOGICALIS

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

Continue to focus on improving the services and annuity revenue mix

Services and annuity revenue increased from 37% to
38% of revenue mix

Focus on cost reduction activities in legacy areas of the business

Cost optimisation activities completed in parts of
Europe and the US but will continue to be a focus area
in FY20

Continue the roll out of the common services platform to new countries as
an enabler for further efficiencies

Common services platform was rolled out in several
new countries

Seek further acquisitions to boost market share in existing territories and
to leverage Logicalis’ capabilities in emerging technologies

Acquired Clarotech in South Africa, Coasin Chile S.A.
(“Coasin”) in Chile and Corporate Network Integration
(Pty) Ltd (“CNI”) in Australia

Strategic progress: WESTCON INTERNATIONAL

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

Focus on revenue growth, margin improvement and profitability

Revenue increased by 9.8%, gross margins increased
from 9.8% to 10.2% and EBITDA increased by
US$54 million

Working capital normalisation and improving cash flow

Seven-day improvement in net working capital days;
17% reduction in net debt

Africa transformation, transition from loss to profit

Africa profitable overall in FY19

Leverage technology automation around SAP and customer-supplier tools

SAP and supporting applications fully operational and
stable

Reverse BPO to improve customer service and transaction execution

BPO reversal has been completed

Shared services centres in SA and Philippines for EMEA and Asia-Pacific

Shared service centres in the Philippines and South
Africa now in place

Continued focus on Comstor-Cisco differentiation

Cisco business has grown by over 12%

Expand security portfolio in emerging technologies

Security increased from 29% to 31% of revenue mix
and continues to evolve

Deployment of digital distribution technology – Cloud/aaS enabled ERP

Continued focus in FY20

Reduce ongoing central costs to below 1% of gross revenue

Central costs 1.3% of gross revenue

Strategic progress: CONSULTING AND FINANCIAL SERVICES

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

ANALYSYS MASON
Improve scale

Expansion of business through acquisition of Access
Market International Partners (“AMI Partners”)

Grow research practice

Research practice expanded through acquisition of
AMI Partners – Research revenue 22% of total revenue

Customer diversified

Larger customer base than FY18

DATATEC FINANCIAL SERVICES
Drive penetration and revenue growth

Decline in revenue; focus area in FY20

Expand geographical coverage

Improved geographical mix

Increase product efficiencies

Continued focus in FY20

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Our value creation business model

The Group has a
decentralised business
model which empowers its
divisional management
teams to make operational
decisions that are best
suited to their individual
operating needs but within
a strategic operating and
financial framework set
by the Group to ensure
sustained value for all
stakeholders.
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INPUTS

Financial
Equity:
Debt:

US$649 million (attributable to
equity holders of the parent)
US$141 million interest-bearing
debt

Human
• 10 130 employees
• Employees’ time, skills and knowledge

Social and relationship
• Stakeholder relationships
• Strong compliance and governance
culture
• Board diversity and succession
planning

Intellectual
• Technical expertise
• Strategic partnerships

Natural
• Group-wide power saving and
recycling initiatives

Manufactured
• Data centres
• Warehouses (distribution centres)

GOVERNANCE
AND ETHICS
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VALUE ADDING ACTIVITIES
(OUTPUTS)

• Improving shareholder returns
• Developing principal subsidiaries
• Enhancing competitiveness and
profitability
• Continuing growth through acquisitions
• Continuing share repurchases
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KEY OUTCOMES
FOR STAKEHOLDERS

Shareholders
• 6.6 US cents underlying* earnings per
share (“UEPS”)
• Strong balance sheet
• 298 US cents net asset value per share

Financial institutions
and debt funders
• US$32 million interest paid to
debt providers

LOGICALIS
Integration and
managed services
Provide wide geographical
exposure

Employees
• US$648 million in staff and directors’
salaries and benefits

Customers
• Positive feedback from customer
satisfaction surveys

WESTCON INTERNATIONAL
Technology distribution
Improving operating profitability

Vendors (suppliers)
• Positive feedback from vendor
satisfaction surveys

Foundation beneficiaries
• R7 million spent on CSI activities
at Datatec head office

CONSULTING AND
FINANCIAL SERVICES
Specialist consulting and
research offerings
Alternative financing expertise

Governments and regulators
• Compliance with regulatory
requirements
• US$39 million directly distributed
to governments

Datatec’s business model is underpinned by strong governance and ethics. Datatec is committed to
maintaining the highest standards of ethics and business conduct and to being ethical, honest, socially
responsible corporate citizens.
* Underlying earnings exclude impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments and assets, amortisation of
acquired intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fair value movements on acquisitionrelated financial instruments, restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations, and the taxation effect on all of the aforementioned.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Board of directors
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Board committee membership
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
Social and Ethics Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nominations Committee

Stephen Davidson

Jens Montanana

Ivan Dittrich

Independent non-executive
Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Age: 63

Age: 58

Age: 46

Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board:

1 February 2007

6 October 1994

30 May 2016

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Stephen was previously
Vice-Chairman, Investment
Banking, at WestLB Panmure
and Chief Executive and
Finance Director of Telewest
Communications plc. He has
a first-class honours degree in
Mathematics and Statistics from
the University of Aberdeen.

Jens is the founder and Chief
Ivan rejoined Datatec on 30 May
Executive Officer of Datatec
2016 from Vodacom, where he
Limited, established in 1986.
had been Group Chief Financial
Gender diversity
2019
Between 1989 and 1993, Jens
Officer from 15 June
2012 to
served as Managing Director and
31 July 2015. Prior to that he held
Vice-President of US Robotics
a number of senior executive
(UK) Limited, a wholly owned
positions at Datatec,
2 including
female) from
(29%Officer
subsidiary of US Robotics, Inc.
Group Chief Financial
Minimum
two females
which was acquired by 3Com in
May
2008 to June 2012, in a
target
1997. In 1993 he co-founded US
career that spanned 13 years.
start-up Xedia Corporation, which
Ivan qualified as a Chartered
was subsequently sold to Lucent
Accountant (South Africa)
5
Corporation in 1999. In 1994
at Deloitte South Africa and
Jens became Chairman and
also worked for
Chief Executive Officer of Datatec.
PricewaterhouseCoopers in
In 2001 Datatec established an
London. He completed the
independent non-executive
Oxford Advanced Management
Chairman
and Leadership programme at
2019 role after which Jens
Age
2019
continued to serve as Chief
Saïd Business School.
■ 40 – 50 years
Executive Officer. He became
■ 51 – 60 years
Executive
Chairman of Westcon
■ 61 – 70 years
2
International
in 2017.
2
2
(29% female)

Chairman

The Board is
responsible for
the leadership
and guidance of
the Group and
exercises control
over all divisions
and subsidiaries
by monitoring
the executive
management.

Other directorships:
• Non-executive Chairman of
Actual Experience plc (AIM
London)
• Non-executive Chairman of
PRS for Music
• Non-executive director of
Gender diversity
Informa plc (“LSE”)
• Non-executive director of
Rosenblatt plc (AIM London)

Further info online

Minimum
two females
target

Information
available in
Cross reference to sections
in this report
our leadership section.

Other directorships:

As of date
of publication

• Chairman of Corero plc
(AIM London)
5

3

Communities

Employees

Gender diversity

2019

Age

2019
■ 40 – 50 years
■ 51 – 60 years
■ 61 – 70 years

Government, municipalities, regulators

ImprovingMinimum
shareholder returns
two females
target

2
(29% female)

Tenure

2019
■ 0 – 3 years
■ 3 – 5 years
■ 9+ years

3

2

2

As of date
of publication

As of date
of publication

3
Business development

5

3

1

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Age

2019
■ 40 – 50 years
■ 51 – 60 years

Tenure
3

2019
■ 0 – 3 years
■ 3 – 5 years
■ 9+ years
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Ekta Singh-Bushell

John McCartney

Johnson Njeke

Maya Makanjee

Senior independent non-executive
director

Independent non-executive
director

Independent non-executive
director

Independent non-executive
director

Chairman

Chair (from 1 June 2019)

Chairman

Chairman (to 31 May 2019)

Age: 47

Age: 66

Age: 60

Age: 57

Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board:

Appointed to the Board:

1 June 2018

16 July 2007

1 September 2016

1 November 2018

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Skills, expertise and
experience:

Ekta serves on public and private
corporate boards bringing diverse
global management experience
and expertise in financial, digital
technology, cyber security and
risk operations. She was Chief
Operating Officer, Executive
Office at the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York, and previously
had a 17 year career in senior
managing partner roles with EY,
such as US Innovation & Digital
Strategy Leader, Northeast
Advisory People Leader and
Chief Information Security Officer.
She has led transformations
across multiple industries
impacted by digital technology
and information management
advances. Ekta is a Certified
Public Accountant (USA). She
has a Master of Electrical
Engineering & Computer Science
degree from the University of
California, Berkeley, and a
Bachelor of Engineering degree
from the University of Poona,
India.

John served as a non-executive
director of Datatec from May
1998 to September 2002 and
was then reappointed in July
2007. He was formerly President
and Chief Operations Officer of
US Robotics, Inc., which he
joined in 1984, as well as
President of 3Com Corporation’s
Client Access Unit.

Johnson was a Partner of
PricewaterhouseCoopers from
1990 to 1994. In 1994 he
co-founded Kagiso Trust
Investments. He was the
Managing Director of the Kagiso
group until his resignation in
2010. He is currently the
executive Chairman of Silver
Unicorn Coal and Minerals (Pty)
Ltd. He is a past Chairman of
the South African Institute of
Chartered Accountants and its
Education Committee. He served
in a number of prominent
advisory roles for both the public
and private sector. Johnson has
Bachelor of Commerce and
Bachelor of Accounting Science
(Honours) degrees and qualified
as a Chartered Accountant
(South Africa).

Other directorships:

Other directorships:
• Non-executive chairman of
Huron Consulting Group
(NASDAQ)

Other directorships:
• Non-executive director of Delta
Property Fund
• Trustee and chairman of
Hollard Foundation Trust

• Non-executive director
of TTEC (NASDAQ)

• Non-executive director and
chairman of MMI Holdings
Limited

• Non-executive director
Net 1 UEPS Technologies Inc.
(NASDAQ, JSE)

• Non-executive director of Sasol
Limited and also serves on the
audit committee

• Non-executive director
Huron Consulting Group
(NASDAQ)

• Executive chairman of Silver
Unicorn Coal and Minerals
(Pty) Ltd

• Non-executive director
Designer Brands Inc. (NYSE)

Maya is an experienced
independent non-executive
director who currently sits on
public and private company
boards, as well as on those of
non-profit organisations. She has
gained executive experience in the
telecommunications, financial
services, consulting and fast
moving consumer goods
industries, and has held director
positions in human resources,
marketing communication,
corporate affairs and reputation
management, strategy, and
business re-engineering. Maya has
extensive experience in SADC
countries, as well as in some
markets in Asia.
She was previously an executive
director of Vodacom (Pty) Ltd,
Nestlé South Africa (Pty) Ltd
and SABMiller (Africa and Asia),
Chairman of the Vodacom
Foundation South Africa and a
board member of World Wide
Fund for Nature. Maya holds a
Master of Business Leadership
(cum laude) degree, from the
University of South Africa, a
Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of KwaZuluNatal in Durban and a Bachelor
of Fine Arts degree in Dance from
the University of Mumbai.

Other directorships:

• Non-executive director of Tiger
Brands Limited
• Non-executive director of Mpact
Limited
• Non-executive director of AIG
South Africa Group
• Non-executive director of
Truworths International Limited
• Non-executive director of the
NOSA Group
• Trustee of the Nelson Mandela
Foundation
• Non-executive director of FEM
Education Foundation
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Governance creating and
protecting value
The Board contributes to strategic
delivery and value creation by focusing
on responsible and ethical leadership
to ensure a sustainable business.
The Board periodically reviews
opportunities and threats it believes
could have the most significant impact
on the Group’s ability to have
sustainable value for its stakeholders.

Compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and governance practices

Collective responsibility or primary
governance structures and roles

Custodians of corporate
governance

Cultivation and exhibition of
ethical characteristics
Activities

Leadership, ethics and
corporate citizenship

Strategy, performance
and reporting

Risk, oversight, compliance
and assurance

Remuneration

Stakeholder relations

Corporate governance

The Board is confident that the
improved corporate governance
achieved through the Group’s
governance structures has created
value in the form of improved financial
performance, sustainable business
model, transparent shareholder
relationships and high reputational
integrity.

Corporate governance
practices

Va l u

e creation

1

2

3

Achievement
and benefits
realised
through good
governance
outcomes

Delivery on
strategic
objectives

Achievement
of stakeholder
goals

• Operate efficiently
• Invest strategically
• Engage and nurture
talent
• Grow reputation
• Optimise capital

• Preferred business
partner
• Employer of choice
• Good corporate
citizen

• Ethical culture
• Effective control
• Solid financial
performance
• Legitimacy

Datatec’s view on corporate
governance is to approach it as more
than just a compliance exercise, but
rather, as a tool that contributes to
improved operational decision-making
and business performance.

Datatec believes that good corporate
governance contributes to enhanced
accountability, fairness and
transparency.
The Board is ultimately accountable
and responsible for the performance
of and affairs of the Company and is
committed to upholding the King IV™
principles. The Board sets the tone
for the Company through ethical
leadership and is committed to
maintaining the highest standards
of ethics and business conduct.
The Board appreciates that these
principles are essential for good
governance and are important to
successful stakeholder engagement.
The standards of disclosure are
regulated by the Companies Act, the
JSE Listings Requirements and the
King IV™ Code.
The Board appreciates that effective
corporate governance is a key driver
of sustainability and acknowledges its
responsibility in this regard, including to
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report openly thereon to stakeholders.
Throughout the year (and up to the
date of approval of this Integrated
Report and annual financial
statements) the principles articulated in
the King IV™ Code have been applied
or, if not applied, explained.

reference to the King IV™ Code and
the Companies Act. The directors are
of the opinion that they have adhered
to the terms of reference set out in the
Board Charter for the year.
A copy of the Board Charter
Further info online
is
available on the website
www.datatec.com.

The Board
The Board is responsible for the
leadership and guidance of the Group
and exercises control over all divisions
and subsidiaries by monitoring
executive management. The Board is
at the head of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and ensures that
the Group is a responsible corporate
citizen, cognisant of the impact its
operations may have on the
environment and society in which it
operates, while acting in accordance
with Datatec’s Code of Conduct.
The Board is governed by a formal
Board Charter that regulates the
parameters within which it operates
and defines its roles and responsibilities
in accordance with legislation and
global best practice with particular

Cross reference to sections
in this report

The Board ensures that the
governance of risk, technology and
information through the Board
committees support the organisation
in setting and achieving its strategic
objectives. The assurance services, in
the form of external and internal audit
functions, further enable an effective
control environment which supports
the Board’s decision-making.
Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

The responsibilities of the Chairman
and CEO, and those of other nonexecutive and executive directors, are
clearly separated to ensure a balance
of authority which precludes any one
director from exercising unfettered
powers of decision-making.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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The non-executive directors draw on
their experience, skills and business
acumen to ensure impartial and
objective viewpoints in decisionmaking processes and standards
of conduct. The mix of technical,
entrepreneurial, financial and business
skills of the directors is considered to
be balanced, thus enhancing the
effectiveness of the Board.
To fulfil their responsibilities adequately,
directors have unrestricted access to
timely financial and other information,
records and documents relating to
the Group. The Board receives
presentations from the management
teams of its major subsidiaries,
enabling it to explore specific issues
and developments in greater depth.
Directors are provided with guidelines
regarding their duties and
responsibilities and a formal orientation
programme has been established to
familiarise incoming directors with the
Group’s business, competitive position,
strategic plans and objectives.

The directors’ attendance at Board meetings during FY19 and subsequently to the date of this report:

SJ Davidson
IP Dittrich
O Ighodaro
JF McCartney
M Makanjee
JP Montanana
MJN Njeke
CS Seabrooke
NJ Temple
E Singh-Bushell
P = present
n = not a director

7 March
2018

15 May
2018

19 July
2018

16 October
2018

17 January
2019

14 March
2019

14 May
2019

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P
P

P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
P

P
P
P
A

P

P

P

P

A = apologies – unavoidable absence

Board representation and
contribution to value creation
Diversity is enshrined in Datatec’s Code
of Conduct and the Board strongly
supports the principle of diversity at
Board level as an essential element of
good corporate governance. A diverse
Board includes differences in the skills,
industry experience, cultural
background, race, gender and other
distinctions between members of the
Board. These differences will be

considered in determining the optimum
composition of the Board and when
possible will be balanced appropriately.
This diversity facilitates an environment
for constructive dialogue and enables
the Board to consider the needs of a
wide range of stakeholder interests.
During the year under review,
there were some changes to the
composition of the Board. The Board
is of the view that the most recent

changes to the Board will result in
greater diversity in terms of skills and
experience, race and gender. The
Board believes that these governance
qualities enable the Group to create
value for stakeholders in a sustainable
manner as described in the strategy
section on page 7 of this report.
The policy on promotion of diversity at
Further info online
Board
level is available on the website
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities
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VALUE UNLOCKED IN FY19
ACQUISITIONS
Clarotech

Datatec’s Analysys Mason
acquires AMI Partners

Logicalis acquires
Coasin Chile

Analysys Mason Limited acquired
100% of the issued share capital
of Access Markets International
Partners (“AMI Partners”).

Logicalis Group has acquired 100%
of the issued share capital of Coasin
Chile S.A. (“Coasin”), a Chilean ICT
services and solutions provider,
which also has operations in Peru.

The acquisition will complement and
extend Analysys Mason’s research
portfolio. Combining AMI Partners’
extensive footprint in the Small
and Medium Business (“SMB”)
ICT space and Analysys Mason’s
extensive TMT research will provide
exceptional benefits in geographical
reach and vertical expertise for
clients worldwide.

Logicalis acquires CNI
Thomas Duryea Logicalis has
acquired Corporate Network
Integration (Pty) Ltd (“CNI”), a
Microsoft-certified gold partner
based in Melbourne, strengthening
Logicalis’ position in the cloud
services market.

10 130

R7 million

US$648

5 946

Total

employees

million

Invested in wages and
benefits

4 532
Individuals benefiting
from ICT skill training

Westcon SA

BBBEE
status Level 1

CSI spend
at head office

Individuals given access to
computer technology

US$37

million

in capital expenditure

US$50.8

million

share repurchases
(US$43.9 million in FY19;
US$6.9 million subsequently)

Logicalis acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of Clarotech Holdings
(Pty) Ltd (“Clarotech”), an internet
protocol telephony (“IPT”) cloud and
managed services business based
in Cape Town, enabling Logicalis to
combine a focused managed services
operation with its existing business in
South Africa, to support SMBs as well
as larger corporates.

Revenue

US$4.3

billion
EBITDA

US$86.8

million

Strong

partner and vendor
relationships

UEPS

6.6 US
cents
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT
for the year ended 28 February 2019

6%
of the value
was used for
SHARE REPURCHASES

No DISTRIBUTION
TO SHAREHOLDERS

81% of the value
created was distributed
to EMPLOYEES in the
form of salaries, wages
and benefits

6%

0%

4%

81%
5% of the value created
was distributed directly
to GOVERNMENTS in
the jurisdictions in which
the Group operates

34%

5%

4% of the value created
during FY19 was
RETAINED in the Group
for reinvestment to
sustain and expand
the business

3%
0%

57%
3%

FY18

3%

4%

4% of the value
created was paid to
the Group’s PROVIDERS
OF CAPITAL in the form
of interest payment

During FY19, Datatec added

US$798 million of value
FY18: US$1 042 million

which was distributed among our key stakeholders

Revenue from continuing operations
Interest received from continuing operations
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Less: Paid to suppliers for materials and services for continuing operations
Total value added
Distributed as follows:
Employees and directors
Salaries, wages and benefits for continuing operations
Providers of capital
Financing costs from continuing operations
Share repurchases
Distributions to shareholders
Government
Taxation – current from continuing operations
Total value distributed
Portion of value reinvested to sustain and expand the business
Depreciation and amortisation from continuing operations
Impairment of joint venture from continuing operations
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure from continuing operations
Deferred taxation from continuing operations
Non-controlling interests
Equity holders of the parent (excluding the gain on disposal of subsidiaries)
Total value distributed and reinvested

FY19
US$’000

FY18
US$’000

4 332 381
9 568
11 694
(3 555 366)
798 277

3 923 715
8 670
136 341
(3 026 603)
1 042 123

648 004

596 352

32 145
43 881
–

27 073
34 629
352 479

38 523
762 553

31 123
1 041 656

38 338
–
–
(17 564)
1 816
13 134

51 563
1 000
55 112
(12 658)
(2 568)
(91 982)

798 277

1 042 123
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Defining value as ‘sustainable profitability’, refers to growing our profits and
securing the Group’s sustainability in a broader sense, by creating value for all
stakeholders in the short, medium and long term.
To create value for all our stakeholders we focus on:

Our relationships with our stakeholders, their needs and meeting their expectations
While:
Ensuring
we are a
responsible
corporate
citizen

Leading
ethically
and
effectively

Providing
strategic
direction

Ensuring
we achieve
our core
purpose and
value

Adopting a
stakeholderinclusive
approach

The stakeholders we engage with are:

1
Shareholders

4

3

2

5

Customers
Employees

6

Vendors

Financial
institutions and
debt funders

Governments
and regulators

7
Foundation
beneficiaries

We rely on seven key stakeholder groups to create value. Here we disclose the key issues of each and our response in
addressing these. We also provide an assessment of our relationships, as indicated below:
STRONG RELATIONSHIPS

DEVELOPING RELATIONSHIPS

WEAK RELATIONSHIPS

1. Shareholders
Key issues raised
• Value realisation
• Sustainable returns
• Governance
• Risk management
• Remuneration policy
• Executive directors’ remuneration
• Share-based payment schemes

Our response
• Implemented numerous initiatives to
improve operational efficiencies, cut costs,
enhance profitability
• Investor roadshows and 1:1 meetings with
analysts
• Consulted extensively with shareholders on
governance matters, remuneration and
share-based payment schemes

Key outcomes
• EBITDA US$86.8 million
• 6.6 US cents UEPS
• 23.8 million shares repurchased
• Strong balance sheet
• Stringent focus on application of good
governance principles
• Risk management focus in ARCCs
• Revised remuneration policy
• Reduction in basic salaries of CEO (20%)
and CFO (10%)
• Revised share-based payment schemes

2. Financial institutions and debt funders
Key issues raised
• Financial health
• Liquidity
• Ratios
• Cash generation
• Risk management
• Growth prospects
• Compliance
• Covenant adherence

Our response
• Implemented cost reduction programme
• Renewal of debt facilities in Westcon EMEA
• Deleveraging to strengthen balance sheet

Key outcomes
• Westcon central cost reduction
• US$32 million interest paid to debt
providers
• Improved interest cover
• Improved operating cash flows
• Four strategic acquisitions made in FY19
• Improved ROIC
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3. Employees
Key issues raised

• Ongoing training and personal development
• Non-discriminatory work environment
• Opportunities to obtain multiple vendor
accreditations

• Nature, variety and breadth of work
• Performance management
• Incentives and rewards

Our response

• Decentralised engagement programmes
•
•
•
•

– operation specific
Education, training and development
programmes – operation specific
Employee performance assessments
Group and regional tracking of employee
turnover rate and drivers
Refreshed share incentive schemes

Key outcomes

• US$648 million in staff salaries and benefits
• US$1.5 million cash paid for share-based
payments

• Commitment to diversity and inclusion
• Ongoing employee development
• Long-term and short-term employee
incentives

4. Customers
Key issues raised

• Effectiveness of processing and transacting
•
•
•
•
•
•

systems
Value for money and quality of service
Premium (best-in-class) vendors
Vendor profile (broad offering)
High degree of technical competence
Diverse product and service offering across
Group
Innovation and early adaptation to
emerging trends

Our response

• Fixed process errors resulting from
•
•
•
•
•

transition to ERP at Westcon International
Implemented digital enablement technology
tools to improve customer experience and
speed to market
Customer engagement programmes to
ensure customer needs and expectations
are met
Strong partnership approach to deliver best
results
Customer satisfaction surveys
Vendor incubation accelerates access to
emerging technologies

Key outcomes

• Positive feedback from satisfaction surveys
• Strong vendor offerings
• Improving services and product mix

5. Vendors
Key issues raised

• Alignment with vendor “approach
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

to market” messaging
Meeting vendor financial targets
Accreditations (training)
Quality of training programmes
Maintaining technical edge in light of
ongoing market evolution
Scope for alignment and scale of
operations
Geographic reach
Financial health
Innovation and early adaptation to
emerging trends

Our response

• Differentiated global relationship
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

management strengthens partnerships
Active participation at global vendor
conferences
Partner enablement programmes drive
global expansion, channel development
and scale
Global services capabilities extend partner
reach
Vendor incubation provides competitive
advantage
Vendor satisfaction surveys
Vendor audits and assessments
Contract renewals

Key outcomes

• Positive feedback from satisfaction surveys

6. Governments and regulators
Key issues raised

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Investment
Employment
Taxation
Governance
Compliance
Impact on energy usage (IT centres)
Import and customs controls
Diversity
Empowerment and transformation
Data privacy

Our response

• Maintain sound governance policies and
•
•
•
•
•
•

processes
Regulatory returns/submissions made on
time
Complied with JSE Listings Requirements
Tax compliance policy (UK)
BBBEE certification for SA operations and
improved BBBEE ownership credentials
Board policy on diversity
Adhere to strict data protection policies and
processes

Key outcomes

• Westcon SA BBBEE status – Level 1
• Logicalis SA BBBEE status – Level 4
• US$39 million directly distributed to
governments

7. Foundation beneficiaries
Key issues raised

• Development of education (specifically
•

mathematics, science, English and IT) in
previously disadvantaged communities
Charitable and compassionate aid

Our response

• Partnerships with various organisations
•
•

committed to improving education in
under-resourced schools for learners and
teachers
Partnerships with non-profit organisations
that provide ICT skills for unemployed youth
Partnerships with organisations that provide
secondary school level intervention
programmes focused on improving results
in mathematics, science and English

Key outcomes

• Donated over R7 million
• Provided approximately 6 000 individuals
with access to computer technology

• Provided ICT skills training to over
4 500 individuals

• School level intervention programmes in

mathematics and science benefited over
3 000 learners
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“During FY19 we
undertook a
comprehensive
programme of
shareholder
consultation covering
governance matters
such as Board
composition and
in particular
remuneration.
John McCartney,
the Chairman of
the Remuneration
Committee,
accompanied me on
a series of meetings
and consultations with
major shareholders
covering about 75%
of our shareholder
base.”
Stephen

Davidson

Chairman
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the year. The division has returned to
EBITDA profitability and the central cost
base has significantly reduced.
Furthermore, the ERP system is now
operating effectively after a long and
disruptive multi-year implementation
process. The Business Process
Outsourcing (“BPO”) which had a
negative impact on business operations
was completely reversed in the year
and Westcon International now
successfully operates with in-house
shared service centres in the
Philippines and South Africa.

The financial year ended 28 February
2019 (“FY19”) marked a return to
profitability for the Group. While
Logicalis continued to perform well,
in line with the strategy to build value
in this business, the turnaround of
the Westcon International business
proceeded successfully with
management attaining or exceeding
the targets set at the start of the year.
Following the distribution of
US$350 million to shareholders by way
of a special cash dividend of R23, with
scrip distribution alternative in January
2018, the Company has undertaken
a series of general share repurchases
during FY19 amounting to
US$43.9 million and totalling
23.8 million shares. Share repurchases
of US$7.4 million (3.3 million shares)
have been completed between
1 March 2019 and 31 May 2019.

The Company undertook three general
share repurchases under separate
shareholder mandates provided at
a general meeting on 24 July 2018,
at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
on 20 September 2018 and at a
general meeting on 15 January 2019.
These repurchases amounted to
US$43.9 million and totalled
23.8 million shares which have been
cancelled, reducing the Company’s
shares in issue to 219.2 million at
28 February 2019. From 1 March
to 31 May 2019, the Company
repurchased a further 3.3 million shares
at a cost of US$7.4 million and the
Board intends to continue the
share repurchase process.

The reshaping of the Westcon
International business progressed
successfully during FY19 in line with the
commitments made at the beginning of

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Further info online

Improving shareholder returns

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Logicalis is the largest profit contributor
to the Group and has the widest
geographical footprint. Our strategy
to develop and grow Logicalis globally,
through organic and acquisition
activities, was executed effectively
during FY19. The continual shift to
cloud-based delivery of IT helps to drive
mobility solutions, network security and
converged computing applications built
in increasingly virtual environments using
external data centres. Customers need
trusted partners to provide advisory
services and support. Logicalis is well
positioned in all these areas and
we are optimistic about its future.

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Share repurchases

Financial and operational
overview

Overall, the underlying* earnings per
share for the year of 6.6 US cents was
an improvement compared to the
underlying* loss per share of 17.2 US
cents from continuing operations
incurred in the prior period.
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Further info online

Introduction

Group revenues increased by 10.4%
in FY19 to US$4.33 billion with the
revenue growth in both Logicalis and
Westcon International. The return to
profitability of Westcon International
improved Group EBITDA to
US$86.8 million from US$26.7 million
in the prior year.

Page 20

Employees

SYNNEX earn-out

The result of the arbitration to
determine the amount of the earn-out
receivable relating to the disposal of
Westcon Americas to SYNNEX was
announced on 29 May 2019 after the
effective date of this Integrated Report.

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

The arbitrator appointed by the parties
to determine the quantum of the
earn-out has ruled that the amount of
US$14 million is payable by SYNNEX
to the Group.

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

The Board has previously stated its
intention to return the SYNNEX
earn-out to shareholders and intends
to make a further special dividend
announcement in this regard shortly.

Government, municipalities, regulators

Governance and Board changes

We are acutely aware of the importance
of good governance and risk
management. We strive for excellence
in governance and believe it to be a
fundamental contributor to the
sustainability of our business.
At the head of our governance
structure is the Board of directors and

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

* Excluding impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments
and assets, amortisation of acquired intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange
movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fiar value movements on acquisition-related
financial instruments, restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations and the
taxation effect on all of the aforementioned.

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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there have been several changes in its
composition during FY19.
In June 2018, we welcomed
Ekta Singh-Bushell as a new
independent non-executive director.
Ekta brings a wealth of diverse global
management experience and expertise
in financial, digital technology, cyber
security and risk operations. Ekta joined
the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee and subsequently became
the lead/senior independent nonexecutive director.
In November 2018, Maya Makanjee
joined the Board as an independent
non-executive director. Maya has
considerable experience on the boards
of leading South African companies and
foundations. Maya joined the Social and
Ethics Committee and will become its
Chairperson on 1 June 2019. She also
joined the Remuneration Committee
and we intend that she will take over the
chair of that committee in due course.
At the AGM in September 2018,
Chris Seabrooke retired from the Board
after 24 years of service having been a
director of Datatec since 1994 when
the Company was listed on the JSE.
Nick Temple also retired from the Board
at the same time having served for
16 years. Both these gentlemen
contributed an enormous amount of
expertise and experience to the Board
and their valuable and always
independent contributions to decisionmaking will be missed.
Funke Ighodaro resigned from the
Board in October 2018 as a necessary
condition of a new executive role
elsewhere. Her eight years of service
on the Board, Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee and
Nominations Committee were highly
appreciated.
The evolution of the Board and
succession planning are always at the
forefront of our minds and to this end
we are engaged in a search process
led by our senior independent
non-executive director for another
non-executive director to bring the
Board complement up to eight
directors (two executive and six
non-executive directors).

Values, Code of Conduct
and environmental, social
and corporate governance

Our values inform and underpin the
way we do business across the Group.
They provide a moral framework
against which we can measure our

behaviour. Our imbedded values
together with the talent, skills and the
commitment of our workforce are key
success factors that position us well
for the future.
All employees sign up to the Datatec
Code of Conduct which clearly sets out
the standards of behaviour we require
from our employees and business
partners to operate ethically and in
accordance with the United Nations
Global Compact’s 10 principles in the
areas of human rights, labour, the
environment and anti-corruption.
It is a business and moral imperative
for Datatec to proactively manage our
environmental, social and governance
impacts and performance. We have a
number of initiatives that bear testimony
to our commitment in this regard. As
a global organisation we feel strongly
about supporting the communities in
the areas we operate. Our employees
help identify areas where we can make
a difference and work collectively
towards helping, raising funds and
supporting a variety of volunteering and
other initiatives.

We have considerably enhanced our
Cross reference to sections report on pages 72 to 95 of
remuneration
in this report
the Integrated Report where the consultation
process and its results are set out.
Communities

I hope that the changes the
Remuneration Committee has made
to executive remuneration and the
improved disclosures in the remuneration
report will meet with the approval of
shareholders and enable a more
favourable vote on the two non-binding
advisory votes on remuneration at the
2019 AGM.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

We welcome all shareholders to attend
the AGM on 29 August 2019 and we will
continue our engagement with
shareholders.
Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Employees

As set out in the remuneration report
I referenced above, we aim to reward all
employees appropriately for their
contribution to the Group’s operating and
financial performance. We apply fair and
responsible pay principles to all employees
across the Group and seek to promote a
common interest with shareholders.

Further info online

Cross reference
to sections
More
information
on our social impact
in this report
can be read on pages 44 to 51.

Communities

We continue to monitor our carbon
footprint and we strive to reduce it as
far as possible across all areas of the
business.
Employees

Our Social and Ethics Committee
monitors and regulates the impact of
the Group on its stakeholders and
reports to the Board which is ultimately
responsible for Group sustainability.
Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Shareholder engagement

I am always pleased to engage with
shareholders to ensure their views are
heard and understood by the Board.
During FY19 we undertook a
comprehensive programme of
shareholder consultation covering
governance matters such as Board
composition and in particular,
remuneration. John McCartney, the
Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee, accompanied me on a
series of meetings and consultations
with major shareholders covering about
75% of our shareholder base. We also
participated in a conference call open
to all shareholders to contribute to the
discussion. This consultation process
resulted in some significant changes
being made to the Company’s
remuneration policy and
implementation thereof.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

I would like to express my thanks on
behalf of the Board to each and every
one of our approximately 10 000
employees whose commitment and
capabilities contribute to the Group’s
success.

Conclusion

I am optimistic about the future of
Datatec Group.
We have the right strategy in place to
unlock value in the Logicalis business.
Logicalis is well positioned in all areas of
its operations and we are working
towards growing the services side of the
business further to drive better annuity
revenue. This will ultimately enhance our
position in the markets we already
operate in to gain better scale.
Following the successful turnaround
in FY19, Westcon International is
expected to deliver a significant
improvement in efficiency and execution
while further reducing its central costs.
We are building on the value realisation
created by the disposals in FY18 and we
will continue to analyse opportunities to
unlock more value for our shareholders.

Stephen Davidson
Chairman
31 May 2019
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The Group delivered on the commitments set
in the prior year, resulting in a much-improved
financial and operational performance across
all divisions.
Logicalis produced strong results despite
emerging market currency headwinds,
especially in its key Latin America region.
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Strategic overview

Datatec’s strategy is to improve
shareholder returns over the medium
term through a combination of
corporate and business development
actions aimed at enhancing the
competitiveness and profitability of its
subsidiaries and operating divisions.
Logicalis is the largest profit contributor
to the Group. The division also has the
widest geographical exposure and
Datatec intends to continue to develop
and grow Logicalis globally, through
organic and acquisition activities.

Westcon International’s recovery is now
established, having met the principal objectives
around shared services and central cost
reductions, with further improvements
expected.
Building on the successful turnaround of FY19,
we are confident that our operations are well
positioned to improve their performances
further and support our Group strategy.

Jens

Page 22

Ivan

Montanana

Dittrich

CEO

CFO

In FY19, Logicalis delivered a strong
performance while executing on its
strategy. Revenue grew by 11.3%
and earnings before interest, taxation,
depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA”) by 8.4% in relation to the
financial year ended 28 February 2018
(“FY18”).
Westcon International is 90% owned
by Datatec and 10% by SYNNEX
Corporation (“SYNNEX”). In line with
the commitment made at the beginning
of the year, the division has returned to
EBITDA profitability and the central
cost base has been reduced.
Further central cost-reduction
targets previously published are
expected to be met in FY20.
The ERP system is now operating
effectively after a long and disruptive
multi-year implementation process.
A full BPO reversal was completed
with in-house shared service centres
established in the Philippines and
South Africa.
The earn-out payment relating to the
disposal of Westcon Americas to
SYNNEX had not yet been determined
at the date of this report (16 May 2019)
and the parties remain engaged in an
arbitration process.
Further info online

Cross reference
to sections
For
more
information refer to the
in this report
Chairman’s report on page 20.

The comparative results for FY18 are
reported in the form of “continuing
operations”. These exclude the Westcon
Americas and Logicalis SMC businesses
which were classified as a “Disposal
Group” in accordance with IFRS 5 in the
prior year. Where comparative figures
are stated as “Combined”, they include
the Disposal Group.
Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Further info online
Business development

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators
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US$’000

February
2019

February
2018

Revenue
Gross profit
Gross margin (%)
Operating costs
Operating profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”)
EBITDA margin (%)
Operating profit/(loss)
Net finance costs
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
Underlying* earnings/(loss) per share (“UEPS”) (US cents)

4 332 381
687 744
15.9
(600 983)
86 761
2.0
48 423
(22 577)
24 215
(20 959)
3 256
6.6

3 923 715
636 045
16.2
(609 348)
26 697
0.7
(80 978)
(18 403)
(99 352)
(18 465)
(117 817)
(5.6)

6.6
–

(17.2)
11.6

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Revenue
Group revenues for the period were US$4.33 billion,
up 10.4% (FY18: US$3.92 billion).

Profit before tax
Profit before tax was US$24.2 million
(FY18: US$99.4 million loss before tax).

Gross profit
Gross profit was US$687.7 million
(FY18: US$636.0 million). Group gross margins
in FY19 were 15.9% (FY18: 16.2%).

Taxation
A tax charge of US$21.0 million has arisen on
pre-tax profits for the year of US$24.2 million.
The effective tax rate of 86.6% continues to be
adversely affected by losses arising in Westcon
International’s UK, Africa and Asia operations for
which deferred tax assets recognition has been
limited. As at 28 February 2019, there are
estimated tax loss carry forwards of
US$186.8 million with an estimated future
tax benefit of US$40.0 million, of which only
US$16.3 million has been recognised as
a deferred tax asset.

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Operating costs
Overall operating costs were US$600.9 million
(FY18: US$609.3 million). Included in the
operating costs are total restructuring costs
of US$17.5 million (FY18: US$16.9 million).
EBITDA
EBITDA was US$86.8 million
(FY18: US$26.7 million) and EBITDA margin was
2.0% (FY18: 0.7%). EBITDA for FY19 was
more than three times higher than FY18.

Communities

Further info online
Employees

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Government, municipalities, regulators

Communities
Improving shareholder returns

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Improving shareholder returns

Operating profit
Operating profit was US$48.4 million
contrasting with a US$81.0 million operating
loss in FY18.

Further info online

Business development

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Net finance costs
The net interest charge increased to
US$22.6 million (FY18: US$18.4 million), mainly
as a result of increased interest expense in
Logicalis Latin America to fund the working
capital associated with the large multi-year
contract in that region.
* Excluding impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or
loss on sale of investments and assets, amortisation of acquired
intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange movements,
acquisition-related adjustments, fiar value movements on
acquisition-related financial instruments, restructuring costs
relating to fundamental reorganisations and the taxation effect
on all of the aforementioned.

Underlying* earnings per share
Underlying* earnings per share were
6.6 US cents (FY18 loss per share: 5.6 US cents
from combined operations and 17.2 US cents
from continuing operations). Headline earnings
per share were 0.7 US cents (FY18 loss
per share: 19.1 US cents from combined
operations and 29.9 US cents from
continuing operations).

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators
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Business development

Cash
The Group generated US$69.0 million of
cash from operations during FY19 (FY18:
US$17.6 million) and ended the year with a net
debt of US$100.8 million (FY18: US$6.4 million).
The net debt has been calculated as: cash of
US$40.4 million (FY18: US$161.3 million);
short-term borrowings and current portion
of long-term debt of US$109.8 million
(FY18: US$106.0 million); and long-term debt
of US$31.4 million (FY18: US$61.7 million).

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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SYNNEX earn-out

The earn-out payment relating to the
disposal of Westcon Americas to
SYNNEX had not yet been determined
at the reporting date (16 May 2019)
while the parties remained engaged in
an arbitration process. The FY19
results contain an estimate of the
minimum earn-out payment receivable
of US$11.7 million after costs, which is
included in profit from discontinued
operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
The profit of US$11.7 million is
included in basic earnings per share,
but not in underlying* earnings per
share. The Group has recognised an
asset for the minimum earn-out
receivable and disclosed a contingent
asset for any additional earn-out above
the minimum which may be receivable
if so determined by the arbitration.
Further info online

Cross reference
to sections
For
more
information refer to the
in this report
Chairman’s report on page 20.

Communities

Liquidity

The Group is expected to generate
sufficient cash to settle liabilities as
they fall due. Working capital remains
well controlled across the Group and
net working capital days improved
markedly in Westcon International as
detailed in the divisional review on
page 41. Trade receivables and
inventory are of a sound quality and
adequate provisions are held against
both.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns
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Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Shareholder distributions: dividend
policy and share repurchases
The Group’s policy is to maintain a
fixed three times cover relative to
underlying* earnings when declaring
dividends. The level of underlying*
earnings in FY19 would only support a
small dividend under this policy and as
a result, the Board has decided not to
declare a dividend for FY19.
The Board has instituted a structured
programme of general share
repurchases in order to return cash
to shareholders. During FY19 the
Company undertook three separate
general share repurchase exercises
under separate shareholder mandates:
• General meeting on 24 July 2018
– 4.97 million shares
• AGM on 20 September 2018 –
11.89 million shares
• General meeting on 15 January
2019 – 6.90 million shares up to
28 February 2019
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Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Section 48(8) of the Companies Act
stipulates that any decision by the
Board of directors of a company that
involves the repurchase of more than
5% of the company’s issued securities
of a particular class must be approved
by a special resolution of the
shareholders of the company
compliant with sections 114 and 115
of the Companies Act, which require,
inter alia, an independent expert report
on the repurchase.
The Department of Trade and Industry
in South Africa has recently proposed
changes to the Companies Act among
which is a proposal to specifically
exclude share repurchases undertaken
on a recognised stock exchange from
the scope of section 48(8). The
proposed changes to the Companies
Act will align the Companies Act to the
JSE Listings Requirements in this
regard, which will allow general share
repurchases up to 20% of the issued
share capital.

AMI Partners
On 17 July 2018, Analysys Mason
Limited acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of AMI Partners
based in the United States for
US$3.5 million. AMI Partners is a
SMB ICT-focused global research
and consulting firm that specialises
in go-to-market (“GTM”) opportunity
assessment, tracking buying
behaviour, customer segmentation,
channel partner ecosystem
dynamics and sales enablement
enhanced with predictive analytics.

Employees

Coasin Chile
Effective 3 September 2018,
Logicalis completed the acquisition
of 100% of the issued share capital
of Coasin, a Chilean ICT services
and solutions provider, which also
owns 100% of C2 Mining Solutions
S.A.C. based in Peru. This interest
was acquired for a cash
consideration of US$17.3 million
from Logicalis’ resources. Coasin’s
experience in the mining and
financial services verticals creates
opportunities for Logicalis to better
serve its multinational clients while
broadening its services scope to
new customer groups.

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

The Company has limited the
shareholder mandates for repurchases
to 5% of the issued share capital
having obtained legal advice that
section 48(8) of the Companies Act
would be applicable to a general
repurchase of shares undertaken
in accordance with the JSE Listings
Requirements.
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Acquisitions

These repurchases amounted
to US$43.9 million and totalled
23.8 million shares which have been
cancelled, reducing the Company’s
shares in issue to 219.2 million at
28 February 2019.
The repurchase under the shareholder
mandate given at the general meeting
on 15 January 2019 has continued
during the Company’s closed period
ending 16 May 2019 under a fixed
mandate to the Company’s broker in
accordance with paragraph 5.72(h) of
the JSE Listings Requirements and
following notification to the JSE prior
to the start of the closed period.
From 1 March to 14 May 2019, the
Company’s broker repurchased
3.1 million shares under the
fixed mandate at a cost of
US$6.9 million.
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Clarotech
Effective 3 September 2018,
Logicalis acquired 100% of the
issued share capital of Clarotech,
an IPT cloud and managed services
business based in Cape Town.
The 100% interest was acquired
for a cash consideration of
US$3.4 million. This acquisition
enables Logicalis to combine a
focused managed services
operation with its existing business
in South Africa, to support SMBs
as well as larger corporates.
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CNI
On 8 October 2018, Logicalis
acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of CNI for a cash
consideration of US$3.1 million.
CNI is a Microsoft-certified gold
partner based in Melbourne,
Australia and this acquisition brings
Logicalis a full suite of leading
Microsoft cloud service capabilities,
significantly strengthening the
Group’s position in this growing
market segment and enabling
Logicalis to deliver a broader scope
of services to new and existing
customers.
As a result of these acquisitions,
goodwill and other intangible assets
increased by US$13.1 million and
US$8.9 million respectively. None of
the goodwill recognised is expected to
be deductible for income tax purposes.
The revenue and EBITDA included
from the acquisitions in FY19 are
US$55.2 million and US$4.1 million
respectively; profit after tax included
from these acquisitions was
US$2.9 million. Had the acquisition
dates been 1 March 2018, revenue
attributable to these acquisitions
would have been approximately
US$110 million. It is not practical to
establish EBITDA and profit after tax
that would have been contributed to
the Group if they had been included for
the entire year. All identifiable intangible
assets have been recognised and
accounted for at fair value.

Divisional reviews

Logicalis
A review of Logicalis’ financial
performance can be found in the
Logicalis divisional review on pages 28
to 35. Logicalis will maintain its
strategy of making smaller bolt-on
acquisitions financed using its own
balance sheet and external credit lines
as appropriate.
Digital innovation is accelerating;
business technology is undergoing
a major shift. With a clear focus on
understanding its customer business
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priorities in areas such as risk and
compliance, operational costs, data
governance and innovation, Logicalis
is helping customers succeed by
ensuring its transformation outpaces
the momentum of change in its sector.

the telecoms, media and technology
industries.
Consulting revenues were
US$45.7 million (FY18: US$42.0 million)
and EBITDA was US$2.8 million
(FY18: US$2.5 million).

Logicalis’ investments in flexible
consumption models, lifecycle
management services to maximise
business outcomes and innovative
solutions to unlock new possibilities,
all contribute to delivering a better
customer experience.

The Datatec Financial Services
business, which provides financing/
leasing solutions for ICT customers,
remains in a development phase.
The business recorded revenues
of US$0.9 million in FY19
(FY18: US$1.4 million) and an
EBITDA loss of US$1.7 million
(FY18: US$1.4 million).

Logicalis continues to enhance its
capabilities in cloud, IoT, software,
security, data management and
intelligent networks to promote
long-term value and insight-led
transformation to its customers.
Logicalis remains confident about
the prospects for the industry and its
positioning within it. Emerging markets
currencies are expected to remain
volatile over the short term.
Westcon International
A review of Westcon International’s
financial performance can be found in
the Westcon International divisional
review on pages 36 to 43.
Westcon International has completed
the reverse transition of all previously
outsourced functions to its own shared
services centres during FY19. The
decision to exit the BPO, which was
announced in last year’s report, has
resulted in a clear improvement in
customer service and transaction
execution. The improving financial
performance and regained market
share are evidence that not only was
the decision necessary, but has proved
pivotal to the turnaround.

Corporate includes the net operating
costs of the Datatec head office
entities which were US$16.8 million
(FY18: US$13.5 million). These costs
include the remuneration of the Board
and head office staff, consulting and
audit fees. The main reason for the
increase in central costs in FY19 is
increased share-based payments
expense. In FY19, foreign exchange
gains were US$3.5 million
(FY18: US$1.0 million).

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report
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Acquisition-related costs of the
above acquisitions of US$0.3 million
are included in operating costs in
the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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The reshaping of Westcon International
is going according to plan and the
business is now operating profitably.
Management is confident that
improvements will continue.
Corporate, Consulting and
Financial Services
This segment accounted for 1% of the
Group’s revenues (FY18: 1%).
The Consulting unit comprises
Analysys Mason, a provider of
strategic, trusted advisory, modelling
and market intelligence services to

As at 28 February 2019, Datatec
head office entities held cash of
US$112.9 million of which
US$37.8 million (the equivalent of
R526.8 million) is held in South Africa
and subject to the South African
Reserve Bank regulations.
Current trading and outlook
Despite global economic uncertainty,
the Board expects a continued
improvement in the financial
performance for FY20.
Logicalis’ performance is expected to
strengthen over the next financial year
with its results potentially impacted by
currency movements, especially in
Latin America.
Building on the successful turnaround
of FY19, Westcon International is
expected to deliver a significant
improvement in its operational
performance and further central cost
reductions.

Jens Montanana
CEO
16 May 2019

Ivan Dittrich
CFO
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2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

4 332 381
4 277 186
55 195

3 923 715
3 881 547
42 168

3 861 991
3 859 775
2 216

4 126 279
4 072 668
53 611

4 062 680
4 040 790
21 890

86 761

26 697

29 041

79 019

103 213

(24 866)
(71 822)
59 483
(12 527)
(99 352)
(117 817)
159 608
41 791
44 359
(41 337)
(244 193)
417 370
2 244 228
721 603
69 217
120 685
1 750 093
(50 605)
683 187
(175 487)
161 342
(6 380)

(23 289)
(61 102)
52 017
(14 204)
(31 789)
(53 031)
63 780
10 749
3 038
4 293
(20 949)
786 361
2 698 539
854 986
51 889
127 056
2 450 969
(105 884)
(69 673)
(3 527)
(299 852)
(396 541)

33 349
(12 546)
53 931
(8 036)
(16 398)
(37 964)
86 442
48 478
39 949
40 016
(22 200)
766 142
2 616 800
830 366
39 054
112 645
2 400 877
68 018
(119 289)
(33 407)
(132 685)
(205 398)

60 909
6 180
71 343
(16 614)
8 242
(26 207)
114 835
88 628
73 772
73 674
(33 286)
701 809
2 572 773
870 850
41 599
103 710
2 258 423
115 400
(51 477)
(36 025)
(22 101)
(87 124)

1
7
6
298
167
–

(19)
(6)
21
297
186
165

2
11
1
404
125
4

19
32
19
397
115
17

37
42
37
428
159
17

–

2 300

60

241

196

5.9
1.1
2.3
0.16:1
1.2:1
2.0
1.1
2.7
4.1

(2.7)
(1.1)
(1.5)
0.01:1
1.3:1
0.7
(0.6)
1.0
4.0

6.6
0.8
2.7
0.46:1
1.1:1
0.8
(0.6)
1.7
6.3

12.1
6.5
7.8
0.25:1
1.1:1
1.9
0.8
5.2
7.0

16.8
10.8
9.5
0.10:1
1.1:1
2.5
1.5
9.0
3.9

IN US DOLLAR (US$’000)
Revenue∆
Continuing operations∆
Revenue from acquisitions∆
Operating profit before interest, tax, depreciation,
amortisation (“EBITDA”)∆
Operating (loss)/profit before goodwill, investment
and intangible asset adjustment/impairment∆
Westcon International∆
Logicalis#∆
Corporate, Consulting# and Financial Services
Profit/(loss) before taxation∆
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations∆
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued operations∆
Profit after taxation
Attributable profit∆
Headline profit/(loss)∆
Capital distribution and dividends to shareholders
Non-current assets
Current assets
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities
Cash net of overdraft
Net debt

48 423
(4 226)
65 949
(13 300)
24 215
3 256
11 694
14 950
13 134
1 658
–
437 786
2 284 521
648 927
63 303
100 805
1 909 272
8 025
(59 286)
(54 584)
40 381
(100 753)

IN US CENTS
Headline earnings/(loss) per share
Underlying* earnings/(loss) per share
Basic earnings per share
Net asset value per share
Tangible net asset value per share
Distribution per share

IN ZAR CENTS
Distribution per share

RATIOS
Return on capital employed (%)
Return on invested capital (%)
Return on average shareholders' equity (%)
Net debt-to-equity ratio
Current ratio
EBITDA margin (%)∆
Operating profit/(loss) margin (%)∆
Interest cover∆
Percentage change in SA Consumer Price Index
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2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

174 397

202 681

145 093

149 707

79 850

72.7
4 132

91.7
10 340

68.8
6 953

72.3
8 901

40.0
4 335

3 150
3 300
1 715
7 122

2 500
6 499
2 301
6 074

5 458
5 848
4 006
11 569

4 648
8 088
3 820
9 735

6 005
6 290
4 601
12 227

3 150
3 300
1 715
35

2 500
4 199
2 301
(34)

3 158
3 548
1 706
20

2 348
5 788
1 520
5

3 705
3 990
2 301
8

218
238

243
216

212
211

209
206

204
199

10 130
9 373
5
269

8 616
8 138
(3)
309

7 659
7 429
(3)
455

7 198
7 017
5
470

6 836
6 605
9
479

13.6
13.9

13.0
11.8

14.2
13.0

13.7
16.2

11.0
11.7

STOCK EXCHANGE PERFORMANCE
Total number of shares traded ('000)
Total number of shares traded on the JSE
as a percentage of issued shares (%)
Total value of shares traded (R million)
Price (cents)
Closing
High
Low
Market capitalisation (R million)
Adjusted for the special dividend of 2 300 cents
per share in January 2018
Prices (cents)
Closing
High
Low
P/E ratio (underlying* earnings) – adjusted prices

SHARES ISSUED
Issued (million) – excluding deferred bonus plan
shares and treasury shares
Weighted average (million)

EMPLOYEES
Number of employees at the end of the year –
continuing operations∆
Average number of employees∆
Operating profit/(loss) per average employee (US$'000)∆
Gross assets per employee US$'000)∆

EXCHANGE RATES
Rand/US$ statement of comprehensive income
translation rate
Rand/US$ statement of financial position translation rate
Notes:

– Tangible net asset value per share is calculated using net asset value exclusive of intangible assets, goodwill and capitalised development
expenditure and the number of shares in issue (excluding deferred bonus plan shares and treasury shares) at the end of the financial period.
– Return on capital employed is calculated using operating profit before goodwill, investment and intangible asset adjustment/impairment and
the average of opening and closing capital employed. Capital employed is calculated using total shareholder funds plus all long-term liabilities
including amounts owing to vendors of a long-term nature but excluding deferred tax liabilities, provisions and liability for share-based
payments.
– Return on invested capital is calculated using net operating profit after tax and average invested capital. Net operating profit after tax is
calculated using operating profit before goodwill, investment and intangible asset adjustment/impairment to which amortisation of acquired
intangible assets is added back, and is tax effected at the normalised effective tax rate. Invested capital is calculated using total shareholder
funds plus long-term liabilities and short-term interest-bearing liabilities less cash and cash equivalents.
– Return on average shareholders’ equity is calculated using underlying* earnings and the average of opening and closing equity attributable
to the equity holders of the parent.
– Debt, for the purposes of the debt-to-equity ratio, includes all long-term liabilities and includes short-term interest-bearing liabilities but
excludes deferred tax liabilities, amounts owing to vendors and liability for share-based payments. Net debt includes cash and cash
equivalents.
– The P/E ratio (price earnings ratio) is calculated using underlying* earnings per share and the closing share price.
– Ratios referring to operating profit use operating profit before goodwill, investment and intangible asset adjustment/impairment.
– Interest cover is calculated using EBITDA and finance costs.
– The SA Consumer Price Index is sourced from Statistics South Africa.
– Detailed segmental information is set out in Note 34 of the consolidated annual financial statements on pages 174 to 185.
#
The results of Via have been included in Logicalis from FY17 and in the Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services segment in proceeding periods.
* Excluding impairment of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments and assets, amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
unrealised foreign exchange movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fair value movements on acquisition-related financial instruments,
restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations and the taxation effect on all of the aforementioned.
∆
Re-presented. The statement of comprehensive income for FY15 to FY17 has been re-presented to show comparative results from continuing
and discontinued operations. The re-presented information for FY15 and FY16 has not been audited. Certain ratios which are related to the
statement of comprehensive income only have been re-presented. Ratios which are affected by both the statement of comprehensive income
and the statement of financial position have not been re-presented.
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A leading provider of global IT solutions and
managed services

Logicalis’ strategy

Revenue by segment
22%

Logicalis’ strategy is to be
the IT partner of choice for
customers and to gain scale,
capability and market share
in its main markets

24%
13%

■ Product
■ Professional

FY18^

16%

62%

63%

services

■ Maintenance and

managed services

FY19

Governance oversight
Divisional board of
directors and executive
committee

Product revenue by vendor
20%

Audit, risk and compliance
committee

3% 2%
3% 4%
5%
3%

19%
5%

5%
9%

^

Performance highlights
by 11% to over

REVENUE grew

US$1.7 billion

FY18^

■
■
57% ■
■
■
■
■

56%

9%
FY19

Cisco
IBM
HPE
Dell, EMC, VMware
NetApp
Oracle
Other

Continuing operations.

EBITDA increased

by 8% to

US$93.4 million
(FY18: US$86.2 million)

(FY18: US$1.6 billion)
NET DEBT reduced

GROSS PROFIT increased

by 5% to

US$410.1 million
(FY18: US$391.7 million)

by 22% to

US$109.2 million
(FY18: US$139.5 million) despite
the acquisition of CNI in
Australia, Clarotech in South
Africa and the completion of
the previously announced
acquisition of Coasin in Chile
and Peru during FY19

Corporate overview
Logicalis is an international multiskilled IT provider that designs,
plans and supports impactful digital
transformation solutions. With
sector-leading experience and
insight, its unique approach enables
progress at pace and with purpose.
Logicalis’ customers span industries
and geographical regions. It
operates in several markets
including financial services,
telecommunications, education,
healthcare, retail, government,
manufacturing and professional
services.
Logicalis applies the skills of its
more than 6 000 employees to
create, transform, deploy and
operate companies’ IT infrastructure
through on-premise, cloud or hybrid
solutions. Logicalis modernises its
customers’ data centres, offers
security and network infrastructure
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Executive team
Mark

Rogers

Chief Executive
Officer

Bob

Bailkoski
Chief Operating
Officer

Stuart

Radcliffe
Chief Financial
Officer

expertise, workspace
communications and collaboration
capability, and designs and
implements data and Internet
of Things (“IoT”) projects.
Logicalis acts as a customer
advocate with some of the world’s
leading technology companies
including Cisco, IBM, Microsoft,
Oracle, HPE, NetApp and VMware.
Logicalis has revenues of over
US$1.7 billion and operates in
Europe, North America, Latin
America, Asia-Pacific and Africa.

How Logicalis creates value
Logicalis’ go-to-market strategy is
based on delivering the business
objectives of its customers through
the implementation of a variety of
technology solutions and services.
These include cloud, data centre,
networking, communications and
collaboration solutions, IoT, mobility,
and data and information analytics.
A key element of the Logicalis value
proposition is its extensive service
portfolio, which offers a number of
services including product integration
and associated professional services,
lifecycle and managed services and
cloud solutions, with a focus on
embedding security across all the
technology offerings.
Logicalis delivers consistent, common
global services delivered from shared,
best practice platforms. Logicalis works
with both IT and line-of-business
stakeholders to align technology

investments with business strategy,
driving critical business objectives
through the adoption and application
of technology for competitive
advantage.
Logicalis demonstrates value through
its ability to address the changing
technology demands of a more digitally
literate customer, employee, student,
or citizen. Each of these stakeholders
now demands improved access to
better experiences, services and
products, driven by increased use of
mobility, social media, data analytics
and cloud technologies.
Logicalis’ goal is to be a strategic
partner to the CIO, enabling them
to satisfy and operate all aspects of
IT more effectively. This includes
accelerating the adoption of
automation across a customer’s core
platforms and applications, investing in
the systems and processes that drive
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agility into IT service delivery, and
improving the satisfaction of users by
responding to the changing demands
for technology-led business innovation
across all areas of its organisation.
Logicalis has an independent, flexible
and objective approach to how
customers own, operate and consume
core IT services. This drives Logicalis’
revenue streams in systems
integration, lifecycle and managed
services, and increasingly in
provisioned cloud services. Logicalis
seeks to help all stakeholders
understand the value of technology
investments, and choose the
ownership, operational and
consumption model that is right
for their individual business
circumstances.

Strategic overview
Logicalis’ strategy is based on four key
success factors:
• Technical excellence in advanced
and emerging technologies
• Industry and business know-how
and intrinsic understanding of its
customers’ business challenges
• The ability to define, package and
deliver solutions and services that
meet the business’ required
outcome or technology demands of
its customers
• The capability to support the
changing operational and IT
consumption demands of its
customers.
The result of this strategy is a strong
customer base across the European,
North American, Latin American and
Asia-Pacific regions.
Logicalis remains committed to the
maximisation of growth in profit and
value by gaining scale, capability and
market share in its main markets and
establishing Logicalis as the IT partner

of choice for customers. Logicalis’ key
aims include the following:
• Focus on customer success at both
the CIO and line-of-business levels
to deliver business improvement
outcomes;
• Invest in processes, people and
systems that provide its customers
with industry best-in-class service;
• Leverage knowledge and best
practice processes across all
territories;
• Attract and retain high-calibre
employees;
• Deliver revenue growth which is
balanced between organic and
acquired growth;
• Maintain leadership in innovation for
its solutions and service offerings;
• Offer lifecycle IT solutions; and
services in all operating territories
• Increase recurring services sales.
To achieve these key aims, Logicalis
continues to:
• Focus on business improvement
outcomes and the value delivered
to customers;
• Engage with customers at all levels
and across stakeholder
communities, building long-term
relationships;
• Renew its focus on key vendor
relationships;
• Position itself as a trusted and
capable partner for technology
and service excellence; and
• Expand its portfolio of products,
solutions and services through
investment in resources, expertise,
partnerships and acquisitions.
Logicalis’ strategic positioning provides
benefits and also carries businessspecific risks. For example, the market
transition to cloud is now happening
at a more controlled pace. Logicalis’
customers are investing in cloud
services, particularly private cloud and
managed-private cloud. Logicalis has
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adapted well to this change, especially
in the private cloud market, but is now
seeing demand from its customers
to access the public cloud as part of
a hybrid cloud strategy. This is
particularly evident in North America
and Europe, where public cloud is
gaining maturity and acceptance,
creating requirements for new
partnerships and skills capability.
Logicalis continues to generate a large
percentage of its operating profits in
Brazil but its market position there also
presents possible business risk. A
slowdown in the Brazilian economy
could impact Logicalis’ future growth
potential and profitability.
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Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees
Further
info online

Progress against strategic objectives

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

FY19 OBJECTIVES

FY19 EXECUTION OF OBJECTIVES

FY20 PRIORITIES

Continue to focus on improving the
services and annuity revenue mix

Services and annuity revenue
increased to 38% of revenue
(FY18: 37%)

Continue to focus on improving the
services and annuity revenue mix

Focus on cost reduction activities
in legacy areas of the business

Further cost optimisation activities
completed mainly in parts of Europe
and the USA

Focus on cost reduction activities in
legacy areas of the business and
increasing order intake

Continue the roll out of the
common services platform to new
countries as an enabler for further
efficiencies

Logicalis’ common services platform
was rolled out to several new
countries. Acquisition of CNI
enhances Logicalis’ cloud services
capability

Seek to add to the capabilities of
the common platform to ensure it
remains a business enabler

Seek further acquisitions to boost
existing territories’ market share
and to leverage Logicalis’ footprint
in emerging technologies

The acquisition of Coasin
substantially boosted Logicalis’ local
market share in Chile and Peru;
Clarotech was acquired in South
Africa, improving market share; and
The acquisition of CNI in Australia
increased Logicalis’ capabilities in
Microsoft Azure technology

Seek further acquisitions to boost
existing territories’ market share and
to leverage Logicalis’ footprint in
emerging technologies

Cross
referencemunicipalities,
to sections regulators
Government,
in this report

Improving shareholder returns
Communities

Business development
Employees
Further info online

Enhancing competitiveness
and profitability
Government,
municipalities, regulators
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Improving shareholder returns
Communities

Business development
Employees

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns
Further info online

Business development
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Logicalis’ value creation business model
Logicalis’ business model is aimed at positioning itself as an “architect of
change”, delivering the business objectives of its customers and ensuring
sustained value for all stakeholders.

INPUTS

Financial
• Other receivables and
prepayments – US$174 million
• Net debt – US$109 million

Human
• 6 690 employees
• Employees’ time, skills and
knowledge

Social and relationship
• Vendor relationships
• Customer relationships
• Stakeholder relationships

Intellectual
• Technical expertise
• Sector experience
• Strategic partnerships

VALUE ADDING ACTIVITIES
(OUTPUTS)

• Green IT solutions
• Extensive service portfolio
• On-premise, cloud and hybrid
solutions
• Security expertise
• Network infrastructure
expertise
• Workspace communications
• Collaboration capability
• Acquisition activities (Coasin,
Clarotech and CNI)
• Increased services and annuity
revenue
• Reduction in net debt

KEY OUTCOMES
FOR STAKEHOLDERS

Shareholders

• 11.3% revenue growth
• Increased operating profitability
• US$54 million revenue and
US$4 million EBITDA from
acquisitions

Financial institutions
and debt funders

• US$18 million interest paid
to debt providers

Employees

• Employee training initiatives
• Employee performance
rewards

Customers

• Customer satisfaction

Vendors (suppliers)

Natural

• Diverse vendor portfolio
• Several partner awards

• Carbon energy management
• Energy management
• Recycling initiatives

Corporate social
responsibility beneficiaries

Manufactured
• Data centres

• Over US$100 000 in CSI spend
• Energy savings and reduced
carbon footprint
• Environmental certifications

Governments and
regulators

• Compliance with regulatory
requirements
• US$12 million in taxes
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Markets
Total worldwide IT spending is
expected to grow steadily to
US$2.7 trillion in 2021 (source: EITO,
IDC, Gartner, Analysys Mason). While
the demand for IT infrastructure in the
markets in which Logicalis operates
was again mixed during the year, digital
transformation will drive growth across
all Logicalis markets.
The sixth annual Logicalis Global CIO
Report, of almost 850 CIOs, has
identified significant changes in the role
of CIOs across Europe, the Americas,
the Far East and Australia. Today, 94%
of these IT leaders spend between
10% and 50% of their time
on innovation and other strategic
activities. This more strategic focus
appears to have been at least partly
enabled by an increasing willingness
to rely on third parties to manage
day-to-day IT. Working with trusted
third parties to deliver and manage IT
outside of the core makes day-to-day
management more efficient while
maintaining service agility.
Half of CIOs now see their
performance measured according to
their ability to deliver service innovation
and more than a third (35%) are
expected to make a direct contribution
to revenue growth – perhaps through
digital transformation and by enabling
product and service innovation through
digital technology. Furthermore, CIOs’
success in taking on a more strategic
role appears to be enabling new, more
agile and adaptable approaches to
organisational innovation.
The way organisations think about
innovation is changing, with strategies
for innovation now most commonly
about enabling small scale, everyday
experimentation. In this year’s CIO
Survey, over a third (34%) of
organisations now take that approach,
with the large-scale projects that once

dominated now accounting for less
than a quarter (23%).
These findings complement a number
of key takeaways in a recent survey of
CIOs by Gartner (source: 2019 CIO
Agenda: Secure the Foundation for
Digital Business). It reports that digital
progress has reached a tipping point
where half of respondents say their
organisation’s business model has
already changed or is changing.
In total, 95% of the Gartner
respondents believe security threats
will increase and calls for CIOs to
“build relationships with the business
and other stakeholders while
communicating the value of IT
for digital business”, something the
Logicalis survey shows they are doing
as “agents of innovation”.
Logicalis sees itself as an “architect
of change” and differentiates itself
through its expertise and experience in
managing projects from initial concept,
through to successful delivery of
desired business outcomes. This
requires a degree of digital
modernisation of the core network
assets. Logicalis has been working
with customers to ensure their data
platforms become highly automated
self-service platforms and that data
and information capabilities create new
value and business optimisation from
existing data.
Customers’ networks need the ability
to connect to more devices securely,
supporting business optimisation
through the utilisation of data
generated by those devices.
Understanding how to modernise
applications, communication and
mobility tools and IT operations is
critical to customer success. Logicalis
has the tools and methodologies
to help customers realise this
transformation in a manageable
and secure manner.
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In September 2018, Logicalis
completed the acquisition of Coasin
Group, a Chilean ICT system integrator
offering technological solutions to
industries such as mining, financial
services, telecommunications and
retail, with operations both in Chile
and Peru. Logicalis also acquired
Clarotech, a South African open source
IPT cloud and managed services
business. In October 2018, Logicalis’
Australian operation, Thomas Duryea
Logicalis acquired CNI, a Microsoftcertified gold partner.

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitabi

Outlook
Logicalis’ performance is expected to
strengthen over the next financial year
with its results potentially impacted by
currency movements, especially in
Latin America.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Logicalis divisional report continued

2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

Page 34
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

Performance
Logicalis accounted for 40% of the Group’s revenue (FY18: 40%).
US$’million

Revenue
Gross profit
Gross margin (%)
Operating costs
Operating profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”)
EBITDA margin (%)
Operating profit/(loss)
Net finance costs
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Net debt

February
2019

February
2018

%
movement

1 741.1
410.1
23.6
(316.7)
93.4
5.4
65.9
(16.8)
49.6
(109.2)

1 563.7
391.7
25.0
(305.5)
86.2
5.5
59.5
(12.8)
46.7
(139.5)

11.3
4.7
3.7
8.4
Further info online

10.8
31.3
6.2
(21.7)

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Revenue
Revenue from operations increased by 11.3%
to US$1.7 billion (FY18: US$1.6 billion). Services
revenue was up 15% with growth in both
professional services and annuity revenue.
Revenue increased across all regions in absolute
terms with growth in Europe driven mainly by
Germany and Spain. Latin America showed
improvements notably in Brazil which benefited
from a large multi-year deal despite currency
headwinds. Asia-Pacific also improved largely
because of the contribution of the Packet
Systems Indonesia acquisition for the full year,
as well as a number of territories in the region
which experienced high growth.

EBITDA
EBITDA was US$93.4 million
(FY18: US$86.2 million), with a corresponding
EBITDA margin of 5.4% (FY18: 5.5%).

Further info online

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Operating profit
Operating profit was US$65.9 million
(FY18: US$59.5 million).

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Net finance costs
The net interest charge increased by
US$4.0 million, largely as a result of higher
working capital utilisation in Latin America
on the large multi-year project.

Improving shareholder returns

Revenues from product sales were up 9%
driven by Latin America, with increases in
Cisco, partially offset by decreases in HPE.
Gross profit
Gross profit was up 4.7% to US$410.1 million
(FY18: US$391.7 million). Logicalis’ gross
margins were 23.6% (FY18: 25.0%). This
reduction was partly due to the large multi-year
Latin-American contract which included a large
product component as well as a disappointing
performance in the UK.

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Net debt
Net debt of US$109.2 million
(FY18: US$139.5 million) consisted of: net
cash of US$16.4 million (FY18: US$7.1 million);
short-term borrowing and current portion
of long-term debt of US$94.4 million
(FY18: US$102.4 million); and long-term debt
of US$31.2 million (FY18: US$44.2 million).
The decrease in net debt compared to FY18 was
driven by seasonal outflows associated with the
Americas and the reduction in working capital
requirements associated with the large multi-year
Latin-American contract. The working capital
requirements linked to this contract are expected
to unwind as the project advances.

Logicalis has operations in Argentina. During the year, Argentina entered into a period of hyperinflation. The impact on the FY19
financial statements was not material.
Logicalis continues to have a contingent liability in respect of a possible tax liability at its subsidiary in Brazil.
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Partner and vendor relationships
Logicalis continues to build strong relationships and partnerships with key stakeholders, including employees, customers,
vendors and service partners. Its strategy of building strong customer intimacy continues to enable Logicalis to grow its
relationships and solutions and service engagements with existing clients.
Logicalis has a historic strong relationship with Cisco and obtained Global Gold status in FY18. During FY19, Logicalis was
recognised with several partner awards. Those highlighting its strategic focus include awards in the following territories:

USA
Veeam – Growth Partner of the Year
Cisco – America’s Security Partner of the Year
Cisco – SLED Solution Innovation Partner of the Year
Cisco – Architectural Excellence Partner of the Year for security

Latin America
IAOP Global Outsourcing – Leaders (third consecutive year)
Cisco – Digital Transformation Partner of the Year
Cisco – Architectural Excellence Partner of the Year: Enterprise Networks
Cisco – Architectural Excellence Partner of the Year: SP Architectures
Microsoft – Modern Workplace Transformation award

Europe
Oracle – Specialised Partner of the Year for systems
IBM – Logicalis Spain – Most relevant partner in SaaS
Tech Excellence Awards – Logicalis Ireland – 2018 Digital Strategy Partner of the Year
Cisco – Logicalis Germany – Architectural Excellence in Data Centres

Australia
Aruba – 2018 Silver Partner of the Year
Cisco – ANZ Partner Exceptional Growth Award, Meraki
CRN – Impact Award for Modernising Enterprise Infrastructure

Asia
Cisco – Architectural Excellence Partner of the Year for security
Dell – Logicalis Singapore – EMC Gold Partner of the Year
Fortinet – Logicalis Singapore – Fastest Growth Partner of the Year

South Africa
Top Digium Partners Worldwide – Pinnacle Partner of the Year for Delivery of Unparalleled VoIP Solutions and
Services
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A value-added technology distributor

Westcon
International’s
strategy

Revenue by business unit

51%

Westcon International’s
strategy is to be the leading
go-to-market distribution
partner for vendors in the
networking and cyber
security market serving
international markets in
Europe, the Middle East,
Africa and across the
Asia-Pacific region.

53% FY18^

47%

49% ■ Comstor

■ Westcon

FY19

Product revenue by customer
20%
19%

■ Reseller

Governance oversight

FY18^
27%

Divisional board of
directors and executive
committee

53% ■ System integrator

54%

■ Service provider

27%
FY19

Audit, risk and compliance
committee

Performance highlights
REVENUE of

Product revenue by
technology category
17%

US$2.5 billion

31%
16%

(FY18: US$2.3 billion)

29%

FY18^
24%

28%

GROSS MARGINS of

FY19

10.2%

^

■ Security
■ Unified

communications

31%

(FY18: 9.8%)

Corporate overview

24%

■ Networking
■ Data centre and

others

Continuing operations.

• All business process activities successfully repatriated to in-house
shared services centres
• Regaining control of the customer experience and transactional
execution enables growth and market share gains, contributing
significantly to improved results
• Internal applications and platforms are stable

Westcon International is a valueadded speciality distributor of
industry leading cyber security
and network infrastructure, unified
communications products, data
centre solutions and channel
services with a global network
of service providers, systems
integrators and speciality resellers.
Westcon International has
operations in more than
50 countries. It goes to market
under the Westcon and Comstor
brands. Westcon International’s
portfolio of market leading vendors
includes: Cisco, Avaya, Extreme,
Juniper, Check Point, F5, Palo Alto
and Symantec.
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Executive team
Jens
Montanana

Chief Executive
Officer

David

Grant
Chief Operating
Officer

Ivan

Dittrich

Chief Financial
Officer

Westcon
Operating in Asia-Pacific, Europe,
Middle East and Africa, Westcon
provides solutions from a broad
portfolio of premier vendors. Westcon
has expertise with vendors in the
following technologies:
• Cyber and network security: Arbor
Networks, Beyond Trust, Check
Point, F5 Networks, Infoblox, Palo
Alto Networks, PulseSecure,
Riverbed, Splunk, Symantec,
Tennable and TrendMicro;
• Networking infrastructure: APC,
Ciena, Extreme Networks, Juniper,
Nokia Nuage, Riverbed, Ruckus,
Silver Peak, Solar Winds and
VeloCloud;
• Collaboration and mobility: Avaya,
Jabra, Microsoft, Mitel, Plantronics,
Polycom, Zebra Audiocodes;
• Data centre: NetApp, Panduit and
VMware; and
• Business productivity: AWS and
Microsoft.

Comstor
Comstor is the Cisco-centred business
unit of Westcon International, shipping
to more than 100 countries. Comstor
distributes the full line of Cisco
solutions:
• Cisco security: providing highly
secure firewall, web and email threat
detection and management services
for network and mobile device
protection;
• Cisco collaboration: empowering
people to engage and innovate
through multiple endpoints and truly
collaborative software; anywhere,
any time, on any device;
• Cisco software: flexible software
licensing across the hardware estate
combined with profitable annuity
revenue;
• Cisco data centre: allowing data to
be analysed, simplified, automated
and protected for operational
efficiency through storage of digital
information on mission-critical
applications;

• Cisco enterprise networking: covering
SMB and enterprise solutions across
core switching, wireless and routing
technologies — without the enterprise
costs; and
• Cisco services: providing customer
support on Cisco solutions through its
global support and solutions team of
experts, serving over 180 countries
and responding in 17 languages.
Westcon International
Westcon International also has capability
practices and specialities, that it offers
globally under its Westcon-Comstor
brand:
• Cloud: Amazon Web Services,
Microsoft Azure and Microsoft Office
365;
• Services: supply chain, financial,
education, technical support and
professional; and
• Global deployment solutions: logistics,
staging, strategic stocking,
configuration, project co-ordination,
VAT recoverability; global contracting
and global credit management.
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Westcon International divisional report
continued

Strategic overview
As Westcon International restores its
business to profitability, it continues to
evolve its business model based on
one principle: enabling partners and
improving their success through focus
and value-added capabilities. This
principle is core to Westcon
International’s strategic framework
that aims to create value for all
stakeholders. The five strategic pillars
that define the priority actions are

customer engagement; solutions and
services; creating a winning team;
execution excellence; and digital
transformation.
FY19 represented significant
improvement over the prior year but
represents a modest result and the first
step on the overall recovery of the
business. Westcon International will
continue the model of specialisation for
vendor solutions and will enhance the
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customer and market segment
orientation with appropriately tailored
propositions. It remains focused on
process stability, automation and back
office efficiency with an emphasis on
accuracy, quality and urgency in all
functions.
Westcon International has completed
the reverse transition of all previously
outsourced functions to its own shared
services centres during FY19.

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Further info online
Communities

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Employees

Progress against strategic objectives
FY19 OBJECTIVES

FY19 EXECUTION OF OBJECTIVES

Business restoration

ACHIEVED

IN PROGRESS

FY20 PRIORITIES

Business restoration
10% revenue growth, 4% margin
growth and US$54 million
improvement in EBITDA

Focus on revenue growth and
overall profitability

Working capital normalisation and
improving cash flow

Cash flow positive;
Working capital returning to more
normalised levels

Working capital improvement and
operating cash flow generation

Africa transformation from loss
to profit

Africa profitable overall

Reduce ongoing central costs
to below 1% of gross revenue
(central costs target of
US$33 million in FY20)

Focus on revenue growth, margin
improvement and profitability

Reduce ongoing central costs
to below 1% of gross revenue

Line-of-business alignment in Europe
is well established enabling the focus
required to support growth

Development of clear customer
segmented support models

Launch of Velocity go-to-market in
Westcon Europe targeting SMB
reseller base

Deployment of customer technology
solutions and digital distribution
platforms to ensure fast and accurate
engagement, quoting, transacting and
support models

PartnerView (reseller online portal)
launched

Continued investment in marketing
and sales initiatives which focus on
partner growth opportunities

Comstor security initiative proved very
successful to support Cisco’s objective
to be a major security infrastructure
vendor

Employees
Improving shareholder returns
Cross reference to sections
in this report
Government, municipalities, regulators
Business development
Communities

Improving shareholder returns
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Business development

Government, municipalities, regulators

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Improving shareholder returns
Further info online

Business development
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Communities

Employees
Further info online

Customer engagement

Alignment of vendor and partner
objectives to ensure profitable and
maximised growth through line-ofbusiness structure

Further info online

Employees

Central costs of US$43 million, 30%
less than FY18; 1.3% of gross revenue

Customer engagement

Communities
Government, municipalities, regulators

Continue to build strong line-ofbusiness model providing vendors
with focus and alignment to their
objectives

Government, municipalities, regulators
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Improving shareholder returns
Further
info online
Communities

Business development
Cross reference to sections
Employees
in
this report

Define/refine customer segmentation
and develop go-to-market models,
support and organisational
capability to maximise success
in each segment (including
Velocity)

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Drive PartnerView (reseller online
portal) adoption with enhanced
e-commerce capability

Improving
returns
Enhancing shareholder
competitiveness
and profitability

Communities
Government, municipalities, regulators

Employees
Improving shareholder returns

Government,
municipalities, regulators
Business development

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities
Further info online

FY19 OBJECTIVES

FY19 EXECUTION OF OBJECTIVES

Solutions and services
Continued focus on Comstor-Cisco
differentiation
Expand security portfolio in emerging
technologies
Maximise existing distribution sales
while continuing to build digital
distribution capabilities (renewals,
services and cloud)
Add strategic software and cloud
partnerships
Portfolio expansion in fast-growing
technology areas, for example
SD-WAN, with associated services
and ECO system offers
Continue roll out of Cisco SaaS offers
into remaining countries, add new
Cisco SaaS offers and drive revenue
through software and cloud platform
Winning team
Continue to develop best talent in all
areas while promoting from within
wherever possible
Recruit, develop and retain the best
talent in every role
Maintain an environment where
everyone is motivated to do their best
to support customers and contribute
to company and individual success
Investment in training and
development of all functions and roles

Solutions and services
Cisco business has grown by more
than 12% across Westcon
International
Security portfolio continues to evolve

Renewals capability has been
strengthened

Reverse BPO to improve customer
service and transaction execution
Consistent, timely and accurate
reporting and management

Leverage technology automation
around SAP and customer supplier
tools
Complete SAP last mile items critical
for the optimisation of the platform

Invest in Global Deployment
Services (“GDS”) capability and
ensure retained leadership
position
Develop core solutions to
provide differentiated offers

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Further info online

Government, municipalities, regulators
Communities
Cross reference to sections
in this report
Improving shareholder returns
Employees
Communities

Business development
Government, municipalities, regulators
Employees

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Improving shareholder returns
Government, municipalities, regulators

Business development
Improving shareholder returns

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Business development

Expansion with existing vendors
Further info online

Launch with VeloCloud and
Silver Peak

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Further info online
Communities

Cisco SaaS offers are becoming a
growing proportion of revenues

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Employees
Further info online

Communities
Government,
municipalities,
Cross reference
to sections regulators
in this report

Personal development and
management development
programmes offered to staff
Several senior roles fulfilled from within
the organisation
Consistent performance evaluation
programme now utilised across
Westcon International

Winning team
Continue to develop best talent in
all areas while promoting from
within wherever possible
Create career path framework
to enable the retention of the
best talent
Launch executive leadership
training programme for senior
leaders

Employees
Improving shareholder returns
Communities

Government, municipalities, regulators
Business development
Employees

Improving shareholder returns
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Government, municipalities, regulators

Business development

Improving shareholder returns

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Further info online
Business development

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Further
infocompetitiveness
online
Enhancing
and profitability

Delivered sales training to sales teams
across all regions

Communities
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Execution excellence
Shared services centres in South
Africa and Philippines established

Reverse transition of all BPO activities
successfully completed;
Regained control of customer
experience and transactional execution
Launch of SalesView BI – near real
time management cockpit to monitor
sales and trading performance

Digital enablement
Deployment of digital distribution
technology – Cloud/aaS enabled ERP

Complete integration and alignment
of services organisation and
technology solutions operations,
and develop compelling offers

Employees

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Execution excellence
Shared services centres in South
Africa and Philippines for EMEA
and Asia-Pacific

FY20 PRIORITIES

Process optimisation project initiated –
Driving end-to-end improvements
to develop “frictionless transactional
capability” with emphasis on
balancing “front office versus
back office” ratios
Ensure accuracy, quality and
urgency in all activities

All major SAP enhancements
required following implementation
are complete
SAP and the supporting applications
are fully operational and stable;
Benefits are now being realised
through improved transacting and
superior visibility

Communities
Further info online

Government, municipalities, regulators
Employees
Cross reference to sections
in this report
Improving shareholder returns
Government, municipalities, regulators
Communities

Business development
Improving shareholder returns
Employees
Further info online
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Business development
Government, municipalities, regulators
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Improving shareholder returns
Communities

Drive adoption and utilisation of
digital distribution platform tools
Digital enablement

Continued focus in FY20

Employees

Continued development of digital
distribution platform suite in line
with customer and market
requirements
Partner Digital Transformation – deliver
phase 1 integrations (foundational and
enhanced) utilising application
programming interface (“API”)
gateway software development kit
Accelerate best-in-class
enhancement for sales tools

Further info online
Business development
Employees

Cross reference to sections
in this report
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Further
info online
Government,
municipalities, regulators

Communities
Cross reference to sections
Improving shareholder returns
in this report

Employees
Communities
Business development

Government, municipalities, regulators
Employees
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Improving shareholder returns
Government, municipalities, regulators

Business development
Improving shareholder returns

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Westcon International’s value creation business model
Westcon International’s business model is aimed at enabling partners and
improving their success through focus and value-added capabilities
creating sustained value for all stakeholders.

VALUE ADDING ACTIVITIES
(OUTPUTS)

INPUTS

Financial
• Net debt – US$110 million
• Working capital – US$292
million

Human
• 3 171 employees
• Employees’ time, skills and
knowledge

Social and relationship
• Partner relationships
• Customer engagements
• Stakeholder relationships

Intellectual

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Technology distribution
Channel services
Market data analytics
Digital disruption platforms
Advanced technical skills
Capital into the channel
Improving operating profitability
Reduction in net debt
Improvement in working
capital days

KEY OUTCOMES
FOR STAKEHOLDERS

Shareholders

• 9.8% revenue growth
• Increased profitability

Financial institutions and
debt funders
• US$14 million interest paid
to debt providers

Employees

• Employee training initiatives
• Consistent performance
evaluation programmes

Customers

• Successful Comstor security
initiative

• Technical expertise
• Strategic partnerships

Vendors (suppliers)

Natural

Corporate social
responsibility beneficiaries

• Energy management
• Recycling initiatives

Manufactured
• Warehouses (distribution
centres)

• Engagement programmes

• Causes supported include
education, fighting disease,
improving health, helping the
disadvantaged and community
enrichment

Governments and
regulators

• Compliance with regulatory
requirements
• US$3 million in taxes
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Performance
Westcon International accounted for 59% of the Group’s revenue (FY18: 59%).
US$’million

Revenue
Gross profit
Gross margin %
Operating costs
Operating profit before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”)
Net debt
Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

February
2019

February
2018

%
movement

2 544.8
260.4
10.2
(254.8)
5.6
(109.5)

2 316.7
227.4
9.8
(275.5)
(48.1)
(131.8)

9.8
14.5
–
(7.5)
(111.6)
(16.9)

Government, municipalities, regulators

Revenue
Westcon International’s revenues increased by
9.8% to US$2.54 billion (FY18: US$2.32 billion)
supported by higher revenues in Europe and
Asia-Pacific.

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Gross profit
Westcon International’s gross profit increased by
14.5% to US$260.4 million (FY18: US$227.4 million)
with improved results across all regions. Gross
margins increased 40 basis points to 10.2%
(FY18: 9.8%) with the increase primarily attributable
to higher margins in EMEA slightly offset by lower
margins in Asia-Pacific.
Working capital and net debt
Net working capital days decreased to 28 days
(FY18: 35 days) primarily due to improved
DSO across all three regions. The improvement
in net working capital days, partially offset by
US$15.6 million of capital expenditures, resulted
in a decrease in net debt to US$109.5 million
(FY18: US$131.8 million).

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

The net debt consisted of: net overdrafts
of US$94.4 million (FY18: US$113.8 million);
short-term borrowing and current portion
of long-term debt of US$15.0 million
(FY18: US$0.9 million); and long-term debt
of US$0.1 million (FY18: US$17.1 million).

Operating costs
Operating expenses decreased to US$254.8 million
(FY18: US$275.5 million) with lower expenses
across all regions except Europe. The 7.5%
decrease was primarily driven by lower central
costs as well as a reduction in foreign exchange
and bad debt expense in MEA. In both H2 FY18
and H1 FY19 operating expenses benefited
from US$15.0 million of central costs in each
six-month period (total of US$30 million) which
were accrued against the profit on disposal of
Westcon Americas to SYNNEX in the prior year,
representing costs incurred in terms of the
transitional service obligations to SYNNEX during
that period. Central costs (before the respective
US$15.0 million reallocations) were US$43 million
(FY18: US$61 million) against the target of
US$45 million for FY19.
Restructuring expenses of US$17.4 million
(FY18: US$11.5 million) were incurred, mainly as a
result of costs associated with the reverse transition
of the BPO arrangement in Europe, MEA and
Asia-Pacific coupled with continued cost-cutting
initiatives in EMEA and the central cost base.

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

EBITDA
EBITDA was US$5.6 million (FY18: US$48.1 million
loss) with improved results across all regions.

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Westcon International divisional report
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Markets
Westcon International experienced
growth during FY19 with most major
markets showing double digit growth.
In Europe, the Comstor division
recorded strong growth in all countries
except the UK which was down slightly
from the prior year. The Westcon
division in Europe also showed good
growth overall with strong results in
Germany and Spain offset by flat
performance in the UK.
The growth in Africa remains modest
as credit and currency exposures are
carefully balanced to support the return
to profitability while the Middle East
grew by 6% for the year.
The Asia-Pacific region experienced
another year of excellent growth with
contributions from all markets. Sales
expansion in China continued and
there was good growth throughout the
rest of Asia. Sound execution against
Cisco exclusivity contributed to
significant growth in New Zealand,
while Australia has halted its prior year
decline recording 10% growth.
The improving financial performance
and market share gains across all
markets that Westcon International
operates in are evidence that regaining
control of the customer experience and
transaction execution has proved
pivotal to the turnaround.

Partners: customer and vendor
relationships
Westcon International’s partners
include technology vendors, customers
such as value-added resellers, systems
integrators and service providers
offering technology solutions for
small- and medium-sized businesses,
enterprise organisations, governments
and other vertical markets around the
world. Solutions include the design,
configuration and implementation of
cyber and network security, network
infrastructure, unified communications
and collaboration, mobility and data
centre networks, as well as network
storage. Westcon International also
provides a range of comprehensive
services to complement these
solutions, such as Westcon-Comstor
EDGE, its unique partner enablement
programme.

Partner engagement programmes
and an ongoing focus on vendor
relationships continue to create new
market opportunities. Westcon
International’s relationships with its
“global eight” vendors remain the
fundamental platform for driving
revenue growth, opportunity for
services penetration and influence
for software and cloud solutions.
Examples include the launch of the
“Comstor network initiative” following
the successful Comstor security
initiative executed in FY19; the
investments in Mitel across all regions;
and growth with Palo Alto Networks
and global deployments with Symantec
confirm Westcon International’s
position as a global leader in cyber
security distribution. The expansion
with Microsoft for its portfolio and
advances of the accelerate programme
to grow emerging technology vendors,
underscores the deep-rooted focus on
technology evolution combined with
commercial opportunity.

Outlook
Building on the successful turnaround
of FY19, Westcon International is
expected to deliver a significant
improvement in its operational
performance and further central
cost reductions.
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Awards and recognition
Westcon International’s leadership,
vision, programmes and
performance continue to draw the
attention of the technology market
it serves. Westcon International’s
relentless commitment to
excellence transcends all facets
of the organisation. Most recent
accolades include:

International
Westcon International –
Avaya – International
Distributor of the Year 2018

United Kingdom
Comstor UK – Comms Dealer
Sales and Marketing Awards –
Distributor channel marketing
campaign of the Year 2018
Comstor UK – Comms
National Awards – IT
Distributor of the Year 2018

UK&I
Westcon UK&I – Avaya –
Enterprise Distributor of the
Year 2018

Norway
Comstor Norway – Cisco –
Distributor of the Year 2018

France
Comstor France – Cisco –
Distributor of the Year 2018
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BeLux

Sub-Saharan Africa

Comstor BeLux – Cisco – Distributor of the Year 2018

Westcon sub-Saharan Africa – Ruckus – Distributor
of the Year 2018

Germany
Comstor Germany – Cisco – Social Responsibility
Partner of the Year 2018
Westcon-Comstor Germany – IT Business
Magazine – UC and Telecommunication Gold 2018

Spain
Westcon Spain – Symantec – Best Distributor Spain
2018

EMEA
Westcon EMEA – Extreme Networks – Global
Distributor of the Year 2018
Westcon EMEA – Palo Alto Networks – Rockstar
award for outstanding contribution 2019
Westcon EMEA – Ribbon – Support Partner of the
Year EMEA 2018

Middle East
Westcon-Comstor Middle East – Aon Hewitt Best
Employers – Engaging Leadership 2018
Westcon-Comstor Middle East – Channel ME – Value
Added Distributor of the Year 2019
Westcon Middle East – Palo Alto Networks –
International Top Distributor – Better Together
Campaign 2018
Westcon Middle East – Pelco – Best Distributor 2018
Westcon Middle East – Reseller Hot 50 – Best
Channel Training Initiatives 2018
Westcon Middle East – Ruckus – Distributor of the
Year 2018
Westcon Middle East – Symantec – Fastest Growing
Distributor EMEA 2018
Westcon Middle East – Zebra – Distributor of the Year
2018
Westcon Middle East – Zebra – Best Distribution
Sales Person of the Year 2018

New Zealand
Westcon-Comstor New Zealand – Women in ICT
– Technical Award 2018
Westcon New Zealand – APC – Distributor of the Year
for New Zealand 2019
Westcon-Comstor New Zealand – IDG Reseller News
– Cloud Distributor Value Award 2019
Westcon-Comstor New Zealand – Reseller News –
30 Under 30 Tech Award 2019

Australia
Comstor Australia – Cisco – Best Adoption of the
Cisco Start Portfolio 2019
Westcon Australia – Pulse Secure – Distributor of the
Year 2019
Westcon Australia – Juniper Networks – Distributor of
the Year 2019

Asia
Westcon Asia – ForeScout – Best Distributor 2019

Taiwan
Westcon Taiwan – Palo Alto Networks – Field Service
Distributor of the Year 2019

Thailand
Westcon Thailand – Avaya – Best Distributor 2019
Westcon Thailand – Solarwinds – Outstanding Sales
Growth Distributor 2019

Singapore
Comstor Singapore – Cisco – Top Overall Distributor
2019

Philippines
Comstor Philippines – Cisco – Top Distributor
Services Partner 2019

Westcon International’s executives are active members of the Global Technology Distribution
Council (“GTDC”), a consortium of the world’s leading technology distributors.
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Supporting our people, the environment
and all our communities
NORTH AMERICA
Logicalis US donated over US$92 000 to 76 community
causes. Employees are encouraged to donate their time
to their local communities and are allowed eight hours of
paid time off annually to do so.

NORTH AMERICA

LATIN AMERICA
Logicalis supports poor communities, cultural
projects, disaster relief, children’s and other charities.
EUROPE
Logicalis donated to the Royal British Legion,
Save the Children and Reading Family Aid in the UK.
Logicalis and Westcon International support
initiatives in Germany and Spain, from people in need
to those with mental disabilities, to development aid
and animal welfare facilities.

LATIN AMERICA

ASIA-PACIFIC
Logicalis supports blood donations, disaster relief,
disadvantaged children and a home for the elderly, among
others.

ASIA

AFRICA AND MIDDLE EAST
Logicalis South Africa supports disadvantaged learners, sick children and
various local charities and institutions. Westcon International sponsored the
rebuilding of the Diepsloot Combined School Computer Laboratory and
various other initiatives.

FY19 by numbers

3 439

620

number of
learners who benefited
from school-level
intervention in maths
and science

number of
learners who
received career
guidance

475

number of
teachers who
benefited from extra
training in maths and
science

5 946
number of
people who were given
access to computer
technology
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The Datatec Educational and Technology Foundation
(“the Foundation”) funds educational organisations whose
purpose is to improve education within underprivileged
communities in South Africa.
Overview of the Foundation
EUROPE
GAUTENG
KWAZULUNATAL

AFRICA AND MIDDLE EAST

EASTERN
CAPE

ASIA-PACIFIC
WESTERN
CAPE

CSI spend by geography
2%

A-PACIFIC
2%

41%

52%

FY18
7%
FY19
7%

4 532
number of people who benefited from ICT skills
training

475
number of teachers who benefited from access
to training facilities in the Western Cape

39%

■ Gauteng
50% ■ KwaZulu-Natal

■ Eastern Cape
■ Western Cape

As a competitive global market
leader in ICT, Datatec regards it as
a moral imperative to in some way
address the grassroots needs of
its founding country’s people and
give back where it is needed
most – education in South Africa.
The Foundation funds educational
organisations whose purpose is
to improve education within
underprivileged communities in
South Africa. Datatec’s corporate
social investment (“CSI”) spend is
directed into educational initiatives
consisting of school-level
intervention programmes for
learners and teachers, and
educational bursaries. Other
initiatives include the provision of
technology infrastructure and skills
development for unemployed
youth.
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Corporate social investment continued

This year the Foundation
supported:
Teacher and learner development
at a secondary-school level
Teacher and learner development is
a critical area of investment for the
Foundation, especially in the realms of
maths and science, in which publicschool teachers are heavily underresourced. It has been proven that with
public-private partnerships, the issue
of poor school-leaver passes can be
effectively addressed. The Foundation
supports non-governmental
organisations (“NGOs”) working to
improve learner participation and test
results to enable learners to pursue
tertiary education in fields that require
maths and science as lead subjects.
The Foundation’s total contribution in
this area for FY19 was in excess of
R4.5 million (just over 65% of its total
budget).
Kutlwanong Promaths, assists
learners from previously disadvantaged
schools to get good passes (minimum
C symbol) in maths and science.
Kutlwanong is a key beneficiary of the
Foundation which contributed to their
Promaths outreach project in the East
London Mdantsane area. Grade 10, 11
and 12 learners received extra tuition in
maths and science. The results for this
year were heartening: the overall pass
rate was 100% for the group of
90 grade 12 learners, of whom
71 achieved bachelor passes,
16 passed with a diploma and
three gained a higher certificate;
50 distinctions were achieved in maths
and science, with four learners scoring
between 90% and 99% in maths, eight
achieving between 90% and 99% in
science and one learner scoring 100%!
The Tomorrow Trust, which provides
integrated academic and psychosocial
support to orphaned and vulnerable
children. The Foundation contributed
towards two programmes in which
30 grade 9 and 30 grade 12 learners
received extra tuition in maths, science,
English and life science, as well as
career-guidance support, leadership
workshops and psychosocial support.

The group of grade 9 learners
improved from a baseline test average
of 50% to 63% in term 4, and 73%
achieved maths averages above 50%.
The grade 12 learners improved from a
baseline test average of 50% to 58% in
English, maths, physical science and
life science; 77% achieved bachelor
passes and 24% diploma passes.
Overall, the grade 12 learners achieved
97% national certificate passes
compared to the national average
of 78%.
The Olico Foundation, which
develops tailored education initiatives
for township communities. The
Foundation contributed towards their
programme that offers academic
support in maths for learners in grades
R to 12. Olico ran 25 maths clubs in
Diepsloot for learners in grade 1 to
grade 6. More than 600 primary-school
learners in Diepsloot attended Olico’s
maths clubs and the Foundation is on
track to achieve its goal of 100 maths
clubs in Diepsloot by 2020. Olico’s
grade 7 to grade 12 maths-intervention
learners showed a 24% advantage
over their non-Olico peers.
Their annual times-table challenge
grew to 50 school groups and
1 400 learners and their free online
maths tool continues to grow, with
over 3 500 registered users.
Numeric, which provides afterschool maths tutoring in previously
disadvantaged schools in Gauteng, the
Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal.
This year the Foundation contributed
towards three groups at Ikaneng
Primary School in Diepkloof, Soweto.
Numeric had a 93% attendance rate
for its after-school programme, and
Numeric learners improved by 18.9%
compared to the 8.3% of non-Numeric
peers.
The Vula Programme, educational
outreach at Hilton College in KwaZuluNatal, which services 90 underresourced schools from previously
disadvantaged communities. In FY19,
the Foundation funded projects which
included the Vula Annual Careers Day,
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the Vula Mathematics Academy, and
an administrative assistant.
The Academy trained 28 teachers for a
full term in 2018, and the Careers Day
hosted 500 learners and 20 teachers
from 13 schools in the district.
Growing computer technology
access in poorer communities
Datatec’s core business purpose is
reflected in how the Company invests
the Foundation’s annual budget. A
portion of its total budget is allocated
to NGOs committed to providing ICT
infrastructure in poorer communities
in order to improve education, skills
development and job creation.
The Foundation’s total contribution in
this area for FY19 was R0.7 million,
just over 10.5% of its annual budget.
Afrika Tikkun, which provides
sustainable care and development for
vulnerable and orphaned children from
birth to 25 years old. The Foundation
provided funding for upgrades and
maintenance of their IT infrastructure.
In total, 2 275 children and young
people received computer skills
through their centres, 4 817 people
gained access to computers and
439 staff and employees received
computers and laptops paid for by
Datatec, as well as an upgrade of
their servers and infrastructure.
The Durban High School Foundation
Trust, to which the Foundation
contributed funding for the upgrade
of the school’s media and IT centre.
The Midlands Community College,
which provides bridging education to
previously disadvantaged learners to
qualify for tertiary education, especially
in maths and science. The Foundation
contributed towards the purchase of
12 PCs, a laptop and an upgraded
firewall.
The Etafeni Centre, which provides
computer-literacy courses to
unemployed youth in Nyanga township
in Cape Town. The Foundation
provided funding for new IT equipment.
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ICT skills development aimed
primarily at the youth
ICT skills development is another
critical need, particularly among
the youth, who feel the brunt of
unemployment in South Africa. The
Foundation continues to invest in
NGOs that provide ICT skills training
aimed particularly at the youth.

The Siyakhula Computer School,
which provides low-cost computerliterary training to underprivileged
communities across five centres. The
Foundation subsidised the school’s
programme director’s salary. The
school this year trained 1 708
students, while its five branches
generated a total of R0.7 million in
fees and provided employment for
11 community members.
VMite, which provides technologyskills training to unemployed youth
in the Nelson Mandela Bay region in
the Eastern Cape. The Foundation
sponsored five students to do IT
security engineers training. They
received CompTIA A+ 220-901 and
220-902 certifications, enabling them
to pursue a number of IT-related
careers.
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SUCCESS STORY
degree of peer-to-peer support, and
incentives for top performers.
“I would attend Promaths classes on a
Friday from 15:00 to 17:00 then again on
a Saturday from 8:00 to 15:00 and also on
a Sunday from 8:00 to 11:00. Maths was
always my strong point, so I was surprised
when I got above 90% for science as well
– that made me really happy,” says
Someleze.

The Foundation’s total contribution in
the area for FY19 was R0.7 million (just
under 10% of its total annual budget).
Code4Change, which teaches coding
techniques and skills in secondary
schools. The Foundation contributed
towards the Code Jika programme in
seven schools in Gauteng. The NGO
held school roadshows to recruit new
learners into their programme, with
workshops and coding clubs held in
seven high schools.
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Someleze Mjekula

Seventeen-year-old Someleze Mjekula is
not your average teenager. Quiet and
self-assured, he achieved an incredible
100% in physical science in his matric
finals last year, overcoming the twin
challenges of township living and the
woefully under-resourced South African
education system. It has enabled him to
successfully apply for a place in the
University of Cape Town’s BSc (Eng)
Mechanical and Mechatronic Engineering
degree programme.
The Mdantsane teenager’s remarkable
results are partly down to his own aptitude
but it was his mother and the novel
after-school extra-tuition programme,
Kutlwanong Promaths, that pushed him
to achieve full marks. “She was very
supportive of my education,” he says of
his mom, “but she battled to understand
why I was getting marks in the 90s and not
100%. She was shouting, she would get
angry, I do not know what for because
I worked hard, but she didn’t care. She
just wanted a 100%.”
It was at Umlazi High School in
grade 8 that he was introduced to
Kutlwanong Promaths. The extra-tuition
township network programme of
22 centres offers grade 10 to 12 learners
extra lessons in maths and science from
Friday to Sunday. Datatec sponsors the
Mdantsane centre of Kutlwanong
Promaths.
Looking back, Someleze believes the
competition from fellow learners in the
Promaths class forced him to aim for
higher marks. “I was averaging between
60% and 80%, but my fellow learners
were getting above 90%, which just
pushed me to get there.” The centres,
which attract learners from various high
schools in the communities in which
they are situated, have established an
all-encompassing model of learner care
and development, which includes a good

Raised in a single-parent household after
his father passed away a day after he was
born, he grew up in a modest township
home with two elder sisters, where there
was just enough income to pay for things
like transport to school. His mother
worked hard to provide a stable home
life, so it is perhaps not surprising that a
Hollywood movie that celebrates the
remarkable achievements of black female
mathematicians inspired Someleze.
Although he initially wanted to study
aeronautical engineering, his teachers
advised him that jobs in that field were
scarce, and suggested Mechatronics
instead. Mechatronics is an interdisciplinary
branch of engineering that combines
mechanical engineering with light-current
electrical engineering. With South Africa’s
dire skills shortages in engineering,
Someleze’s job prospects, if he qualifies,
look good.
Promaths runs a university alumni
programme too, something Someleze
has leaned on as he’s adjusted to the
challenges and pressures of his first year at
university. “The workload is hectic and I’ve
had to change my study techniques but
now everything is good,” he says. “I have
the support of a great set of mentors, both
on and off campus, including my Promaths
mentors.” The alumni programme offers
powerful motivational and peer-to-peer
support, with activities including revisiting
centres, organising matric career days and
network sessions.
Someleze is enthusiastic about the role
Promaths played in enabling him to realise
a dream. “Our principal would remind us
that Datatec had sacrificed a lot of money
to make our futures better, and that we
needed to pull up our socks and stop
playing. Companies should be investing
in Promaths, because it helps us a lot.”
Thanks to the support of a loving family,
the incredible tuition of Promaths and the
inspiring story of a Hollywood movie,
Someleze’s future looks bright.
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SUCCESS STORY
The Promaths centres teach the maths and
science curriculum, provide prepacked
lunches for students who require them, offer
incentives for top performers who undertake
routine tests, give career planning and
guidance, and foster a culture of respect
and mentorship.

Khanyisa Dyonashe

Khanyisa Dyonashe is a bright young
17-year-old who embodies the hopes and
dreams of a South African generation born
free of the shackles of apartheid. She’s a
miracle worker too, having achieved an
astonishing 89% for maths and science
in matric in 2018.
Born into a modest family in Mdantsane, a
township about 15km from East London,
Khanyisa rose above the challenges of
everyday township living and the difficulty of
notoriously under-resourced schools to come
first in her matric class. This year she began
her degree in actuarial science at the
University of Cape Town after turning down a
slot at Witwatersrand University for the same
degree.
Actuarial science is particularly difficult to get
into, and demands extremely high matric
subject marks. The degree course, like
many others of its calibre, has featured a
predominantly white learner mix but this
is beginning to change, thanks partly to
high-school-level interventions by companies
like Datatec, which funds the Mdantsane
branch of Kutlwanong Promaths.
Khanyisa signed up at the Kutlwanong
Promaths centre in Mdantsane. “Over three
years, Kutlwanong trebled my love for the
subject and ultimately my potential. It made
my love for maths far more rewarding, and it
really pushed me to my limits,” says Khanyisa.
Last year the Mdantsane centre saw one
matriculant achieve 100% in physical science,
while another achieved 97% in mathematics
and 99% in physical science. Khanyisa, along
with a group of fellow learners were among the
top matriculants in the Eastern Cape.
Khanyisa leaned on the emotional support
of a loving family – her retired father, her
housewife mom and her working sister – to
get her through the fairly rigorous extra-tuition
after-school programme. “I really wanted to
do this for my parents, to make them proud,
as they sacrificed a lot for me,” she says. On
Friday afternoons, almost all day on Saturday
and a final three-hour stint on Sundays,
Khanyisa along with 120 other learners in four
grade classes would take extra lessons at the
Promaths centre.

“They tested frequently, which was really
good practise for the final exams. For
instance, my Promaths maths teacher
collected exam papers from as far back as
2010, which enabled us to practise and
answer questions from many different
angles,” says Khanyisa. “The practising
helped me understand difficult concepts and
gave me the confidence I needed.”
Kutlwanong Promaths specifically seeks to
instil in learners the need to take responsibility
for their behaviour and to be diligent in
everything they do. They believe these life
skills do not just benefit learners’ studies but
build character too. Khanyisa is quick to
attest to this: “Promaths did not just help us
with our school work, it taught us how to
conduct ourselves in front of others by being
humble; we learnt to ask for and value the
help of others when we battled with
understanding certain things.”
With 30 learners from various township
schools represented in each Promaths class,
learners are given an opportunity to learn
from their peers in other parts of the
community. “This really motivated me, as
there was a lot of brilliant people in the class,”
says Khanyisa. “You may be the top learner
at your school, but at Promaths there are top
learners from other schools, so there is
healthy competition and this just pushed
me further.”
Between the enthusiastic participation of the
teachers and the incentives offered for high
achievers, Khanyisa really got the most out of
her Promaths experience. “We got taken out
to movies or to dinner, and those of us who
got an average of 90% or higher went to
Cape Town for four days. We flew down,
stayed at a nice hotel, visited Table Mountain
and went on a red bus tour. And I got to
make new friends, some of whom I am
studying with this year at UCT.”
It is those vital friendships and the Promaths
university alumni programme that Khanyisa is
now leaning on to get her through a gruelling
first year in actuarial science. “The work is
intense, so I call my mom when I need to,
and I rely on my varsity friends for support.”
Khanyisa urges business owners or directors
in large firms to consider investing in solving
the lack of skills in engineering, science and
financial services. “Funding programmes like
Promaths is a good investment, both for you
as a business and for the country as well as
it addresses a massive skills gap, especially
among black professionals, in the financial
services industry. Ultimately it will improve
your business as well as the country’s
economy. It is a win-win for everyone.”

Logicalis’ operating
companies are
committed to
improving the quality
of life for their local
communities and
this year saw
increased employee
participation in
activities that make a
difference. Below are
just a few highlights:
Over US$100 000
CSI spend
Logicalis supports
initiatives in
14 countries

North America

During FY19, Logicalis US
donated in excess of US$92 000
to 76 community causes – to three
local events where Logicalis has
an office, 40 charities across the
USA, five primary school
educational efforts, seven
children’s charities, and
designated charities of
13 Logicalis employees who
lost a family member. In addition,
Logicalis US encourages all
employees to donate their time in
their local community by allowing
eight hours of paid time off
annually.
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Europe

Logicalis UK took part in various charitable initiatives
including “Pedal to Paris” – a cyclist event which runs for
four days with the challenge being to cycle all the way
from London to Paris. Logicalis UK donated to the Royal
British Legion that supports serving and ex-service men
and women in the armed forces. It also organised a
“Christmas Jumper Day” and supported Save the Children
and Reading Family Aid, a children’s charity that supports
children in local communities that are living in poverty or
in disadvantaged situations.
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supported local projects, such as a Christmas market
for children.

Logicalis Germany launched a new CSR programme last
year and supported six social initiatives at its German
offices – from people in need, to development aid and
animal welfare facilities. In addition to donating money
to each of the six facilities, Logicalis employees also

Asia-Pacific

Twenty six Logicalis Hong Kong staff
members participated in the Hong
Kong Red Cross “1 Blood Donation
Saves 3 Lives” programme in July
and September 2018. Logicalis
Hong Kong has since included the
blood donation volunteer programme
in its annual corporate social
responsibility agenda and expects
more staff to commit to this act of
kindness in the coming year.
Logicalis Singapore provided
voluntary support to SWAMI Home,
a home for the elderly, for the third
consecutive year. They held a games
session, distributed pastries and held
a birthday celebration for the elderly
whose birthdays were in the month
of June. In addition, Logicalis
Singapore participated in a session
at Touch Community where they
made ceramic tiles which would later
be sold as merchandise by Touch
Community.
More than 300 residents in Taitung,
Taiwan were injured during Typhoon
Nepartak in 2016. Many medical
institutions were damaged as a result
and require reconstruction. Logicalis

Taiwan donated money to MacKay
Memorial Hospital Taitung Branch,
where a fundraising event was
initiated to offer remote residents
healthcare services. In addition,
Logicalis Taiwan also donated used
books and clothes to Christian
Mountain Children’s Home.
Thomas Duryea Logicalis (“TDL”)
Australia participated in “Around the
Bay” – a 210km cycling event that
raises funds for The Smith Family,
who help disadvantaged children in
ensuring they receive an education.
TDL Australia also took part in the
Fight Cancer Foundation’s “Footy
Colours Day”, a day event where
employees were encouraged to wear
their team’s colours. Funds raised
went towards assisting children with
their education, who are receiving
treatment for cancer.
For the third year, TDL Australia
supported a team to participate in
Melbourne City Mission’s Sleep at
the “G”, where volunteers sleep out
for a night at Melbourne’s leading
sporting ground to get a glimpse of
the ongoing conditions experienced

by homeless youth. The funds raised
went towards supporting the
homeless in the state of Victoria.
By partnering with PonyUp, TDL
Australia has continued to convert
old, unused technology into
charitable currency and in turn,
reduce the level of waste into landfill.
PonyUp donates 50% of profits to
SecondBite – Australia’s largest fresh
food rescue charity, which
redistributes fresh surplus food
donated by farmers, wholesalers,
markets, supermarkets and caterers
to more than 1 300 community food
programmes. The contribution made
by TDL helped generate almost
11 000 meals to SecondBite.
TDL Australia also supported
Anglicare’s Toy ‘n’ Tucker Appeal, by
donating non-perishable food items
and new toys to families in need as
well as raising funds. In addition, TDL
supported Kmart’s Wishing Tree
Appeal – an initiative which supports
members of the community in need,
by donating gifts to those who are
unable to afford presents during the
holiday period.
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Corporate social investment continued

Latin America

In Brazil, Logicalis supported cultural projects, such as the
“Discover the Orchestra” initiative of the São Paulo State
Symphony Orchestra. This is an educational programme
that aims to develop musical culture in children and
adolescents, attended by students of primary and
secondary-level schools.
In Argentina, Logicalis was part of a campaign to collect
clothes and household goods for people affected by the
swelling of the Pilcomayo river in Salta. Logicalis ran a
campaign in which every donation of food or toys from
an employee was matched by Logicalis and given to
Asociación Civil El Arca, a voluntary charity organisation.
Logicalis Argentina also took part in an event called
“Good Night for all”, which consisted of assembling
10 Christmas boxes to deliver to 10 families from
around Argentina.
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Logicalis Paraguay also supported the Operation Smile
Paraguay Foundation marathon by entering 25 runners,
who participated in the 5km category. The team raised
funds to perform free operations for children with cleft lips
and palates.
Logicalis Peru collected school supplies to donate to the
“Village of the Child: The Good School”, which welcomes
homeless children who were victims of terrorists in the
VRAEM. The VRAEM, Valley of the Apurímac, Ene and
Mantaro rivers, is a geopolitical zone in Peru and is an area
of high-child malnutrition and poverty. Employees of
Logicalis Peru also bought toys and snacks at Christmas
for children with cancer from the National Institute of
Neoplastic Diseases which were distributed to over
300 children. This was done through the non-profit
organisation “Projects of Love”.

Throughout the month of August, Logicalis Chile’s staff
participated in the campaign “Let’s Help with Milk 1 + 1”,
donating 180kg of milk in milk bags to the Small Missionary
Sisters of Charity, part of the Don Orione Foundation, which
is active mainly in poor or developing countries.

In Paraguay, Logicalis campaigned to collect clothes
and household goods for people affected by flooding in
Ñeembucú, a region located in the south of the country.
For the fifth consecutive year, Logicalis participated in the
solidarity run of Fundación Dequeni, an organisation that
helps children deal with disadvantaged situations.
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Westcon International supports
a variety of corporate and
employee-led charitable initiatives,
providing time and resources to
improve the communities where
its employees live and work.

Spain

Westcon International supports Fundación Juan XXIII
Roncalli, a non-profit organisation that supports people
with mental disabilities.

Germany

Westcon International engaged in a “Social Day” with
Berlin-based UFA Kinderbauernhof, an animal farm for
children. Refurbishment work was done to the farm and
Westcon International contributed to material costs.
Westcon International also donated to Berlin City
Mission, which maintains the “Cold Bus”, an initiative
focused on homeless people which aims to prevent
death from exposure and provides emergency
accommodation for homeless people.
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South Africa

In South Africa, Westcon International partnered with
SAME Foundation to renovate, rebuild and fully equip
the Computer Applied Teaching (“CAT”) laboratory for
the Diepsloot Combined School in Johannesburg.
The CAT laboratory will provide its learners with a home
base for them to foster their computer-based learning
skills and hopefully drive a passion for technology
among these learners. The new CAT laboratory will
afford the learners the opportunity to write their
computer exams, an education requirement from the
Department of Education, at their own school. In the
past, these exams had to be written at private schools
in the area who were willing to accommodate them.
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Datatec Group

The Group is an equal opportunities
employer and is committed to a
working environment that is free from
discrimination in every region in which
it operates. The divisions accord
completely with this commitment. All
reported incidents are investigated
and if substantiated, a disciplinary
enquiry will be convened, the outcome
of which may lead to termination of
employment.

Number of
employees*

10 130
(FY18: 8 616)
Employees by geography
2 078

969

513
1 070

1 972
FY18
3 521
3 502

FY19
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Logicalis

Datatec employs over 10 000
employees across more than
50 countries. The Group strives to
attract and retain employees of the
highest calibre to uphold performance
and build sustainability, and in parallel
prioritises optimal working conditions
and opportunities for development.
The Group seeks to develop skills and
talent inherent in its workforce.

716

Page 52

1 540

2 865

■
■
■
■
■

North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA

* Includes both permanent employees
and contractors.

Number of
employees*

Employees by geography
127
870

1 091
1 101

882

FY18
1 923

6 690
(FY18: 5 446)
* Includes both permanent employees
and contractors.

Recruiting the best talent
Logicalis recognises that its people
are critical to the ongoing success
of the business and, by striving to
attract the best talent, develop
and reward its people for great
performance and engage effectively
with them, Logicalis aims to
optimise the performance of
the division.
Developing talent
In Logicalis, the focus on advanced
technologies requires a high level
of technical expertise, and
management works closely with its
vendors to ensure that employees
are trained appropriately and have
the necessary accreditations.
In the interests of its long-term
sustainability and in order to develop
and retain its top leadership talent,
Logicalis has established an
international leadership development
programme for senior leaders. This
will enable its top senior technical
talent to become more rounded
business professionals and increase
international collaboration across
Logicalis. In order to develop its
future leaders internally, Logicalis
introduced a high-potential
development programme across
Europe in FY18, to fast track the
development of some of its
employees who show signs of
having the capability and ambition
to assume senior leadership roles
in the future. Following the success
of this programme in Europe with
high-retention and promotion rates
of those who attended, it will be

1 737

1 540

FY19

■
■
■
■
■

North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA

2 865

launched in Logicalis US and
Latin America in FY20.
Rewarding performance
The majority of employees at Logicalis
have performance objectives which
are linked to the strategy of the local
business. Talent and succession
management reviews of the
leadership team in each business are
held annually, to focus on the
retention of top leadership talent and
effective succession management.
Listening to employees
Logicalis aims to be an employer
of choice within the technology
industry. To assess what its
employees think of the business,
Logicalis conducts biannual Groupwide employee engagement surveys,
where improvement opportunities are
identified in each operation,
followed up by action plans which
managers and employees agree
upon together.
Living its values
In FY18, Logicalis introduced
group-wide values for the first
time, which has helped the division
develop a common identity across its
international operations. Employees
can nominate each other for value
awards for living the values.
Fair and transparent policies
Human resource practices and
policies ensure that all employees,
wherever they work, whatever their
role, are treated equally, fairly and
respectfully at all times. Logicalis
maintains consistent and transparent
diversity policies across all its
markets.
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Westcon International

Number of
employees*

Employees by geography
82

568

181
493

■
■
■
■

FY18
840

3 171
(FY18: 2 930)

939

1 416

North America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA

FY19

* Includes both permanent employees
and contractors.

Creating new jobs
During FY19, Westcon International
created a Shared Service Centre in
Johannesburg. The Johannesburg
Shared Service Centre
demonstrates the value of job
creation and has a positive impact
on the South African labour market.
New employees reflect the national
demographic makeup of South
Africa. The majority of the 90 staff
employed are graduates and
previously unemployed youth. New
entrants vary in experience
from entry to manager level.
Recruiting the best talent
Westcon International’s strategy
clearly articulates that the core
strength of its business is its people.
Attracting, developing and retaining
the best employees across its
international business will enable
Westcon International to deliver its
business priorities and goals.
Supportive environment
Westcon International believes in
creating a friendly, supportive and
forward-thinking work environment
in order to position it as employer
of choice. This is underpinned by
its values which are at the heart of
everything it does – partnership,
excellence, innovation,
empowerment and integrity.
Employee recognition gifts are
sent to employees at key personal
landmark moments.

Employee development
Westcon International continues to
maintain an environment that supports
employees to reach their full potential.
It provides support and tools for staff
to develop their professional skills,
further their career and enhance their
leadership capabilities.
Employee learning and development
plans span the following key areas:
• induction;
• systems training and digital
distribution;
• selling skills and operational skills;
• e-learning;
• personal development;
• management development; and
• health and safety compliance.

New induction training:
attended by over 500 new
employees
Sales training:
attended by over 200
employees
Learning and development utilises a
mix of channels: face-to-face, online,
classroom, one-to-one and mentoring.
Additional programmes include project
management, IT certification and
languages.
Early careers
Westcon International’s early careers
programme is an opportunity for new
entrants to enter the exciting world of
technology. During this year it has run
early career entrant schemes in Spain
and the UK.

1 582

Spain

Through the “Level Up” programme,
16 internships have been created,
where participants undergo staged
development and training in
advanced telecoms technologies.

UK

In line with the National
Apprenticeship Scheme, it has
23 apprentices working in the
business across sales, pre-sales,
business administration and
technical engineering.
Diversity and inclusion
As a global business, Westcon
International believes that the best
work comes from a workforce that
reflects the world around us.
Different ideas and perspectives
help it innovate, manage risk, and
grow the business in a sustainable
way. That is why it is committed to
creating a diverse and inclusive
workplace.
For the first time in the UK, Westcon
International published a Gender
Pay Gap Report in accordance with
government guidelines. This report
indicated that it is broadly in line
with the industry. Fewer women
working in IT and technical roles –
which makes up a large part of its
workforce – is a challenge for the
industry as a whole. Westcon
International continues to work hard
to create an environment where
more women progress through the
most senior levels.
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BBBEE and transformation

As a South African company, Datatec
is required to comply with the Codes
of Good Practice on BEE issued by
the Department of Trade and Industry
(“the Codes”), as well as the BBBEE
Act 53 of 2003, amended by the
BBBEE Act 46 of 2013, specifically the
ICT sector codes. In terms of this, the
South African-based operations are
required to comply with the Codes. In
terms of section 13G(2) of the BBBEE
Act, read with regulation 12(3) of the
BBBEE Regulations, all public
companies listed on the JSE are now
also required to provide the BBBEE
commission, on an annual basis, with
a report on their compliance with
BBBEE.

customers 135% procurement spend
recognition. Given the recent changes
to the Codes of Good Practice as well
as the resulting changes to the ICT
sector codes that came into effect in
November 2016, the current rating is
a significant achievement for the
operation.

Westcon Group SA (Pty) Ltd, Datatec’s
South African operating subsidiary,
has achieved a Level 1 BBBEE status
under the ICT charter codes, giving its

Datatec’s consolidated BBBEE status,
which includes the non-operating
Datatec Limited head office, Westcon
Group SA (Pty) Ltd and Logicalis SA

Logicalis SA (Pty) Ltd, an operating
subsidiary, achieved a Level 4 BBBEE
status under the ICT charter codes,
giving its customers 100%
procurement spend recognition.
Given that this operation has been
operating for less than two years, it
is encouraging that it has achieved
this rating.
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(Pty) Ltd, is Level 4. Datatec takes
BBBEE and transformation very
seriously and will continue to comply
with legislation and work on areas of
improvement.
Annual BBBEE audits are performed
by accredited BBBEE verification
agents.
In its broadest sense, transformation
is a strategic priority for the Company.
Datatec is committed to BBBEE in
its South African operations and
transformation across all business
practices and levels.
To view the Westcon Group SA (Pty)
Ltd, Logicalis SA (Pty) Ltd and the
Further info online
consolidated
Datatec scorecards,
please visit Datatec’s website
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Safety and health
Safety, health and
environment (“SHE”)
policy and procedures
Datatec has a Group-wide SHE policy,
which is complemented by individual
policies at each subsidiary to ensure
compliance with local regulations.
Management at each subsidiary is
responsible for implementing and
maintaining the policy throughout the
organisation, and ensuring that health
and safety considerations are given
priority in planning and day-to-day
supervision of work. The Group
CEO delegates the responsibility for
maintaining a safe working
environment to a Health and Safety
Committee or nominated individuals
at each subsidiary. Health and safety
issues are collated by the committees,
nominated individuals and the Group
Company Secretary, who reports to
the Board.

Government, municipalities, regulators

Health and wellness
The approach to health and wellness
is on a per region/operation basis,
in keeping with the decentralised
management model of the Group.
At most operations, employees are
afforded health schemes with the
operations contributing the entire or
part of the employee membership fee.

Health and safety committees
The subsidiary health and safety
committees’ members are permanent,
full-time employees acquainted with
conditions and activities in the
workplace. Each subsidiary elects its
health and safety committee and will
include representatives from various
departments within the subsidiary.
The committees are responsible for:
• reviewing and recommending
changes to the SHE policy;
• investigating any accident which may
occur, with the objective of achieving
a factual and honest assessment of
the causes and thereby preventing
recurrence;

Improving shareholder returns

• proactively identifying health and
safety hazards in the work
environment;
• reporting hazards to management;
• making recommendations to
management to reduce health
and safety hazards;
• keeping abreast of relevant
legislation;
• creating awareness of workplace
risks with employees;
• investigating complaints by
employees relating to health and
safety at work;
• setting goals for improving health
and safety within the business;
• identifying health and safety training
needs in the different areas of the
business; and
• attending meetings with health and
safety inspectors if required.
Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Employees are responsible for taking
reasonable care of their own health,
carrying out lawful orders in terms of
health and safety, and complying with
notices, instructions, hazard and
warning signs. Furthermore, it is their
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responsibility to report any safety risk
and any accident, injury or health and
safety incident to the designated
health and safety representative or
human resources manager.

Logicalis
Commitment to health and safety
Logicalis recognises its obligation to
reduce the risk of injury in the work
environment and to provide a clean
and safe place to work. Logicalis
undertakes to comply with health and
safety regulations as set out in the
jurisdictions in which Logicalis
operates around the world.
Policies
Each Logicalis operation has its own
health and safety policy which is
consistent with best practice in the
applicable jurisdiction, and regularly
undertakes programmes and
procedures to mitigate health and
safety risks, such as risk assessments
and safety audits.
Training
Logicalis also ensures that the
appropriate health and safety training
is provided for its employees for the
role that they perform, which includes,
where appropriate, the training of first
aiders and fire marshalls.
All employees within Logicalis annually
complete an online Code of Conduct
training course which covers the
responsibilities of Logicalis as an
employer and all Logicalis employees
with regard to health and safety in the
workplace.
Encouraging employees to take
care of their health
Logicalis US encourages all employees
to get a physical examination through
their primary physician each year that
is paid for by the company. Employees
who get a physical examination in
a particular year pay discounted
premiums on their Logicalis-provided
medical coverage for the entire
calendar year. In addition, in the winter,
employees are encouraged to get flu
vaccinations which are covered by
their medical plans.
Latin America
Logicalis Brazil supports the welfare
of its employees by offering free flu

vaccinations. It has also increased
awareness of breast and prostate
cancer among employees, promoting a
series of actions for “Pink October”
and “Blue November”, bringing in
expert speakers and encouraging staff
to walk and move more and converting
their number of steps into donations
for entities that support the importance
of a healthy lifestyle and the prevention
of these diseases.
In Logicalis Argentina, all employees
are assisted with first-class health
plans and offered a variety of ad hoc
health events throughout the year
such as exercise hours and massage
sessions. The company provides fruit
for its staff on a daily basis and also
offers a free flu vaccination.
Europe
Logicalis UK has created a Health and
Safety forum that meets once a month,
with inter-departmental reporting
on health and safety issues. A Health
and Safety Manager has been
appointed to make the management
of health and safety issues a priority
within the business. It also offers
best-in-class health plans to all
employees.
In Logicalis Ireland, all employees
have completed a manual handling
course. Employees were trained on
how to perform specific manual
handling tasks and identify ergonomic
factors associated with their work
activities. This course has now been
included in Logicalis Ireland’s induction
process for all new employees. A
refresher course will be undertaken by
all employees on a biannual basis.
At Logicalis Germany, every location
has trained employees to administer
first aid. Furthermore, there are regular
audits by an external consultant on
health and safety. Logicalis Germany
offers fresh seasonal fruits to
employees on a weekly basis.
Asia-Pacific
Logicalis Singapore has renewed
their certification for bizSafe Level 4,
awarded by the Singapore Workplace
Safety and Health Council for three
years. The bizSafe programme
promotes workplace safety and
health through the recognition of safety
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efforts. Selected staff are trained in first
aid and CPR courses that equip them
with better skills and knowledge in
handling emergency situations. To
promote a healthy lifestyle and good
eating habits, staff get to enjoy
generous servings of fresh fruits,
courtesy of the company, on a
designated day each month.
For the wellbeing of employees,
Logicalis Taiwan offers its employees
a free health screening once every two
years. Periodic fire and earthquake
drills are also held to ensure readiness
and safe evacuation of employees.
Thomas Duryea Logicalis (“TDL”) has
trained employees in its Australian and
Malaysian operations to provide first
aid assistance, should the need arise.
TDL Australia has also trained fire
wardens. TDL Malaysia office has a
health and safety committee that
meets regularly to review management
of incidents and provide feedback on
ways to improve health and safety
systems and procedures. TDL Australia
also provides fresh fruit daily and offers
free flu vaccinations to all employees.

Westcon International
Commitment to health and safety
Westcon International has provided
additional professional health and
safety resources to meet growing
demands for legislative compliance
and stakeholder requirements.
It has recruited a UK-based Facilities
Co-ordinator and a Health, Safety and
Quality Management Co-ordinator.
The team will help maintain a safe and
environmentally conscious workplace
and business environment, which is
managed in accordance with local
standards and regulations.
Training
Westcon is increasing safety
promotional information and training,
raising the profile of health and safety
across the business. This includes
standardised safety reporting, health
and safety awareness e-learning,
employee feedback on potential
issues, and reviewing “near miss”
incidents to help reduce potential
workplace accidents. A Health, Safety
and Quality module is also included in
the EMEA New Starter Induction event.
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Environment

Approach to environment
Datatec is currently in the process of
developing and submitting its fourth
Carbon Disclosure Project (“CDP”)
climate response. The CDP is an
internationally acclaimed initiative
that is driven by over 800 institutional
investors representing in excess of
US$100 trillion in assets with the
objective of gaining greater visibility
into how companies are managing
the risk and opportunities in response
to climate change.
The world is driving ahead into the low
carbon transition and shareholders are

Logicalis

Commitment to greener practices
As a responsible international provider
of IT solutions, Logicalis seeks to
measure and minimise the way in
which its commercial activities may
impact the environment. Logicalis is
also committed to providing practical
advice and support to its customers
and vendor partners to help them
along the path to ever cleaner and
greener IT solutions.
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increasingly demanding such visibility.
In an effort to provide more
transparency to shareholders, Datatec
has once again teamed with GCX
Africa to develop, collate and submit
the 2019 CDP report.
The first CDP submission reported on
Datatec’s South African operations,
being the head office and Westcon
Southern Africa’s local operations.
During the second submission,
Datatec expanded to include
Datatec’s UK operations. Last year
Datatec included its European
operations and this year’s report

programmes and performance based
on regulatory developments, technical
developments and community
expectations.
Logicalis Brazil ensures that all
its offices comply with the local
environmental laws. Prior to initiating
projects, Logicalis conducts several
preventive actions like risk anticipation
and control actions planning,
expressed in occupational safety,
health and environmental programmes.

Logicalis recognises that a responsible
attitude to green IT can lead to
significant reductions in energy
consumption and carbon emissions.
As well as reducing greenhouse gases
and operational costs, the technologies
it promotes, such as remote working
and video and teleconferencing,
enables flexible working environments,
greater productivity and improved
business continuity.

Certifications
Logicalis Brazil has obtained
ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001
certifications, showing that the
organisation is committed to the
prevention of environmental impacts
and continuous improvement, as part
of the normal business management
cycle.

Logicalis supports initiatives for
reducing power and water usage and
monitoring waste reduction in its
offices. These range from paper and
plastic recycling to water filtration and
office lighting efficiency systems.

Logicalis UK has obtained a
recertification of ISO 14001, the
Environmental Management System
that sets out best practice for
environmental issues and helps to
outline local legislation for compliance,
as well as monitoring all the energy
consumption of the UK data centres.

Policies
Logicalis US seeks to conduct its
operations in compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, and
standards concerning environmental
protection. It continually improves
environmental management policies,

Reducing its carbon footprint
Logicalis promotes remote working and
video conferencing across its offices to
minimise car or air transportation and
reduce its carbon footprint. This is also
supported through Logicalis’ schemes
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covers the same jurisdictions as
last year.
The CDP report will provide Datatec
with an opportunity to identify specific
risks, opportunities and mitigation
options that could have a material
impact on Datatec’s business
operations over the medium to long
term. The Company will engage with
external professionals to mitigate and
adapt to the risks identified and to
take advantage of available
opportunities in order to unlock
maximum strategic business value
from the initiative.

to encourage employees to use public
transport.
Logicalis Ireland promotes the use of
public transport and cycling to work.
Logicalis Ireland also promotes the
government tax saver initiative through
which employees can receive
commuter tickets tax-free as part
of their employment package.
Employees in Asia-Pacific are
encouraged to take public transport or
carpool when attending meetings and
corporate recreational events to
minimise carbon footprint.
Saving energy
As an early adopter of green IT ideas
and activities, Logicalis welcomed the
introduction of the Energy Savings
Opportunity Scheme in the UK. The
purpose of the scheme is to require
qualifying organisations to measure
total energy consumption, identify
areas of significant energy
consumption and identify cost-effective
energy-efficiency opportunities.
The assessment noted Logicalis’
commitment to sustainability through
the provision of a number of policies
and initiatives, namely an energy
management policy, a transport policy
and a sustainable policy. Logicalis’
data centres are designed to best
practice standards to measure power
usage effectiveness and save energy.
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Logicalis has moved to completely
renewable energy from its energy
suppliers and has replaced lighting
with low wattage, energy saving
lighting solutions.
Logicalis in Asia-Pacific has replaced
inefficient, high-energy lightbulbs with
lower wattage, energy-saving lights
(compact fluorescent and LEDs).
Across offices in the region, Logicalis
works to ensure that office cooling
systems are set up at an optimal
temperature and switched off after
work hours and over weekends.
Recycling
Logicalis Ireland promotes recycling
internally with bins located in a number
of key areas. The print management
strategy has focused on reducing the
number of printing devices, eliminating
unnecessary printing and purchasing
recycled paper.
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Westcon International
Energy management
A review of energy usage is being undertaken which will contribute to Westcon
International’s future energy management strategy. This includes identifying most
effective equipment, such as LED lighting replacement, and more efficient airconditioning units. Promotion of energy usage culture includes light and equipment
management, supplier reviews and green energy supply.
Recycling
Recycling within offices and warehouses is a priority, with enhanced recycling
provisions being made available. Examples include:
• UK: trial of recycling boxes for employee and company batteries. Collection and
disposal of lithium batteries used in certain products
• Spain: office recycling containers for recycling of batteries found in toys, remote
controls, mobile phones, alarm clocks, etc
• South Africa: working with a third-party provider Hlangane Recycling to record
the amount and types of waste currently recycled

In Asia-Pacific, recycled paper and
green office stationery are purchased
for staff usage, with the latter making
up part of Logicalis’ inventory on
corporate premiums, which are given
out during client events.
TDL Australia continues to partner
with PonyUp, an organisation which
turns unwanted, second hand
technology into charitable currency
which, in turn, reduces the level of
waste into landfill.
Paperless business
In Singapore, Logicalis has launched a
new e-claims portal where employees
can now submit claims electronically in
a more efficient and simplified manner,
while further reducing paper wastage.
Logicalis Hong Kong will be using a
cloud platform service in Q1 FY20 to
submit e-leave applications to avoid
wasting paper. The cloud platform
service also allows Logicalis Hong
Kong to save all personnel filing along
with employees’ certificates, which
enables easy reference for the
management team.

Vendor collaboration
Following business and legislation changes, vendors are being targeted to provide
more product data that further assists in meeting Westcon’s environmental waste
obligations.
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The Board contributes to strategic
delivery and value creation
by focusing on responsible and
ethical leadership to ensure a
sustainable business. The Board
periodically reviews opportunities
and threats it believes could have
the most significant impact on the
Group’s ability to have sustainable
value for its stakeholders.
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the Companies Act. The directors are
of the opinion that they have adhered
to the terms of reference set out in the
Board Charter for the year.

and subsidiaries by monitoring
executive management. The Board
is at the head of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and ensures
the Group is a responsible corporate
citizen, cognisant of the impact
its operations may have on the
environment and society in which it
operates, while acting in accordance
with Datatec’s Code of Conduct.

Governance creating and
protecting value
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A copy of the Board Charter
Further info online
is
available on the website
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

The Board ensures that the
governance of risk and technology
and information through the Board
committees support the organisation
in setting and achieving its strategic
objectives. The assurance services, in
the form of external and internal audit
functions, further enable an effective
control environment which supports
the Board’s decision-making.
Communities

The Board is responsible for the
leadership and guidance of the Group
and exercises control over all divisions

The Board is governed by a formal
Board Charter that regulates the
parameters within which it operates
and defines its roles and responsibilities
in accordance with legislation and
global best practice with particular
reference to the King IV™ Code and

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Committee structure

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Stephen Davidson Independent non-executive Chairman, Jens Montanana Chief Executive Officer, Ivan Dittrich Chief Financial Officer,
Ekta Singh-Bushell, John McCartney, Johnson Njeke, Maya Makanjee

SOCIAL AND
ETHICS
COMMITTEE

AUDIT, RISK AND
COMPLIANCE
COMMITTEE

Monitors the
Company’s activities
in the areas of social
economic development,
good corporate
citizenship, the
environment, health and
safety and labour and
employment.

Oversight of financial
reporting, audit,
risk management
and internal audit.

THE BOARD HAS
ESTABLISHED FOUR
COMMITTEES TO
ASSIST IT WITH ITS
DUTIES

NOMINATIONS
COMMITTEE

REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

Responsible for
Board composition,
appointment of
directors and senior
management and
succession planning.

Determines the
remuneration of
executive directors
and senior
management,
and oversees the
remuneration policy
for employees.

Further info online

Further info online

Further info online

Further info online

Cross reference
to sections
See
page
60 for
in this report
more details.

See pages 62
Cross reference to sections
in this report
and
101 for
more details.

Cross reference
to sections
See
page
69 for
in this report
more details.

Cross reference
to sections
See
page
72 for
in this report
more details.
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Further info online

Datatec’s Board of directors
Cross reference to sections

in this report
See
pages 12 and 13 for more details.

Rotation and appointment of directors
Communities

In terms of the Group’s Memorandum of Incorporation,
one-third of the Board’s directors must retire from office at
each Annual General Meeting on a rotation basis. Retiring
directors may make themselves available for re-election,
provided that they remain eligible as required by the
Memorandum of Incorporation and in compliance with
the JSE Listings Requirements.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

At the upcoming AGM, Jens Montanana, Ivan Dittrich and
Johnson Njeke will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election. Maya Makanjee will
offer herself for election onto the Board of the Company.
On behalf of the Board, the Chairman confirms that on
the basis of the annual evaluation of the Board and of the
performance of individual directors, the performance and
commitment of Jens Montanana, Ivan Dittrich, Johnson
Njeke and Maya Makanjee throughout their periods of
office have been highly satisfactory.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

The Board unanimously recommends shareholders to
vote in favour of the re-election of Jens Montanana,
Ivan Dittrich and Johnson Njeke, as well as the election of
Maya Makanjee at the AGM.
Annual Board and committee reviews
In addition to Board and committee self-evaluations,
the directors were evaluated during the year as follows:
• Individual assessments conducted by the CEO and
Chairman
• Non-executive directors were assessed for
independence by the Nominations Committee and the
Board (as noted in the Nominations Committee report)
• The Chairman was assessed by the non-executive
directors and CEO
• The CEO was assessed by all the non-executive
directors
• The CFO was assessed by the Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee

Board committees
The Board has established four committees to assist it with
its duties:
• Social and Ethics Committee
• Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
• Nominations Committee
• Remuneration Committee

Support functions
Independent advice
All directors have access to seek professional and
independent advice about the affairs of the Group at
the Group’s expense.
Company Secretary
All directors have unlimited access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary. The Company Secretary
is responsible for the duties set out in section 88 of the
Companies Act, including governance and proper
administration of the Board, regulatory advice, monitoring
the implementation of Board decisions and ensuring that
ethical governance standards are implemented.
Datatec Management Services (Pty) Ltd, a South African
company, is the Company Secretary. This company is
managed by Simon Morris.
The Board undertakes an annual evaluation of the Company
Secretary in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements.
The evaluation criteria for the Company Secretary includes
assessing the qualifications, knowledge of or experience
with relevant laws, ability to provide comprehensive support
and the ability to provide guidance to directors as to their
duties, responsibilities and powers. The annual evaluation in
October 2018 involved the completion of a questionnaire by
Board members and a discussion during a meeting of the
Board in the absence of the Company Secretary. Based on
the results of the evaluation, the Board is comfortable that
the Company Secretary maintains an arm’s-length
relationship with the Board at all times, has the relevant
experience to discharge his duties and is sufficiently qualified
and skilled to act in accordance with, and advise directors
in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements and update the
directors in terms of the recommendations of the King IV™
Code and other relevant local and international law.
Simon Morris is a qualified chartered accountant.
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Social and Ethics Committee report

“The Social and
Ethics Committee
is tasked with
overseeing the good
corporate citizenship
of the Group on
behalf of the Board.”

The Social and Ethics Committee’s
responsibilities encompass monitoring
and regulating the impact of the
Group on its stakeholders. Although
management is tasked with
overseeing the day-to-day operational
sustainability of their respective areas
of business, and reporting thereon to
the Social and Ethics Committee, the
Board remains ultimately responsible
for Group sustainability. The committee
was established under the terms of the
Companies Act.
During the year under review,
Johnson Njeke chaired the committee.
The committee further comprises
Stephen Davidson, Jens Montanana
and Maya Makanjee. The committee
meets at least twice a year.

Johnson
Njeke

Social and
Ethics
Committee
Chairman

The Social and Ethics Committee
operates within defined terms of
reference as set out in its charter, the
Companies Act and the authority
granted to it by the Board. Broadly, the
committee is tasked with overseeing
the good corporate citizenship of the
Group on behalf of the Board. In
conjunction with the Board, the Social
and Ethics Committee has applied the
principles of King IV™, including the
disclosures in the Integrated Report.
The committee’s role is to regularly
monitor the Group’s activities, with
regard to any relevant legislation, other
legal requirements or prevailing codes
of best practice, in respect of the
following:
• Social and economic development,
including the Group’s standing in
terms of the:
– Ten principles set out in the United
Nations Global Compact
– Anti-bribery and corruption
legislation and best practice from
around the world, including OECD
policy guidelines for preventing
corruption, US Foreign Corrupt
Practices Act and UK Bribery Act
– Employment Equity Act
– Broad-Based Black Economic
Empowerment Act
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• Good corporate citizenship,
including the Group’s:
– Promotion of equality, prevention
of unfair discrimination, and
reduction of corruption
– Contribution to development of the
communities in which our activities
are predominantly conducted or
within which our products or
services are predominantly
marketed
– Record of sponsorship, donations
and charitable giving
– Environment, health and public
safety, including the impact of the
Group’s activities and services
– Stakeholder relationships and
public relations
– Labour and employment, including
the Group’s:
– Standing in terms of the
International Labour
Organisation Protocol on decent
work and working conditions
– Employment relationships and
the Group’s contribution
towards the educational
development of its employees
The Social and Ethics Committee
examines the application of the
Group’s Code of Conduct which
provides a framework of “how we do
business” in an honest and ethical way
across the Group. On an annual basis,
the Group conducts Code of Conduct
training and all employees are required
to complete it. The committee reviews
reports from the subsidiaries relating to
Code of Conduct training and antibribery and corruption.
Health and safety reports are reviewed
annually by the committee and at least
quarterly at the subsidiary level.
The committee also monitors the
Group’s application of BBBEE
legislation in its South African
operations and the promotion of
equality and prevention of unfair
discrimination throughout the global
operations of Datatec. Furthermore, it
oversees the Group’s contribution to
the development of communities in
South Africa through the Datatec
Educational and Technology
Foundation.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

The committee draws matters relating
to employment equity, BBBEE, CSI
and labour to the attention of the
Board and reports on them to
shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting.
No human rights incidents were
reported during the financial year.
In South Africa, aspects such as
prohibition of child labour, compulsory
labour and discriminatory practices
are monitored by the Department of
Labour in addition to the committee.
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Social and Ethics Committee constitution and operation
The Board has established a Social and Ethics Committee under the terms of
the Companies Act 71 of 2008.
The committee operates within defined terms of reference as set out in its
charter and the authority granted to it by the Board and meets at least twice
a year.
The
Social and Ethics Committee charter is available on the Group’s website
Further info online
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

The composition of the Social and Ethics Committee during FY19 was:
•
•
•
•

Communities

Johnson Njeke (Chairman)
Jens Montanana (Chief Executive Officer)
Stephen Davidson (Group independent non-executive Chairman)
Maya Makanjee (independent non-executive director) – will succeed as Chair
on 1 June 2019
• Ekta Singh-Bushell (independent non-executive director)
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Directors’ attendance at Social and Ethics Committee meetings during FY19 and
subsequently to the date of this report (all meetings were scheduled) is as follows:
Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

MJN Njeke

6 March
2018

15 October
2018

13 March
2019

P

P

P

M Makanjee

P

JP Montanana

P

E Singh-Bushell
SJ Davidson
P = present

P

P

P

P

P

P

P

= not a director

The committee reviews its performance annually by means of questionnaires
completed by individual committee members and attendees which are then
discussed at Board and committee meetings. These appraisals enable the
committee to evaluate its effectiveness objectively and to conclude that it
is operating effectively under the terms of reference set out in its charter.
The Chairman of the committee will be available at the AGM to present its report
noted above and to answer queries about the work of the committee.
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Risk-based
leadership with the
Board at its apex
is fundamental to
Datatec’s approach
to its operations. In
line with the King IV™
Code, the Board
governs risk in a way
that supports the
organisation in
setting and achieving
its strategic
objectives.

Risk policy
The Group’s risk policy:
• sets out and explains Datatec’s
approach to risk and risk
management;
• records the Board’s evaluation of
Datatec’s risk appetite for the main
categories of risk;
• explains the principles behind
Datatec’s risk management
framework which contains the
procedures by which the policy
is implemented; and
• supports management in managing
risk, allowing risk to be managed on
a decentralised basis subject to
Group overview.
The approach to risk management and
internal control defined in the risk policy
has applied throughout the year under
review and up to the date of approval
of this Integrated Report and Annual
Financial Statements.
The risk policy is reviewed by the
ARCC and approved annually by
the Board. The latest update was
approved on 14 March 2019.

Johnson
Njeke

Audit,
Risk and
Compliance
Committee
Chairman

The key risks faced by the Group are
summarised on page 63. While all risks
are continually monitored, the ARCC
paid particular attention to cyber
security threats during FY19 as the
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Group’s operations face ever
increasing attacks by opportunist
fraudsters through “phishing” emails
and other malicious actions. The
introduction of the EU General Data
Privacy Regulation in May 2018 also
highlighted the responsibilities of the
Group for data privacy for which
preparations had been made in the
prior year. Board reporting from
the Group’s IT departments via an
inter-divisional ICT Governance
Committee and cyber-security
assessments undertaken by internal
audit both enhanced the ARCC’s
response to this risk.
During FY19, Datatec introduced
supplier on-boarding guidelines across
the Group to enhance effectiveness in
this area addressing the risk of using
suppliers who might compromise the
Group’s compliance and business
values. Requiring suppliers to comply
with the Datatec Code of Conduct is
critical in this regard.
Further info online

The risk management framework for
maintaining sound risk management
Cross reference to sections
in this report
and
internal control systems
throughout the Group is explained in
more detail later in this report.
Communities

The key risks to the Group are set out
on page 63.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Board assessment of the Group’s system of internal
controls and risk management
Business development

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board or
has arisen out of the internal control self-assessment
process, internal audits or year-end external audit that
causes the Board to believe that the Group’s system of
internal controls and risk management is not effective or
that the internal financial controls do not form a sound
basis for the preparation of reliable financial statements.
The Board’s opinion is based on the combined
assurances of external and internal auditors,
management and the ARCC.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Key risks

Technological market
disruption

Internal technological
risks

The Group’s operations
focus on the higher value,
faster growing products and
services in the ICT supply
chain. While the Group’s
portfolio does not include
any manufacturing, it is
essential to anticipate
the impact of the rapid
technological change which
is a feature of the sector.
This risk is addressed
through careful partner
selection in terms of
vendors and by working
closely with our vendor
partners. In addition, the
Group’s operating divisions
must pre-empt market
changes resulting from new
technology such as the
provision of Infrastructure as
a Service (“IaaS”) enabled
by the development of
cloud computing.

The Group’s internal systems
are at risk, both from
planned changes leading to
business interruption and
disruption by external
“cyber” threats. The Group
has high dependence on
its key information systems
and accordingly deploys
significant resources on its
own information security
defences.
The Group enhanced its
data privacy policies and
procedures for the EU
General Data Privacy
Regulation introduced
in May 2018.
The Group continued to
face the threat of financial
crime attempted by
“phishing” emails and
“social engineering”. These
are countered both by
technological means and
education/awareness
campaigns among
employees.

Risk of
mismanagement
of payment discounts,
product rebates and
allowances
The Group receives
significant benefits from
purchase and prompt
payment discounts, product
rebates, allowances and
other programmes from
vendors based on various
factors. A decrease
in purchases and/or sales
of a particular vendor’s
products could negatively
affect the amount of
discounts and volume
rebates the Group receives
from such vendors.
Because some purchase
discounts, product rebates
and allowances from
vendors are based on
percentage increases
in purchases and/or sales
of products, it may become
more difficult for the Group
to achieve the percentage
growth in volume required
for larger discounts due to
the current size of its
revenue base. In addition,
vendors may exclude the
Group from time to time
from participation in some
of their programmes.
As noted under the
“dependence on key
vendors” heading, a strong
and transparent relationship
with our vendor partners is
crucial in managing product
discounts, rebates and
allowances.

Risk of failure to fund
working capital needs
sufficiently

Dependence on
key vendors
The Group is dependent on
certain vendors, particularly
Cisco, whose product and
services accounted for
approximately 42% of the
Group’s revenue. If any one
of the Group’s principal
vendors terminates, fails
to renew or materially
adversely changes its
agreement or arrangements
with the Group, it could
materially reduce the
Group’s revenue and
operating profit and thereby
seriously harm the Group’s
business, financial condition
and results of operations.
The Group’s management
recognises the importance
of its vendor partners as
one of its key stakeholder
groups and assigns the
highest priority to
maintaining close,
transparent relationships
with them for the mutually
beneficial development of
the business.

The Group’s business is
working capital intensive;
this is particularly relevant
for Westcon International.
Westcon International’s
working capital is utilised to
finance accounts receivable
and inventories. Westcon
International largely relies on
revolving credit and vendor
inventory purchase financing
for its working capital
needs. The availability of
these facilities to particularly
Westcon International,
and any material changes
thereto, will affect the
business’s ability to fund
its working capital
requirements.
Management of working
capital through inventory
control and effective
accounts receivable
management is also crucial
for the business and is a
key focus of management
and of the review processes
in the risk management
framework.

Value generation: disposals and
acquisition risk

Execution risk of major
projects

Risk of overdependence
on key personnel

Dependence on
key customers

The execution of the Group’s strategy
requires:
• Reshaping the Westcon International
business to restore profitability; and
• Further growth and improvement of the
Logicalis business.

The implementation of major new
systems such as the ERP system
at Westcon International carries
particular risks which the Group
seeks to mitigate by careful
planning of phased introduction.
This approach allows time to
identify problems encountered
during the roll out to be rectified
before continuing with the
deployment in remaining
jurisdictions. Despite this phased
introduction approach the Group
did not mitigate the disruption
to the Westcon International
business resulting from the ERP
implementation in EMEA. This was
not implemented effectively
until FY19.

The Group’s future success
depends largely on the continued
employment of its executive
directors, senior management
and key sales, technical and
marketing personnel. Certain key
employees have relationships
with principal vendors and
customers which are particularly
important to the business of the
Group. The executive directors,
senior management team and
key technical personnel would be
difficult to replace and the loss of
any of these key employees could
harm the business and prospects
of the Group. The Group’s
employees are a key stakeholder
group and a high standard of
employment conditions and
working environment are seen
as essential for the business.

The Group’s customer base is
much larger than its vendor base
but nevertheless includes large
individual customers in specific
regions. Accordingly, the
exposure to credit risk must
be noted as a key risk of the
business. Management’s
response to this risk is to maintain
close relationships with key
customers of the Group and
to operate rigorous credit
assessment and control
procedures.

Both these goals will continue to place
additional demand on management,
customer support, administrative and
technical resources. If the Group is unable
to manage its restructuring and growth
effectively, its business operations or
financial conditions may deteriorate.
The Group will continue to consider further
acquisition opportunities. If the Group is
unable to successfully integrate an acquired
company or business, such acquisition
could lead to disruptions to the business.
To mitigate this risk, the Group undertakes
extensive due diligence of potential
acquisitions, including detailed integration
planning. These processes are managed
and directed by Datatec’s central team.

The Board has resolved to improve
the risk assessment of major
projects at the planning stage.
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Risk management framework

The Group’s risk management process has three key steps:
• Identify key risks – document in risk registers
• Implement controls to mitigate risk – monitor through continuous review
• Obtain assurance that controls are effective – combined assurance programme
Within this framework, the specific responsibilities of different designates and the processes they follow are set out below:
Responsibility

Process

Board
• Extensive experience
in the Group’s main
business streams
• Experience of the
non-executive directors
in other fields of
business

• Level of risk tolerance and limits of risk appetite are set as part of the strategic direction of the Group
• A combined assurance framework is in place to ensure adequate assurance that the controls over the
identified risks are operating effectively
• A Group risk register is maintained and risks across all aspects of the Group’s operations are considered,
including financial, market, political and operational risks, as well as social, ethical and environmental risks

Audit, Risk and
Compliance Committee

•
•
•
•
•

Monitors risk management activities on an ongoing basis
Discusses risk topics raised
Reviews divisional summary risk registers semi-annually
Reviews divisional audit, risk and compliance committee meeting minutes
Reviews divisional management risk committee minutes

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Chairs CRO forum
Chairs ICT Governance Committee
Maintains Group risk register
Reports to CFO
Reports to ARCC
Ensures that the risk management framework is operating effectively in the divisions
Ensures improvements in the controls and risks identified in the Group risk register

•
•
•
•

Regularly review strategic and emerging risks
Input to risk registers
Identify and prioritise high-risk areas on risk maps based on impact and likelihood
Impact ratings are broadly defined in terms of financial thresholds, operational impacts, regulatory
compliance, customer and community impacts, employee impacts and reputational impacts
Likelihood ratings are defined in terms of the overall likelihood of a risk materialising
Further analyse high-risk areas to identify potential root causes
Identify mitigating controls and associated monitoring/assurance activities for each high-risk area
Assign an executive to monitor and manage specific risk areas
Review risk registers and risk maps semi-annually

Group Chief Risk
Officer

Divisions – divisional
boards and executive
committees
Head office – Datatec
Risk Committee

Divisional Chief Risk
Officers

Further info online

Information
Cross reference to sections available elsewhere
in this report
in the risk report

•
•
•
•
•

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

• Ensure divisional risk procedures are in accordance with and support the Group’s risk management
framework
• Maintain divisional risk registers
• Coordinate the execution at divisional level of the risk management framework
• Identify emerging risk and compliance issues
• Report on divisional management of risk to divisional audit, risk and compliance committees (which report
to the divisional boards)
• Oversee management’s response to matters identified as requiring improvement

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

Financial and internal control
The Group’s internal control and
accounting systems are designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance as to the integrity and
reliability of the financial information
and to safeguard, verify and maintain
accountability of its revenues and
assets. These controls are
implemented and maintained by
skilled personnel.
The operation of key internal controls
is assessed annually using an internal
control questionnaire (“ICQ”) which is
completed by all Group subsidiaries
with operational accounting functions.
The results of the ICQ are critically
assessed by divisional and Group
management and assist in harmonising
controls and setting standards across
the business.

Combined assurance
A combined assurance framework
for monitoring and evaluating the
effectiveness of the internal controls is
in place throughout the Group. This
framework deploys and coordinates
internal and external assurance
providers to report on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal controls.
A combined assurance model aims
to optimise the assurance coverage
obtained from management, internal
assurance providers and external
assurance providers on the risk areas
affecting the Group. Within Datatec
there are a number of assurance
providers that either directly or
indirectly provide the Board and
management with certain assurances
over the effectiveness of those controls
that mitigate the risks as identified
during the risk assessment process.
Collectively, the activities of these
assurance providers are referred to as
the combined assurance framework.
Further info online

Information
Cross reference to sections available on
in this report
page 4

As the nature and significance of risks
vary, assurance providers are required to
be equipped with the necessary expertise
and experience to provide assurance that
risks are adequately mitigated. External
assurance providers include external
Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

audit, internal audit, regulators,
sustainability assurance providers and
other professional advisers.
In the combined assurance model,
each control is linked to a specific
assurance provider, where applicable,
to enable the following to be identified:
• risk areas where no/insufficient
controls have been identified;
• risk areas where controls have been
identified, yet insufficient assurance
is provided (gaps); and
• risk areas where duplicate or
“excess” assurance is provided
(duplication).
Combined assurance framework
• Management-based assurance:
Management oversight, including
strategy implementation,
performance measurements, control
self-assessments and continual
monitoring mechanisms and
systems.
– Local management is required
to complete and submit the ICQ
annually and this is monitored
against internal control norms.
Action is taken where ratings
are considered to be inadequate.
Ratings are also reviewed by
the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee.
– In addition, the Board obtains a
formal letter of assurance twice
a year from each of its subsidiary
divisions (supported by similar
representations from the divisions’
own subsidiaries) which provides
the Board with assurance over the
operation of the risk management
processes described above,
including the operation of internal
controls over financial and IT risks,
compliance with legislation, and
the ethical and sustainable
management of the business.
• Internal assurance:
Risk management (adopting an
effective enterprise risk management
framework), legal, compliance, health
and safety, and quality assurance
departments are included. They are
responsible for maintaining policies,
minimum standards, oversight and
risk management performance and
reporting.
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• Independent assurance:
Independent and objective
assurance of the overall adequacy
and effectiveness of risk
management, governance and
internal control within the
organisation is predominantly the
role of internal audit, external audit
and other expert assurance
providers required from time to time.
• Oversight committees:
Appropriate assurance providers
under each of the above categories
have been identified:
– The Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee
– The Social and Ethics Committee
with regard to oversight of the
Group’s controls in the sphere
of ethics, corporate social
responsibility and sustainability
– The Remuneration Committee
with regard to controls in the
remuneration sphere
– The Nominations Committee in
relation to Board diversity and
corporate governance structures.
• Management has used this model to
conclude on the completeness and
appropriateness of the current
assurance activities for each risk
identified and that the level of
assurance provision is satisfactory. It
continues to maintain the framework
as part of the ongoing risk
management process.
• The ARCC has reviewed the
combined assurance frameworks for
the Group and the three divisions to
satisfy itself with management’s
conclusions and will continue to
review them as part of its role in
oversight of risk management.
• In light of its review of the combined
assurance framework, the ARCC has
recommended to the Board that
appropriate assurance activities are
in place in relation to the controls
operating over each risk identified
in the risk management process.
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The governance of ICT
The Board has the responsibility to
govern technology and information in
a way that supports the organisation
in setting and achieving its strategic
objectives (King IVTM Principle 12). To
achieve this, the governance of ICT
is firmly embedded in the Group’s risk
management framework. ICT risk is
managed across all operations with
controls and assurance provision to be
maintained and reviewed in the same
way as for other risks. The Board has
adopted an ICT governance policy
setting out the Group’s approach to
ICT governance. Within this policy an
ICT Governance Committee has been
established comprising divisional ICT
risk management and ICT executives
with the aim of reinforcing the
integration of IT risk issues into the
Group’s risk management framework.
The Board includes a review of ICT
governance procedures operated
by the Group’s major divisions in its
annual timetable to assist in its ICT
governance role.
There are documented and tested
procedures in the major subsidiaries
which will allow them to continue their
critical business processes in the event
of a disastrous incident impacting their
activities. Such business continuity
planning procedures are reviewed
annually and, where weaknesses are
identified, the relevant subsidiaries
are required to rectify them.

Management reporting
The Group operates management
reporting disciplines which include
the preparation of annual budgets by
operating entities. Monthly results and
the financial status of operating entities
are reported against approved budgets.
Profit projections and cash flow
forecasts are reviewed regularly, while
working capital, borrowing facilities
and bank covenant compliance are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
All financial reporting by the Group,
including external financial reporting
and internal management reporting,
is generated from the same financial
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systems which are subject to the
internal controls and risk management
procedures described alongside.

Compliance framework and
processes
The Board governs compliance with
applicable laws and adopted nonbinding rules, codes and standards in
a way which supports the organisation
being ethical and a good corporate
citizen (King IVTM Principle 13). Each
division manages compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, which the
ARCC has divided into the following
broad categories for the purposes of
monitoring. These are considered to be
the main themes/classes of legislation
which pose the biggest risk to Datatec
in the event of breach:
• Corporate law – companies acts,
financial reporting
• Financial law – anti-money
laundering and fraud
• Export regulations – trade sanctions
and foreign corrupt practices
• Import regulations – including duty
and VAT
• Taxation
• Securities law – insider dealing and
stock exchange compliance
• Employment law – unfair dismissal,
employment practices, health and
safety
• Intellectual property, trademarks and
patents
• Competition legislation
• Customer protection legislation
Each category is considered in the
risk assessment process and, if
appropriate, a risk is recorded on the
relevant risk register and managed in
accordance with the risk management
framework set out in this report. The
divisions’ audit, risk and compliance
committees report on each category
of legislation above, noting whether
any breaches of compliance have been
identified.

Internal audit
Internal audit is an independent
appraisal function which examines
and evaluates the activities and the
appropriateness of the systems of
internal control, risk management and
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governance. The internal auditor is the
key assurance provider in the Group’s
combined assurance framework
described on page 65. The function
provides the Board with a report of
its activities which, along with other
sources of assurance, is used by the
Board in making its assessment of the
Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management.
During FY19, Datatec transitioned
the internal audit function from an
outsourced EY team to an in-house
team which had been developed in
Logicalis Group over the past few
years. EY oversaw the transition and
reviewed the milestones required for
the in-house team to develop to full
effectiveness. EY then formally ceased
the internal audit role on 28 February
2019 and the in-house team took over
from 1 March 2019. FY19 was
therefore a transitional year in which
both EY and the in-house team worked
together on the internal audit
programme and collaborated on
providing assurance to the ARCC.
Internal audit operates within defined
terms of reference as set out in its
charter and the authority granted to
it by the ARCC and the Board, and
reports to the ARCC with notification
to the Chief Risk Officer.
The internal audit team reports to the
Chief Risk Officer on day-to-day
matters, and to the Chairman of the
ARCC and, in addition, has unfettered
access to the Group CEO and CFO
as required.
Audit plans are presented in advance
to the ARCC for approval. The plans
are based on an assessment of risk
areas involving an independent review
of the Group’s own risk assessments
which are recorded in the risk registers.
Audits include Group-wide reviews of
specific risk areas as well as “baseline
control” audits of key controls applying
to business processes at specific
locations. Baseline control audits
include an independent assessment
by the internal auditor of the ICQ
responses of the entity being audited
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for the controls in scope for the audit
in order to validate the ICQ selfassessment.
During FY19, EY undertook a cyber
security maturity assessment of
Westcon International which generated
a series of management actions
required to increase the level of cyber
security maturity within Westcon
International. The in-house internal
audit team will monitor and follow up
on management’s actions arising from
this assessment in the same way as is
done for all internal audit exercises.
The internal audit team attends and
presents its findings to the ARCC.
Management is responsible for acting
on the findings of internal audit and
implementing remedial action to
correct identified control weaknesses.
Internal audit reviews management’s
actions on the findings and reports
back on the effectiveness of the
response. An example of an internal
audit finding which is being addressed
by management across the Group is
weakness in access controls to IT
systems. The internal audit process
and management’s response to the
findings thereby contribute to a
continuous improvement culture in
the Group’s risk management function.
The ARCC is satisfied that internal
audit has met its responsibilities for
the year with respect to its terms
of reference.

External audit
The ARCC is responsible for
recommending the external auditor for
appointment by shareholders and for
ensuring that the external auditor is
appropriately independent.
Shareholders have appointed Deloitte
& Touche as the external auditor to the
Group and their reappointment will be
sought at the upcoming AGM.
The external auditor carries out
an annual audit of all the Group’s
subsidiaries in accordance with
international auditing standards and
reports in detail on the results of the
audit both to the audit, risk and

compliance committees of the Group’s
divisions and to the Group ARCC.
The external auditor is therefore the
main external assurance provider for
the Board in relation to the Group’s
financial results for each financial year.
The ARCC regularly reviews the
external auditor’s independence and
maintains control over the non-audit
services provided, if any.
Pre-approved permissible non-audit
services performed by the external
auditors include taxation and due
diligence services. The external auditor
is prohibited from providing non-audit
services such as valuation and
accounting work where its independence
might be compromised by later auditing
its own work. Any other non-audit
services provided by the external auditor
are required to be specifically approved
by the Chairman of the ARCC or by the
full committee if the fees are likely to be
in excess of 50% of the audit fee.
The external auditor has a policy
of rotating the lead audit partner and
those of South African subsidiaries
every five years and the other
subsidiary audit partners with a
maximum of every seven years.
The ARCC has adopted the same
policy.
The Company will initiate a process
after the AGM to appoint new auditors
for the year ending 28 February 2021.
The Company is therefore seeking one
more reappointment for Deloitte &
Touche.
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The committee reviews its performance
annually by means of questionnaires
completed by individual committee
members and attendees which are
then discussed at Board and
committee meetings. These appraisals
enable the committee to evaluate its
effectiveness objectively and to
conclude that it is operating effectively
under the terms of reference set down
in its charter.

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee constitution and operation
The committee operates within defined terms of reference as set out in its
charter which has been approved by the Board.
Further info online
The
ARCC charter is available on the Group’s website www.datatec.com.

Cross reference to sections
in this report

The ARCC during FY19 consisted of the following independent non-executive
directors:
Communities

• Johnson Njeke (Chairman)
• Ekta Singh-Bushell
• John McCartney
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

The ARCC meets at least three times a year and the external auditors, the internal
auditors, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Risk Officer and
Group Legal are invited to attend.
Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Directors’ attendance at ARCC meetings during FY19 and subsequently to the date
of this report (all meetings were scheduled) is as follows:
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

6 March
2018

14 May
2018

15 October
2018

13 March
2019

13 May
2019

MJN Njeke

P

P

P

P

P

CS Seabrooke

P

P

SJ Davidson

P

P

Attendee

Attendee

Attendee

O Ighodaro

P

P

P

JF McCartney

P

P

P

E Singh-Bushell

P

P

P

Notes: Stephen Davidson stood down from his role as ARCC member and was not
proposed for election to the ARCC at the Company’s 2018 AGM. He continues to
attend the ARCC as an invitee as shown.
P = present

= not a member of the ARCC at the time

The principal functions of the committee are to:
• review the annual financial statements, the half-yearly results announcement and
other financial reports;
• ensure the Group has established appropriate financial reporting procedures and
that those procedures are operating effectively;
• assess the risks facing the business and review the Group’s risk management
procedures;
• monitor the effectiveness of internal controls and comment on the state of the
internal control environment;
• review the internal and external audit plans and discuss the findings and
recommendations of the internal and external auditors; and
• review the effectiveness of the external auditors including considering the findings
of: the inspection performed by the auditors’ regulatory body; the auditors’
internal engagement monitoring inspection; the outcome of any legal or
disciplinary procedures; and review the effectiveness of the internal auditors.

The committee is satisfied that it
has met its legal and regulatory
responsibilities for the year under
review and to the date of this report
with respect to its terms of reference
as set out in its charter.
The Chairman of the committee will be
available at the AGM to answer queries
about the work of the committee.
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The Nominations
Committee considers
the current Board to
be very well balanced
in terms of skills and
experience. The
gender diversity
of the Board meets
the Board’s policy
requirements by
having two female
members. As an
international group,
Datatec requires an
international
perspective at Board
level and this is
represented by a
range of nationalities
and geographic
experience among
the directors.
Stephen

Davidson

Nominations
Committee
Chairman

The Nominations Committee’s role
is to review succession planning for
executive and non-executive directors
and to advise the Board on new
appointments and the composition
of Board committees. An important
aspect of the committee’s role is to
ensure the Board’s stated aims in
terms of diversity are met and that the
Board comprises a diverse and healthy
balance of individuals and skills to
optimise its performance in delivering
against the Group’s strategic
objectives.
Further info online

Details of the Nominations Committee’s
Cross reference to sections
in this report
constitution
and operation are given on
page 71.
Communities

During FY19, the Nominations
Committee oversaw a substantial
refreshment of the Board. Two
long-serving non-executive directors,
Chris Seabrooke and Nick Temple,
both retired from the Board at the AGM
in September 2018. Chris Seabrooke’s
retirement had been planned and
he had stepped down as Chairman
(and member) of the ARCC in May
2018 to be succeeded in that role by
Johnson Njeke. Nick Temple’s
retirement was planned for August
2019 but it became clear ahead of the
2018 AGM that shareholders did not
support his re-election to a sufficient
extent so he retired a year earlier than
planned. In October 2018, Funke
Ighodaro resigned from the Board in
accordance with the requirements of a
new executive appointment.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators
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On 1 June 2018, Ekta Singh-Bushell
joined the board as an independent
non-executive director. Her experience
in the management and governance of
technology is a valuable addition to the
Board’s collective skill set. Ekta was
also appointed to the ARCC and to the
Nominations Committee and became
the senior independent director in
succession to Nick Temple.
On 1 November 2018, Maya Makanjee
joined the Board as an independent
non-executive director. Maya sits as an
independent non-executive director on
the boards of several notable listed
South African companies. She is highly
experienced in the fields of leadership,
ethics, reputation management,
diversity and inclusion, human
resources, marketing, corporate
communication, sustainability and
public affairs. Maya was also appointed
to the Remuneration Committee and to
the Social and Ethics Committee.

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Following these changes, the Board
now comprises seven directors: two
executives, the CEO and CFO; and five
independent non-executive directors
including the Chairman. The
Nominations Committee considers the
current Board to be very well balanced
in terms of skills and experience. The
gender diversity of the Board meets
the Board’s policy requirements by
having two female members. As an
international group, Datatec requires
an international perspective at Board
level and this is represented by a range
of nationalities and geographic
experience among the directors.
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Committee structure
BOARD SKILLS, EXPERIENCE AND DIVERSITY

EXPERIENCE

DIRECTORS:

Stephen Davidson
Independent
non-executive Chairman
Jens Montanana
Chief Executive Officer
Ivan Dittrich
Chief Financial Officer
Ekta Singh-Bushell
John McCartney
Johnson Njeke
Maya Makanjee

Right
balance
of skills and
experience
to make a
meaningful
contribution
to the
business
of the
Group

SKILLS
TENURE

Public and private sector
stewardship
Capital projects and operations
Corporate finance and
investment banking
Human resources management
Global experience
External audit and regulatory compliance
Asset valuation

Strategy and risk management
Corporate governance
Regulatory knowledge
Capital projects and asset valuations
Financial acumen
Organisational restructuring
Mergers and acquisitions

9 years and longer
– 3 directors
3 to 5 years
– 1 director
Less than 3 years
– 3 directors

Female

29%
DIVERSITY

Diversity
In terms of gender diversity, the
Nominations Committee has given
priority to seeking female candidates
to fill non-executive director vacancies.
During FY19 the Board achieved its
voluntary target of having two female
directors on the Board. In terms of
race diversity, it is Datatec’s policy to
promote race diversity at Board level.
To maintain the diverse mix of race
and culture, the Board has applied its
diversity policy by appointing the two
independent non-executive directors
during FY19 and the Board is satisfied
that this aim is being achieved.
Annually, the Nominations Committee
will discuss and agree proposed
objectives, including, without limitation,
the setting of voluntary targets for
achieving diversity on the Board and
recommend the same to the Board for
approval and adoption.
The policy on promotion of diversity at
Further info online
Board
level is available on the website
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Independence and length of
service
The Board is of the opinion that
independence is a matter of a
director’s character and attitude of
mind and is not compromised after
any particular length of service. On the
contrary, the Board believes that the
quality of service of its directors
increases over time and that this is
particularly true in relation to the chairs
of committees of the Board.
The Nominations Committee and the
Board review the independence of the
non-executive directors thoroughly
each year and this review of
independence takes into account the
length of service as a factor to be
carefully considered in the assessment
of independence among other factors.
The review process followed by the
Nominations Committee and Board

highlights issues such as whether a
non-executive director has the ability
to control or significantly influence
management, controls a significant
number of shares in the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, has any
contractual relationships with the
Company or if the non-executive
director is a member of a board of
another company with one or more
Datatec directors.
The Company will continue to review
the independence of its non-executive
directors and regularly engage with
its stakeholders to ensure good
governance.
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Succession planning
Succession planning for the Board,
management team and senior
executives is the responsibility of the
Board, assisted by the Nominations
Committee. There is a formal
succession plan in place for the
Chairman, CEO, CFO, Board, Board
Committee chairs and senior
management that is reviewed annually
by the Nominations Committee. The
committee then reports to the Board,
which determines if any action needs
to be taken.

New appointments
A formal induction programme for
directors is in place which comprises
a presentation on responsibilities,
familiarisation meetings and reviews of
prior Board and committee meetings.
Training is provided with regard to the
Companies Act, JSE Listings
Requirements and King IV™ Code. The
management appointments made by
the Board ensure that the appointment
of and delegation to management
contribute to role clarity and effective
exercise of authority and responsibilities.

Outlook
During the shareholder consultation
undertaken by the Chairman following
the 2018 AGM, shareholder views
on the Board structure and succession
were sought and discussed. Although
the changes noted above have already
resulted in a considerably renewed
Board, the Nominations Committee will
focus in FY20 on succession planning
for the two non-executive directors
who have tenures on the Board over
nine years: Stephen Davidson and
John McCartney.
Responding to shareholders’ views
on the ideal size for the Board, the
Nominations Committee has already
commenced a search for a sixth
independent non-executive director
to join the Board during FY20.
This search will be directed towards
Latin America and Asia as these
two geographies form major parts
of Datatec’s business but are not
currently represented on the Board.
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Nominations Committee constitution and operation
The committee operates within defined terms of reference as set out in its
charter which has been approved by the Board.
The
Nominations Committee charter is available on the Group’s website
Further info online
www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

The Nominations Committee during FY19 consisted of the following independent
non-executive directors:
Communities

•
•
•
•
•

Stephen Davidson (Chairman)
Funke Ighodaro (until 31 October 2018)
John McCartney
Chris Seabrooke (until 20 September 2018)
Ekta Singh-Bushell (from 1 November 2018)
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Directors’ attendance at Nominations Committee meetings during FY19 and
subsequently to the date of this report (all meetings were scheduled) is as follows:
Business development

7 March
2018

15 May
2018

16 October
2018

14 March
2019

SJ Davidson

P

P

P

P

JF McCartney

P

P

P

P

O Ighodaro

P

A

P

CS Seabrooke

P

P

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

E Singh-Bushell
P = present; A = absent

P

P

= not a member of the committee at the time

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer may be invited to attend the
committee’s meetings, but neither may take any part in decisions regarding their
own succession. The committee is satisfied that it has met its responsibilities for the
year with respect to its terms of reference.
The committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board regarding
the appointment of new executive and non-executive directors and makes
recommendations on the composition of the Board generally. The committee
ensures that director appointments are formal and transparent and oversees
succession planning for the Board and senior management.
The committee reviews its performance annually by means of questionnaires
completed by individual committee members and attendees which are then
discussed at Board and committee meetings. These appraisals enable the
committee to evaluate its effectiveness objectively and to conclude that it is
operating effectively under the terms of reference set out in its charter.
The Chairman of the committee reports on the committee’s activities at each
Board meeting and will be available at the AGM to answer questions about the
committee’s work.
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PART 1 – BACKGROUND STATEMENT

Datatec’s strategy is
to improve shareholder
returns over the
medium term through
a combination of
corporate and
business development
actions aimed at
enhancing the
competitiveness and
profitability of its
subsidiaries and
operating divisions.
The Group’s
remuneration policy
seeks to align
remuneration to the
achievement of the
Group’s strategic
objectives.

1.1 Introduction
The Remuneration Committee aims to
ensure that Datatec remunerates fairly,
responsibly and transparently so as to
promote the achievement of strategic
objectives and positive outcomes in the
short, medium and long terms (King IVTM
Principle 14). It also seeks to ensure that
the remuneration strategy facilitates the
attraction and retention of key talent
required to deliver on the Group’s
business objectives. Another important
aspect of the committee’s role is the
balancing of stakeholder interests to
ensure fair reward to employees in
alignment with shareholders’
expectations.
Further info online

Details of the Remuneration
Cross reference to sections
in this report
Committee’s
constitution and operation
are given in section 1.2.
Communities

During FY19, the Remuneration
Committee undertook a fundamental
review of its role and of the remuneration
policy and how remuneration decisions
are implemented. A programme of
shareholder consultation was undertaken
to ensure shareholders’ views on
remuneration are properly and accurately
addressed by the committee and taken
into account in the Group’s remuneration
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

policy and implementation practices.
This consultation process involved
meeting investment managers
accounting for approximately 75% of
our shareholder base, as well as a
teleconference call open to any other
shareholders.
The key matters raised during the
consultation and the outcomes
for our remuneration policy and
implementation report are
summarised in section 1.3.

Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

One of the most important changes
made in response to shareholder
consultations is the change to the mix
of executive directors’ remuneration,
thereby reducing basic pay with a
potential for a higher performancerelated short-term incentive (“STI”).
Engagement between the committee
and shareholders is a valuable process
and will continue in future years.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

The context in which the committee
has set STI and long-term incentives
(“LTI”) targets for FY19 and FY20 flows
from the strategic imperatives of the
Group on pages 8 to 9.
Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Aligning remuneration to our strategic objectives

Communities

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE

John

McCartney

Remuneration
Committee
Chairman

Short-term incentive
TARGET FOR 50%
(FY19: 30%) OF
STI IS BUDGET
UEPS

TARGET FOR 30%
(FY19: 20%) OF
STI IS BUDGET
GROUP EBITDA

Long-term incentive

Growth in UEPS

Growth in
EBITDA

Improvement
in ROIC

FY20 AND FY19
METRICS
FOCUSED ON
WESTCON
INTERNATIONAL
TURNAROUND

PERFORMANCE
CONDITION FOR
50% OF CONDITIONAL
SHARE PLAN (“CSP”)
VESTING IS UEPS
TARGET GROWTH

Other quantitative
measures addressing
current short-term priorities

PERFORMANCE
CONDITION FOR
50% OF CSP
VESTING IS
ROIC BASED

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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Motivating a return to profitability is of primary importance
for which the UEPS and EBITDA growth targets are key. The
ROIC measure of return on investment is seen by the
committee as a fundamental part of aligning management
and shareholder goals. The specific circumstances of the
Westcon International business required further attention
from the committee as explained below and for this specific
quantifiable key performance indicators for STI were
established.
Following the sale of Westcon Americas in September 2017,
Group management and the Remuneration Committee
believed it was critical to incentivise the management of
Westcon International (which remained in the Datatec Group)
to drive the restructuring of the business in order to realise its
strategy, which is to be the leading go-to-market distribution
partner for vendors in the networking and cyber security market
serving international markets in Europe, the Middle East, Africa
and across the Asia-Pacific region. Achieving this strategic
objective required an incentive programme sufficient to retain
key line executives and attract new talent to the organisation.
The restructuring of Westcon International included, at an early
stage, the replacement of the Westcon CEO and CFO with the
Datatec CEO and CFO, to manage Westcon International
directly in those leadership roles.
In FY19 the personal STI goals of the Datatec executives
(comprising 20% of the on-target bonus) were set as
quantitative metrics to measure the turnaround of Westcon
International. In addition, a new LTI programme was
established for Westcon International: an Equity Appreciation
Plan (“EAP”) for the most senior tier of Westcon International
management and a Share Appreciation Rights Scheme
(“SARS”) for the second tier of Westcon International
management (participation in the schemes is mutually
exclusive). The Datatec shared executives were granted
awards in the Westcon International EAP during FY19 and
their grants of Datatec LTI in the form of the Datatec CSP will
be reduced in future years proportionately to their
participation in the EAP.
The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the remuneration
policy has achieved its objectives in FY19, and that the
amendments to the policy and implementation introduced after
thorough consultation with shareholders have enhanced the
equitable alignment of shareholder and management interests.
The committee intends to continue the consultation process
with shareholders and discuss further enhancements to the
remuneration policy. In this light, the committee intends to
address the following matters in the upcoming financial year:
a fair pay charter; malus and claw-back provisions; and
non-financial metrics for STI.

Page 73
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

1.2 Remuneration Committee constitution and
operation
The Remuneration Committee operates under terms
defined in its charter, which has been approved by the
Board.
The
Remuneration Committee charter is available on the Group’s
Further info online
website www.datatec.com.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

The Remuneration Committee comprises the following
independent non-executive directors:
Communities

•
•
•
•

John McCartney (Chairman)
Stephen Davidson
Johnson Njeke
Maya Makanjee (appointed 1 November 2018)
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Chris Seabrooke and Nick Temple retired from the Board
and the committee on 20 September 2018.
Improving shareholder returns

The Remuneration Committee’s meetings during FY19 and
subsequently to the date of this report (all meetings were
scheduled), together with the attendance of the committee
members, are as follows:
Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

7 March
2018

15 May
2018

18 July
2018

JF McCartney

P

P

P

P

P

P

SJ Davidson

P

P

P

P

P

P

CS Seabrooke

P

P

P

NJ Temple

P

P

P

MJN Njeke

P

P

P

P

P

A

P

P

M Makanjee

P = present; A = absent

16 Oct 14 March
2018
2019

14 May
2019

= not a member of the committee
at the time

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
may be invited to attend portions of meetings of the
Remuneration Committee but neither may take part in
any discussions regarding their own remuneration.
The role of the committee is to assist the Board in ensuring
that the Company remunerates directors and executives
fairly and responsibly in alignment with the creation of
long-term shareholder value and to ensure that the
disclosure of director and senior management remuneration
is accurate, complete and transparent.
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PART 1 – BACKGROUND STATEMENT continued
The main functions of the committee include:
• Determining, agreeing and developing the Company’s
general strategy and policy on executive and senior
management remuneration so that it will promote the
achievement of strategic objectives and encourage
individual performance;
• Ensuring the remuneration strategy facilitates the
attraction of key talent;
• Ensuring that the remuneration policy and implementation
report are put to a non-binding advisory vote at the
general meeting of shareholders once every year;
• Consulting with shareholders in the light of the AGM
votes;
• Selecting an appropriate comparator group when
benchmarking remuneration levels;
• Determining specific remuneration packages for executive
directors of the Company, including basic salary, benefits,
annual performance-based bonuses, share incentives and
pensions;
• Determining any grants to executive directors and other
senior employees made pursuant to the Company’s share
schemes, and satisfying itself as to the accuracy of
recorded performance measures that govern the vesting
of incentives;
• Ensuring share incentive schemes achieve the aim of
retention of key executives;
• Regularly reviewing incentive schemes to ensure
continued contribution to shareholder value creation
and that these are administered in terms of the rules;
• Advising on the remuneration of non-executive directors;
and
• Overseeing the preparation of, and recommending to
the Board, the annual remuneration report for inclusion
in the Company’s Integrated Report.

The Remuneration Committee employs the services of
specialist consultants in the field of executive remuneration
to assist it when necessary. The consultants which have
been retained in this role during FY19 and to date are
PricewaterhouseCoopers and the committee is satisfied that
they have been independent and objective in their advice.
The committee reviews its performance annually by means
of questionnaires completed by individual committee
members and attendees which are then discussed at
Board and committee meetings. These appraisals enable
the committee to evaluate its effectiveness objectively and
to conclude whether it is operating effectively under the
terms of reference set down in its charter.
The Chairman of the committee reports on the committee’s
activities at each Board meeting and committee members
will be available at the AGM to answer questions about the
committee’s work.
On behalf of the Board, the Remuneration Committee
undertakes to consult with shareholders in the event that
either the remuneration policy or the implementation report,
are voted against by shareholders exercising 25% or more
of the votes exercised in order to give effect to the minimum
measures referred to in the King IVTM Code. In such
circumstances the AGM results announcement will provide
for the following: (a) an invitation to dissenting shareholders
to engage with the issuer; and (b) the manner and timing of
such engagement. In relation to the 2018 AGM voting, the
consultation with shareholders is explained in section 1.3.
The committee intends to follow the same consultation
procedures following the 2019 AGM.
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1.3 Shareholder engagement

John McCartney, the Remuneration Committee Chairman, accompanied
Stephen Davidson, the Chairman of the Board, on a shareholder engagement “road
show” in November 2018 to address remuneration-related concerns directly with
investment managers, following the non-binding advisory votes on remuneration
at the September 2018 AGM.

The key matters discussed with shareholders and actions taken as a result are
summarised in the following table. The shareholders’ views reported below are
matters raised by more than one shareholder, which we have taken to be indicative
of the concerns of shareholders:
Committee’s rationale

Shareholders’ views

Actions taken

Remuneration policy
The committee felt that the policy itself
was fit for purpose with its emphasis on
aligning remuneration with shareholders’
interests. It was proposed, however, to
discontinue the policy of benchmarking
remuneration above median. It was also
suggested that the policy should indicate
the maximum and minimum amounts of
the different types of remuneration which
executives could earn.

Shareholders generally agreed that the
policy aligned with their interests and
agreed with the changes proposed by
the committee.
In addition the policy should give more
guidance on the metrics to be used for
STI evaluation and the performance
conditions to be applied to LTI share
awards.
Some shareholders felt the policy should
not contain a provision to provide
additional deal incentive awards in
exceptional circumstances.

The remuneration policy has been
modified: remuneration will be reviewed
on an ongoing basis and will take into
account size of company, structure and
scope of roles. We will no longer have a
policy aimed at above median
benchmarking.
The revised policy is set out in the next
section of this report. It incorporates all
the feedback from shareholders except for
the exceptional deal incentives which is
explained below.

Exceptional deal incentives
In FY18 the Company paid a deal
completion bonus to executives in relation
to the SYNNEX transaction completed in
September 2017. The committee’s rationale
for this payment was set out in the FY18
remuneration report which explained that
successful completion of the SYNNEX
transaction was seen by the Board as a
critical step in executing its strategy. In the
consultation exercise the Board’s view was
reiterated and the Remuneration Committee
chair explained how the quantum of the
award was arrived at. It was emphasised
that the award was a truly exceptional
event; the last instance of a similar deal
bonus being awarded was over 17 years
ago. The possibility of the deal bonus was
disclosed in the transaction circular.

Some shareholders consulted had
concerns about the deal bonus. While
some accepted the principle but thought
the quantum too high, others felt the
principle of deal bonuses was not
acceptable. In their view all disposals
however exceptional are part of the
management’s ordinary job and
accordingly should be reflected in the
normal annual remuneration STI and
LTI payments (see further comments
on the following pages).
Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

The issue does not arise in FY19.
The committee does, however, consider it
is appropriate to retain the discretionary
power to make such awards in future and
accordingly has retained the provision in
the policy.
Nevertheless, the committee did
undertake with shareholders to consult
them in advance if circumstances arise
where it considers a deal-based bonus
to be appropriate.
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PART 1 – BACKGROUND STATEMENT continued
Committee’s rationale

Shareholders’ views

Actions taken

Variations to STI metrics in FY18
The committee had decided not to use
Group UEPS as a metric for the FY18
bonus because the year was a transitional
situation for Westcon International
and separate metrics motivating the
turnaround of Westcon International were
deployed. It was felt that the metrics
used were most appropriate to drive the
required strategic outcomes for the year.

Some shareholders felt that a Group
earnings-related metric should always
be the primary component of STI.
Shareholders’ views on other STI metrics
and the mix of financial and non-financial
metrics were discussed and the
committee appreciated the range
of views expressed.

This issue will not arise again because the
committee had reverted to using Group
UEPS as one of the main STI metrics at
the start of FY19 (before the consultation).
The STI metrics used in FY19 are
explained in detail in the implementation
report on pages 86 and 87 and the
metrics to be used in the following financial
year (FY20) are also disclosed.

Forward-looking disclosure of STI metrics and LTI grants
Annual remuneration reports to date have
included full disclosure of STI metrics and
outcomes for the financial year under
review, which is the year being reported
in the financial accounts contained in
the Integrated Report. The committee
proposed to change this and disclose
the STI metrics and details of the LTI grants
for the forthcoming financial year.

Shareholders in general welcomed this
additional disclosure.

The implementation report on pages 86 to
93 now shows the metrics to be used in
evaluating STI In FY20 together with the
grants and performance conditions of
LTI (CSP conditional awards to be granted
in June 2019).

Executive directors’ remuneration
Having made the changes in policy outlined
above the committee reviewed the pay
structure of the executive directors.

Shareholders’ input during the
consultation was given due consideration
during the review of executive directors’
remuneration. In particular the view that
remuneration should be more weighted
towards performance-based STI.

For FY20 the basic salary of the CEO will
reduce by 20% and of the CFO by 10%.
The potential to earn performance-related
bonuses (STI) has been increased.
The changes are reflected in the policy in
Part 2 on page 80.
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Actions taken

Westcon International Equity Appreciation Plan
In FY18, the CEO and CFO of Datatec took
on the CEO and CFO roles of Westcon
International. During FY19 an EAP was
implemented for Westcon International as
an incentive for the management team to
drive growth in the value of the business.
The committee decided the executives of
Datatec could participate in the Westcon
International EAP by virtue of their executive
roles in Westcon International.

Shareholders were consulted about the
participation of the Datatec executives in
the Westcon International EAP. Some
shareholders raised concerns that:
• The executives would be “double
dipping” in that they continue to
participate in the Datatec LTI (the CSP);
• The valuation threshold for gains under
the Westcon International EP was
considered too low.

Shareholders’ concerns have been
addressed as follows:
• The shared executives participation in
the CSP will from FY20 be reduced in
proportion to the valuation of their
holding in the Westcon International EAP;
• The valuation threshold for gains under
the Westcon International EAP will be
escalated each year by a 10% CAGR.
Further info online

These changes are explained in
Cross reference to sections
in this report in the implementation report
detail
on page 82.
Communities

Conditional Share Plan (“CSP”)
Employees

The first grants under the CSP were made
in FY19 (see the implementation report for
details)

Consultation with shareholders
considered the performance conditions
being used for the CSP. Two performance
conditions are being applied, one based
on UEPS growth and the other on ROIC
and shareholders supported the use of
these metrics.

The ROIC performance condition for future
grants of conditional awards under the CSP
will change to annual weighted average
cost of capital-related targets throughout
the three-year performance condition.
Government, municipalities, regulators

Further info online
Improving shareholder returns

This change is explained in detail
Cross reference to sections
in thisthe
report implementation report on
in
Business development
page 88.
Communities
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Deferred Bonus Plan (“DBP”)
Employees

The new Datatec DBP came into operation
in FY19. Initially it did not have any
minimum mandatory participation level
for participants.

Shareholders’ views on LTI in the form of
share-based payments were explored
during the consultation. The committee’s
view on promoting share ownership
among executives was explained. The
aim being to establish alignment with
shareholders’ interests through “skin in
the game”.

A minimum participation level for executives
in the DBP has been established to ensure
a minimum proportion of annual bonus is
invested in Datatec shares by participants.
Government, municipalities, regulators
Further info online

Improving shareholder returns
Cross reference
sections
This
is toexplained
in more detail in the
in this report
remuneration policy on page 81.
Business development
Communities

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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PART 2 – REMUNERATION POLICY
Objectives of the policy
The objectives of the remuneration policy are to:

Set remuneration levels as necessary to attract and retain the best local and international talent who will
enhance business performance;
Recognise and reward superior performance when it occurs;
Direct employees’ energies and activities towards key business goals and strategic outcomes; and
Align employees’ and shareholders’ interests.
To achieve this, Datatec rewards its executives and managers in a way that reflects market dynamics and
the context in which it operates. Datatec is structured as a group which actively manages its two principal
divisions, Logicalis and Westcon International. The remuneration policy applies throughout the Group but
the details provided herein are applicable to the Datatec executives. All elements of the remuneration
policy are aligned to the strategic goals of the Group. For purposes of this report, a high level overview of
the remuneration elements and design principles informing remuneration arrangements for all employees
are provided, with in-depth focus on Datatec executives.
Key principles
Key principles of the remuneration policy are to:

Reward all employees for their
contribution to the Group’s operating
and financial performance

Apply fair and responsible pay principles
to all employees across the Group.

Promote a common interest
with shareholders

Make a significant proportion of the
remuneration of executive directors
and senior managers performancebased

Consider the international ICT industry,
market and country benchmarks to
ensure the Group’s remuneration is
competitive in regions in which the
Group operates, particularly the US,
Brazil and the UK

Balance the performance-based
element of remuneration between the
achievement of short-term and longterm objectives

The committee intends to further develop
implementation practices and monitoring
procedures in this area in the future
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These principles are enshrined
in the three main elements of
remuneration:
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GUARANTEED
PACKAGE
Description and policy
Base salary and benefits including
retirement and medical scheme
contributions
Eligibility
All employees

GUARANTEED
PACKAGE

LONG-TERM
INCENTIVES

Description and policy
The three
Share-based
main elements
remuneration plans with
of remuneration
performance targets.
Two share-settled group
plans are used, namely:
• CSP – a performance
share plan;
LTI
• DBP – a portion of the
LONG-TERM
bonus is deferred and
INCENTIVE
matched in shares.
A number of cash-settled
share-based remuneration plans
are operated in divisions.
Eligibility
Datatec Group executives and senior
management participate in the Datatec CSP.
Executive directors and two other senior
managers participate in the DBP.
Senior management of Logicalis, Westcon International and
Analysys Mason participate in divisional share schemes.

The base salary provides individuals with a fixed income
to reward them for the job they do. The base salary of
executive directors and senior management is subject
to annual review by the Remuneration Committee. The
committee makes use of external market data relating to
comparable international ICT companies, including those
based in the US and the UK. Benchmarking exercises are
also carried out by third-party advisers in determining
appropriate levels of base salary. Executive directors and
senior executives are entitled to employment benefits
determined by the level of base salary including: defined
contribution pensions; medical insurance; and death and
disability insurance.

SHORT-TERM
INCENTIVES
SHORT-TERM
INCENTIVES

Description and policy
Annual bonus plan with
performance targets,
subject to deferral as
explained below
Eligibility
Group executives participate
STI
in an annual STI as explained
in detail below. Management
of divisions participate in STI
plans similar to the Group
executives but based on divisional
performance targets and personal
performance targets
Non-management employees typically
receive lower levels of STI based more on
personal achievement targets than
corporate goals

Short-term incentives are the annual bonus plan. All
executive directors and senior executives participate in an
annual bonus plan based on the achievement of short-term
(annual) performance targets. These targets are determined
by the Remuneration Committee and primarily comprise
measures of corporate performance with an element of
individual objectives (which may include non-financial
metrics), congruent with the Group’s business strategy.
At the end of each financial year, the achievement of the
corporate financial targets is measured and the achievement
of the personal targets is assessed by the Remuneration
Committee.

The STI is calculated in relation to base salary as follows:
Base salary x on-target STI percentage x [(personal score x personal weighting) + (corporate score x corporate weighting)]

For executive directors:

For other senior management:

80% corporate;
20% personal

50% corporate;
50% personal
(with exceptions as agreed by the
Remuneration Committee)
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PART 2 – REMUNERATION POLICY continued
The majority of the corporate element of the bonus will
always comprise profit metrics (eg earnings per share
and/or EBITDA). Each element of the bonus is based on the
achievement of a target: if that target is reached the bonus
element is described as “on-target”. The Remuneration
Committee establishes the target and a range around the
target demarcated by “guard-rails” such that the bonus for
each element is capped at 160% of the on-target bonus
if the upper guard-rail is reached. The maximum bonus
achievable, referred to as the cap, is therefore 160% of the
on-target bonus. Below the lower guard-rail, zero bonus is
earned and at the lower guard-rail 40% of on-target bonus is
earned. Between the guard-rails and the on-target position
the bonus outcome is obtained by linear interpolation.

As a result of the restructuring of executive directors’
remuneration noted on page 76, from FY20 the on-target
bonus levels for the CEO and CFO have changed.
Consequently, the maximum bonus achievable, referred to
as the cap, has reduced from 160% of the on-target bonus
to 143% for the CEO and 153% for the CFO. The on-target
bonus levels for FY19 remained the same as for FY18, being
125% of base salary for the CEO capped at 200%; and 75%
of base salary for the CFO capped at 120%. As a result of
the restructuring of executive directors’ remuneration noted
above, the on-target bonus levels for FY20 have changed to:
175% of base salary for the CEO capped at 250%; and 95%
of base salary for the CFO capped at 145%.

FY19 on-target STI
as a % of base salary

FY19 maximum STI

FY20 on-target STI
as a % of base salary

FY20 maximum STI

CEO

125%

125% x 160% = 200%

175%

175% x 143% = 250%

CFO

75%

75% x 160% = 120%

95%

95% x 153% = 145%

Potential outcomes for STI in relation to base salary are illustrated in the scenario analysis on page 84. The metrics used and
bonus outcomes for FY19 are shown in the implementation report on pages 86 and 87. The metrics to be used for STI in FY20
are set out below.

FY20 Bonus structure
1) UEPS

FY20
US cents

Lower guard-rail
On-target
Upper guard-rail

–10%
Target
10%

Bonus
40%
100%
160%

50%

2) EBITDA
US$m
Lower guard-rail
On-target
Upper guard-rail

–10%
Target
10%

Bonus
40%
100%
160%

30%

3) Personal KPIs

20%

The personal KPIs for the CEO and CFO are explained below.
TOTAL ON-TARGET BONUS

100%

The table above shows the structure of the STI for FY20 but the targets relating to the FY20 budget are not disclosed. The
personal KPIs agreed by the committee for the executive directors for FY20 are as follows:
For the CEO:
• Westcon International EBITDA – quantitative measure based on achievement of budget. It is considered important to
establish Westcon International’s profitability within the overall Group profitability measured by the Group EBITDA metric;
• Westcon International central costs reduction – target US$33 million for FY20 as previously published;
• Culture/leadership – qualitative measure assessed by the Remuneration Committee considering how the executive director
has led the Group while promoting its values and Code of Conduct; and
• Environmental, social and corporate governance – qualitative measure assessed by the Remuneration Committee
considering how the executive director has driven environmental considerations in the business, enhanced sustainability and
promoted good governance.
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Each of the above KPIs will have an equal weighting within
the 20% personal goals for the FY20 STI assessment
(ie 5% each).
For the CFO:
• Westcon International EBITDA – quantitative measure
based on achievement of budget as per the CEO on the
previous page – 5% weighting;
• Westcon International central costs reduction – target
US$33 million for FY20 as previously published, also the
same as the CEO on the previous page – 5% weighting;
and
• Westcon International refinancing – to be assessed in
relation to debt refinancing advisers advice as to what a
successful outcome is – 10% weighting.
The executive directors and senior Group executives may
elect to defer a portion of their cash bonus into the Company’s
DBP. The amount of the bonus deferred is doubled (ie a
multiplier of x2 is applied) and Datatec shares are purchased at
the prevailing market price. The Datatec shares acquired by
participants under the terms of the DBP must be held for a
three-year retention period. If the participant resigns from the
Company during the three-year retention period all the DBP
shares are forfeited to the Company.
A minimum participation level for executives in the DBP has
been established to ensure a minimum proportion of annual
bonus is invested in Datatec shares by participants. The
proportion of bonus for mandatory investment in the DBP is on
a sliding scale with a 20% mandatory investment between 50%
of target and on-target bonus and 33% for above on-target
bonus.
The Remuneration Committee has also set at 75% the
maximum proportion of annual bonus which participants
may defer into the DBP.
The maximum number of shares which can be delivered
to any individual participant in the DBP is 1.6 million shares.
The maximum number of new shares which can be issued
to participants to settle obligations under the DBP is
3.2 million shares.
Long-term incentives: share-based incentive schemes for
Group employees are in place to encourage and reward
superior performance and to align the interests of participants
as closely as possible with those of shareholders.
The Board has appointed Simon Morris as the Compliance
Officer (as defined by section 97 of the Companies Act) for the
Datatec share-based remuneration schemes, to be responsible
for their administration. At the AGM on 14 September 2017,
two new schemes were approved which superseded the
previous schemes: the Conditional Share Plan and the Deferred
Bonus Plan.
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The equity-settled share-based incentive scheme for Datatec
Group executives is the Datatec CSP which was approved
by shareholders at the 2017 AGM. The CSP operates by
granting conditional awards of Datatec shares to participants
annually. The quantum of awards is based on annual base
salary and the face value of awards which is the current
Datatec share price (using a 30-day volume weighted
average price). The face value of awards granted is as
follows:

CEO – 150% x base
salary

CFO – 120% x base
salary

Datatec Group executives and staff in the range
100% to 50% of base salary
Performance conditions apply to the grants and the conditional
awards are held for a performance period of three years. At the
end of the three-year performance period the performance
conditions are tested and if met, awards vest on a sliding scale
between 50% at a threshold and 100% at the upper target.
The performance conditions are based on UEPS growth for
50% of the award and ROIC for 50%.
• The UEPS growth performance condition will be a target
for UEPS in the third year after grant based on a significant
growth rate applied to the budget for the first year of the
performance period.
• The ROIC performance condition for average ROIC over
the three-year vesting period will be based on the Group’s
weighted average cost of capital.
The maximum number of shares which can be delivered
to any individual participant in the CSP is 3.7 million shares.
The maximum number of new shares which can be issued
to participants to settle obligations under the CSP is
7.4 million shares.
Further info online

Cross reference to sections
Potential
outcomes for LTI in relation to base salary are illustrated
in this report
in the scenario analysis on page 84.

Communities

Divisional long-term incentives
Share-based incentive schemes operate in the Group’s divisions
to incentivise management to generate value in the divisional
entity. These are all cash-settled schemes based on the
divisional entity’s valuation/notional share price. The divisional
LTI share-based remuneration plans are listed in more detail
on page 82. Datatec’s subsidiaries operate a number of
cash-settled share-based incentive schemes for their senior
employees based on the subsidiary’s equity value as determined
by annual valuations by independent valuers. These schemes
are cash-settled, meaning no Datatec shares or subsidiary
shares are transferred to participants on vesting (with the
exception of the Analysys Mason Performance Share Scheme
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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PART 2 – REMUNERATION POLICY continued
which is partly settled in Analysys Mason shares). Datatec
shares are not involved in the settlement of the subsidiary share
schemes but all the share-based remuneration schemes
operating in the Group are accounted for under IFRS 2.
Because the executive directors of Datatec Group are also
executives of Westcon International, they participate in the
Westcon International EAP in addition to their participation in
the Datatec CSP. The annual grant of Datatec CSP conditional
shares for the Datatec executives who participate in the
Westcon International EAP will from FY20 be reduced by an
“equivalence” factor to avoid double participation in relation to
reward opportunities.
In addition, for the Datatec executives who participate in the
Westcon International EAP an adjustment of 10% carried
interest will be added to the equity base of US$125 million. This
annually increasing threshold will be used for the equivalence
factor calculation above.
Logicalis and PromonLogicalis Latin America
(“PLLAL”) CSP schemes
During FY19 Logicalis and PLLAL introduced CSPs for the
most senior tier of management with similar terms to the
Datatec CSP but cash-settled and based on the Logicalis and
PLLAL share price as determined by annual independent
valuations.
Awards of conditional shares are granted annually to
participants starting with the first grant in December 2018
during FY19. After a three-year performance period the CSP
awards will vest as follows:
• 25% of each participant’s award is subject only to an
employment condition and will vest provided the
participant remains in the employment of Logicalis or
PLLAL at the end of the three-year period since grant.
• The remaining 75% of each participant’s award is subject
to performance conditions:
– One third (ie 25% of the total award) based on Logicalis
or PLLAL share price growth;
– One third (ie 25% of the total award) based on net
income per share growth;
– One third (ie 25% of the total award) based on ROIC.
Each performance condition has a threshold level at which 50%
vesting will occur and a target level for 100% vesting. Between
the threshold and target vesting will be calculated by linear
interpolation.
Logicalis and PLLAL Share Appreciation Rights
schemes
Under the terms of the Logicalis Share Appreciation Rights
Scheme 2005 (“the Logicalis SAR Scheme”), SARs are granted
annually to senior managers. Since the implementation of the
Logicalis and PLLAL CSP schemes (above), participation in
the Logicalis and PLLAL SAR schemes has been restricted to
those senior managers who do not participate in the CSP.

Vesting of the SARs is subject to certain earnings performance
conditions. Provided that the performance conditions are met,
50% of the SARs vest after 24 months and the remainder after
36 months. All rights lapse if not exercised by the end of the
seventh year after grant.
Logicalis also operates the PLLAL SAR Scheme for its 65%
subsidiary PromonLogicalis Latin America Limited. The terms
of this scheme are the same as those of the Logicalis SAR
Scheme, but the grants are made to key employees of PLLAL
and the annual valuations and appreciation rights are based
on the equity value of PLLAL.
Westcon International Equity Appreciation Plan
During FY19, the Remuneration Committee implemented an
EAP for Westcon International senior management to
incentivise value generation. Participants have been awarded
“Units”, whose value will be linked to the value of Westcon
International; this is a notional base value which was estimated
to be US$125 million (the “Hurdle”). The Units will not have any
share rights, in particular they will not have the right to dividends
or votes. The standalone net book value of Westcon
International at 28 February 2019 was US$27 million (US$180
million external net assets less a US$153 million inter-company
loan from Datatec PLC).
10% of the value of Westcon International above the Hurdle will
be paid to the EAP Pool on a sale of Westcon International.
Each Unit will receive a pro rata share of the EAP Pool when
Westcon International is sold.
For example, if Westcon International is sold for US$300 million,
the EAP Pool will be US$17.5 million: ((US$300m – US$125m)
x 10%). If there are 100 000 Units in issue, each Unit will be
worth US$175.
If Westcon International is not sold within five years, the equity
value of Westcon International will be determined by an
independent valuer at 1 March 2023 and the EAP will pay out
to participants on the basis of that valuation. Such a valuation
will be undertaken using a methodology which is fair and
reasonable to all stakeholders including Datatec shareholders
and participants in the EAP.
Westcon International Share Appreciation Rights
Scheme
During FY19, the Remuneration Committee implemented the
SAR Scheme to incentivise the senior management who were
not awarded units in the EAP (above).
SARs were granted in July 2018 with an exercise price of
US$1.25 based on a notional share capital for Westcon
International of 100 million shares. The base valuation for the
SARs was thus the same as the Hurdle for the EAP. The SARs
will vest after two years without performance conditions and
thereafter may be exercised over the following three years (a
maximum of one-third per year).
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Westcon Group, Inc. Share Appreciation Rights
Scheme
The Westcon Group, Inc. Share Incentive Plan which provided
for grants of SARs based on Westcon Group, Inc. common
shares to employees and directors (including non-executive
directors) terminated during FY18 in accordance with the
change of control provisions set out in the scheme rules.
This was triggered by the SYNNEX transaction completing on
1 September 2017. Participants received cash settlement for
their vested SARs to the extent the value of Westcon shares
implicit in the SYNNEX transaction exceeded the grant price
of the SARs.
An element of the value of the Westcon shares on completion
was dependent on the earn-out provisions of the transaction.
Analysys Mason Performance Share Scheme
Analysys Mason operates a performance share plan, approved
by its board of directors and shareholders, under the terms of
which conditional shares are granted to participants. One-third
of the conditional shares vest unconditionally after three years if
the participant is still an employee and is settled with the same
number of Analysys Mason ordinary shares. The vesting of the
remaining two-thirds is conditional on an earnings-based
performance condition and may be settled in cash or shares.

Other share schemes
Some start-up operations within the Group have involved the
use of share incentive schemes for key management of the
new operations whereby they will receive a cash-settled share
of the equity growth in the business excluding any capital
advanced by Datatec. Such schemes are in operation in
Datatec Financial Services and Logicalis SA.
Details of the operation of the subsidiary division share
schemes, including grants, exercises and lapses during FY19
and the prior year, are included in Note 2 to the consolidated
annual financial statements.
Discretion
The remuneration policy set out in this Part 2 of the
remuneration report has been significantly expanded and
developed by the Remuneration Committee during FY19
following consultation with shareholders as summarised in
Part 1. It is not intended that there should be any departure
from the policy in FY20.
The Remuneration Committee retains the ability to exercise
discretion in responding to particular situations and if this
necessitates departing from the policy such an occurrence
would be reported in future implementation reports. Any
significant changes to the policy in future will be undertaken
only after consultation with shareholders.
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Exceptional incentive awards
In addition to the three elements of remuneration noted
above (base salary, short-term and long-term incentives)
the Remuneration Committee may, in highly exceptional
circumstances, award bonuses to management for the
successful execution of significant disposal transactions which
generate exceptional value for shareholders. In such rare
circumstances the committee would consult with shareholders
in advance of making such awards.

Remuneration consultants
The Remuneration Committee may use the services of
specialist consultants in the field of executive remuneration
to provide advice. This advice may include best practice on
disclosure, target setting and general remuneration matters.
The remuneration consultants may also provide the committee
with benchmarking information in terms of remuneration.
The information provided is for the advice and
information of the committee which has the responsibility
of setting remuneration policy and determining the
remuneration of directors and employees. The consultants
themselves do not set policy or determine remuneration.
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PART 2 – REMUNERATION POLICY continued

Scenario analysis

The following tables show the minimum, on-target and maximum remuneration the executive
directors can earn under the revised policy applicable with effect from FY20, compared to the policy
that applied in FY19
CEO – FY20 (US$’000)
10 000 Minimum
9 000
8 000
7 000
6 000
5 000
4 000
3 000
2 000
214
29
1 000
1 140
0

CFO – FY20 (US$’000)

Threshold

On-target

Maximum

3 000 Minimum

Threshold

On-target

Maximum

2 500

1 710

604

2 000
2 140

1 283
998
855
214

798
1 140

200
214

29

2 853

1 000

1 995

1 140

214

29

1 140

29

500

548

453

1 500
302
84
503

11

84

191
503

239

731

478

48
84

11

503

84

11

503

0

■ Base salary

■ Benefits

■ Pension

■ Base salary

■ Benefits

■ Pension

■ STI

■ DBP

■ CSP

■ STI

■ DBP

■ CSP

CEO – FY19 (US$’000)
10 000 Minimum
9 000
8 000
7 000
6 000
5 000
4 000
3 000
214
2 000
29
1 000
1 428
0

CFO – FY19 (US$’000)

Threshold

On-target

Maximum

2 142

1 428

29

2 856

1 428

29

214
1 428

Maximum
672

336

1 000

1 785
214

On-target

1 500

893
714
214

Threshold

2 000

1 607

179

3 000 Minimum
2 500

2 142

1 071

11

29

500

84
560

11

84

168
560

504

504

210

672

420

42
84

11

560

11

84

■ Base salary

■ Benefits

■ Pension

■ Base salary

■ Benefits

■ Pension

■ DBP

■ CSP

■ STI

■ DBP

■ CSP

The threshold scenario includes the guaranteed package plus the minimum
STI which would be earned if all STI metrics were triggered at the lower guard-rail
threshold and 40% of on-target bonus was earned. It assumes that 25% of the
bonus would be deferred into the DBP. Under this scenario it is assumed that
the CSP performance conditions are triggered three years after grant only at
threshold level resulting in 50% vesting.
The on-target scenario assumes the achievement of STI targets and it assumes
that 50% of the bonus will be deferred in the DBP with the corporate multiplier
of x2 applied. In addition the CSP award is assumed to vest 75% (half-way
between the threshold and maximum scenarios).
The maximum scenario assumes that all STI metrics are over-achieved above
the upper guard-rail resulting in the maximum STI being earned. This is 160%
of the on-target STI for FY19 but in FY20 the cap is restricted to a lower multiple
of on-target. This scenario also assumes the executives will defer the maximum
proportion of their bonus, 75%, into the DBP with the corporate multiplier of
x2 applied. For the CSP, the assumption is the same as the on-target scenario
being 100% vesting of the conditional share awards (there is no “overperformance” provision in the LTI). It should be noted that the LTI components
of the scenario analysis will only become available to the executives three years
after the financial year shown in the analysis. No discounting for the time value
of money has been applied and also no change in the underlying share price
from the date of grant has been assumed.

11

0

■ STI

Under the minimum scenario the executives earn only their guaranteed
package of base salary, benefits and company pension contributions.
All STI metrics are assumed to be below the lower guard-rail resulting in no
STI payment and consequently no DBP deferral being possible. The CSP
performance conditions are assumed not to be met.

560

The annual long-term incentive grant of Datatec CSP conditional shares for the
Datatec executives who participate in the Westcon International EAP will, from
FY20 onward, be reduced by an “equivalence” factor to avoid “double dipping”
in relation to reward opportunities. Therefore the actual LTI CSP figures for FY20
shown above will be lower than the amounts shown in the scenario analysis.

This scenario analysis illustrates the effect of the
Remuneration Committee’s decision to change the mix of
executive directors’ remuneration by reducing basic pay
with a potential for higher performance-related STI. Under
each of the four scenarios above the total remuneration
for the executive directors is less in FY20 than it is in
FY19. Under the minimum scenario, just the guaranteed
package, the CEO’s remuneration in FY20 is 17% less
than in FY19 and the CFO’s remuneration is 9% less.
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Shareholding guidelines

External appointments of executive directors

The Board has set out shareholding guidelines for executive
directors whereby a shareholding with market value of twice
annual base salary should be built up over time. The sharebased remuneration schemes are intended to enable new
executive directors to achieve this shareholding guideline.

Subject to the approval of the Board, executive directors are
permitted to hold a directorship in one non-Group listed
company and to retain the fees payable from this
appointment.

Directors’ service contracts

The fee structure for non-executive directors, including the
Chairman, is recommended to the Remuneration Committee
by executive management based on benchmarking studies
prepared by external advisers using data from comparable
companies. The benchmarking takes account of the
international nature of the business.

In order to properly reflect their spread of responsibilities,
executive directors have employment contracts as follows:
Jens Montanana has a contract with Datatec International
Holdings Limited and Ivan Dittrich has an employment
contract with Logicalis, Inc. a 100% subsidiary of the Group
registered in New York State, USA.
The employment contracts of executive directors are
terminable at six months’ notice by either party and contain
contractual provisions for payment on termination covering
the guaranteed package but no commitment relating to STI.
If an executive director resigns from the Company or is
terminated for fault, eg dismissal on grounds of misconduct,
proven poor performance, dishonest or fraudulent conduct
(“bad leaver”) all unvested LTI awards are forfeited. This
includes shares in the DBP within the three-year holding
period. In addition, such executives will be required to repay
all dividends (pre-tax value) earned from the award date
under the DBP.
If termination is at the Company’s instigation and not for fault
(“good leaver”), the executive will retain a portion of LTI share
incentive awards which have been granted but not yet
vested. The proportion will be determined pro rata to the
time of the vesting period which has elapsed up to the
termination date and will in the case of the CSP, be adjusted
based on the extent to which performance conditions have
been met. The terminated executive will continue to hold the
reduced amount of awards until the vesting date when they
will vest along with the other grants in accordance with the
rules of the scheme to the extent that performance
conditions are satisfied.
All non-executive directors have letters of appointment with
Datatec Limited. Under these contracts, non-executive
directors retire in accordance with the Memorandum of
Incorporation of the Company, which is at least every three
years. Retiring directors may offer themselves for re-election.

Non-executive directors’ remuneration

The Chairman’s fee covers his role on the Board and its
committees and attendance at subsidiary board meetings
and shareholder meetings as required. Other non-executive
directors receive a fee for their Board role plus fees for
membership/chairmanship of individual committees.
The terms and conditions of appointment of non-executive
directors are available on request from the Company
Secretary. Non-executive directors are not eligible to
participate in the annual bonus plan or any of the Datatec
share incentive schemes.
The operation of the Group’s remuneration policy in FY19
is described in the implementation report Part 3 of this
remuneration report.

Approval of the remuneration policy
The FY18 remuneration policy was put before
shareholders for an advisory vote at the AGM on
20 September 2018 and received support from
50.1% of shares voted. The remuneration policy
was significantly changed during FY19 following
shareholder consultation as set out in Part 1
Background Statement above and the revised
remuneration policy set out herein will be put
before shareholders for an advisory vote at the
2019 AGM. Substantial new processes around
shareholder consultation were put in place during
FY19 and the Remuneration Committee will ensure
continued and open dialogue with shareholders.
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PART 3 – IMPLEMENTATION REPORT
Datatec Group base salary and benefits
For FY19, the Remuneration Committee determined that the base salary of the CEO would increase by 6.5% to US$1,428,000
per annum. The CFO relocated to the USA in December 2017 and his base salary was realigned in accordance with US
benchmarks as approved by the Remuneration Committee to US$560,000 for FY19.
Following the shareholder consultation which the Remuneration Committee undertook during November 2018 (see Part 1.3
of this report) the committee recommended a change in the executive directors’ remuneration structure, to take effect from
1 March 2019, as follows:
• For the CEO, a 20% reduction in base pay; 2% reduction in on-target earnings (“OTE”); and 7% reduction in capped (maximum
achievable) pay.
• For the CFO, a 10% reduction in base pay with no change to OTE or capped pay.
There will be no reduction in Company pension contributions for the executives as a result of this change: in FY19 the Group
contributed an amount of 15% of the executive directors’ base salaries to their Company and private pension schemes, with the
individuals contributing 5% of their salary. In FY20, because of the decrease in base salaries the Company pension contributions
for the executive directors will be: CEO 18.8%; and CFO 16.7%.

Datatec Group short-term incentives
The STI bonus structure for FY19 and outcome is set out in the following table:

FY19 bonus outcome
1) UEPS
Lower guard-rail

–33%

On-target
Upper guard-rail
Actual

FY19 budget
+100%

US cents
2.0

Bonus
0%

3.0
6.0
6.6

100%
160%
160%

US$m

Bonus

Proportion of
total bonus

Outcome

FY19

FY19

30%

48.0%

20%

20.0%

30%

0.0%

5%
5%
5%
5%

4.0%
5.0%
7.0%
7.0%

20%

23.0%

On-target

Achieved

100%

91.0%

2) EBITDA
Lower guard-rail
Actual
On-target
Upper guard-rail

–8%

80

40%

FY19 budget
15%

87
87
100

100%
100%
160%

ZAR

Bonus

29
30
33
36

0%
40%
100%
160%

3) Share price performance (30-day VWAP on JSE)
Actual (R29.19)
Lower guard-rail
On-target
Upper guard-rail

(Feb 2018)
11%
21%

4) Personal goals – Westcon International KPIs
Working capital improvement – target net working capital 23 days
Revenue growth – target budget 10%
Monthly profitability by February 2019 (at least two months)
Reduction in central costs – target US$45 million

TOTAL FY19 BONUS
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As noted in the shareholder engagement section of Part 1 on page 75, the profit-related bonus metrics for FY19 (UEPS and
EBITDA) are Group performance metrics. Recognising the crucial part the Westcon International reshaping plays in the Group’s
strategic goals, the Remuneration Committee gave both executive directors the same quantitative metrics for Westcon
International as personal goals as shown above. These Westcon International metrics were:
• Working capital improvement – target net working capital 23 days; achievement was 24 days but management had taken
the decision to increase inventory to mitigate potential risks from Brexit and supply-chain issues. Nevertheless the
Remuneration Committee decided that this metric had been 80% achieved so awarded 4% out of the 5% on-target;
• Revenue growth – the target was 10% being the Westcon International budget revenue for FY19. This was achieved so the
full 5% on-target assessment was awarded by the committee;
• Monthly profitability – the target was to achieve two months of profitable trading at the adjusted EBITDA level. This was
overachieved as there were seven months of profitable trading in FY19 and the overall profit was above target. Hence the
committee assessed this metric as 7% compared to the 5% on-target amount; and
• Reduction in central costs – the target of US$45 million for FY19 central costs was disclosed at the time of the FY18 results
announcement. The actual central costs for FY19 were US$43 million which the committee considered to be a successful
overachievement of the target and awarded 7% for this metric as against the 5% on-target amount.
Because the bonus is 91.0% of the on-target bonus, the executive directors must invest a minimum of 20% of their FY19
bonuses in the DBP.
The on-target bonus levels for FY19 remained the same as for FY18, being: 125% of base salary for the CEO capped at 200%;
and 75% of base salary for the CFO capped at 120%. As a result of the restructuring of executive directors’ remuneration noted
above, the on-target bonus levels for FY20 have changed to: 175% of base salary for the CEO capped at 250%; and 95% of
base salary for the CFO capped at 145%.

The targets and outcomes of the annual bonuses of the executive directors for FY19, shown as a percentage of base salary and
split by the bonus elements, are illustrated below.

CEO bonus composition as a percentage of basic
salary (%)
On-target

140%

50.0

120%
100%

CFO bonus composition as a percentage of basic
salary (%)

Achieved

On-target

68.0

100%
80%

80%
30.0

60%

60%

On target
% of
basic pay

25.0

25.0

40.8

75%
40%

31.1

On target
% of
basic pay

20%

15.0
15.0

40%
20%

15.0

12.5

0%

0%
■ UEPS
■ Share price

Achieved

120%

25.0
125%

140%

■ UEPS
■ Share price

■ EBITDA
■ Personal KPIs

CEO bonus

US$’000

18.7
7.5
■ EBITDA
■ Personal KPIs

CFO bonus

US$’000

Cash

50%

812

Cash

75%

287

Deferred

50%

812

Deferred

25%

95

1 624

The metrics for the executive directors’ STI in FY20 are set out in Part 2 of this remuneration report.

FY18 short-term incentive element delayed
One of the metrics for the FY18 STI was the SYNNEX transaction earn-out. As this earn-out had not been settled when the
FY18 STI payment was determined by the committee, this was delayed until such time as the earn-out is determined.

382
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PART 3 – IMPLEMENTATION REPORT continued
Datatec Group long-term incentives

As noted in the remuneration policy (Part 2 on page 81), the
ROIC performance condition for the CSP grant in FY20 will
apply to the average ROIC over the three-year vesting period
and the threshold and target will be determined in relation to the
Group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Conditional share plan awarded during FY19
The new CSP came into operation during FY19 and the first
CSP awards were granted to participants on 1 June 2018
following approval by the Remuneration Committee. The awards
are subject to the rules of the CSP and will vest after three years
subject to the Group meeting certain performance conditions
set by the Remuneration Committee. The performance
conditions are:

UEPS performance condition – 50% of grant:
the performance condition necessary for the full portion of the
conditional award subject to the UEPS condition (ie 50% of the
total conditional award) to vest is that the Company’s reported
UEPS for FY21 must equal or exceed 12 cents. If this target
level in UEPS is not achieved, the portion relating to this
condition will lapse. The committee set this UEPS target figure
at the start of FY19 with the background that FY18 had
recorded a loss of 5.6 cents per share and the FY19 budget
UEPS was 3.0 cents. The target therefore represented a four
times increase in UEPS in two years.

ROIC performance condition – 50% of grant:
the performance condition necessary for half of the conditional
award subject to the ROIC condition (ie 25% of the total
conditional award) to vest is that the Company’s reported ROIC
for FY21 must equal or exceed 8%. The performance condition
necessary for the second half of the conditional award subject
to the ROIC condition (ie 25% of the total conditional award) to
vest is that the Company’s reported ROIC for FY21 must equal
or exceed 12%. If the ROIC for FY21 falls between levels above,
ie between 8% and 12%, the proportion of conditional awards
which vest will be determined by linear interpolation between
25% and 50% in proportion to the FY21 ROIC between 8%
and 12%.

The UEPS figure which will be used for the assessment of the
performance condition in this section will be that reported in the
FY21 Integrated Report of Datatec Group.
It is noted that the remuneration policy (Part 2 on page 81)
states 50% of the CSP performance condition will be based
on UEPS growth. However, the UEPS for FY18 was a loss per
share so the committee instead chose a notional target UEPS
for FY21 as the target.
Further info online

The ROIC figure which will be used for the assessment of the
performance condition in this section will be that reported in
the FY21 Integrated Report of Datatec Group.

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Executive directors accepted CSP awards granted as follows:

Government, municipalities, regulators

Grant fair value
as % of
Fair value of
base pay
Number awards on grant
%
of awards
US$’000
Improving shareholder returns

CSP

Grant date

Business development

Fair value of
awards at

28 February
2019
US$’000

JP Montanana
1 June 2018
1 291 148
2 142
150
2 704
IP Dittrich
1 June 2018
405 066
672
120
848
The fair value of these awards at date of grant was R20.78 per award being the 30-day volume weighted average share price
on 17 May 2018, the date of the Group’s FY18 results announcement. The fair value at 28 February 2019 is R29.19 being the
30-day volume weighted average share price on 28 February 2019. In both cases the fair value assumes 100% vesting of the
awards, ie that the performance condition targets will be met or exceeded.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

Deferred bonus plan awarded during FY19
Executive directors deferred part of their FY18 bonuses under the terms of the new DBP in June 2018. This was the first time
the new DBP came into operation. In accordance with the policy, a multiplier of x2 was applied to the deferred bonus amount
and Datatec shares purchased which are held for the benefit of the participants but forfeited if they should leave the employment
of Datatec within the following three years.
Amount of bonus
deferred

JP Montanana
IP Dittrich

Grant date

%

US$’000

Company
contribution
(x2 multiplier)
US$’000

12 and 14
June 2018
14 June 2018

83.3
20.4

837
40

837
40

Total
invested
in shares
US$’000

Total
number
of shares
purchased

Fair value
of awards
on grant
US$’000

Fair value of
awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

1 675
80

1 000 000
47 000

1 675
80

2 094
98

The fair value of these awards at date of grant was the share price at which the DBP shares were purchased on the dates shown in
the table. The fair value at 28 February 2019 is R29.19 being the 30-day volume weighted average share price on 28 February 2019.
The fair value of the Company contribution shares purchased in relation to the FY18 bonus deferment is shown as part of total
remuneration for FY18.
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Deferred bonus plan awarded during FY20
Executive directors deferred part of their FY19 bonuses under the terms of the new DBP in June 2019. In accordance with the
policy, a multiplier of x2 was applied to the deferred bonus amount and Datatec shares purchased which are held for the benefit
of the participants but forfeited if they should leave the employment of Datatec within the following three years.

DBP

FY20
grant date
(expected)

Amount of bonus
deferred
%

US$’000

Company
contribution
(x2 multiplier)
US$’000

Total
invested Total number
in shares
of shares
US$’000
purchased

Fair value
of awards
on grant
US$’000

Fair value
of awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

JP Montanana

1 June
2019

50.0

812

812

1 624

702 407

1 624

1 471

IP Dittrich

1 June
2019

25.0

96

96

191

82 636

191

173

Directors’ interests in subsidiary share schemes during FY19
During FY19, the executive directors received awards under the Westcon International EAP by virtue of their leadership roles as
CEO and CFO of Westcon International (in addition to their Datatec roles). The Westcon International EAP is explained in Part 2
of this remuneration report. The Datatec executives who participate in the Westcon International EAP will have an adjustment
made to the threshold of 10% carried interest annually added to the equity base of US$125 million.
Grant
fair value
as % of
base pay
%

Fair value of
awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

Grant date

Number
of awards

Fair value of
awards on
grant
US$’000

JP Montanana

14 March 2018

30 000

–

–

88

IP Dittrich

14 March 2018

15 000

–

–

44

Westcon
EAP

In addition to the above, Jens Montanana was granted a conditional award equivalent to 10 000 Westcon International EAP
units by Datatec. This award is conditional on the sale of Westcon International being for US$300 million or more. If that
condition is met Jens Montanana will receive a cash payment equivalent to the value of 10 000 units in the Westcon International
EAP. The award will have the same adjustment made to the threshold, 10% carried interest annually added to the equity base
of US$125 million, as the other Westcon International EAP awards provided to Datatec executives. This award had a fair value
of US$14 000 at 28 February 2019.
The fair value of these awards on grant was deemed to be nil because the value of Westcon International based on book
value was below the equity base threshold of US$125 million. The fair value of the Westcon International EAP awards at
28 February 2019 was determined by an actuarial calculation.
The annual LTI grant of Datatec CSP conditional shares for the Datatec executives who participate in the Westcon International
EAP will, from FY20 onward, be reduced by an “equivalence” factor to avoid “double dipping” in relation to reward opportunities.
In accordance with US practice, John McCartney participated in the Westcon Group, Inc. SAR scheme (see Part 2 of this
remuneration report) which terminated on the SYNNEX transaction but participants will receive a final payment under the terms
of the scheme upon determination of the SYNNEX transaction earn-out.

Previous Datatec Group share schemes
The previous Datatec Group share schemes, the SARs, LTIP and old DBP, operated from 2005 with some modifications
approved by shareholders in 2010 and 2011. The last grants under these schemes were in July 2017 (in FY18) and thereafter
they were superseded by the CSP and new DBP. Existing grants under the previous share schemes remain active for the
three-year performance periods and an update on vesting during FY19 is given on pages 90 to 92.
Further info online

Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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PART 3 – IMPLEMENTATION REPORT continued
Modification to previous Datatec Group share
schemes
All share-based awards in the course of their performance
periods at the time were modified in FY18 to account for
two material transactions: the sale of Westcon Americas to
SYNNEX on 1 September 2017; and the disposal of
Logicalis SMC. In addition during FY18, a special dividend
was paid to shareholders in January 2018.
The modifications required to Datatec’s share-based
remuneration to keep the economic interests of
participants unchanged were as follows:

Number of awards
increased by 69.7%

Exercise price (if
applicable) reduced
by a factor of 1.697

The factor is calculated as 56/(56-23) where R56 is the
share price close the day prior to ex-dividend date and
R23 is the amount of the special dividend.

Non-market performance condition modified to
account for the fact that Westcon Americas
profits were included in the UEPS at the start of
the performance period but not at the end of the
period (Westcon Americas having been disposed
of during the performance period)
The Remuneration Committee decided the non-market
performance condition would be modified by adding back the
accounting profit on sale of the two disposals to UEPS in the
third year of each award which was granted prior to the
disposal. The accounting profit per share of the disposal of
Westcon Americas and Logicalis SMC in FY18 should therefore
be added to the final year UEPS used in assessing the vesting
of the May 2015, May 2016 and July 2017 awards, all of which
are based on the reported UEPS of financial years which
included the earnings of Westcon Americas and Logicalis SMC.

Limits applicable to previous Datatec Group share
schemes
The aggregate number of shares that may be issued under
the SARs Scheme, the LTIP and the old DBP is limited to
9 250 000. This limit applies to the issue of new shares and
not to shares purchased in the market for the purposes of
share scheme settlements. From the inception of the
schemes up to 28 February 2018, 2 029 167 shares had
been issued in settlement of the schemes. No shares were
issued during FY19, so the number of shares which could still
be issued before reaching the above limit is 7 220 833.

Datatec Share Appreciation Rights Scheme 2005
vesting during FY19
The SARs granted in May 2015 (“2015 SARs”) were assessed
for vesting in May 2018. The performance condition set by
the Remuneration Committee was that UEPS (in US cents)
must increase by 2% per annum above US Consumer Price
Index (“CPI”) inflation over a three-year performance period in
order for 50% of the SARs to vest. For the other 50% of the
SARs to vest, UEPS (in US cents) must increase by 4% per
annum above US CPI inflation over the three-year
performance period. Between those limits a sliding scale
would operate. This is a non-market performance condition.
In light of the modification to the non-market performance
condition explained above, the Remuneration Committee
determined that the 2015 SARs exceeded the upper limit for
growth of UEPS and accordingly the 2015 SARs vested in
May 2018. The exercise price of the vested SARs is R35.79
which is currently above the Datatec share price and the
SARs will only have value for participants if the Datatec share
price rises above the exercise price.
The fair value of the SARs granted in May 2015
(during FY16) which vested during FY19 is nil because
the grant price (as modified) exceeds the share price at
28 February 2019.
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The SARs granted in May 2016 (during FY17) will not vest during FY20 because the performance condition for vesting (share price
growth from 1 March 2016 to 28 February 2019 required to be in excess of South African CPI) has not been met. Hence the fair
value at 28 February 2019 is nil.
The fair value of the SARs granted in July 2017 (during FY17) is nil because the grant price (as modified) exceeds the share price
at 28 February 2019.
Directors’ interests in Datatec SARs are shown in the following table:

Grant
date

Grant
price
(ZAR)

SARs held at
beginning
of year

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

SARs held
at year-end

Status at
28 February
2019

Fair value
of awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

JP Montanana

14 May 2015
12 May 2016
28 July 2017

35.79
27.20
34.94

629 000
1 122 269
748 955

–
–
–

–
–
–

629 000
1 122 269
748 955

Vested
Not vested
Not vested

–
–
–

IP Dittrich

Sub-total
12 May 2016
28 July 2017

27.20
34.94

2 500 224
308 665
230 039

–
–
–

–
–
–

2 500 224
308 665
230 039

Not vested
Not vested

–
–
–

Sub-total

538 704

–

–

538 704

–

Total

3 038 928

–

–

3 038 928

–

Datatec Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) 2005 vesting during FY19

Conditional awards under the LTIP granted in May 2015 (“2015 LTIPs”) were assessed for vesting in May 2018.
The performance condition set by the Remuneration Committee was related to the total shareholder return (“TSR”) of Datatec
relative to the TSR of an international peer group of 22 comparator companies using a common currency basis. This is a market
performance condition.
The modification explained above applied only to the number of LTIP awards in issue which was increased by 69.7%. There is
no exercise price associated with LTIP awards to be modified and the performance condition was market-based and therefore
modification was not applicable.
In May 2018, the Remuneration Committee determined that the performance condition set for the 2015 LTIP awards had not
been met and accordingly the awards lapsed.
Directors’ interests in Datatec LTIP awards are shown in the following table:

Awards held
at beginning
of year

Vested and
settled during
the year

Lapsed/forfeited
during the year

14 May 2015

629 000

–

(629 000)

–

–

12 May 2016

1 122 269

–

–

1 122 269

1 175

28 July 2017
Sub-total
12 May 2016
28 July 2017
Sub-total
Total

748 955
2 500 224
231 499
172 529
404 028
2 904 252

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
(629 000)
–
–
–
(629 000)

748 955
1 871 224
231 499
172 529
404 028
2 275 252

784
1 959
242
181
423
2 382

Grant
date

JP Montanana

IP Dittrich

Fair value
of awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

Awards held at
year-end

The May 2016 LTIP awards will achieve the UEPS growth performance condition (as modified) but not the ROIC performance
condition and accordingly 50% will vest in FY20. The fair value of these awards is accordingly 50% of the awards multiplied by
the 30-day volume weighted average share price at 28 February 2019. The same outcome is expected for the July 2017 LTIP
awards and they have been valued at 28 February 2019 using the same method as applied to the May 2016 LTIP awards
without discounting.
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PART 3 – IMPLEMENTATION REPORT continued
Datatec Deferred Bonus Plan 2005 vesting during FY19

The previous Datatec DBP operated in a different way from the current DBP. Under the old DBP, participants purchased
Datatec shares using part of their after-tax cash bonus and these shares, termed pledged shares, were held for a three-year
performance period at the end of which participants were awarded matching shares provided they remained in the employment
of the Datatec Group. Participants were entitled to receive additional shares on matching, equal in value to the notional accrued
dividends arising on the matched shares during the pledge period. The matching shares do not hold any voting rights until vesting.
In June 2015, three participants purchased pledged shares in the old DBP using part of their FY17 annual bonuses. The
Remuneration Committee determined that these pledged shares would be matched 100% at the end of three years provided
that the participants had not left the Datatec Group in the interim. Additionally a non-market performance condition was applied
whereby an additional 50% would vest provided UEPS over a three-year performance period increased by US CPI + 8% per
annum.
In May 2018 the Remuneration Committee assessed the outcome of the 2015 DBP. No modification was required to the number of
matching shares because the special dividend accrued to the matching shares under the scheme rules. However, the modification to
the non-market performance condition was required in the same way as applied to the SAR Scheme UEPS performance condition
noted above. Accordingly the Remuneration Committee determined that the 2015 DBP pledged shares would be matched 150% for all
participants who were still in employment. One participant (the former CFO) had resigned from the Company during the pledge period
and therefore received no matching shares in accordance with the policy in Part 2 of this remuneration report.
Directors’ pledged shares in the old Datatec DBP are shown in the following table:

FY19

Matching
share
Date of commitment
purchase of at beginning
pledged shares
of year

Performance
condition
achieved
(50%)

Shares added
in lieu of
dividends
during
three-year
pledge period

Matched
during
the year

Matching
share
commitment
at end
of year

Fair value
of awards at
28 February
2019
$’000

11 June 2015

130 000

65 000

156 987

(351 987)

–

–

JP Montanana

28 June 2016

100 000

50 000

111 823

–

261 823

548

Sub-total

230 000

115 000

268 810

(351 987)

261 823

548

IP Dittrich

29 June 2016
Sub-total

45 745
45 745

22 873
22 873

51 153
51 153

–
–

119 771
119 771

251
251

Total

275 745

137 873

319 963

(351 987)

381 594

799

The pledged shares held by Jens Montanana were matched in accordance with the DBP rules as follows:
Condition

Employment

Performance

Total
130 000

Matching for employment condition

100%

130 000

–

Overperformance UEPS condition (modified)

50%

–

65 000

65 000

104 658
234 658

52 329
117 329

156 987
351 987

US$384 779

US$192 390

US$577 169

Shares in lieu of dividends attaching to matching shares
Total matching shares
The value of the matching shares delivered to
Jens Montanana on 25 May 2018 was:

Calculated using R20.78 per share, the 30-day volume weighted average share price on 17 May 2018, the day of the FY18 results
announcement and an exchange rate of 12.6727 ZAR/US$.

The old DBP shares pledged in June 2016 are expected to be matched in June 2019 (in FY20) and to achieve the additional
50% performance-based matching. Accordingly, the fair value of the matching share commitment includes the total matching
shares to be delivered, valued at the 30-day volume weighted average share price on 28 February 2019.
The Remuneration Committee decided not to operate a grant under the old DBP in 2017, based on deferring FY17 bonuses.

Dilution attributable to Datatec Group share incentive plans

The estimated commitment to settle outstanding share-based payment awards would give rise to the dilution shown in the
following table if new shares were to be issued in settlement:
LTI
SARS
LTIP
Old DBP
CSP
Total

Dilution
%
0.00
0.65
0.09
0.71
1.45

The new DBP does not give rise to any dilution effect
because forfeitable shares are granted to participants at the
start of the three-year holding period. None of the divisional
share-based remuneration plans could have any dilution
effect as they are not settled with Datatec shares.
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Single figure remuneration of executive directors
The following tables show the composition of a single figure of remuneration for the executive directors:
CEO

Old LTI

New LTI

CFO

Component

FY18
US$’000

FY19
US$’000

FY18
US$’000

FY19
US$’000

SARS

–

–

–

–

LTIP

–

1 175

–

242

DBP

193

183

–

84

CSP

–

–

–

–

837

812

40

95

Total LTI

DBP

1 030

2 170

40

421

Exceptional

3 500

1 750

FY18 – cash

168

156

FY18 – deferred

837

40

STI

FY19 – cash

812

287

FY19 – deferred

812

95

Sub-total STI

1 005

1 624

196

382

Pension

201

214

65

84

Benefits

26

28

15

43

Base salary

1 340

1 428

436

560

1 567

1 670

516

687

7 102

5 464

2 502

1 490

Guaranteed package

Old LTI
The May 2015 grant of SARs vested in May 2018 but the grant price (as modified) was higher than the current share price so the fair value is nil
in the above table. The May 2016 grant of SARs did not vest in May 2019.
The May 2016 award of LTIPs did not vest in May 2018. The May 2016 award of LTIPs, with a performance period ending 28 February 2019,
50% of LTIP vested in May 2019 and the fair value of the vesting at 28 February 2019 is shown in the above table.
The DBP pledged shares acquired by directors in May 2015 and 2016 both earned a 50% performance-based matching in addition to the
matching shares arising from the employment condition. The performance-based matching element (which had a performance period ended
28 February 2018 and 2019) plus the shares accruing to it in lieu of dividends during the performance period is shown in the above table at fair
value (being the share price at the time of the vesting for FY18 and at 28 February 2019 for FY19).

New LTI
The value of the shares purchased by the Company equal to the amount of bonus deferred by the directors in respect of their bonuses for FY18
and FY19 is shown in the table. There is no performance-based element in the new DBP.
The CFO re-joined the business in June 2016 and consequently no LTI was scheduled to vest in FY18.
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PART 3 – IMPLEMENTATION REPORT continued
Non-executive directors’ remuneration
During FY19, non-executive directors received fees, as approved by shareholders at the AGM on 20 September 2018,
as follows:
Role

Fee – US$

Chairman of the Board (total fee inclusive of all committee and subsidiary board work)

201 552

Senior non-executive director

74 256

Non-executive director

63 648

Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

31 824

Member of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

15 912

Chairman of the Social and Ethics Committee

10 608

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

15 912

Member of the Remuneration Committee

7 956

Member of the Nominations Committee

5 304

Trustee of Datatec trusts

7 426

Non-executive directors are reimbursed for travel costs necessary for attending Board meetings and do not receive any
employment benefits.
For the year ending 28 February 2020, the Remuneration Committee proposes that fees for non-executive directors will remain
at the levels set out above. In addition a new fee is proposed for the Chair of Trustees of the Datatec Education and Technology
Foundation of US$12 000 per year. These fees will be presented for approval by shareholders at the AGM on 29 August 2019.

Summary of directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of directors serving on the Board in FY19 and FY18 is shown in the following tables:
Guaranteed package
FY19
US$’000

Basic salary

Pension

JP Montanana

1 428

214

IP Dittrich

560

84

Total executive directors

1 988

298

–

–

Other
benefits

Fees

STI

LTI

28

–

1 624

2 170

5 464

43

–

382

423

1 492

71

–

2 006

2 593

6 956

–

202

–

–

202

Total

Executive directors

Non-executive directors

SJ Davidson
O Ighodaro (to 31 October 2018)

–

–

–

62

–

–

62

JF McCartney

–

–

–

90

–

–

90

M Makanjee (from 1 November 2018)

–

–

–

28

–

–

28

MJN Njeke

–

–

–

110

–

–

110

–

–

–

50

–

–

50

E Singh-Bushell (from 1 June 2018)

–

–

–

71

–

–

71

NJ Temple (to 20 September 2018)

–

–

–

45

–

–

45

Total non-executive directors

–

–

–

658

–

–

658

Total directors’ emoluments

1 988

298

71

658

2 006

2 593

7 614

CS Seabrooke (to 20 September
2018)
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Guaranteed package
FY18
US$’000

Basic salary

Pension

JP Montanana

1 340

201

IP Dittrich

436

65

Total executive directors

1 776

266

Other
benefits

Deal bonus
(exceptional)

LTI

1 005

3 500

1 030

7 102

196

1 750

40

2 502

1 201

5 250

1 070

9 604

202

Fees

STI

26

–

15

–

41

–

Total

Executive directors

Non-executive directors

SJ Davidson

–

–

–

202

–

–

–

O Ighodaro

–

–

–

88

–

–

–

88

JF McCartney – Datatec fees

–

–

–

85

–

–

–

85

JF McCartney – Westcon fees
(to 31 August 2017)

–

–

–

31

–

–

–

31

MJN Njeke

–

–

–

98

–

–

–

98

CS Seabrooke

–

–

–

116

–

–

–

116

NJ Temple

–

–

–

90

–

–

–

90

Total non-executive directors

–

–

–

710

–

–

–

710

Total directors’ emoluments

1 776

266

41

710

1 201

5 250

1 070

10 314

Note: the non-executive directors’ fees shown above do not include VAT.

Directors’ interests in shares
Directors’ interests in the ordinary shares of the Company at 28 February 2019 are shown below:
At 28 February 2019
Direct

Indirect

Beneficial

Beneficial

JP Montanana

–

24 004 635

IP Dittrich

93 329

At 28 February 2018

Associates

Direct

Indirect

Associates

Total

Beneficial

Beneficial

–

24 004 635

–

23 004 635

–

23 004 635

–

–

93 329

46 329

–

–

46 329

Total

Executive directors

Non-executive directors

SJ Davidson

–

–

11 001

11 001

–

–

11 001

11 001

JF McCartney

–

1 278 877

–

1 278 877

–

1 278 877

–

1 278 877

93 329

25 283 512

11 001

25 387 842

46 329

24 283 512

11 001

24 340 842

Directors’ interests in ordinary shares of the Company shown above are unchanged as at the date of this report. Non-executive
directors not shown in the above tables did not hold any Datatec shares in either year. Executive directors’ interests in shares via
LTI share schemes (which have not vested/been exercised) are shown earlier in the implementation report. Shares held by
executive directors in relation to the DBP (which are forfeited if they resign from the Company) are included in the above table as
are the pledged shares held by executive directors under the old DBP.
Further info online

The implementation of remuneration during FY19 as set out above has been in compliance with the policy in Part 2 except as
noted in the text.
Cross reference to sections
in this report

Communities

The FY18 remuneration implementation report was put before shareholders for an advisory vote at the AGM on
20 September 2018 and received support from 37.1% of shares voted. This FY19 remuneration implementation
report will be put before shareholders for an advisory vote at the 2019 AGM. The Remuneration Committee believes
that the extensive changes it has made following consultation with shareholders in November 2018 will result in a
much improved level of shareholder support for the remuneration implementation in FY19.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

Improving shareholder returns

Business development

Enhancing competitiveness and profitability
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The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated annual financial statements of Datatec
Limited (“Datatec” or the “Company” or the “Group”), comprising the consolidated statement of financial position at 28 February
2019, the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes,
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the South African Companies
Act 71 of 2008 (“the Companies Act”).
In terms of the Companies Act, the directors are required to prepare annual financial statements that fairly present the state
of affairs and business of the Group at the end of the financial year and of the profit for that year. The consolidated annual
financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2019 are prepared in accordance with IFRS of the International Accounting
Standards Board, Interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued
by the Accounting Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council, the JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act and incorporate transparent and responsible
disclosure together with appropriate accounting policies. These annual financial statements were compiled under the supervision
of Ivan Dittrich CA(SA), the Chief Financial Officer, during the year.
The directors are also responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and for maintaining adequate
accounting records and an effective system of risk management as well as the preparation of the supplementary schedules
included in these financial statements.
These annual financial statements have been audited in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act. The auditor
is responsible for reporting on whether the consolidated financial statements are fairly presented in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.
The directors have made an assessment of the ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to continue as going concerns and
believe that the Group and its subsidiaries have adequate resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and
accordingly these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated annual financial statements of Datatec Limited as identified in the first paragraph were approved by the Board
of directors on 15 May 2019 and signed by:

JP Montanana
Chief Executive Officer
Authorised director

IP Dittrich
Chief Financial Officer
Authorised director

Certificate by Company Secretary
In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the South African Companies Act 71 of 2008, I certify that for the year ended 28 February 2019
Datatec Limited has filed with the Commissioner of the CIPC all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of
the Companies Act. Further, that such returns are true, correct and up to date.

SP Morris
For and on behalf of Datatec Management Services (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary
15 May 2019
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF DATATEC LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Datatec Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
106 to 195, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 28 February 2019, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 28 February 2019, and its consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“ISA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors Code
of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (“IRBA Code”) and other independence requirements applicable to performing
audits of financial statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IRBA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code
is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
This matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter.
Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in the audit

SYNNEX earn-out receivable
Effective 1 September 2017, Datatec Limited sold its
Westcon-Comstor business in North America and Latin
America (“Westcon Americas”) for an amount of
US$600 million and 10% of the remaining part of Westcon
(“Westcon International”) to SYNNEX Corporation
(“SYNNEX”) for an amount US$30 million. The Group is
entitled to additional purchase consideration should the
gross profit achieved by Westcon Americas be in excess
of stipulated amounts for the 12-month period ended
28 February 2018.
A dispute has arisen in respect of the earn-out receivable
related to the disposal of Westcon Americas. The dispute is
still ongoing and currently subject to an arbitration process.
The earn-out receivable represents a financial asset and
therefore is required to be recorded at fair value in terms
of IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. Due to the significant
judgement involved in measuring this financial asset, the
valuation of the earn-out receivable of US$11.7 million after
costs has been identified as a key audit matter.
The profit on disposal of Westcon Americas is included in
discontinued operations in the statement of comprehensive
income and the disclosures relating to the disposal group
is contained in the critical accounting judgements and key
sources of estimation accounting policy and Notes 23 and
37 of the consolidated financial statements.

In determining the recognition and disclosure of the earn-out
receivable, we performed the following procedures:
• inspected the share purchase agreement and other
underlying correspondence to verify that all relevant facts
were taken into account in the determination of the
earn-out receivable;
• reviewed correspondence from the legal advisers with
respect to the expected outcome of the arbitration;
• considered the directors’ judgement in the determination
of the valuation of the earn-out receivable, taking into
account the various possible outcomes;
• reviewed the directors’ accounting paper including the
assessment made of accounting estimates;
• tested the key controls around the preparation of the
earn-out receivable valuation calculation;
• considered the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements relating to the earn-out
receivable; and
• obtained specific management representations on the
estimates applied in the valuation of the earn-out
receivable.
We concur with the directors’ assessment in determining the
valuation of the earn-out receivable. Based on the results of
the above procedures, we consider the disclosures in relation
to the earn-out receivable in the consolidated financial
statements to be adequate.
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Other information
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors’ report, the Audit, Risk
and Compliance Committee’s report and the certificate of Company Secretary, as required by the Companies Act of South
Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report and the Integrated Report, which is expected to be made
available to us after that date. The other information does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with IFRS and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:
• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control
• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors
• conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going-concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern
• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation
• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements continued
We communicate with the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
We also provide the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that
Deloitte & Touche has been the auditor of Datatec Limited for 24 years.

Deloitte & Touche
Registered Auditor
Per: M Rayfield
Partner
15 May 2019
Building 1 and 2, Deloitte Place, The Woodlands
Woodlands Drive, Woodmead, Sandton
Riverwalk Office Park, Block B
41 Matroosberg Road, Ashlea Gardens X6, Pretoria
National Executive: *LL Bam Chief Executive Officer *TMM Jordan Deputy Chief Executive Officer; Clients & Industries
*MJ Jarvis Chief Operating Officer *AF Mackie Audit & Assurance *N Sing Risk Advisory *DP Ndlovu Tax & Legal
TP Pillay Consulting *JK Mazzocco Talent & Transformation MG Dicks Risk Independence & Legal *KL Hodson Financial
Advisory *TJ Brown Chairman of the Board
A full list of partners and directors is available on request
* Partner and registered auditor

BBBEE rating: Level 1 contribution in terms of DTI Generic Scorecard as per the amended Codes of Good Practice
Associate of Deloitte Africa, a member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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The information below constitutes the report of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (“ARCC” or “the committee”).
The Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors: Johnson Njeke (Chairman),
John McCartney and Ekta Singh-Bushell. Curricula vitae for these directors are on page 13 of the Integrated Report and
evidence their relevant skills and suitable experience. The Chief Executive Officer, Jens Montanana, the Chief Financial Officer,
Ivan Dittrich, the Chief Risk Officer, Simon Morris and the external and internal auditors are invited to attend all meetings. The
external and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the committee and also meet with the committee members, without
management present, at least once a year. Attendance at committee meetings is set out in the value protection section of the
Integrated Report.
The committee meets at least three times a year. In the year under review and subsequently up to the date of this report, the
committee has met five times, with all members in attendance. The Chairman of the committee reports on the committee’s
activities at each Board meeting.
The committee operates within defined terms of reference as set out in its charter and the authority granted to it by the Board.
The charter is reviewed annually to confirm compliance with the King IVTM Code and the Companies Act and to ensure the
incorporation of best practice developments.
Further info online
The
charter is available at www.datatec.com.

Cross reference to sections
in this report

The committee is satisfied that it has met its responsibilities for the year under review and to the date of this report with respect
to its terms of reference as set out in its charter. Further, the committee is satisfied that it has complied with its legal and
regulatory responsibilities throughout that period.
Communities

Each of Datatec’s main operating divisions has an audit, risk and compliance committee, chaired by the Group Chief Financial
Officer, Ivan Dittrich. Reports from these committees are submitted to the Datatec ARCC, which retains all the functions of an
audit committee in respect of Datatec’s subsidiaries.
Employees

Government, municipalities, regulators

In terms of the Companies Act and the JSE Listings Requirements, the committee has considered and satisfied itself of the
appropriateness of the expertise and experience of Ivan Dittrich, that the Group has established appropriate financial reporting
procedures, and that those procedures are operating. Further, the committee considers the appropriateness of the expertise
and adequacy of resources of the Group’s finance function and the experience of senior management responsible for the
finance function annually. For the year under review, the committee is satisfied in this regard.
Improving shareholder returns

Business development

The committee is responsible for selecting the external auditor and recommending its appointment to the shareholders.
Deloitte & Touche has been the external auditor for 24 years and has the policy of rotating the designated partner every
five years. The current designated audit partner is M Rayfield who is in the second year of his tenure. The committee monitors
the external auditor and obtained and reviewed the information specified in paragraph 22.15(h) of the JSE Listings
Requirements. The committee is satisfied that Deloitte & Touche and the designated audit partner are independent of the
Company, that the quality of their audit work is of a sufficiently high standard and assessed them as suitable for reappointment.
The committee is also responsible for approving the external auditor’s fees and oversees the Company’s policy on the provision
of non-audit services by the external auditor which contributes to maintaining the external auditor’s independence.
Enhancing competitiveness and profitability

The committee reviews the activities and effectiveness of the Group’s internal audit function and annually reviews the internal
audit charter and recommends it to the Board. The Company has developed an in-house internal audit team which took over
from the outsourced internal audit function provided by EY with effect from 1 March 2019. During FY19, the committee
reviewed the transition process for internal audit to ensure it was effective.
The committee assists the Board in reviewing the risk management process and significant risks facing the Group (see
pages 62 to 67). The committee reviews the Group’s risk strategy with the executive directors and senior management
and oversees the Group’s use of recognised risk management and internal control models and frameworks to maintain a
sound system of risk management and internal control. Combined assurance processes are in place throughout the Group
to provide the committee with internal management assurance and external assurance from a range of assurance providers
including the outsourced internal auditor. The ARCC is satisfied that the appropriate processes are in place, including effective
combined assurance, to enable the Board to make an objective assessment of the Group’s system of internal controls and
risk management.
The committee is tasked with reviewing the interim and Annual Financial Statements and Integrated Report. The ARCC
recommended the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 28 February 2019, for approval to the Board. The Board has
subsequently approved the Annual Financial Statements which will be presented at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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SIGNIFICANT AREAS OF JUDGEMENT
The results and statement of financial position presented in the Annual Financial Statements require many areas where
judgement is needed. These are outlined in the notes to the Annual Financial Statements. The committee has considered the
qualitative and quantitative aspects of information presented in the statement of financial position and other items that require
significant judgement and notes the following:
• SYNNEX transaction earn-out; and
• the assessment of goodwill impairment.
In making its assessment in each of the above areas, the committee examined the external auditor’s report and questioned
senior management in arriving at their conclusions.
SYNNEX transaction earn-out
Pursuant to the sale of Westcon Americas to SYNNEX in the 2018 financial year, an earn-out payment would be made if certain
gross profit targets for Westcon Americas had been met for the 12 months ended 28 February 2018.
The earn-out payment has not yet been agreed between the parties, who are currently engaged in an arbitration process.
The results contain an estimate of the fair value of the receivable of US$11.7 million after costs which are estimated to be
the minimum amount receivable and which is included in profit from discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
The Group has recognised an asset for the fair value of the receivable, included in other receivables under current assets.
Due to the uncertainty of the final earn-out amount, a contingent asset arises for any potential upside above the amount of
the receivable recognised.
Based on their review of the underlying issues and assumptions, the committee considers the accounting treatment for the
earn-out to be appropriate.
Assessment of goodwill impairment
Goodwill is assessed annually for impairment. The directors have exercised significant judgement on the recoverability
of the carrying value of goodwill. This is determined with reference to each cash-generating unit’s value-in-use, based on
the cash flow forecasts approved by senior management. There is estimation and judgement involved in the forecasting
and discounting of future cash flows, with the future cash flows and discount rates being the most significant assumptions
influencing the valuation to determine if any impairment is required in terms of IFRS.
In evaluating goodwill for impairment, the committee has considered the impairment tests, in terms of the assumptions used,
sensitivities applied and resultant headroom. Based on the review of the calculations and assumptions used in the valuation
models, the committee considers the assessment of goodwill impairment and disclosures in terms of IFRS to be appropriate.
Refer to Note 8 in the consolidated annual financial statements.

MJN Njeke
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee Chairman
Sandton
15 May 2019
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PROFILE AND GROUP STRUCTURE
Datatec is an international ICT solutions and services group operating in more than 50 countries across North America, Latin
America, Europe, Africa, Middle East and Asia-Pacific. The Group’s service offering spans the technology, integration and
consulting sectors of the ICT market.
Datatec operates two main divisions:
• Technology – Westcon International: distribution of security, collaboration, networking and data centre products and
solutions; and
• Integration and managed services – Logicalis: ICT infrastructure solutions and services.
The specialist activities of Consulting and Datatec Financial Services are included with the corporate head office functions in the
“Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services” segment of the Group.
Datatec Limited (the “Company”), a South African company with registration number 1994/005004/06, is the parent company
of the Group. The Company’s shares are listed on the JSE Limited with share code DTC and ISIN ZAE000017745.

GROUP FINANCIAL RESULTS
Commentary on the financial position and financial performance of the Group are set out in the Integrated Report on pages 22
to 25.

STATED SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised stated share capital
The authorised stated capital of the Company as at 28 February 2019 and 28 February 2018 is R4 000 000 made up of
400 000 000 ordinary shares.
Issued stated capital
As at 28 February 2019, the issued stated capital amounted to R2 192 000, divided into 219 200 000 ordinary
shares (FY18: R2 429 600 divided into 242 960 000 ordinary shares).

STATED CAPITAL CHANGES DURING THE YEAR
Share repurchase
In total, the Company repurchased 23 760 000 shares for cancellation during FY19 at a total cost of US$43.9 million:
• 4 971 012 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general meeting on 24 July 2018
• 11 888 988 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at the AGM on 20 September 2018
• 6 900 000 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general meeting on 15 January 2019.
Share cancellation expenses relating to the shares repurchased for the year amounted to US$0.2 million. These were accounted
for in equity.
Financial details of the movement in share capital have been reflected in the Group statement of changes in equity and in
Note 16 in the consolidated annual financial statements.

DIRECTORS
Brief curricula vitae of the directors are included on pages 12 and 13 of the Integrated Report and further information on the
directors, including their interests in the shares of the Company and share-based remuneration schemes, is provided in the
remuneration report on pages 72 to 95 and in Note 26 to these consolidated annual financial statements on pages 161 to 164.
All directors are subject to election by shareholders at the first AGM after their appointment. Subsequently, the terms of the
Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation requires one-third of all directors to retire annually (ensuring each director retires
at least once every three years) when they may offer themselves for re-election by shareholders.
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GOING CONCERN
Having undertaken a thorough solvency and liquidity test and review of going concern assertions across the Group, the directors
believe that the Group has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the 12 months after the date of this report
and accordingly the financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis.
The Group has no need to undertake a capital restructuring and key executive management is in place. The Board is not
aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the Group relative to customers, suppliers, services or markets.
The Board is not aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements and there are no pending legal
proceedings other than in the normal course of business.
Solvency
The Group has determined from the solvency tests that the Group is solvent with net assets at 28 February 2019 of
US$648.9 million (2018: US$721.6 million) and tangible net assets of US$364.1 million (2018: US$452.0 million). The Group
is expected to remain solvent over the next 12 months.
Liquidity
The Group is anticipated to generate sufficient cash to settle liabilities as they fall due. Working capital remains well controlled.
Trade receivables and inventory are of a sound quality and adequate provisions are held against both.
The Group is expected to have sufficient liquidity and borrowing capacity to meet its ongoing operating needs, including
approved capital expenditure.

INVESTMENTS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Financial information relating to the Group’s investments and interests in subsidiaries is contained in Annexure 1 of the
consolidated annual financial statements (see pages 190 to 195).

ACQUISITIONS
The Group made the following acquisitions during the financial year ended 28 February 2019:
Effective 17 July 2018, Analysys Mason Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Access Markets International
Partners, Inc. (US) (“AMI Partners”) based in the United States for US$3.5 million; a SMB ICT-focused global research and
consulting firm that specialises in GTM opportunity assessment, tracking buying behaviour, customer segmentation, channel
partner ecosystem dynamics and sales enablement enhanced with predictive analytics.
Effective 3 September 2018, Logicalis acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Clarotech Holdings (Pty) Ltd, an IPT cloud
and managed services business based in Cape Town, for a cash consideration of US$3.4 million. This acquisition enables
Logicalis to combine a focused managed services operation with its existing business in South Africa, to support SMBs as
well as larger corporates.
Effective 3 September 2018, Logicalis completed the acquisition of 100% of the issued share capital of Coasin Chile S.A.,
a Chilean ICT services and solutions provider, which also owns 100% of C2 Mining Solutions S.A.C. based in Peru. This interest
was acquired for a cash consideration of US$17.3 million. Coasin’s experience in the mining and financial services verticals
creates opportunities for Logicalis to better serve its multinational clients while broadening its services scope to new customer
groups.
Effective 8 October 2018, Logicalis acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Corporate Network Integration Pty Ltd
(“CNI”), a Microsoft-certified gold partner based in Melbourne, Australia, for a cash consideration of US$3.1 million (including
US$1.3 million deferred purchase consideration). The acquisition of CNI brings Logicalis a full suite of leading Microsoft cloud
service capabilities, strengthening Logicalis’ position in this growing market segment and enabling Logicalis to deliver a broader
scope of services to new and existing customers.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS AND OTHER MANAGEMENT INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s share-based payment schemes and other management incentive schemes are set out in the remuneration
report and Note 2 of the consolidated annual financial statements on pages 126 to 131.

EVENTS OCCURRING SUBSEQUENT TO THE YEAR-END
Between 1 March and 14 May 2019, the Company repurchased 3.1 million shares, under the terms of a fixed mandate to its
broker, for cancellation.
On 1 March 2019, Analysys Mason Limited acquired Stelacon Holdings AB (“Stelacon”), a Swedish consulting company. This is
an important further step in building a pan-Scandinavian presence, after Analysys Mason’s successful expansion into Norway.
Stelacon brings experience including smart cities, regional development, digital services, policy, regulation, telecoms and digital
communications.
There are no other material subsequent events to report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The AGM of shareholders of Datatec will be held at the JSE, 1st Floor Training Room, One Exchange Square, Gwen Lane,
Sandown, Sandton, 2196, Republic of South Africa, at 12:00 on Thursday, 29 August 2019.

JP Montanana
Chief Executive Officer
Authorised director
15 May 2019

IP Dittrich
Chief Financial Officer
Authorised director
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING
The consolidated financial statements as set out on pages 96 to 195 have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies below. Significant details
of the Group’s accounting policies are set out below and are consistent with those applied in the previous year.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability, if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date.
The financial statements comply with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) of the International Accounting
Standards Board, Interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations Committee, the JSE Listings Requirements, the Companies
Act as well as the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee and Financial Reporting
Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council.

ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
The Group adopted the following new accounting standards:
Applicable standard
IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with
Customers
Effective date
1 January 2018

Key requirements or changes in
accounting policy
The new standard requires entities to recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services
to customers, that reflects the consideration to
which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. This core principle is
achieved through a five-step methodology that is
required to be applied to all contracts with
customers.
The new standard also results in enhanced
disclosures with respect to revenue earned, and
provides guidance for transactions that were not
previously addressed comprehensively and
improves guidance for multiple-element
arrangements.

Impact of application of amendment
During the year, the Group implemented
IFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach.
The Group’s revenue is primarily derived
from product sales, for which the point of
recognition is dependent on contract sales
terms. As the transfer of risks and rewards
generally coincides with the transfer of
control at a point in time, the timing and
amount of revenue recognised by the Group
is not materially affected.
There was no significant impact on opening
retained earnings as at 1 March 2018 as a
result of the adoption of the new accounting
standard.
No significant recognition and measurement
differences were noted during
implementation.
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Applicable standard
IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments
Effective date
1 January 2018

Key requirements or changes in
accounting policy
The new standard improves and simplifies the
approach for classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements
of IAS 39. IFRS 9 applies a consistent approach
to classifying financial assets and replaces the
numerous categories of financial assets in IAS 39,
each of which had its own classification criteria.
IFRS 9 also results in one impairment method,
replacing the numerous impairment methods in
IAS 39 that arise from the different classification
categories.
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Impact of application of amendment
In the current year, the Group has applied
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in
July 2014) and the related consequential
amendments that are effective for the
financial year commencing 1 March 2018.
i) Classification and measurement of financial
assets and liabilities
There is no material impact to the financial
statements on transition to IFRS 9, other
than the classification changes as shown
in the accounting policy on financial
instruments. These classification changes
have not impacted the measurement or
carrying amount of financial instruments.
ii) Impairment of financial assets
The primary change relates to the
assessment of provisioning for potential
future credit losses on financial assets.
The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit
losses (“ECL”) which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade receivables. To
measure the ECL, a provision matrix has
been used and trade receivables have been
grouped based on the days past due.
No material change was noted when
assessing the ECL under the new model
when compared to the previous policies
applied by the Group.

ADOPTION OF AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS
• Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions effective 1 January 2018
• IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations effective 1 January 2018
• Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 2014 – 2016 Cycle effective 1 January 2018
The application of the amendments to the existing standards had no material impact on the disclosures or amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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NEW OR REVISED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND AMENDMENTS TO EXISTING STANDARDS NOT
YET EFFECTIVE
At the date of authorisation of these annual financial statements, the following new or revised standards and amendments to
existing standards applicable to the Group were in issue but not yet effective:
Applicable standard
IFRS 16 Leases
Effective date
1 January 2019

Key requirements or changes in
accounting policy

Implementation progress and
expected impact

The new standard addresses the definition of a
lease, recognition and measurement of leases
and establishes principles for reporting useful
information to users of financial statements about
the leasing activities of both lessees and lessors.

Implementation progress
During the year, each division within the
Datatec Group undertook an impact
assessment of its leases and completed and
planned for the necessary changes to internal
systems and processes to embed the new
accounting requirements.

The principal impact of IFRS 16 will be to change
the accounting treatment by lessees of leases
currently classified as operating leases. Lease
agreements will give rise to the recognition by
the lessee of an asset, representing the right to
use the leased item, and a related liability for future
lease payments.
Lease costs will be recognised in profit or loss in
the form of depreciation of the right-of-use asset
over the lease term, and finance charges
representing the unwind of the discount on the
lease liability. Certain exemptions from recognising
leases on the statement of financial position are
available for leases with terms of 12 months or less
or where the underlying asset is of low value.

Expected impact
The most significant impact on the Group for
applying IFRS 16, based on contractual
arrangements in place at 28 February 2019,
will be the recognition of lease liabilities of
between US$110 million and US$125 million,
along with right-of-use assets with a similar
aggregate value. This liability corresponds to
the minimum lease payments under operating
leases adjusted for the effects of discounting.
Lease liabilities principally relate to property
where the Group is a lessee under an
operating lease arrangement. The impact
of the standard on underlying* earnings and
profit before tax following the adoption is
not expected to be material although the
statement of comprehensive income
presentation of the cost of leases will be
allocated between the depreciation of right-ofuse assets, and a finance charge representing
the unwinding of the discount on the leases.
The Group will not be applying the recognition
and measurement requirements of IFRS 16 to
short-term leases less than 12 months and
low value leases.
The Group has elected to apply the modified
retrospective approach on transition. The
cumulative effect on transition to IFRS 16 will
be recognised in retained earnings at 1 March
2019 and is not expected to be material. The
comparative period will not be restated.

The Group has elected to adopt IFRS 16 when it becomes effective and this amendment will have an impact on the financial
statements for the year ended 29 February 2020.
In addition to the above, the Group does not currently believe that the adoption of the following amendments will have a material
impact on the consolidated results or financial position of the Group:
• Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 – 2017 Cycle Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations effective
1 January 2019, IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 (amendments) Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture effective 1 January 2019
• IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments effective 1 January 2019.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies described on the following pages, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors which are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Certain of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent that it is available and
the Group also engages third parties to perform valuations.
Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities are
disclosed in the relevant notes.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key areas of estimation included in the Group’s annual
financial statements, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year:
• Estimates made in determining the recoverable amount of acquired intangible assets and capitalised development expenditure
included in the statement of financial position (disclosed in Note 9). The Group continually assesses the carrying value of its
intangible assets recognised as part of historical acquisitions. This requires an estimation of the value-in-use, based on
estimated future cash flows and discount rates of the asset or cash-generating units to which these assets belong.
• Estimates made in determining the recoverable amount of goodwill included in the statement of financial position (disclosed
in Note 8). Similar to acquired intangible assets, this requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill is allocated. The Group’s cash-generating units are consistent with those segments (disclosed in Note 34)
to these consolidated financial statements.
• Estimates made in determining the probability of future taxable income thereby justifying the recognition of deferred tax assets
included in the statement of financial position (disclosed in Note 11).
• Estimates made in determining the level of provision required for obsolete inventory and impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables and the accounting for rebates from suppliers (disclosed in Notes 13 and 14, respectively).
• Estimates made in determining changes in estimated useful lives and residual values of capitalised development expenditure
(disclosed in Note 9).
• Estimates made in determining the fair value of the earn-out asset relating to the disposal of Westcon Americas to SYNNEX
(disclosed in Note 37).
• Estimates are utilised when measuring the ECLs which is applied to determine the provision recorded against the gross value
of trade receivables (disclosed in Note 14).
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
Agent versus principal
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the directors made a judgement in determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or as an agent. When deciding the most appropriate basis for presenting revenue or related costs, both
legal form and substance of the agreement between the Group and the counterparty are reviewed to determine each party’s
respective role in the transaction.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The Group reports in US Dollar as the US Dollar is the functional currency in which the major part of the Group’s trading
is conducted and is consistent with the economic substance of most of the Group’s transaction flows worldwide. Reporting
in US Dollar also simplifies financial analysis and is more meaningful to global investors, shareholders and for international
benchmarking.
The translation of the Group components where the functional currency is not US Dollar, including the holding company,
is performed as follows:
(a) Assets (including goodwill) and liabilities (including comparative information) are translated at the closing rate ruling at the
date of each statement of financial position.
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(b) Income and expense items for all periods presented (including comparative information) are translated at a weighted
average rate that approximates the ruling exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising from the translations in (a) and (b) are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve.
(c) The functional currency of the parent company is South African Rand. The share capital and share premium of the parent
company are translated into US Dollar at the closing exchange rates.
The exchange differences arising on this translation (c) are recognised directly in equity and accumulated in non-distributable
reserves.
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and all enterprises controlled by the
Company during the reporting period.
Control is achieved when the Group:
• has power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control listed above. Consolidation of subsidiaries begins when the Group obtains control
over a subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of a subsidiary. Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributable to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
The operating results of Group entities are included from the effective date of acquisition to the effective date of disposal.
All significant inter-company transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those of the Group.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions of recognition under IFRS 3 Business
Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceeds the cost of the consideration transferred, the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Costs
associated with the acquisition are expensed, and may include such costs as advisory, legal, accounting, valuation and other
professional costs associated with the transaction.
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost). Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.
Contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and included as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Subsequent adjustments to the consideration are recognised against the cost of the acquisition,
with corresponding adjustments against goodwill, only to the extent that they arise from new information obtained within the
measurement period (which is not more than 12 months from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments, classified
as assets or liabilities, are measured at fair value and recognised in profit or loss.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

Page 111
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

A non-controlling interest in the acquiree is initially measured at the proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the share of changes in equity since the date of the combination.
If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts
are adjusted during the measurement period (refer above) or additional assets or liabilities are recognised to reflect new
information obtained about the facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised at that date.
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in variations in the Group’s control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent. Additionally, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences recognised in other comprehensive income is transferred within equity between foreign currency
translation reserve and non-controlling interests.
Restructuring of entities or businesses under common control
A business combination of entities or businesses under common control is excluded from IFRS 3 Business Combinations
as it involves the combination of businesses that are ultimately controlled by the same company as before. Any such business
combination is accounted for at the net asset value of the entity or business transferred and no goodwill is raised on these
business combinations. Any difference between the net asset value of the entity or business transferred and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the parent.

SEGMENTAL REPORTING
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision
maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic decisions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency are initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates
of the transactions. At each reporting date, assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than the functional currency
are translated at the rates prevailing at the reporting date. Profits and losses arising on such translations are recognised in profit
or loss, except for unrealised profits and losses on exchange arising from equity loans, which are accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve until the loan is derecognised, at which time it is reclassified to profit or loss.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
All property, plant and equipment have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
losses except land, which is shown at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation is calculated based on cost
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets less their residual value.
The basis of depreciation provided on property, plant and equipment is as follows:
Useful lives (years)
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Buildings
Leasehold improvements

2–6
2–4
2–6
20
Shorter of useful life/period of the lease
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Land and buildings comprise mainly warehouses and offices. Software purchased to support the Group’s back-office,
accounting and customer relationship functions that is an integral part of the hardware, is included in computer equipment
and is depreciated over its expected useful life.
All assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes to these estimates are
accounted for on a prospective basis.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.

LEASING
Finance lease as a lessee
Assets leased in terms of agreements which are considered to be finance leases are capitalised at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments. Capitalised leased assets are depreciated at the same
rate and on the same basis as equivalent owned assets or over the term of the lease if this is shorter and there is no reasonable
certainty that the lessee will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term. The liability to the lessor is included in the statement
of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease finance charges are amortised over the duration of the underlying leases,
using the effective interest method.
Finance lease as a lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the net investment in the lease,
which is determined by discounting the gross investment in the lease at the interest rate implicit in the lease. The gross investment
in the lease is the aggregate of the minimum lease payments accruing to the lessor. Finance lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
Operating leases
Operating leases, mainly for the rental of premises, office furniture, computer equipment and motor vehicles, are not capitalised
and rentals are expensed on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

CAPITALISED DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE
An intangible asset arising from internal development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised only
if the Group can demonstrate all of the following conditions:
(a) the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
(b) its intention or ability to complete the intangible asset, and use or sell it;
(c) how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits, including the existence of a market for the output
of the intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset;
(d) the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development, and to use or sell the
intangible asset; and
(e) its ability to reliably measure the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.
Capitalised development assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives, which generally do not
exceed 10 years.
An item of capitalised development assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss.
All other expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Other intangible assets include those intangible assets acquired and identified as part of a business combination, and software
acquired separately.
An intangible asset is recognised when it meets the following criteria:
(a) it is identifiable;
(b) the entity has control over the asset;
(c) it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the entity; and
(d) the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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Other intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis.
The basis of amortisation provided on intangible assets is as follows:
Useful lives (years)
Trademarks, marketing, customer and vendor relationships
Software

Maximum of 10
2–6

Intangible assets which do not meet the criteria listed above are recognised as expenses in the period in which they
are incurred.
An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss.

GOODWILL
Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquiree at the date of acquisition. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Goodwill is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of goodwill (or relevant portion thereof) is included in computing the
gains or losses on the disposal of an entity.
Impairment tests are conducted annually or more frequently when an indication of impairment exists on goodwill attributed
to the cash-generating units, based on the value-in-use and other appropriate methods.
On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the
profit or loss on disposal.
If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss and
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements using
the equity method of accounting.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate and joint venture recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of that
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT
At each reporting date, or more frequently when an indication of impairment exists, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, its carrying
amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately in profit or loss.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but will never exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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INVENTORIES
Inventories, comprising spares/maintenance inventory, finished goods and merchandise for resale, are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value and are mainly valued on the weighted average cost basis.
Provision is made for obsolete and slow-moving inventory.
Contract work-in-progress is recognised on the percentage of completion method by reference to the milestones for each
contract.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Changes in accounting policy
The following is the Group’s new accounting policy for financial instruments under IFRS 9:
• at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”); or
• at amortised cost.
a) Classification and measurement
The Group determines the classification of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of debt instruments is driven
by the Group’s business model for managing financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial liabilities
are measured at amortised cost unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as derivatives).
The Group completed a detailed assessment of its financial assets and liabilities as at 1 March 2018. The following table shows
the classification prior to and after the adoption of IFRS 9:
Financial asset/
liability

Original
classification

Original
measurement

Classification under
IFRS 9

Level of financial
instrument

Trade and other
receivables
Bonds

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Level 3

Held to maturity
financial assets
Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Financial assets at
amortised cost
Financial assets at
amortised cost
Amortised cost

Derivatives at FVTPL
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

FVTPL
Amortised cost

Derivatives at FVTPL
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Level 2
Level 3

Designated at FVTPL

FVTPL

Designated at FVTPL

Level 3

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

Level 3

Cash and cash
equivalents
Derivatives
Trade and other
payables
Short-term and
long-term interestbearing liabilities
Amounts owing to
vendors
Borrowings

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

Level 1
Level 3

Level 3

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments and are initially measured at fair value. In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into level 1, 2 or 3, based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
• level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;
• level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and
• level 3 inputs are inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where
level 1 inputs are not available, the Group engages third-party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. Information about the
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of the assets and liabilities is disclosed in Notes 19 and 27.
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Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or expense over the period of the instrument. Effectively, this method determines the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding expected credit losses) through the expected life
of the financial instrument or, if appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.
Foreign exchange gains or losses
• For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the operating costs line item.
• For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the operating costs line item.
Derivative instruments
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk and interest rate risk,
including forward exchange contracts, interest rate swap agreements and foreign currency collars. Further details of derivative
financial instruments are disclosed in Note 27 to the financial statements.
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately
unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit
or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value
is recognised as a financial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements unless the Group has both the legal
right and intention to offset. A derivative is presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability if the remaining maturity
of the instrument is more than 12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months.
Other derivatives are presented as current assets or current liabilities.
Bonds
Bonds with a fixed maturity date are classified as financial assets at amortised cost and are measured using the effective
interest method.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any expected credit losses.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held on call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts and are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Bank overdrafts are presented in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.
Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value, net of direct issue costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption, are accounted
for on an accrual basis and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise.
Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of the direct issue costs. Repurchases of
the Company’s own equity instruments are recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Income tax relating to transaction
costs of an equity transaction is accounted for in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes.
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Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost.
For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “interest income” line item.
b) Impairment of financial assets
A financial asset not measured at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any objective evidence that it is impaired. The Group assesses, on a forward-looking basis, the expected credit losses, based
on the contractual cash flows and the cash flows that are expected to be received associated with its assets at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. The simplified
approach has been applied to trade receivables as permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of trade receivables.
The expected credit loss model applies a percentage, based on an assessment of historical default rates and certain forward
looking information, against receivables that are grouped into certain age brackets. This method for calculating a provision is
further supplemented by a specific review against higher value and aged trade receivables where there are other more specific
risk factors as outlined below.
Losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
c) Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when
it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset,
the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, for which
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
for the amount of the obligation.
A restructuring provision is recognised when the Group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has raised
a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its
main features to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising
from the restructuring and not associated with the ongoing activities of the entity.
Provisions for dilapidations and asset retirement obligations are recognised when the Group has a present obligation to return
modified or utilised assets to a specified standard. Provisions for dilapidations and asset retirement obligations are measured
at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the statement of financial position date, and
are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

AMOUNTS OWING TO VENDORS
Amounts owing to vendors represent purchase considerations owing in respect of acquisitions. These purchase considerations
are to be settled with the vendors in cash or shares on fulfilment of agreed performance criteria. Amounts payable to vendors
are included in the purchase consideration at acquisition and, to the extent that agreed performance criteria are not met, affect
the profit or loss in the period in which that determination is made. Amounts owing to vendors are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with any gains or losses on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
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TAXATION
The taxation expense represents the sum of the current taxation and deferred taxation. Current taxation comprises tax payable
calculated on the basis of the expected taxable income for the year, using the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
statement of financial position date, and any adjustment of tax payable for previous years.
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Group’s
consolidated annual financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable income will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill
or from the initial recognition, other than in a business combination, of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. However, in some jurisdictions goodwill relating to the purchase of businesses
and assets is tax deductible, resulting in a temporary difference.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income
or equity, respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for a business combination.
The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

REVENUE
Changes in accounting policy
The following is the Group’s new accounting policy for revenue under IFRS 15:
The Group recognises revenue from the following sources:
Revenue from product sales
• Revenue from sales of hardware/direct product sales
• Revenue from sales of software/fulfilment product sales
• Revenue from vendor resold services and product maintenance sales.
Revenue from services
• Revenue from professional services
• Revenue from other services.
Revenue from annuity services
• Revenue from cloud services
• Revenue from other annuity services.
Revenue is measured based on the price specified in a contract when control of a product or service is transferred to a
customer.
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Revenue from product sales
The Group’s principal revenue stream is the resale of vendor-provided hardware, software licensing and maintenance goods.
The Group acts primarily as a reseller and as such, revenue is recognised at a point in time when control passes to the
customer, being when goods are delivered to the customer per the chosen delivery method or on the delivery instructions per
the purchase order, or where access to the licensing product has passed to the customer.
A receivable is recognised by the Group when the goods are delivered as this represents the point in time at which the right
to consideration becomes unconditional, and only the passage of time is required before payment is due. Where partial delivery
has taken place and the Group has agreed to invoice the customer once all goods are delivered, an accrual of revenue is
recognised for the goods delivered (together with their associated costs).
The Group has standard terms and conditions for customer sales that are tailored to suit individual contracts. A contract
is therefore deemed to be in place upon submission of a purchase order (or evidence of buying request) from the customer
alongside confirmation from the subsidiary. Alternatively, fulfilment of an order by the Group is deemed to represent a contract
per the standard terms and conditions. The contract in place with the customer per the above will include a sales price that
is fixed or determinable.
Payment terms are on a customer by customer basis and there are no typically financing components. Where there are,
these are accounted for separately based on the financing component, which can be separately established. Discounts are
also considered to be unique to a contract and are apportioned evenly between each performance obligation. In certain cases,
where discounts are agreed with a supplier and passed on to a client, this is treated as a reduction in both the cost of the item
and consequently to the standalone selling price of that item. The contract value is pro-rated over the performance obligations
of the contract after the discount has been applied.
Sale of vendor resold services and product maintenance
The Group sells maintenance contracts on behalf of its vendors which is accounted for on a net basis because the Group
is acting as an agent. The commission or gross profit earned on these sales is recognised as revenue.
The remaining terms, conditions and accounting for sales of product maintenance are exactly as per the sale of hardware
and software as described above.
For vendor resold services and maintenance, the obligation is to provide the licence to the client. As such, this performance
obligation is met as the licence(s) are passed over to the client (this may occur, for instance, when licence keys are handed to
the client or when a contract representing the licence is assigned dependent on the applicable deal). Thus, vendor resold
maintenance is recognised “upfront” at a single point in time.
Revenue from services
The Group earns revenue from professional services contracts with customers which are categorised by “milestone”, “time
and material” and “block hour” contracts. Customers gain immediate use of the output of the service once the professional
service has been rendered.
The performance obligations are recognised over time where the performance obligation complies with the criteria under
IFRS 15 of providing an asset with no alternative use. The revenue on the performance obligation is recognised based on
the stage of completion of the contract.
The directors have assessed that the stage of completion is determined by the amount of time that is needed to complete
the performance obligation. Where a performance obligation does not meet the necessary criteria under IFRS 15 to be able
to recognise the revenue over time, it will be recognised in-time once the performance obligation has been satisfied and
delivered to the customer.
Where recorded revenue exceeds amounts invoiced to clients, the excess is classified as accrued income and where recorded
revenue is less than the amounts invoiced to clients, the difference is classified as deferred revenue.
Revenue from cloud and annuity services
The Group provides annuity services to perform a specified service over a specified period of time. The specified service
would comprise a single series of services that are transferred to the client over the agreed period. Annuity services performed
by the Group primarily relate to the provision of managed IT and cloud and in-house maintenance services and are recognised
as the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefit of the services provided. Annuity services are recognised
over time and equally over the life of the annuity service.
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Agent versus principal
Revenue from sales arrangements where the Group acts as agent (primarily vendor provided services and maintenance
agreements) is recognised on a net basis and the commission or gross profit earned on these contracts is recognised
as revenue.
The Group has no continuing obligation following delivery of the goods, and does not provide warranty of the goods or licences,
but helps to facilitate repairs and/or returns to the vendor where delivered goods are shown to be faulty.

FINANCE COSTS
Finance costs include the borrowing costs on bank overdrafts and trade finance, finance leases and debt issuance costs which
are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based incentives to certain employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions)
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest, and adjusted for
the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.
For cash-settled share-based payments, the liability for the fair value of all unexercised share rights which are expected to vest
is determined initially at grant date and then revalued at each reporting date and amortised over the applicable vesting period.
Fair value is measured by use of appropriate option pricing models. The expected life used in the models has been adjusted,
based on the directors’ best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

PENSION SCHEME ARRANGEMENTS
Certain subsidiaries of the Group make contributions to various defined contribution retirement plans on behalf of employees,
in accordance with the local practice in the country of operation. These contributions are charged against profit or loss
as incurred.
The Group has no liability to these defined contribution retirement plans other than the payment of its share of the contribution
in terms of the agreement with the funds and employees concerned, which differs from country to country.

DIVIDENDS DECLARED
The liability for dividends and related taxation thereon is raised only when the dividend is declared.

UNDERLYING* EARNINGS PER SHARE
In addition to the presentation of headline earnings per share and earnings per share, the Group presents underlying* earnings
per share. Underlying* earnings per share is determined on the same weighted average number of shares as used in earnings
per share.
Underlying* earnings are earnings excluding impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments
and assets, amortisation of acquired intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange movements, acquisition-related adjustments,
fair value movements on acquisition-related financial instruments, restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations
and the taxation effect on all of the aforementioned.
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Revenue
Continuing operations
Revenue from acquisitions
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating costs
Net impairment of contract assets and financial assets
Restructuring costs
Share-based payments
Operating profit before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and
impairment (“EBITDA”)
Depreciation
Amortisation of capitalised development expenditure
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets and software
Impairment of investment in joint venture
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure
Operating profit/(loss)
Interest income
Finance costs
Share of equity-accounted investment losses
Acquisition-related fair value adjustments
Other income
Loss on disposal of investment
Profit/(loss) before taxation
Taxation
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss)/income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation to presentation currency
Translation of equity loans
Tax on translation of equity loans
Translation reserve reclassified to profit on disposal of foreign operation
Transfers and other items
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

2018
US$’000

4 332 381
4 277 186
55 195
(3 644 637)
687 744
(569 896)
(3 817)
(17 506)
(9 764)

3 923 715
3 881 547
42 168
(3 287 670)
636 045
(571 016)
(15 261)
(16 873)
(6 198)

86 761
(25 889)
(972)
(11 477)
–
–
48 423
9 568
(32 145)
(1 403)
(35)
62
(255)
24 215
(20 959)
3 256

26 697
(27 548)
(11 375)
(12 640)
(1 000)
(55 112)
(80 978)
8 670
(27 073)
(276)
48
257
–
(99 352)
(18 465)
(117 817)

11 694
14 950

159 608
41 791

(54 735)
3 490
(616)
–
948
(35 963)

13 942
8 487
308
57 345
2 265
124 138

13 134
1 816
14 950

44 359
(2 568)
41 791

(30 734)
(5 229)
(35 963)

130 480
(6 342)
124 138

6

5.5
0.6
4.9

20.5
(53.3)
73.8

6

5.5
0.6
4.9

20.3
(52.6)
72.9

1

2

3
3
3
9
3
4
10.1

5

37

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Earnings/(loss) per share (US cents)
Basic
– Continuing operations
– Discontinued operations
Diluted
– Continuing operations
– Discontinued operations
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2019
US$’000

Notes

CONTINUING OPERATIONS
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

437 786
60 306
234 551
12 711
37 615
22 382
52 134
13 363
4 724
2 284 521
332 256
1 258 853
152 500
80 465
98 798
11 442
5 807
344 400

417 370
59 731
227 321
1 665
40 661
26 613
41 104
12 283
7 992
2 244 228
238 537
1 192 237
189 182
133 059
–
9 492
5 479
476 242

2 722 307

2 661 598

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill
Capitalised development expenditure
Acquired intangible assets and software
Investments
Deferred tax assets
Finance lease receivables
Other receivables and contract costs*
Current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Prepaid expenses
Other receivables
Contract assets and contract costs*
Current tax assets
Finance lease receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

7
8
9.1
9.2
10
11
12

13
14

15
29
12
33

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Stated capital
Non-distributable reserves
Foreign currency translation reserve
Share-based payments reserve
Distributable reserves
Non-controlling interests

16

Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities
Liability for share-based payments
Amounts owing to vendors
Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred revenue
Provisions
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Contract liabilities*
Deferred revenue
Provisions
Amounts owing to vendors
Current tax liabilities
Bank overdrafts
Total equity and liabilities

17
19
11
20
18.1
18.2
21
20
19
29
22

648 927
172 998
85 614
(102 527)
7 828
485 014
63 303

721 603
258 461
45 331
(58 378)
4 883
471 306
69 217

712 230

790 820

100 805
31 383
1 888
1 393
28 616
26 506
11 019
1 909 272
1 358 928
109 751
3 476
98 788
17 548
936
15 826
304 019

120 685
61 723
1 517
211
30 240
16 309
10 685
1 750 093
1 199 384
105 999
–
97 194
16 026
1 029
15 561
314 900

2 722 307

2 661 598

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 at 1 March 2018. It has applied these standards using the cumulative effect method, under
which the comparative information is not restated.
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Stated capital
US$’000

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve
US$’000

Balance at 1 March 2017

151 947

(141 816)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) recognised for the year
Profit attributable to the owners of the parent
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests
Translation of equity loans
Tax on translation of equity loans
Reclassified to profit on disposal of foreign operation
Exchange differences arising on translation to presentation currency
Transfers and other items
Translation of stated capital**
Special dividend*
Share repurchases
Disposal of 10% of Westcon International without loss of control
Acquisitions of subsidiaries

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
32 857
108 286
(34 629)
–
–

83 438
–
–
8 487
308
57 345
17 298
–
–
–
–
–
–

–

–

Balance at 1 March 2018

258 461

(58 378)

Total comprehensive (loss)/income recognised for the year
Profit attributable to the owners of the parent
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests
Translation of equity loans
Tax on translation of equity loans
Exchange differences arising on translation to presentation currency
Transfers and other items
Translation of stated capital**
Dividend to non-controlling interests
Share repurchases
Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Share-based payments***

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
(39 806)
–
(43 881)
–
(1 776)

(44 149)
–
–
3 490
(616)
(47 023)
–
–
–
–
–
–

–

–

172 998

(102 527)

Share-based payments

Other
Balance at 28 February 2019

The Group issues equity-settled and cash-settled share-based incentives to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled
share-based payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of the shares
that will eventually vest. A liability equal to the portion of services received is recognised at the current fair value determined at
each reporting date for cash-settled share-based payments.
In total, the Company repurchased 23 760 000 shares for cancellation during FY19 at a total cost of US$43.9 million:
• 4 971 012 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general meeting on 24 July 2018
• 11 888 988 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
20 September 2018
• 6 900 000 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general meeting on 15 January 2019.
Share purchase expenses relating to the share repurchases for the year amounted to US$0.2 million. These were accounted for
in equity and are reflected as part of the US$43.9 million.
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Distributable
reserves
US$’000

Equity
attributable
to equity
holders of
the parent
US$’000

Noncontrolling
interests
US$’000

Total
equity
US$’000

2 681

778 875

854 986

51 889

906 875

1 714
–
–
–
–
–
–
1 714
(32 857)
–
–
13 175
–

418
–
–
–
–
–
418
–
–
–
–
–
–

44 910
44 359
–
–
–
–
–
551
–
(352 479)
–
–
–

130 480
44 359
–
8 487
308
57 345
17 716
2 265
–
(244 193)
(34 629)
13 175
–

(6 342)
–
(2 568)
–
–
–
(3 774)
–
–
–
–
16 825
6 845

124 138
44 359
(2 568)
8 487
308
57 345
13 942
2 265
–
(244 193)
(34 629)
30 000
6 845

–

1 784

–

1 784

–

1 784

45 331

4 883

471 306

721 603

69 217

790 820

203
–
–
–
–
–
203
39 806
–
–
–
–

(667)
–
–
–
–
(667)
–
–
–
–
–
3 612

13 879
13 134
–
–
–
–
745
–
–
–
–
–

(30 734)
13 134
–
3 490
(616)
(47 690)
948
–
–
(43 881)
–
1 836

(5 229)
–
1 816
–
–
(7 045)
–
–
(53)
–
(459)
–

(35 963)
13 134
1 816
3 490
(616)
(54 735)
948
–
(53)
(43 881)
(459)
1 836

274

–

(171)

103

(173)

(70)

85 614

7 828

485 014

648 927

63 303

712 230

Nondistributable
reserves
US$’000

Sharebased
payments
reserve
US$’000

63 299

* SPECIAL CASH DIVIDEND WITH AN ELECTION TO RECEIVE NON-RENOUNCEABLE CAPITALISATION
ISSUE SHARES IN LIEU OF THE CASH DIVIDEND AND REPURCHASE OF SHARES – FY18
The Company paid a special cash dividend* of R23 (approximately US$1.66) per share to ordinary shareholders with an
election to receive non-renounceable capitalisation issue shares in lieu of the cash dividend.

The result of the shareholder election was that 43 770 095 fully paid new ordinary shares were issued on 17 January 2018
to shareholders who did not elect to receive the cash dividend. A total cash dividend of US$244.2 million was paid to
shareholders who retained the default cash dividend. The total distribution to shareholders was US$352.5 million of which the
scrip portion was US$108.3 million. The proportion of the Company’s total shares which received the scrip distribution was
30.7% and the proportion of the Company’s total shares which received the cash dividend was 69.3%.
The Company repurchased 12 777 717 shares for cancellation in February 2018 under the terms of a general authority given
by shareholders at the AGM on 14 September 2017.
** Non-distributable reserves relate to the translation of stated capital of the parent company and reserves recognised in the recording of
changes in holdings of subsidiaries.
*** During FY19, 1.1 million shares to the value of US$1.8 million were issued relating to the DBP scheme (refer to Note 2).

Foreign currency translation reserve includes the translation of subsidiaries and the parent company into presentation currency.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

68 990
9 562
(31 996)
(38 531)

17 625
9 078
(33 862)
(43 446)

8 025

(50 605)

(25 450)
10 201
(7 283)
–
(23 769)
(11 264)
(1 853)
132

(10 749)
–
(3 002)
744 832
(26 004)
(20 043)
(2 668)
821

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

(59 286)

683 187

Cash flow from financing activities
Dividends paid to shareholders
Share repurchases
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Proceeds on disposal of 10% of Westcon International
Amounts paid to vendors
Proceeds from short-term liabilities
Repayment of short-term liabilities
Proceeds from long-term liabilities
Repayment of long-term liabilities

–
(43 881)
(53)
–
(927)
65 203
(77 830)
13 366
(10 462)

(244 193)
(34 629)
–
30 000
(609)
93 282
(39 185)
51 398
(31 551)

(54 584)

(175 487)

32.1

(105 845)
161 342
(15 116)

457 095
(299 852)
4 099

33

40 381

161 342

Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash outflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities

(606)
–
–

(49 747)
(2 700)
8 240

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(606)

(44 207)

Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest income
Finance costs
Taxation paid

28

29

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
Cash outflow for acquisitions
Decrease in investments
Increases in investments
Net cash inflow from disposal of discontinued operations
Additions to property, plant and equipment
Additions to capitalised development expenditure
Additions to software
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant, equipment and software

30
10
10
37
31
9.1
9.2

32.2
32.2
32.2
32.2
32.2

Net cash outflow from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Translation differences on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

3 566 196
2 734 005
773 372
58 819
380 984
380 045
939
385 201
44 049
341 152

3 199 629
2 514 898
624 491
60 240
302 693
258 713
43 980
421 393
80 292
341 101

4 332 381

3 923 715

REVENUE
Revenue from product sales
Revenue from sales of hardware/direct product sales
Revenue from sales of software/fulfilment product sales
Revenue from vendor resold services and product maintenance services
Revenue from services
Revenue from professional services
Revenue from other services
Annuity revenue
Revenue from cloud services
Revenue from other annuity services

Imputed interest income included in revenue, which would result from a notional unwinding of interest inherent in trade
finance for the year is US$28.0 million (FY18: US$25.9 million).
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2019

2.

Weighted
average
grant price

Datatec Group schemes (equity-settled)
Datatec Conditional Share Plan (“CSP”)
Granted during the year

2 267

ZAR
20.78

Outstanding at the end of the year

2 267

20.78

–

–

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
The Group plans are detailed in the remuneration report
on pages 72 to 95. They provide for a grant price equal
or approximately equal to the market price at the date
of the grant.

The first grant under the CSP was made during FY19
when the share price was R20.78. At 28 February 2019
the CSP awards had a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 2.3 years.
Datatec Deferred Bonus Plan 2017 (“new DBP”)
Shares purchased by participants in the year from
pre-tax bonus of the prior year
Shares purchased by the Company for participants
Forfeitable shares at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year
The new DBP commenced during FY19 with
participants deferring a portion of their pre-tax bonuses
for FY18. The sum deferred was doubled and used to
purchase Datatec shares which the participants hold
under the terms of the new DBP. These shares are
forfeitable if the participant leaves the employment of
the Group within the three-year holding period (from
date of grant). At 28 February 2019, the remaining life
of the award until the end of the holding period was
2.3 years.
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2018

Number
of awards
(’000)

Exercisable at the end of the year

Page 126

ZAR
546
546

22.50
–

1 092

22.50

–

–

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price
ZAR
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2018

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

4 712
–

ZAR
31.74
–

3 004
866

ZAR
51.10
53.87

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
(1 094)
1 936

–
50.85
(23.00)

Outstanding at the end of the year

4 712

31.74

4 712

31.74

Exercisable at the end of the year

1 168

35.79

–

–

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
Datatec Group schemes (equity-settled) continued
Datatec Share Appreciation Right Scheme (“SARs”)
Schemes
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year – weighted average share
price on exercise: N/A (FY18: N/A)
Forfeited during the year
Modification in respect of special dividend

The SAR scheme was discontinued after the final
awards in FY18. SARs outstanding at 28 February
2019 comprised grant prices in the range R27.20 to
R35.79 (FY18: R23.16 to R37.74) and had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.3 years (FY18:
5.3 years).
ZAR

ZAR

Datatec Long-Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP”)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Settled during the year – share price on vesting –
N/A (FY18: N/A)
Forfeited during the year
Modification in respect of special dividend

4 097
–

2 605
750

–
(1 006)
–

–
(941)
1 683

Outstanding at the end of the year

3 091

4 097

–

–

Exercisable at the end of the year
The LTIP was discontinued after the final awards in
FY18. The LTIP awards outstanding at 28 February
2019 had been granted when the share price was in
the range R27.20 to R35.79 (FY18: R23.16 to R37.74)
and had a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 0.7 years (FY18: 1.33 years).
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2018

Weighted
average
grant price

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued
Datatec Group schemes (equity-settled) continued
Datatec Deferred Bonus Plan 2005 (“old DBP”)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Arising during the year (performance condition)
Settled during the year – share price on vesting –
R20.78 (FY18: R59.29)
Forfeited during the year

291
71

393
–

(213)
–

(51)
(51)

Outstanding at the end of the year

149

291

–

–

ZAR

Exercisable at the end of the year

ZAR

The old DBP was discontinued with the last awards having been made in FY17. The DBP matching shares outstanding
at 28 February 2019 had been granted when the share price was R27.20 (2018: range R46.16 to R60.74) and had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.2 years (FY18: 0.7 years).
Modification
The Datatec share-based remuneration plans were modified in FY18 to account for the special dividend paid in January
2018 so that the participants’ interests were not detrimentally affected. The number of SARs and LTIP awards in existence
at the time of the special dividend were increased by 69.7% and the exercise price for the SARs was reduced by R23.00.
Both these adjustments are based on the amount of the special dividend. No adjustment was required for the DBP
because, on settlement, the matching shares will have additional shares added in lieu of the dividends arising during the
performance period.
Fair value
The CSP awards are conditional upon specific non-market conditions and the completion of a service period. The new
DBP awards are solely conditional upon completion of a service period. The fair value of these awards referred to as the
“unconditional” fair value is equal to the underlying share price of Datatec shares at the grant date. Fair value for awards
under the previous SARs and LTIP were measured by use of an actuarial binomial model. The main inputs into the
models, in addition to those recorded above, are set out in the table below.
2019
CSP
Grant date
Vesting date
Performance period

2018
DBP

1 June 2018 14 June 2018
1 June 2021 15 June 2021
28 February 2018 to
28 February 2021

Share price and fair values

28 July 2017
22 May 2020
28 February 2017 to
28 February 2020
Original

Modified

Share price grant (closing price)
Weighted fair value at grant date:
CSP
SARs
LTIP
DBP

R21.89

R57.44

R34.44

R21.89
N/A
N/A
R22.50

R14.65
R56.00
N/A

R8.63
R33.00
N/A

Risk-free rate (NACA) – six year: SARs
Risk-free rate (NACA) – three year: CSP/LTIP
Dividend yield (NACA)
Volatility of Datatec

N/A
7.19%
0.00%
N/A

7.51%
6.80%
0.00%
25.50%

The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility is not required as an input
to the valuation models for the CSP and new DBP.

Datatec Integrated Report 2019
2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

2019

2.

Page 129
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

2018

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

Subsidiary schemes (cash-settled)
Logicalis
Logicalis CSP
Granted during the year

619

US$
4.84

Outstanding at the end of the year

619

4.84

–

–

3 411
493

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

US$
4.51
4.84

3 364
1 063

US$
5.07
3.70

(172)
(770)

4.11
5.41

(75)
(941)

2.97
5.73

2 962

4.36

3 411

4.51

633

4.92

486

4.55

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Exercisable at the end of the year
The first grant under the Logicalis CSP was made
during FY19 when the Logicalis share price was
US$4.84. At 28 February 2019, the CSP awards
had a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 6.3 years.
Logicalis SAR Scheme
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year – share price on exercise
US$4.84 (FY18: US$3.70)
Forfeited during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year
The Logicalis SARs outstanding at 28 February 2019
comprised grant prices in the range of US$3.70
to US$5.84 (FY18: US$3.70 to US$5.57) and had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of
4.4 years (FY18: 4.6 years).

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Notes to the Group consolidated
annual financial statements continued

2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

for the year ended 28 February 2019

2019

2.

Page 130
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

2018

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

Subsidiary schemes (cash-settled) continued
Logicalis continued
PromonLogicalis Latin America (“PLLAL”) CSP
Granted during the year

119

US$
8.16

Outstanding at the end of the year

119

8.16

–

–

1 106
152
(90)
(341)

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

US$
6.62
8.16

967
356

US$
7.41
6.03

5.82
8.66

–
(217)

–
9.18

827

6.14

1 106

6.62

30

7.58

96

5.84

Westcon International
Westcon International Equity Appreciation Plan
(“EAP”)
Granted during the year
Lapsed/forfeited during the year

159
(17)

US$
125.00
–

Outstanding at the end of the year

142

125.00

–

–

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Exercisable at the end of the year
The first grant under the PLLAL CSP was made during
FY19 when the PLLAL share price was US$8.16.
At 28 February 2019 the CSP awards had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 6.3 years.
PromonLogicalis Latin America SAR Scheme
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year – share price on exercise
US$8.16 (FY18: N/A)
Forfeited during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year
The PLLAL SARs outstanding at 28 February 2019
comprised grant prices in the range of US$5.08
to US$9.25 (FY18: US$4.22 to US$9.10) and had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of
5.0 years (FY18: 4.7 years).

Exercisable at the end of the year
Units were granted under the Westcon International
EAP during FY19 with a strike price of US$125 per unit.
At 28 February 2019 the EAP awards had a remaining
contractual life of 4.0 years.
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2018

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

Subsidiary schemes (cash-settled) continued
Westcon International continued
Westcon International SAR Scheme
Granted during the year

2 319

US$
1.25

Outstanding at the end of the year

2 319

1.25

–

–

Number
of awards
(’000)

Weighted
average
grant price

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

Exercisable at the end of the year
Westcon International SARs were granted for the first
time during FY19 with a strike price of US$1.25.
At 28 February 2019 the SAR awards had a remaining
contractual life of 4.3 years.

GBP

Analysys Mason Performance Share Scheme
Note: a proportion of this scheme is settled in
Analysys Mason equity
Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year – share price on exercise
£14.64 (FY18: £13.52)
Forfeited during the year

209
86

14.17
14.64

212
84

14.72
13.52

(64)
(14)

14.67
14.18

(21)
(66)

15.14
14.82

Outstanding at the end of the year

217

14.21

209

14.17

–

–

–

–

Exercisable at the end of the year

GBP

The awards outstanding at 28 February 2019 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.1 years
(FY18: 1.2 years).
Fair value is typically measured by use of Black-Scholes or modified binomial tree models for the cash-settled sharebased payment schemes. The main inputs into the models used by subsidiaries, in addition to those recorded above,
fall into the following ranges:
2019
2018
Grant date
Vesting date
Risk-free rate
Expected life (years)
Dividend yield
Volatility of subsidiary

14 March 2018 to 1 July 2018
1 March 2019
1 March 2023
1.29% – 3.84%
0.34 – 6.34
Zero
32.07% – 35.00%

1 July 2017
30 June 2019 to 1 July 2020
2.05% – 2.78%
0.34 – 6.34
Zero
28%

The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility of subsidiaries has been
determined by reference to peer group data. The fair value of the cash-settled awards is deemed to be nil on grant and
nil at the end of the accounting period because the awards have not vested.
2019
2018
US$’000
US$’000
Expense in respect of equity-settled schemes
Datatec Limited
Subsidiaries

4 792
279

1 849
243

Expense in respect of cash-settled schemes (all in subsidiaries)

5 071
4 693

2 092
4 106

9 764

6 198

Settlements of US$1.5 million have been made relating to equity-settled schemes for the year ended 28 February 2019
(FY18: US$0.3 million).
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after taking into account the following items:
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees
Other services
Taxation services
Other services and expenses
Prior-year under accrual

3 758
903
686
217
259

3 707
280
193
87
191

Total auditors’ remuneration

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

4 920

4 178

Depreciation
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Land and buildings

2 950
16 212
6 629
98

3 902
18 550
5 096
–

Amortisation of software
Amortisation of capitalised development expenditure
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets

25 889
1 260
972
10 217

27 548
1 341
11 375
11 299

Total depreciation and amortisation

38 338

51 563

Foreign exchange (gains)/losses
Realised
Unrealised
Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables
Reversal of impairment losses on trade receivables

(8 168)
(701)
(7 467)
6 675
(2 858)

6 364
(4 699)
11 063
20 384
(5 123)

Fees for professional services
Administrative and managerial
Consulting
Accounting and advisory
Operating lease rentals
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Land and buildings
Computer equipment
Loss on disposal of office furniture and equipment, computer equipment,
leasehold improvements, motor vehicles and software

20 468
255
12 019
8 194
31 064
1 097
27 275
2 692

32 977
249
25 418
7 310
38 254
2 614
32 717
2 923

93

170

642 983
237 862
13 414
391 707
5 021
4 363
1 988
2 006
369
658

592 358
210 358
11 706
370 294
3 994
3 284
1 776
1 201
307
710

Staff costs
Staff costs included in cost of sales
Retirement benefit contributions
Staff costs
Directors’ emoluments*
Executive directors
Salaries
Bonuses
Benefits
Non-executive directors’ emoluments – fees

Long-term incentives for executive directors are included in the share-based payments charge reflected in Note 2.
* Full details of directors’ emoluments are provided in Note 26 on pages 161 to 164.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

30 809
1 336

26 353
720

32 145

27 073

3 901
3
(440)
(233)

2 013
103
(110)
519

3 231

2 525

33 319
1 300
(16 886)
445
(450)

27 796
1 211
(3 988)
(9 383)
304

17 728

15 940

20 959

18 465

28.0%

28.0%

1.4%
3.9%

0.0%
(0.6%)

FINANCE COSTS
Bank overdrafts and long-term liabilities
Finance leases
Imputed finance costs included in cost of sales, which would result from the discounting
of payables for the year are US$23.6 million (FY18: US$20.4 million). Total finance costs,
incorporating actual finance costs of US$32.1 million (FY18: US$27.1 million) and the
imputed finance costs, are US$55.7 million (FY18: US$47.5 million).

5.

TAXATION
5.1

Taxation charge
South African normal taxation:
Current taxation – current year
– prior year
Deferred taxation – current year
– prior year
Foreign taxation:
Current taxation – current year
– prior year
Deferred taxation – current year
– rate adjustment
– prior year
Total taxation charge

5.2

Reconciliation of taxation rate to profit before taxation
South African statutory tax rate
Reconciling items expected to reoccur:
Equity-accounted earnings (1)
Intra-group management fees (2)*
Non-deductible property, plant and equipment, inventory and other asset
impairments (3)
Other non-deductible expenses and permanent differences (4)
Share-based payments (5)
Exempt profits/incentives (6)
Tax arising on dividend flows (7)
Tax loss utilised/recognised (8)
Foreign taxation rate differential (9)
Tax losses and other deferred tax assets not recognised (10)
Rate adjustment (11)
Prior year adjustments (12)
Reconciling items that are not expected to recur:
Disposal related to intra-group management fees (13)*
US goodwill (14)
Costs allocated from discontinued operations (15)*
Acquisition-related adjustments (16)

7.8%
4.0%
6.8%
(3.4%)
(3.5%)
(19.7%)
38.2%
34.5%
1.8%
2.6%

(11.9%)
(2.9%)
0.1%
–
–
0.5%
(9.7%)
(19.8%)
9.4%
(2.2%)

2.7%
(18.7%)
–
0.2%

(7.3%)
–
(2.0%)
(0.2%)

Effective taxation rate

86.6%

(18.6%)

* In 2018, these items were disclosed combined as (9.9%) under “intra-group management fees”.
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TAXATION continued
5.2

Reconciliation of taxation rate to profit before taxation continued
Notes to the Group tax rate reconciliation
The tax rate reconciliation uses the 28% South African statutory tax rate as a starting point. The Group operates in
over 50 countries and the head office is based in South Africa. Datatec Limited is listed on the JSE and the majority
of the Group’s shareholders are based in South Africa. The South African statutory tax rate is therefore deemed to
be the most appropriate starting point. This is a key judgement applied by management.
(1): Arises as the net profit after taxation from equity-accounted investments is presented as a single line item in
the Group’s profit before taxation.
(2): Arises as a result of the imputation of income for tax purposes where certain management fees are not billed
to the entities benefiting from the services provided.
(3): Relates to fixed asset depreciation, inventory and work-in-progress write-offs and other asset impairments
not deductible for tax purposes.
(4): Includes entertainment expenses, donations, gifts and other expenses not deductible for tax purposes.
(5): Reflects the differing tax treatments relating to the share-based payment charges.
(6): Relates to profits arising that are not chargeable to taxation and tax credits or additional tax deductions given
in relation to certain types of expenditure.
(7): Reflects the additional tax arising or tax benefit obtained as a result of intra-group dividends which have no
net impact on the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income.
(8): Relates to tax losses and other timing differences that have not previously been recognised as a deferred tax
asset.
(9): The tax reconciliation starts by applying the 28% South African tax rate to the profits arising in the year.
The Group has earned profits in jurisdictions with significantly higher statutory tax rates such as Brazil at 34%
and has also incurred losses in jurisdictions with significantly lower statutory tax rates such as the UK at 19%.
This line item reflects the additional taxation of these profits and the reduced tax benefit of these losses.
(10): Relates to those timing differences that arise in the year for which a deferred tax asset has not been
recognised, typically because of the uncertainty that future taxable income will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
(11): Refers to changes in the carrying value of deferred tax assets and liabilities as a result of a change in local
statutory rates of taxation. In the prior year this was mainly due to the US federal tax rate decreasing from
35% to 21%. In the current year, it relates to the reduction in the UK tax rate from 19% to 17% effective
1 April 2020.
(12): Reflects changes to the current and deferred tax recorded in relation to prior accounting periods.
(13): Relates to costs incurred in providing services to entities that have been disposed of which are not deductible
for tax purposes.
(14): The tax benefit that arises due to goodwill being deducted for tax purposes in the US, for which no previous
benefit was recorded.
(15): Costs borne by entities disposed of in the year have been reallocated to the continuing business.
(16): Relates to acquisition costs or aborted acquisition costs that are not deductible for tax purposes.
In FY18, a taxation charge was incurred on a pre-tax loss.
2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Taxation charge by region
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA

(4 963)
14 131
2 748
5 284
3 759

(10 743)
13 765
6 375
5 679
3 389

Total taxation charge

20 959

18 465

186 810

185 442

39 962

42 507

Unutilised tax losses
Certain subsidiaries had tax losses at the end of the financial year that are available
to reduce the future taxable income of the Group and are estimated to be:
Future tax relief at a blended tax rate of 21.4% (FY18: 22.9%) is US$40.0 million
(FY18: US$42.5 million). Deferred tax assets of US$16.3 million (FY18: US$13.2 million)
have been recognised in respect of a portion of these losses as set out in Note 11.
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2019
US$’000

6.

2018
US$’000

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Reconciliation of attributable profit to headline earnings/(loss)
Total profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the parent
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations (net of non-controlling interests)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations
Total headline earnings adjustments:
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure
Impairment of investment in joint venture
Loss on disposal of investment
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
– Gross
– Tax effect
Non-controlling interests
Total headline earnings/(loss)
Reconciliation of attributable profit to headline earnings/(loss) –
continuing operations
Total profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the equity holders of the
parent – continuing operations
Headline earnings adjustments – continuing operations:
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure
Impairment of investment in joint venture
Loss on disposal of investment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
– Gross
– Tax effect
Non-controlling interests
Headline earnings/(loss) – continuing operations

13 134
1 440
11 694
(11 375)
–
–
255
(11 694)

44 359
(115 249)
159 608
(80 080)
55 112
1 000
–
(136 341)

93
(29)
(101)

170
(21)
(5 616)

1 658

(41 337)

1 440
319
–
–
255

(115 249)
56 261
55 112
1 000
–

93
(29)
(101)

170
(21)
(5 616)

1 658

(64 604)

–

23 267

1 658

(41 337)

1 658
1 658
–
14 070

(41 337)
(64 604)
23 267
29 181

(7 467)
1 771

11 131
(2 470)

35
(14)

(48)
19

10 217
(3 001)

12 061
(3 497)

17 506
(3 460)

18 701
(4 001)

Non-controlling interests

15 587
(1 517)

31 896
(2 715)

Total underlying* earnings/(loss)

15 728

(12 156)

Headline earnings – discontinued operations
Total headline earnings/(loss)
Reconciliation of total headline earnings/(loss) to underlying* earnings/(loss)
Total headline earnings/(loss)
Headline earnings/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
Headline earnings for the year from discontinued operations
Total underlying* earnings adjustments:
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses**
– Gross
– Tax effect
Acquisition-related fair value adjustments
– Gross
– Tax effect
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets**
– Gross
– Tax effect
Restructuring costs**
– Gross
– Tax effect

* Underlying earnings exclude impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments and assets,
amortisation of acquired intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fair value
movements on acquisition-related financial instruments, restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations, and the taxation
effect on all of the aforementioned.
** Prior year figures comprise both continuing and discontinued operations.
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2019
US cents

2018
US cents

5.5
0.6
4.9
0.7
0.7
–
6.6
6.6
–

20.5
(53.3)
73.8
(19.1)
(29.9)
10.8
(5.6)
(17.2)
11.6

5.5
0.6
4.9
0.7
0.7
–
6.5
6.5
–

20.3
(52.6)
72.9
(18.9)
(29.5)
10.6
(5.6)
(17.0)
11.4

Weighted average number of shares
The diluted earnings metrics above are calculated using the weighted average number
of shares in issue during the year, taking into account the dilutive effect of:
Shares related to share-based payment schemes

237 771 003

216 305 987

2 614 111

2 500 786

Diluted weighted average number of shares

240 385 114

218 806 773

EARNINGS PER SHARE continued
Basic earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Headline earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Underlying* earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
The earnings metrics above are calculated on the weighted average number of shares
in issue during the year of 237 771 003 (FY18: 216 305 987), after the deduction of
the weighted average number of treasury shares of 897 614 (FY18: 517 941). As at
28 February 2019, the Group held 14 315 (122 378 weighted average) shares as
treasury shares that had been acquired by the Datatec Share Incentive Trust 2005 (refer
to Note 16). As at 28 February 2019, there were 1 092 513 (775 235 weighted average)
shares relating to the Deferred Bonus Plan (refer to Note 2). The weighted average
number of shares relating to the treasury shares and Deferred Bonus Plan were included
in the calculation of the total weighted average number of shares.
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted headline earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Diluted underlying* earnings/(loss) per share
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

The share repurchase programme has an anti-dilutive effect on earnings and headline earnings per share.
The adoption of IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 had no impact on earnings per share or diluted earnings per share.
The underlying* earnings measure is specific to Datatec and is not required in terms of IFRS or the JSE Listings
Requirements.
* Underlying earnings exclude impairments of goodwill and intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of investments and assets,
amortisation of acquired intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fair value
movements on acquisition-related financial instruments, restructuring costs relating to fundamental reorganisations, and the taxation
effect on all of the aforementioned.
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2018

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net
book
value

32 050
135 209
56 422
2 189

(20 872)
(108 506)
(36 088)
(98)

225 870

(165 564)

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net
book
value

11 178
26 703
20 334
2 091

31 564
125 910
51 777
3 104

(18 982)
(100 579)
(31 746)
(1 317)

12 582
25 331
20 031
1 787

60 306

212 355

(152 624)

59 731

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT
Office furniture, equipment and
motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Land and buildings

A register of land and buildings is maintained at the registered office of the applicable Logicalis entities and may be
inspected by shareholders or their duly authorised agents.
The fair value of property, plant and equipment approximates its net book value.
Office
furniture,
equipment
and motor
vehicles

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

Land and
buildings

Total

Balance at 1 March 2017
Subsidiaries acquired
Additions
Translation differences
Disposals
Disposal of discontinued operations
Transfers
Depreciation – continuing operations
Depreciation – discontinued operations

13 724
179
4 823
496
(151)
(2 228)
15
(3 902)
(374)

34 983
212
14 480
(1 546)
(225)
(3 284)
(37)
(18 550)
(702)

23 168
–
6 687
1 643
(585)
(4 932)
(298)
(5 096)
(556)

1 867
1 738
14
762
–
(2 565)
–
–
(29)

73 742
2 129
26 004
1 355
(961)
(13 009)
(320)
(27 548)
(1 661)

Balance at 28 February 2018
Subsidiaries acquired
Subsidiaries disposed
Additions
Translation differences
Disposals
Transfers
Depreciation

12 582
200
(3)
1 833
(423)
(69)
8
(2 950)

25 331
1 611
(3)
17 010
(991)
(78)
35
(16 212)

20 031
2 688
(2)
4 584
(128)
(68)
(142)
(6 629)

1 787
–
–
342
(36)
–
96
(98)

59 731
4 499
(8)
23 769
(1 578)
(215)
(3)
(25 889)

Balance at 28 February 2019

11 178

26 703

20 334

2 091

60 306

Movement of property,
plant and equipment – US$’000

Included in property, plant and equipment are assets held under finance lease agreements with a net book value
of US$8.5 million (FY18: US$8.5 million) which are encumbered as security for liabilities under finance lease agreements
in Note 17.
The net book value of assets in the above categories held under finance leases is:
Office
furniture,
equipment
and motor
vehicles

Computer
equipment

Leasehold
improvements

Land and
buildings

Total

Balance at 28 February 2018

–

8 489

–

–

8 489

Balance at 28 February 2019

–

6 405

2 099

–

8 504

US$’000
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Net book value
At the beginning of the year
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of discontinued operations
Translation and other

234 551
227 321
13 090
–
(5 860)

227 321
461 651
5 955
(247 268)
6 983

Balance at the end of the year
Goodwill at cost
Accumulated impairment

234 551
234 551
–

227 321
227 321
–

Per cash-generating unit:
Logicalis
Consulting

234 551
216 451
18 100

227 321
209 674
17 647

GOODWILL

Goodwill impairment assessment
The Group completed its annual impairment tests which are performed at the segmental cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the Logicalis and Consulting cash-generating units.
External valuations are obtained for the Logicalis and Consulting cash-generating units and compared to the
corresponding net asset value including goodwill. The recoverable amount of each cash-generating unit is determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. Value-in-use is based on discounted cash flow calculations and includes the
following key assumptions:
Future earnings: Cash flow forecasts are prepared and derived from the most recent financial budgets for the next three
years which are approved by management. Cash flows are extrapolated for a further two to three-year period with
estimated annual growth reducing gradually, to a rate which is considered not to exceed the long-term market growth,
in perpetuity used to calculate the terminal value.
Discount rates: Estimated discount rates used are post-tax rates of return that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating units to which goodwill is attributable.
Growth rates: Growth rates are based on budgeted figures and management estimates/assumptions in respect of the
three to six-year cash flow projections, a terminal growth rate and a discount rate. The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts.
Expected changes to selling prices and direct costs: Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on past
practices and reasonable expectations of future changes in the market.
As a result of the impairment analyses, it was concluded that no impairments were required for the period.
The directors believe that any possible change in the key assumptions, on which recoverable amounts are based, would
not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating units.
The table below contains the key assumptions that were used in the value-in-use calculations:

Weighted average cost of capital (post-tax rate)
Revenue growth rate in discrete period
Terminal growth rate

Logicalis
%

Consulting
%

14.5
3.0 – 15.0
3.0

14.3
4.5 – 6.9
2.0
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2019
US$’000

9.

2018
US$’000

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
9.1

Capitalised development expenditure
Capitalised development expenditure in Westcon International related to
SAP-related development expenditure, included in amounts capitalised below,
was US$4.6 million (FY18: US$5.0 million). US$10.9 million of capitalised
development expenditure relates to Westcon International and US$1.8 million
of capitalised development expenditure relates to Logicalis.
Net book value
At the beginning of the year
Amounts capitalised
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposals
Disposal of discontinued operations
Impairment
Transfers from property, plant and equipment
Translation
Amortisation – continuing operations
Amortisation – discontinued operations

12 711
1 665
11 264
734
–
–
–
–
20
(972)
–

1 665
80 843
20 043
–
(66)
(32 648)
(55 112)
298
20
(11 375)
(338)

Balance at the end of the year
Capitalised development expenditure at cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

12 711
24 121
(11 410)

1 665
67 280
(65 615)

Acquired intangible assets and software
9.2.1 Trademarks, customer and vendor relationships
Net book value
At the beginning of the year
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of discontinued operations
Translation
Amortisation – continuing operations
Amortisation – discontinued operations

33 577
36 984
8 070
–
(1 260)
(10 217)
–

36 984
46 246
6 892
(4 842)
749
(11 299)
(762)

Balance at the end of the year
Acquired intangible assets at cost
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

33 577
97 786
(64 209)

36 984
93 392
(56 408)

Capitalised development assets are amortised using the straight-line method
over their useful lives, which generally do not exceed 10 years.
9.2

Acquired intangible assets are amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives, which
generally do not exceed 10 years.
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2019
US$’000

9.

2018
US$’000

INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued
9.2

Acquired intangible assets and software continued
9.2.2 Software
Net book value
At the beginning of the year
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Additions
Transfers from property, plant and equipment
Translation
Disposals
Amortisation
Balance at the end of the year
Software at cost
Accumulated amortisation

4 038
3 677
61
1 853
3
(287)
(9)
(1 260)

3 677
2 374
–
2 668
22
(16)
(30)
(1 341)

4 038
13 162
(9 124)

3 677
12 115
(8 438)

37 615

40 661

Software is amortised using the straight-line method over their useful lives,
which range from two to six years.
Total acquired intangible assets and software

10.

INVESTMENTS
10.1 Equity-accounted investments
The investments comprise an interest in a joint venture and associates that are equity accounted. Details of the
Group’s investments are:
Effective ownership

Equity-accounted:
Neteks
Esource Resources, LLC.
Mason Advisory Limited

Carrying value

Country

Nature of
business

2019
%

2018
%

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Turkey
USA
UK

Distribution
ICT Solutions
Consulting

45.0
45.0
44.7

45.0
45.0
44.7

1 585
733
1 014

3 721
265
742

3 322

4 728

Significant joint venture
Neteks is an Istanbul-based networking and security distributor. An agreement is in place whereby both Westcon
International and Turkish-listed group Index, have joint control of the entity. Westcon International and Index have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement rather than rights to the assets and joint obligations for the liabilities.
Accordingly, it is considered a joint venture, and is therefore equity accounted.
The carrying value of the equity-accounted investments approximates its fair value at year-end.
Summarised financial information in respect of the above equity-accounted joint venture is set out on the following
page. The summarised financial information on the following page represents amounts in the joint venture’s financial
statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 250
47 640
(11)
(48 887)

368
77 499
(12)
(73 570)

(8)

4 285

18 729
30 489

26 850
22 511

119 717
(4 286)
(4 286)

88 537
(879)
(879)

(37)
303
(2 142)
799

(45)
121
(1 104)
80

(8)

4 285

Group’s share of net (liabilities)/assets
Control premium paid on purchase

(4)
1 589

2 143
1 578

Carrying amount

1 585

3 721

Group’s share of losses after tax

(2 143)

(440)

Associates that are not material
Share of profit for the period – continuing operations
Carrying amount

740
1 747

164
1 007

Total share of equity-accounted investment (losses)/profits
Neteks
Esource Resources, LLC.
Mason Advisory Limited

(2 143)
468
272

(440)
(51)
215

(1 403)

(276)

INVESTMENTS continued
10.1 Equity-accounted investments continued
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Net assets
The above assets and liabilities include the following:
Cash and cash equivalents
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables and provisions)
Revenue
Loss for the year – continuing operations
Total comprehensive loss
The above loss includes the following:
Depreciation and amortisation
Interest income
Interest expense
Income tax
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the carrying
amount:
Net (liabilities)/assets
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

18 960
4 001
5 001
1 800
882
7 276
–
–
–

21 885
5 001
5 001
1 800
882
–
7 500
1 200
501

INVESTMENTS continued
10.2 Bonds (Angola government bonds)
ISIN: AOTNX0315G17
ISIN: AOTNX0322G17
ISIN: AOTNX0318A17
ISIN: AOTNTX529D15
ISIN: AOTNX0519L18
ISIN: AOTNTX219L16
ISIN: AOTNTX206S16
ISIN: AOTNTX206S16

Westcon International
The Angolan government bonds are indexed to the US Dollar. The amount of US$18.96 million is fixed and the
Kwanza equivalent of this will be repaid at maturity. The prevailing National Bank of Angola official US Dollar rate
at the maturity date will be used for conversion. Bonds to the value of US$0.88 million were purchased in
December 2015 and mature in December 2020. The coupon rate on these bonds is 7.8%. Bonds to the value
of US$9.00 million were purchased in August 2017 and mature in August 2020. Bonds to the value of
US$1.80 million were purchased in April 2017 and mature in April 2020. The coupon rate on these bonds
is 7.0%. Bonds to the value of US$7.28 million were purchased in July 2018 and mature in July 2023. The coupon
rate on the bonds is 5.0%.
The weakened economic outlook for Angola, which arose in prior years, mainly as a consequence of the fall in the
price of crude oil, has led to a decline in the exchange rate of the Kwanza to the US Dollar. The National Bank of
Angola has instituted capital controls that render the timing and quantum of conversion from Kwanza to US Dollar
unpredictable. Management has instituted a series of actions to control the exposure and seek to reduce further
losses, including the purchase of the bonds referenced above. The intention is to reinvest the proceeds from these
bonds rather than redeem them at maturity.
Expected credit losses for the year amount to US$nil.
The bonds are classified as level 1 financial instruments and are valued using quoted market rates.
2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Equity-accounted investments
Other investments
Bonds

3 332
90
18 960

4 728
–
21 885

Total investments

22 382

26 613
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

41 104
2 234
11 361
–
–
(2 565)

67 644
610
2 823
(10 337)
(19 930)
294

52 134

41 104

5 931
25 674
16 343
18
4 168

5 588
17 058
13 209
72
5 177

52 134

41 104

(30 240)
(3 841)
–
6 203
–
(616)
(122)

(78 959)
(1 688)
14 111
9 835
25 394
1 029
38

(28 616)

(30 240)

(2 482)
(16 887)
(6 848)
(2 399)

(1 358)
(22 446)
(4 365)
(2 071)

(28 616)

(30 240)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
11.1 Movement of deferred tax assets
At the beginning of the year
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Credit to profit or loss from continuing operations
Charge to profit or loss from discontinued operations
Disposal of discontinued operations
Translation and other movements
Analysis of deferred tax assets
Capital allowances
Expense accruals and similar items
Effect of tax losses*
Goodwill
Other temporary differences
11.2 Movement of deferred tax liabilities
At the beginning of the year
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries
Disposal of discontinued operations
Charge to profit or loss from continuing operations
Charge to profit or loss from discontinued operations (including rate adjustment)
Credit to other comprehensive income
Translation and other movements
Analysis of deferred tax liabilities
Capital allowances
Goodwill
Intangible assets
Other temporary differences

* Deferred tax assets of US$13.7 million (included in the US$16.3 million above) have been recognised in respect of losses
incurred by entities that were loss making in either the current or prior year. Of this, US$6.7 million relates to entities that were
loss making in both the current and prior year. The recognition of the deferred tax asset on tax losses is based on the strong
probability that future profits will arise based on budgets, in excess of the profits arising on the reversal of existing taxable
differences, against which these losses can be offset.

Potential deferred tax assets of US$23.7 million on assessed/estimated losses have not been recognised in the
current financial year. Included in this amount is US$2.2 million relating to Angola that will expire by February 2022
and US$1.6 million relating to Kenya that will expire by February 2029.
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2018
US$’000

Minimum
lease
payments

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments

Minimum
lease
payments

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments

Current portion receivable within one year
Receivable between two and five years

6 654
14 531

5 807
13 363

6 007
13 116

5 479
12 283

Less: Unearned finance income

21 185
(2 015)

19 170
–

19 123
(1 361)

17 762
–

Present value of minimum lease assets

19 170

19 170

17 762

17 762

FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Current portion
Long-term portion

5 807
13 363

5 479
12 283

Finance lease receivables

19 170

17 762

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are US$3.4 million
(FY18: US$nil).
The carrying value of finance lease receivables approximates fair value.
Logicalis
One of Logicalis’ Latin American subsidiaries has entered into a finance lease, bearing interest at 6.48%. The lease
is repayable on 31 March 2019. At 28 February 2019, US$0.03 million was receivable.
One of Logicalis’ Latin American subsidiaries has entered into various finance leases, bearing interest between 0.00%
and 14.20%. These leases are repayable at various dates between 31 March 2019 and 28 May 2023. At 28 February
2019, US$3.4 million was receivable.
One of Logicalis’ European subsidiaries has entered into various finance leases, bearing interest between 0.63% and
14.02%. These leases are repayable at various dates between 30 August 2021 and 28 February 2023. At 28 February
2019, US$15.5 million was receivable.
Datatec Financial Services
Datatec Financial Services’ Australian subsidiary has entered into various finance leases, bearing interest at between
2.70% and 12.90%. These leases are repayable at various dates between 30 April 2019 and 30 November 2019.
At 28 February 2019, US$0.07 million was receivable.
Datatec Financial Services’ US subsidiary has entered into various finance leases, bearing interest at between 11.30%
and 12.70%. These leases are repayable at various dates between 31 March 2019 and 30 April 2019. At 28 February
2019, US$0.2 million was receivable.
Expected credit losses for the year amount to US$nil. Finance lease receivables are classified as level 3 financial
instruments.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Merchandise for resale
Spares/maintenance inventory
Work-in-progress

323 232
10 184
16 802

235 244
10 341
12 931

Inventory provisions

350 218
(17 962)

258 516
(19 979)

332 256

238 537

INVENTORIES

Obsolete inventory amounting to US$2.0 million (FY18: US$3.1 million) was written off during the year.
During the year, inventories of US$2.5 billion (FY18: US$2.4 billion from continuing operations) were recognised as part of
cost of sales. There were no inventories that were encumbered as at 28 February 2019 (FY18: US$nil).
Westcon International has certain inventory return arrangements with its major vendors to reduce the risk of technological
obsolescence.
One of Westcon International’s European subsidiaries has an inventory purchase financing agreement with a financing
company for a specific vendor’s purchases for a maximum availability of US$204.0 million (FY18: US$219.0 million) which
extends payment terms from 30 to 60 days. The agreement may be cancelled at any time with a 60-day notice by either
Westcon International or the vendor. As at 28 February 2019, US$160.6 million (FY18: US$139.9 million) was outstanding
and is included in trade payables per Note 18. Purchases within 0 to 30 days are described as unfunded and are also
included in trade payables.
Westcon International’s Singapore subsidiary has an inventory purchase financing agreement for purchases with a
vendor for a maximum of US$40.5 million (FY18: US$35.5 million) which extends payment terms from 30 days to
90 days. The agreement may be cancelled at any time with a 90-day notice by either Westcon International or the vendor.
As at 28 February 2019, US$25.8 million (FY18: US$24.9 million) was outstanding and is included in trade payables per
Note 18.
Some of Westcon International’s other Asia-Pacific subsidiaries have inventory purchase financing agreements for specific
vendors’ purchases for a maximum of US$14.1 million (FY18: US$25.7 million). These agreements may be cancelled at
any time with a 60-day or 90-day notice by either Westcon International or the vendors. As at 28 February 2019,
US$10.2 million (FY18: US$14.0 million) was outstanding and is included in trade payables per Note 18.
Westcon International’s Middle East subsidiary has an inventory purchase financing agreements in place for a maximum
of US$16.0 million (FY18: US$11.0 million) which extends payment terms up to a maximum of 90 days. Borrowings
under this agreement are collateralised by a pledge of 100% of the subsidiary’s inventory. The agreements may be
cancelled at any time with a 60-day notice by either Westcon International or the vendor. As at 28 February 2019,
US$15.8 million (FY18: US$11.7 million) was outstanding and is included in trade payables per Note 18.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 290 514
(31 661)

1 226 377
(34 140)

1 258 853

1 192 237

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Trade receivables
Expected credit loss allowance

All trade receivables represent financial assets of the Group, are classified as loans and receivables and are measured
at amortised cost.
The carrying value of trade receivables balances approximates its fair value.
In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The Group always recognises lifetime
expected credit losses for trade receivables, which are estimated using a provision matrix which takes into consideration
the payment profiles of trade receivables over a period of 12 months in preceding financial years, the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the receivables, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. Accordingly, the credit
risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix. The concentration
of credit risk is limited due to the customer base being large and geographically diverse. Accordingly, the directors believe
that no further credit loss allowance is required.
Particular focus is placed on trade receivables older than 90 days and impaired after considering insurance held, any
other securities and payment plans in place.
Certain trade receivables are held as security for short-term interest-bearing funding (refer to Note 18.2).
Before accepting any new customer, use is made of local external credit agencies where necessary, to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and to define credit limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.
There is one customer in Latin America, with a gross value of US$141.7 million, which represents more than 5% of the
total balance of trade receivables (FY18: US$145.2 million).
The Group does not hold any collateral over its trade receivables balances.
The effect of discounting of trade receivables is not material.
The weighted average write-off rate over recent years across all classes of trade receivables is 0.37% (FY18: 0.37%).
The Group is therefore confident that it has provided adequately for any possible bad debt write-offs.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES continued
The following table details the credit risk profile of trade receivables based on the Group’s provision matrix.
Days past due:
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Total

Current
1 – 30 days past due
31 – 60 days past due
61 – 90 days past due
91 – 120 days past due
Over 120 days

73 983
3 835
1 927
1 902
389
2 208

223 037
11 858
8 151
1 545
1 956
6 815

506 445
58 135
16 939
4 737
2 978
14 457

133 049
42 010
12 776
4 904
2 751
11 766

86 787
15 534
6 877
3 694
7 203
21 866

1 023 301
131 372
46 670
16 782
15 277
57 112

Gross trade accounts receivable
Credit loss allowance

84 244
(533)

253 362
(927)

603 691
(8 822)

207 256
(4 556)

141 961
(16 823)

1 290 514
(31 661)

Net trade receivables

83 711

252 435

594 869

202 700

125 138

1 258 853

0.11

0.04

0.38

0.34

1.59

0.42

North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Total

(2 394)

(11 462)

(5 342)

(1 501)

(16 748)

(37 447)

(600)

(2 841)

(6 636)

(3 257)

(7 050)

(20 384)

(866)
(39)
59
–
3 525
(515)

(557)
2 281
691
–
9 305
1 394

–
2 230
995
(7)
–
71

–
651
494
–
–
96

–
–
2 695
–
–
1 188

(1 423)
5 123
4 934
(7)
12 830
2 234

Balance at 28 February 2018
Impairment losses recognised
on trade receivables
Impairment losses reversed
Bad debt write-offs
Net exchange gains or losses

(830)

(1 189)

(8 689)

(3 517)

(19 915)

(34 140)

(86)
426
–
(43)

(650)
738
21
153

(3 835)
1 422
2 201
79

(1 563)
159
281
84

(541)
113
1 999
1 521

(6 675)
2 858
4 502
1 794

Balance at 28 February 2019

(533)

(927)

(8 822)

(4 556)

(16 823)

(31 661)

US$’000

Expected credit loss rate (%)
Reconciliation of the expected
credit loss allowance account:
US$’000
Balance on 1 March 2017
Impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables – continuing
operations
Impairment losses recognised on
trade receivables – discontinued
operations
Impairment losses reversed
Bad debt write-offs
Acquisition of subsidiary
Disposal of discontinued operations
Net exchange gains or losses
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2019
US$’000

15.

2018*
US$’000

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT COSTS
Non-current
Non-current costs to obtain contracts^
Current
Current contract assets
Current costs to obtain contracts

86

–

98 741
57

–
–

Total current contract assets and contract costs

98 798

–

Total contract assets and contract costs

98 884

–

Significant changes during the period:
Changes due to adoption of IFRS 15+
Change in the time frame for a right to consideration to become unconditional
Amounts recognised during the year
Translation
Other

81 537
(4 732)
21 880
46
67

–
–
–
–
–

Total revenue contract assets and contract costs

98 798

–

Included in other receivables and contract costs.
Previously included in other receivables.
* The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 at 1 March 2018. It has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, under which the
comparative information is not restated.

^
+

Expected credit losses for the year amount to US$nil.
Contract costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over three years.

16.

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

172 998

258 461

172 998

258 461

STATED CAPITAL
Authorised share capital
400 000 000 (FY18: 400 000 000) ordinary shares
Issued share capital
219 200 000 (FY18: 242 960 000) ordinary shares, including treasury and DBP shares
Stated capital
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Number of
shares

Stated
capital
US$’000

STATED CAPITAL continued
Balance at 1 March 2017
Issue of shares for special scrip distribution
Cancellation of shares repurchased
Effects of foreign currency translation

211 967 622
43 770 095
(12 777 717)
–

151 947
108 286
(34 629)
32 857

Balance at 28 February 2018
Cancellation of shares repurchased
Deferred bonus plan shares and treasury shares
Effects of foreign currency translation

242 960 000
(23 760 000)
(1 106 828)
–

258 461
(43 881)
(1 776)
(39 806)

Balance at 28 February 2019

218 093 172

172 998

Stated capital is in the Rand denominated accounts of the holding company and is translated into US$ each year in the
Group accounts in accordance with the accounting policy.
During the year ended 28 February 2019, no (FY18: 43 770 095) shares were issued as a scrip distribution to
shareholders.
The Company repurchased the following shares during the year:
• 4 971 012 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general meeting on 24 July 2018;
• 11 888 988 shares under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on
20 September 2018; and
• 6 900 000 shares up to 28 February 2019 under the terms of a general authority given by shareholders at a general
meeting on 15 January 2019.
In total, the Company repurchased 23 760 000 shares during the FY19 financial year at a total cost of US$43.9 million.
As at 28 February 2019, the Group held 14 315 (FY18: 517 941) shares as treasury shares that had been acquired by
the Datatec Share Incentive Trust 2005. These treasury shares have been set off against stated capital.
As at 28 February 2019, there were 1 092 513 shares relating to the deferred bonus plan (refer to Note 2). These shares
have been set off against stated capital.
Share cancellation expenses for the year amounted to US$0.2 million (FY18 share issue and cancellation expenses:
US$0.3 million), and were accounted for in equity.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Liabilities under capitalised finance leases
Secured loans
Other long-term liabilities – unsecured

30 982
14 458
30 948

25 109
17 134
39 365

Less: Current portion included in trade payables (Note 18)

76 388
(45 005)

81 608
(19 885)

LONG-TERM INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES

Long-term portion

31 383

61 723

Repayable between one and two years
Repayable between two and three years
Repayable between three and four years
Repayable between four and five years
Repayable after five years

16 796
7 716
4 610
1 754
507

43 486
11 239
4 162
2 339
497

31 383

61 723

17.1 Liabilities under capitalised finance leases
2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Minimum
lease
payments

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments

Minimum
lease
payments

Present
value of
minimum
lease
payments

Current portion repayable within one year
Repayable between two and five years
Repayable after five years

10 704
23 795
441

9 049
21 517
416

8 707
18 650
205

7 647
17 262
200

Less: Future finance charges

34 940
(3 958)

30 982
–

27 562
(2 453)

25 109
–

Present value of capitalised finance lease
liabilities

30 982

30 982

25 109

25 109

The Group leased certain property, plant and equipment under finance leases. The book value of secured
property, plant and equipment is US$8.5 million (Note 7). The majority of leases comprise back to back leasing
arrangements. The average lease term for the Group’s material leases is three to five years. The Group’s lease
obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ rights over the leased assets.
Interest rates underlying material finance leases range from 1.48% to 14.02%.
Finance lease liabilities are classified as level 3 financial instruments held at amortised cost.
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LONG-TERM INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES continued
17.2 Secured loans and other long-term liabilities

Counterparty
Unsecured:
Logicalis
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Financed invoices
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Cisco Systems Capital
Corporation
Other

Datatec Financial
Services
KeyBank and IBM

Secured:
Westcon International
Futuregrowth Asset
Management

Other

Currency

Interest
rate

Final
repayment
date

US$

2.00%

August 2020*

EUR

1.40%

October 2021*

US$

2.00%

March 2019*

US$

4.42%

October 2020*

US$

2.00%

March 2019*

US$

2.00%

July 2020*

US$

3.00%

November 2019*

US$

2.00%

March 2019*

Various

Interest-free
to 16.50%

Between
September
2019 and
December 2025

Repayment
terms

Quarterly
instalments
Biannual
instalments
Semesterly
instalments
Quarterly
instalments
Semesterly
instalments
Quarterly
instalments
Semesterly
instalments
Semesterly
instalments
Monthly,
quarterly
and annual
instalments

Principal
amount
US$’000

Total
capital
amount
outstanding
US$’000

20 569

30 948
30 732
12 569

4 741

4 209

3 987

3 270

3 465

2 469

3 002

2 462

3 369

1 418

930

923

1 122

921

11 612

2 491

216
US$
and AUD

ZAR

US$

Between
0.83%
and 6.24%

Between
April
2019 and
January 2020*

10.16% September 2019*

5.19%

August 2024*

Monthly
instalments

Full capital
repayable
every three
years;
quarterly
interest
instalments
Monthly
instalments

2 693

216

17 007

14 458
14 458
14 348

137

110

* The amount due within 12 months is included in current portion of long-term liabilities.

The Futuregrowth Asset Management liability is secured by trade receivables to the value of US$21.5 million
(FY18: US$29.4 million).
The carrying value of long-term liabilities approximates its fair value.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 358 928
1 056 451
29 868
195 882
70 026
6 701

1 199 384
894 192
14 994
197 934
88 837
3 427

109 751
45 240
8 277
2 762
1 148
553
–
717
5 251
698
100
45 005

105 999
65 060
–
5 566
12 024
–
2 614
850
–
–
–
19 885

1 468 679

1 305 383

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND SHORT-TERM INTEREST-BEARING
LIABILITIES
18.1 Trade and other payables
Trade payables
VAT/sales tax
Accruals
Sundry creditors
Short-term portion of share-based payments
18.2 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Unsecured short-term funding – Cisco Systems Capital Corporation
Unsecured short-term funding – Banco Bradesco
Unsecured short-term funding – Banco Votorantim
Unsecured short-term funding – Banco Santander
Unsecured short-term funding – Banco AV Villas
Unsecured short-term funding – Dell Bank International
Secured short-term funding – Futuregrowth Asset Management
Secured short-term funding – Factoring Security S.A.
Secured short-term funding – BCI Factoring S.A.
Secured short-term funding – Banco Internacional and Banco de Chile
Current portion of other long-term liabilities (Note 17)

The carrying value of trade and other payables and short-term interest-bearing liabilities approximates its fair value.
Trade accounts payable will be settled in the normal course of business.
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Unsecured loans
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries has entered into various loans with Cisco Systems Capital Corporation, between
US$0.1 million and US$11.0 million each, bearing interest at 3.00%. These loans are repayable at various dates
between March 2019 and February 2020. At 28 February 2019, US$45.2 million was outstanding.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries has entered into various loans with Banco Bradesco, between US$0.004 million and
US$0.5 million each, bearing interest at between 4.50% and 4.65%. These loans are repayable at various dates
between March 2019 and April 2019. At 28 February 2019, US$8.3 million was outstanding.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries has entered into various loans with Banco Votorantim, between US$0.02 million and
US$0.5 million each, bearing interest at 4.53%. These loans are repayable in March 2019. At 28 February 2019,
US$2.8 million was outstanding.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries has entered into various loans with Banco Santander, between US$0.001 million and
US$0.4 million each, bearing interest at 4.50%. These loans are repayable in April 2019. At 28 February 2019,
US$1.1 million was outstanding.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries has entered into various loans with Banco AV Villas, between US$0.2 million and
US$0.4 million, bearing interest at between 8.29% and 8.32%. These loans are repayable in April 2019.
At 28 February 2019, US$0.6 million was outstanding.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND SHORT-TERM INTEREST-BEARING LIABILITIES continued
18.2 Short-term interest-bearing liabilities continued
Secured loans
One of Westcon International’s subsidiaries entered into a US$0.7 million loan with Futuregrowth Asset
Management, bearing interest at 9.65%. The loan is repayable on 20 March 2019. At 28 February 2019,
US$0.7 million was outstanding. The liability is secured by trade receivables to the value of US$1.0 million.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries entered into various funding arrangements with Factoring Security, S.A., between
US$0.002 million and US$1.4 million each, bearing interest at between 5.16% and 7.20%. These loans are
repayable at various dates between March 2019 and May 2019. At 28 February 2019, US$5.3 million was
outstanding. The liability is secured by invoices to the value of US$5.3 million.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries entered into various funding arrangements with BCI Factoring, S.A., between
US$0.01 million and US$0.3 million each, bearing interest at between 4.32% and 4.68%. These loans are
repayable from March 2019. At 28 February 2019, US$0.7 million was outstanding. The liability is secured
by invoices to the value of US$0.7 million.
One of Logicalis’ subsidiaries entered into various loans with Banco Internacional and Banco de Chile, between
US$0.02 million and US$0.05 million each, bearing interest at between 3.96% and 4.85%. These loans are
repayable from March 2019. At 28 February 2019, US$0.1 million was outstanding. The liability is secured by
invoices to the value of US$0.1 million.
Refer to Note 13 for details of inventory purchase financing arrangements. Amounts outstanding under these
arrangements are included in trade payables.

19.

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 393
936

211
1 029

2 329

1 240

AMOUNTS OWING TO VENDORS
Long-term portion
Short-term portion

Amounts owing to vendors represent purchase considerations owing in respect of acquisitions. The purchase
considerations are to be settled with the vendors in cash or shares on achievement of agreed performance criteria.
The amounts owing are interest free.
Effective 1 May 2015, Logicalis acquired Trovus (“White Label Intelligence Limited”), a UK business intelligence
consultancy, which provides business insight solutions, professional services and managed services to large enterprise
clients. The consideration payable comprised an initial cash consideration of US$1.6 million and deferred cash
consideration of up to GBP0.4 million, split into three payments over three years. The payment of the deferred cash
consideration is dependent on certain targets being met. The first payment portion of US$0.2 million was partially paid in
FY18 and US$0.05 million was released to the statement of comprehensive income. During the year, a payment of
US$0.1 million was made and US$0.03 million was released to the statement of comprehensive income. An amount of
US$0.3 million lapsed during the year as the full target achievement was not met.
Effective 4 September 2017, Logicalis acquired Packets Systems Indonesia (“PSI”), a leading ICT systems integrator and
services company. The consideration payable comprised an initial cash consideration of US$6.8 million and deferred cash
consideration of up to US$0.8 million, split into two payments over two years. The payment of deferred cash
consideration is dependent on certain targets being met for each of these two periods.
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AMOUNTS OWING TO VENDORS continued
Effective 8 October 2018, Logicalis acquired Computer Networks Integration Pty Ltd (“CNI”), a Microsoft-certified gold
partner based in Melbourne. The consideration payable comprised an initial cash consideration of US$1.8 million
(AU$2.5 million) and deferred cash consideration of up to US$1.3 million (the equivalent of AU$1.8 million) split into
three payments over three years. The payment of the deferred consideration is dependent on certain targets being
met for each of these three periods.
Effective 1 June 2017, Analysys Mason acquired Nexia Management Consulting AS, a telecoms management
consultancy based in Norway. The consideration payable comprised an initial consideration of NOK34.0 million
(US$4.1million equivalent) paid as a mix of cash and Analysys Mason shares, and deferred cash consideration of up
to NOK7.1 million (US$0.9 million equivalent). NOK1.1 million (US$0.1 million equivalent) of the deferred consideration
was paid in FY18. The remaining US$0.7 million was paid during the year based on specific targets being met.
Effective 17 July 2018, Analysys Mason acquired Access Markets International Partners, Inc., a global research and
consulting firm based in the US. The consideration payable comprised an initial cash consideration of US$3.3 million
and a deferred cash consideration of up to US$0.2 million. The deferred cash consideration is dependent on certain
targets being met.
Amounts owing to vendors are classified as financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. They are
classified as level 3 financial instruments, whose fair value measurements are derived from inputs that are unobservable
for the liability.

Other

Total

4 565
–
–
–
–
886

7 112
–
217
(89)
(91)
(131)

5 519
1 264
5 729
(5 842)
(298)
(1 269)

26 711
1 274
17 231
(14 920)
(637)
(1 092)

710

5 451

7 018

5 103

28 567

1 371
368
–

710
–
–

1 914
1 294
2 243

622
2 318
4 078

4 385
570
148

17 548
4 550
6 469

1 739

710

5 451

7 018

5 103

28 567

Restructuring

VAT/
sales
tax

Balance at 1 March 2018
Acquisitions of subsidiaries
Amounts added
Utilised
Amounts reversed
Translation and other

7 203
–
7 219
(5 287)
(248)
(341)

466
10
1 667
(167)
–
(237)

1 846
–
2 399
(3 535)
–
–

Balance at
28 February 2019

8 546

1 739

Expected maturity:
Within one year
Between two to five years
More than five years

8 546
–
–
8 546

US$’000

20.

Pension
obligations

Dilapidations/
asset
retirement
obligations

Legal
claims
and
costs

PROVISIONS

Long-term portion
Short-term portion

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

11 019
17 548

10 685
16 026

28 567

26 711
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PROVISIONS continued
Restructuring provisions include expected costs for certain restructuring activities of the Group where the details have
already been announced to affected parties. Legal claims and costs are provisions for anticipated settlements including
costs, for various legal matters that the Group is defending. VAT/sales tax provisions relate to provisions for potential
taxes in foreign jurisdictions. Pension obligations relate to a pension scheme operated by Logicalis Group, for which a
full defined benefit pension disclosure has not been disclosed due to its immaterial value. Dilapidations and asset
retirement obligations relate to provisions where the Group is expected to restore certain leased property and assets
to its original condition. Other provisions include asset vendor credits, onerous contracts, employee settlement claims
and waste reserves, which are individually insignificant.
The timing of restructuring provisions is fairly certain and is expected to be settled within 12 months. There is uncertainty
with regards to the amounts as they are subject to final agreement.
The VAT/sales tax provision relates to tax exposures in foreign jurisdictions and external tax consultants are being utilised
to investigate these taxes.
The amount of pension obligations is determined by external actuaries. The uncertainty relates to assumptions which
include discount rates, retirement age and estimates of growth in retirement funding.
The timing of dilapidations/asset retirement obligations is fairly certain and based on the lease agreement end dates.
There is uncertainty with regards to the amount as it is subject to the properties’ condition, the position and behaviour
of the landlord and the local rates prevailing at the time.
2019
US$’000

21.

2018*
US$’000

CONTRACT LIABILITIES
Current contract liabilities

3 476

–

Significant changes during the period:
Changes due to adoption of IFRS 15+
Change in the time frame for a right to consideration to become unconditional
Amounts recognised during the year
Translation

3 800
(3 800)
3 435
41

–
–
–
–

Current contract liabilities

3 476

–

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) performance obligations is US$3.5 million.
Expected to be recognised:
Within one year

3 476

–

3 476

–

* The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 at 1 March 2018. It has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, under which the
comparative information is not restated.
+
Previously included in trade and other payables.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

304 019

314 900

BANK OVERDRAFTS
Total bank overdrafts at the end of the year

Region

Provider

Facility
currency

Facility
limit
US$’000

Interest rate

Westcon International
UK

Overdraft
US$’000
199 113

HSBC

US$

220 000

2.95% above the US$, Euro or
Sterling base rates (5.325%, 2.95%
and 3.70% as at 28 February 2019)

157 147

• The facility matures in June 2020.
• Advances under this arrangement are available up to 75% of the subsidiary’s eligible accounts
receivable.
• The facility contains certain affirmative and negative covenants, including, but not limited to, covenants
that restrict Westcon International’s ability to grant guarantees or incur debt with third parties other
than to immediate affiliates (as defined) subject to specific thresholds dependent on the nature of the
debt, restrict the creation of liens, debentures and mortgages and restrict acquisitions higher than
US$7.5 million value without the bank’s prior consent.
Germany

HSBC

US$

60 000

2.95% above the US$ and Euro
base rates (5.325% and 2.95% as
at 28 February 2019)

23 279

• The facility matures in June 2020.
• Advances under this arrangement are available up to 75% of the subsidiary’s eligible accounts
receivable.
• The facility contains certain affirmative and negative covenants, including, but not limited to, covenants
that restrict Westcon International’s ability to grant guarantees or incur debt with third parties other
than to immediate affiliates (as defined) subject to specific thresholds dependent on the nature of the
debt, restrict the creation of liens, debentures and mortgages and restrict acquisitions higher than
US$7.5 million value without the bank’s prior consent.
London Interbank Offered (“LIBOR”)
+ 2.25% (4.89% as at 28 February
2019)

9 664

UAE

HSBC

US$

15 000

Singapore

HSBC

US$

16 000

For US Dollar drawings, LIBOR +
1.60%
For SGD drawings, Singapore
interbank rate + 1.60% (4.16% as
at 28 February 2019)
• Borrowings under this facility are collateralised by current and future assets.

4 147

Singapore

HSBC

US$

8 000

3 529

For US Dollar drawings, LIBOR +
1.60%
For SGD drawings, Singapore
interbank rate + 1.60% (3.48% as
at 28 February 2019)

• Borrowings under this facility are collateralised by current and future assets.
Singapore

HSBC

US$

11 000

For the US$ drawings, LIBOR +
1.60% (4.14% as at 28 February
2019)

1 347

Westcon International has total facilities of US$390.9 million, of which US$199.1 million was drawn at year-end.
Restrictions of US$50.0 million apply to the facilities. The net availability of the facilities, taking into account restrictions,
is US$141.8 million. The net availability does not include any cash sources in Westcon International.
Datatec has US$30 million of cash as collateral for Westcon Asia facilities.
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Interest rate

Overdraft
US$’000

BANK OVERDRAFTS continued
Logicalis
US

104 906
Comerica

Applicable margin plus greater of:
• Prime rate
• Federal funds effective rate plus
1.00%
• Daily adjusting LIBOR rate plus
1.00%

25 000

The applicable margin is dependent
on the previous quarter’s average
facility availability and ranges
between negative 45 and
negative 70 basis points (as at
28 February 2019: LIBOR
+ 1.3%/revolver 4.43%)
Brazil

Banco
Bradesco

BRL

17 650

CDI + 2.67% (2.92% as at
28 February 2019)

17 650

Chile

Banco Itaú
Unibanco

US$

11 426

7.70% as at 28 February 2019

11 426

Brazil

Banco
Santander

US$

10 515

5.32% as at 28 February 2019

10 515

Singapore

HSBC

SGD

13 767

For US Dollar drawings, LIBOR
+ 1.60%
For SGD drawings, Singapore
interbank rate + 1.60%

7 788

• Each drawdown has a specific maturity date.
Brazil

Banco
Votorantim

US$

4 874

6.00% as at 28 February 2019

4 874

Brazil

Banco
Bradesco

US$

3 557

5.31% at 28 February 2019

3 557

Brazil

Banco Itaú
Unibanco

US$

10 058

CDI + 2.60% (2.85% at
28 February 2019)

3 355

Peru

Banco Itaú
Unibanco

US$

5 894

LIBOR + 4.35%

2 897

Brazil

De Lage
Landen

BRL

2 725

13.40% as at 28 February 2019

2 725

Brazil

Société
Générale
Brasil

BRL

2 081

0.165% as at 28 February 2019

2 081

Mexico

HSBC

US$

1 999

10.71% per annum

1 782

China

HSBC

CNY

1 791

6.10% as at 28 February 2019

UK

HSBC

GBP/US$/
EUR

24 000

1 611
1 559

• This facility is secured by Logicalis’ trade receivables.

Covered: Applicable GBP/US$/EUR
bank rate – 0.4%
Uncovered: Applicable GBP/US$/
EUR bank rate +1% or
Applicable GBP/US$/EUR bank
rate +1.5%
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Overdraft
US$’000

Interest rate

BANK OVERDRAFTS continued
Logicalis continued
Colombia

Banco Itaú
Unibanco

COP

1 997

IBR M.V. + 4.764%
(8.876% nominal rate at
28 February 2019)

1 550

Australia

HSBC

AU$

1 436

AUS BBSY + 1.85%
(3.45% at 28 February 2019)

1 436

• The overall facility is subject to two financial covenants: an interest cover ratio and a leverage ratio.
Australia

HSBC

AU$

1 077

AUS BBSY + 1.85%
(3.45% at 28 February 2019)

1 077

Indonesia

HSBC

US$

9 000

IDR – 4.9%, US$ – 7.25% as at
28 February 2019

1 065

Other

Various

Various

Various

Between 1.93% and 45.00%

2 958

Logicalis has total facilities of US$252.2 million, of which US$104.9 million was drawn at year-end. Restrictions
of US$18.0 million apply to the facilities. The net availability of the facilities, taking into account restrictions, is
US$129.3 million. The net availability does not include any cash sources in Logicalis.

23.

CONTINGENT ASSET – EARN-OUT RELATING TO DISPOSAL OF WESTCON AMERICAS TO
SYNNEX
Pursuant to the sale of Westcon Americas to SYNNEX in the 2018 financial year, an earn-out payment would be made
if certain gross profit targets for Westcon Americas had been met for the 12 months ended 28 February 2018.
The earn-out payment has not yet been agreed between the parties, who are currently engaged in an arbitration process.
The results contain an estimate of the fair value of the receivable of US$11.7 million after costs, which is estimated to be
the minimum amount receivable and which is included in profit from discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5.
The Group has recognised an asset for the fair value of the receivable, included in other receivables under current assets.
Due to the uncertainty of the final earn-out amount, a contingent asset arises for any potential upside above the amount
of the receivable recognised.

24.

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

14 986
5 512
9 474
31 793

19 973
7 324
12 649
3 156

46 779

23 129

COMMITMENTS
24.1 Capital commitments
Capital expenditure authorised and contracted for
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Capital expenditure authorised but not yet contracted for
Total capital commitments

This expenditure will be incurred in the ensuing year and will be financed from existing cash resources and available
borrowing facilities.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

28 527
2 877
1 288

27 572
3 636
503

Total operating lease commitments due within one year

32 692

31 711

Due between one and two years:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment

22 599
1 458
451

23 086
2 077
254

Total operating lease commitments due between one and two years

24 508

25 417

Due between two and three years:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment

19 814
677
71

18 763
602
49

Total operating lease commitments due between two and three years

20 562

19 414

Due between three and four years:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment

15 144
156
4

16 931
125
–

Total operating lease commitments due between three and four years

COMMITMENTS continued
24.2 Operating lease commitments
Due within one year:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment

15 304

17 056

Due between four and five years:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment

9 851
23
–

12 893
35
–

Total operating lease commitments due between four and five years

9 874

12 928

20 785
–
–

22 263
–
–

Due after five years:
Property
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Total operating lease commitments due after five years
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments

20 785

22 263

123 725

128 789

The fair value of the operating lease commitments is approximately equal to its carrying value.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES, GUARANTEES AND LITIGATION
Datatec and its subsidiaries have issued, in the ordinary course of business, guarantees and letters of comfort to
third parties in respect of finance and trading facilities, performance commitments to customers and lease commitments.
In addition, the vendor inventory purchase financing referred to in Note 13 was generally guaranteed by Westcon
International.
In connection with Westcon International’s investment in the Turkish joint venture, Neteks, Westcon International has
guaranteed 50%, up to a maximum of US$7.9 million (FY18: US$15.0 million), related to the joint venture’s finance facility
with a bank. The guarantee would require Westcon International to pay 50% of the outstanding balance in the event
of default by the joint venture. The maximum liability under this guarantee at 28 February 2019 was US$4.0 million
(FY18: US$6.2 million).
Logicalis has a contingent liability in respect of a possible tax liability at its PromonLogicalis Latin America Limited
(“PromonLogicalis”) subsidiary in Brazil. In April 2011, a Brazilian state tax authority claimed that PromonLogicalis
should have paid a higher rate of state tax on its equipment sales up to October 2010 than actually paid. PromonLogicalis
management, supported by a legal opinion, strongly disagrees with the state tax authority’s assessment and have formally
appealed against it. Datatec management supports PromonLogicalis management’s view and believes it unlikely that
PromonLogicalis will have to pay any additional tax.
The Group has certain contingent liabilities resulting from litigation and claims, including breach of warranties, where
operations have been acquired or disposed of, generally involving commercial and employment matters, which are
incidental to the ordinary conduct of its business. Management believes, after taking legal advice where appropriate
on the probable outcome of these contingencies, that none of these contingencies will materially affect the financial
position or the results of operations of the Group.

26.

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Sales and purchases between Group companies are concluded at arm’s length in the ordinary course of business.
For the year ended 28 February 2019, the inter-group sales of goods and provision of services amounted to
US$40.4 million (FY18: US$40.5 million), which are eliminated on consolidation. Balances and transactions between
the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on consolidation
and are not disclosed in this note.
During the year, the Group entered into the following material trading transactions with SYNNEX, a related party that is not
a member of the Group:
Sale of
goods
US$’000
Trading transactions
SYNNEX Corporation Limited – FY18
SYNNEX Corporation Limited – FY19

The following balances were outstanding at the end of the reporting period
SYNNEX Corporation Limited – FY18
SYNNEX Corporation Limited – FY19

Purchases
of goods
US$’000

371

40 303

73

113 146

Amounts
owed by
related
party

Amounts
owed to
related
party

60

1 381

290

2 621

SYNNEX became a related party to the Datatec Group on 1 September 2017 when they purchased 10% of Westcon
International. Sales of goods to SYNNEX Corporation Limited were made at arm’s length. Logicalis has an inventory
purchase agreement with SYNNEX Corporation Limited where Logicalis has agreed to purchase inventory from SYNNEX
in return for a rebate. During the year, US$113.1 million of inventory was purchased from SYNNEX in return for rebate of
US$0.4 million (included in the statement of comprehensive income). The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be
settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or received. No expenses have been recognised in the current year for
doubtful debts in respect of amounts owed by the related party.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

7 551
300
222

7 278
274
545

8 073

8 097

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
Key management personnel compensation
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Key management personnel compensation comprises the compensation of 12 (FY18: 12) senior executives of the
Group’s divisions. The remuneration of Datatec’s executive directors is included in Note 3 and in the tables below.
There were no other prescribed officers in the Company.
Directors’ emoluments
The following tables set out the remuneration of individual directors who held office during FY19 and FY18:
Guaranteed package
Basic
salary

Pension

Other
benefits

Fees

STI

LTI

Total

Executive directors
JP Montanana
IP Dittrich

1 428
560

214
84

28
43

–
–

1 624
382

2 170
421

5 464
1 490

Total executive directors

1 988

298

71

–

2 006

2 591

6 954

Non-executive directors
SJ Davidson
O Ighodaro (to 31 October 2018)
JF McCartney
M Makanjee (from 1 November 2018)
MJN Njeke
CS Seabrooke (to 20 September 2018)
E Singh-Bushell (from 1 June 2018)
NJ Temple (to 20 September 2018)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

202
62
90
28
110
50
71
45

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

202
62
90
28
110
50
71
45

Total non-executive directors

–

–

–

658

–

–

658

1 988

298

71

658

2 006

2 591

7 612

FY19 – US$’000

Total directors’ emoluments

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Notes to the Group consolidated
annual financial statements continued

2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

for the year ended 28 February 2019

26.

Page 162
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
Directors’ emoluments continued

FY18 – US$’000

Basic
salary

Deal
FY18 completion
bonus
bonus

Fees

Pension

Other
benefits

Total

Executive directors
JP Montanana
IP Dittrich

1 340
436

1 005
196

3 500
1 750

–
–

201
65

26
15

6 072
2 462

Total executive directors

1 776

1 201

5 250

–

266

41

8 534

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

202
88
85

–
–
–

–
–
–

202
88
85

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

31
98
116
90

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

31
98
116
90

–

–

–

710

–

–

710

Total directors’ emoluments

1 776

1 201

5 250

710

266

41

9 244

Operating expenses
Profit on disposal of Westcon Americas

1 776
–

1 201
–

–
5 250

710
–

266
–

41
–

3 994
5 250

1 776

1 201

5 250

710

266

41

9 244

Non-executive directors
SJ Davidson
O Ighodaro
JF McCartney – Datatec fees
JF McCartney – Westcon fees
(to 31 August 17)
MJN Njeke
CS Seabrooke
NJ Temple
Total non-executive directors

During FY18, the Remuneration Committee awarded a deal completion bonus of US$3 500 000 to Jens Montanana and
US$1 750 000 to Ivan Dittrich, following the successful completion of the disposal of Westcon Americas to SYNNEX.
Other benefits include private medical insurance, permanent health insurance, life assurance and fuel for private vehicle.
During FY19, Ekta Singh-Bushell joined the Board on 1 June 2018 and Maya Makanjee joined the Board on 1 November
2018. Chris Seabrooke and Nick Temple retired from the Board on 20 September 2018 and Funke Ighodaro resigned
from the Board on 31 October 2018.
There has been no change in the directors holding office up to the date of approval of these financial statements.
Non-executive directors’ fees shown above exclude VAT.
Conditional share plan (“CSP”)
During FY19, the first grants were made under the CSP including the following awards to directors:
Grant fair
value as
percentage
of base pay
%

Fair value
of awards
at
28 Feb 19
US$’000

FY19
grant
date

Number
of awards

Fair value
of awards
on grant
US$’000

JP Montanana

01/06/2018

1 291 148

2 142

150

2 704

IP Dittrich

01/06/2018

405 066

672

120

848

CSP
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
Directors’ emoluments continued
Deferred bonus plan (“new DBP”)
Executive directors deferred part of their FY18 bonuses under the terms of the new DBP in June 2018. This was the first
time the new DBP came into operation. In accordance with the policy, a multiplier of x2 was applied to the deferred bonus
amount and Datatec shares purchased which are held for the benefit of the participants but forfeited if they should leave
the employment of Datatec within the following three years.
Amount of bonus
deferred

JP Montanana
IP Dittrich

Grant
date

%

US$’000

Company
contribution
(x2 multiplier)
US$’000

12 and
14 June 2018
14 June 2018

83.3
20.4

837
40

837
40

Total
invested
in shares
US$’000

Total
number
of shares
purchased

Fair value
of awards
on grant
US$’000

Fair value of
awards at
28 February
2019
US$’000

1 675
80

1 000 000
47 000

1 675
80

2 094
98

The fair value of these awards at date of grant was the share price at which the DBP shares were purchased on the dates
shown in the table. The fair value at 28 February 2019 is R29.19 being the 30-day volume weighted average share price on
28 February 2019.
Jens Montanana has elected to defer 50% of his FY19 bonus, being US$812 000 into the new DBP to purchase
forfeitable shares in May/June 2019. The Company will contribute the same amount of forfeitable shares and the
Company’s contribution is included in the LTI element of remuneration for FY19 shown above.
Ivan Dittrich has elected to defer 25% of his FY19 bonus, being US$96 000 into the new DBP to purchase forfeitable
shares in May/June 2019. The Company will contribute the same amount of forfeitable shares and the Company’s
contribution is included in the LTI element of remuneration for FY19 shown above.
Westcon International Equity Appreciation Plan (“WI – EAP”)
During FY19, Datatec executive directors received awards of units in the Westcon International EAP as follows:

Westcon EAP

Grant
date

Number
of awards

Fair value
of awards
on grant
US$’000

JP Montanana
IP Dittrich

14/03/2018
14/03/2018

30 000
15 000

–
–

Grant fair
value as
percentage
of base pay
%

Fair value
of awards
at
28 Feb 19
US$’000

–
–

88
44

In addition to the above, Jens Montanana received an award of 10 000 units in the WI – EAP conditional on a sale
of Westcon International for in excess of US$300 million being achieved. The fair value of this award on grant date was
nil and at 28 February 2019 was US$14 000.
Discontinued long-term incentives (“old LTI”)
Directors holding office during FY19 held the following share appreciation rights under the rules of the SAR scheme:

JP Montanana

Grant
date

Grant
price
(ZAR)

SARs
held at
beginning
of year

Exercised
during
the year

Lapsed
during
the year

SARs
held at
year-end

14/05/2015
12/05/2016
28/07/2017

35.79
27.20
34.94

629 000
1 122 269
748 955

–
–
–

–
–
–

629 000
1 122 269
748 955

2 500 224

–

–

2 500 224

308 665
230 039

–
–

–
–

308 665
230 039

538 704

–

–

538 704

3 038 928

–

–

3 038 928

Sub-total
IP Dittrich
Sub-total
Total

12/05/2016
28/07/2017

27.20
34.94
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS continued
Directors’ emoluments continued
Directors holding office during FY19 held the following conditional awards under the LTIP:

Grant
date
JP Montanana

14/05/2015
12/05/2016
28/07/2017

Sub-total
IP Dittrich

12/05/2016
28/07/2017

Sub-total
Total

Awards
Vested
held at and settled
beginning
during
of year
the year

Lapsed/
forfeit
during
the year

Awards
held at
year-end

629 000
1 122 269
748 955

–
–
–

(629 000)
–
–

–
1 122 269
748 955

2 500 224

–

(629 000)

1 871 224

231 499
172 529

–
–

–
–

231 499
172 529

404 028

–

–

404 028

2 904 252

–

(629 000)

2 275 252

The total shareholder return (“TSR”) performance condition for the vesting of the 2015 conditional awards under the LTIP
was not met and accordingly the awards did not vest and lapsed in May 2018.
The 2016 LTIP awards are expected to vest 50% in May/June 2019 as the EPS performance condition has been met.
Accordingly the value of the vesting is included in the directors’ FY19 LTI remuneration figure disclosed above.
Directors holding office during FY18 held the following Datatec shares acquired and pledged under the terms of the
deferred bonus plan 2005 (“old DBP”):

JP Montanana

Date of
purchase
of pledged
shares

Matching
share
commitment
at beginning
of year

Performance
condition
achieved
(50%)

Shares
added
in lieu of
dividends
during
three-year
pledge
period

11/06/2015
28/06/2016

130 000
100 000

65 000
50 000

156 987
111 823

(351 987)
–

–
261 823

230 000

115 000

268 810

(351 987)

261 823

Sub-total
IP Dittrich
Sub-total
Total

29/06/2016

Matched
during
the year

Matching
share
commitment
at end
of year

45 745

22 873

51 153

–

119 771

45 745

22 873

51 153

–

119 771

275 745

137 873

319 963

(351 987)

381 594

The value of the 351 987 matching shares delivered to Jens Montanana in FY19 (on 25 May 2018) was US$577 000
(FY18: US$124 000).
The matching shares at the end of FY19 are expected to be delivered to directors in May/June 2019 and the value of
the performance condition based part of these matching shares (valued at the 30-day VWAP on 28 February 2019) is:
Jens Montanana: US$183 000; Ivan Dittrich: US$84 000.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
27.1 Financial risk management objectives
The management of financial risks relating to the operations of the Group is in line with the Group’s decentralised
business model with oversight through divisional audit, risk and compliance committee meetings. This is achieved
through the use of internal risk analyses which analyse exposures by likelihood and magnitude of risks. These risks
include market risk (including currency and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by matching assets and liabilities as far as possible or using
derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the
Group’s internal policies applicable at subsidiary level. The Group does not enter into or trade financial instruments,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
When appropriate, management reports regularly to the Group’s Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.
The Group’s financial assets and liabilities consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and borrowings and derivative instruments.
27.2 Capital risk management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy with respect to the debt and equity balance remains unchanged from FY18. The capital structure of the
Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Notes 17 and 22, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital (see Note 16), reserves and
retained earnings.
Gearing ratio
The Group’s capital structure is reviewed on at least a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:
2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Net cash and cash equivalents

(31 383)
(109 751)
40 381

(61 723)
(105 999)
161 342

Net debt
Total equity attributable to the parent
Gearing ratio: debt-to-equity ratio (%)

(100 753)
648 927
(16)

(6 380)
721 603
(1)

14 012
1 709 059

2 373
1 827 920

(2 407)
(1 675 838)
(2 329)

(3 368)
(1 530 934)
(1 240)

27.3 Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss*
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash equivalents) at amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (designated)

* Included in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is the net earn-out receivable (refer to Note 37).
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
27.4 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to
the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient
collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas. Ongoing credit evaluations are performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where
possible and appropriate, credit guarantee insurance cover is purchased. The Group does not have any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar characteristics.
The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities.
There is one customer in Latin America, with a gross value of US$141.7 million (FY19: US$145.2 million), which
represents more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables. There has not been any change in the credit
quality of this receivable and the amount is considered recoverable. The majority of the balance receivable is
current and this receivable therefore presents a low risk. The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial
instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks with appropriate credit ratings assigned by
international or recognised credit-rating agencies. Concentration risk is monitored and addressed by management
on an ongoing basis.
The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements (see Note 27.3), which is net of
impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value
of any collateral obtained. Further information on the concentration of credit risk is detailed in the following table:
US$’000
FY19
Gross trade accounts receivable
Less: Expected credit loss
allowances
Bonds
Loans granted to third parties and
other long-term assets due
Finance lease receivables
Other receivables
Derivative financial assets (level 2)
Cash and cash equivalents at
financial institutions
Maximum on statement of
financial position exposure
Financial guarantees

North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Total

84 244

253 362

603 691

207 256

141 961

1 290 514

(533)
–

(927)
–

(8 822)
–

(4 556)
–

(16 823)
18 960

(31 661)
18 960

53
174
15 537
–

–
3 469
17 374
2 318

2 562
15 527
32 508
–

157
–
6 401
–

1 866
–
2 912
–

4 638
19 170
74 732
2 318

26 061

62 683

112 809

83 220

59 627

344 400

125 536

338 279

758 275

292 478

208 503

1 723 071

–

–

3 963

–

–

3 963

82 514

252 517

573 970

181 765

135 611

1 226 377

(830)
–

(1 189)
–

(8 689)
–

(3 517)
–

(19 915)
21 885

(34 140)
21 885

FY18
Gross trade accounts receivable
Less: Expected credit loss
allowances
Bonds
Loans granted to third parties and
other long-term assets due
Finance lease receivables
Other receivables
Derivative financial assets (level 2)
Cash and cash equivalents at
financial institutions

2 418
1 503
10 794
–

–
353
35 202
1 341

3 233
15 375
26 001
977

170
531
36 984
55

2 171
–
2 821
–

7 992
17 762
111 802
2 373

170 770

44 484

73 279

69 134

118 575

476 242

Maximum on statement of
financial position exposure

267 169

332 708

684 146

285 122

261 148

1 830 293

–

–

6 170

–

–

6 170

Financial guarantees
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
27.4 Credit risk management continued
The internal risk rating of loans granted to third parties and other long-term assets due and other receivables is
“low risk” and these financial assets are considered to be performing.
The external credit risk ratings of bonds ranges from B– to B.
When measuring expected credit losses, the Group uses publicly available, reasonable forward-looking information.
Expected credit losses are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the
lender would expect to receive, taking into account cash flows from collateral and integral credit enhancements.
For trade receivables, finance lease receivables and contract assets, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime expected credit losses. The Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix, which takes into consideration the payment profiles of
trade receivables over a period of 12 months in preceding financial years, the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the receivables, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. Accordingly,
the credit risk profile of these assets is presented based on their past due status in terms of the provision matrix.
A default on a trade receivable occurs when the receivable fails to make contractual payments when they fall due.
The Group’s trade receivables share similar risk characteristics by nature. The default percentages on outstanding
trade receivables are determined based on the geographical regions of the trade receivables.
No expected credit losses have been recognised for finance lease receivables or contract assets and all balances
are included in the “current” ageing per the Group’s past due matrix. Note 14 includes further details on the loss
allowance for trade receivables.
US$22.5 million of trade receivables are held as collateral against long-term and short-term interest-bearing funding
(refer to Notes 17.2 and 18.2). US$204.4 million of financial assets are held as collateral over trade receivables in
the form of credit guarantees. There has not been any deterioration or changes in the collateral policies during the
year, nor are there any financial instruments for which a loss allowance has not been recognised because of the
collateral.
All significant customers are vetted by an external credit agency. In certain instances, customers with low credit
ratings are investigated further and requests for collateral are made. Credit guarantees are sought for receivables
over a certain credit limit in MEA.
No expected credit losses have been recognised for any financial assets, other than trade receivables.
The Group does not consider there to be any significant credit risk, which has not been adequately provided for
at the reporting date.
Furthermore, there has been no material change to the Group’s exposure to credit risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
Derivative financial assets relate to forward exchange contracts, automatic rolling collar and interest rate swaps and
are classified as level 2 financial instruments.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
27.5 Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Ultimate
responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and borrowing
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.
The Group is dependent on its bank overdrafts and trade finance facilities to operate. These facilities generally
consist of either a fixed term or fixed period but are repayable on demand, are secured against the assets of
the Company to which the facility is made available and contain certain covenants including financial covenants
such as minimum liquidity, maximum leverage and pre-tax earnings coverage. In certain circumstances, if these
covenants are violated and a waiver is not obtained for such violation, this may, among other things, mean that
the facility may be repayable on demand. Included in Note 22 is a listing of additional undrawn facilities that the
Group has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.
There have been no defaults or breaches during the year, nor any that exist at year-end.
The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative and derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
US$’000
FY19
Trade payables
Other payables and other financial
liabilities
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities
and finance leases
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Amounts owing to vendors
Bank overdrafts
Derivative financial liabilities (level 2)
Financial guarantees/commitments
FY18
Trade payables
Other payables and other financial
liabilities
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities
and finance leases
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities
Amounts owing to vendors
Bank overdrafts
Derivative financial liabilities (level 2)
Financial guarantees/commitments

0 – 1 year

1 – 2 years

2 – 5 years

After
5 years

Total

(1 056 451)

–

–

–

(1 056 451)

(174 234)

–

–

–

(174 234)

(45 005)
(64 746)
(936)
(304 019)
(2 349)

(16 796)
–
(1 393)
–
(58)

(14 080)
–
–
–
–

(507)
–
–
–
–

(76 388)
(64 746)
(2 329)
(304 019)
(2 407)

(1 647 740)

(18 247)

(14 080)

(507)

(1 680 574)

(802)

–

–

(14)

(816)

(894 192)

–

–

–

(894 192)

(151 369)

(2 751)

–

–

(154 120)

(4 755)
(86 114)
(1 029)
(314 900)
(3 368)

(27 581)
–
(211)
–
–

(47 122)
–
–
–
–

(2 150)
–
–
–
–

(81 608)
(86 114)
(1 240)
(314 900)
(3 368)

(1 455 727)

(30 543)

(47 122)

(2 150)

(1 535 542)

(505)

(165)

–

–

(670)

The Group continues to actively monitor its exposure to liquidity risks and the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk, particularly the inherent counterparty risk which may arise through the Group’s dealings with
financial institutions.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
27.6 Market risk management
The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
(see Note 27.7) and interest rates (see Note 27.8). The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments
to manage its exposure to foreign currency and interest rate risk, including:
• forward foreign exchange contracts (“FECs”) to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on transactions
denominated in foreign currency;
• a zero cost collar which offers protection against adverse currency moves beyond a certain level; and
• interest rate swaps to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates.
There has been no material change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.
27.7 Foreign exchange risk management
The Group operates in the global business environment and undertakes many transactions denominated in foreign
currencies which exposes it to the risk of fluctuating exchange rates. The day-to-day management of foreign
currency exchange risk is performed on a decentralised basis, within approved policy parameters and through the
use of derivative instruments. These instruments primarily comprise FECs and zero cost collars. FECs require a
future purchase or sale of foreign currency at a specified price. The Group does not trade in FECs for speculative
purposes.
Fluctuations in exchange rates also affect the translation of the profits of subsidiaries whose functional currency is
not the US Dollar. The most significant other currencies in which the Group trades are the Pound Sterling, the Euro,
the Brazilian Real, the Australian Dollar and the South African Rand.
27.7.1 Foreign currency exposure analysis
The Group’s operating companies have financial assets and liabilities that are denominated in multiple
currencies, in many instances currencies other than their functional currencies. Differences arising from
the translation of these foreign currency denominated financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income as foreign exchange gains and/or losses.
Westcon International
Westcon International operates in the global business environment and undertakes many transactions
denominated in foreign currencies. Westcon International is exposed to the risk of fluctuating exchange
rates and seeks to actively manage this exposure, within approved policy parameters and through the
use of derivative instruments. These instruments primarily comprise forward exchange contracts.
Forward exchange contracts require a future purchase or sale of foreign currency at a specified price.
Datatec management has performed a review of foreign currency exposures of the financial assets and
liabilities of Westcon International. In addition the foreign exchange gains or losses in the statement of
comprehensive income were reviewed to identify the regions with potential exposures. Where no natural
hedges occur, Westcon International is adequately hedged in most regions. There were foreign exchange
exposures found in Africa. However, the impact on the statement of comprehensive income was not found
to be material.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued
27.7 Foreign exchange risk management continued
27.7.1 Foreign currency exposure analysis continued
Logicalis
Logicalis operates in the global business environment and undertakes many transactions denominated
in foreign currencies. Logicalis is exposed to the risk of fluctuating exchange rates and seeks to actively
manage this exposure, within approved policy parameters and through the use of derivative instruments.
These instruments primarily comprise forward exchange contracts. Forward exchange contracts require
a future purchase or sale of foreign currency at a specified price.
Datatec management has performed a review of foreign currency exposures of the financial assets and
liabilities of Logicalis. In addition, the foreign exchange gains or losses in the statement of comprehensive
income were reviewed to identify the regions with potential exposures. Where no natural hedges occur,
Logicalis is adequately hedged in most regions. The total exposure is US$97.5 million. A 10% movement
will result in a US$9.8 million movement in the statement of comprehensive income.
Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services
Datatec management has performed a review of foreign currency exposures of the financial assets and
liabilities of the Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services segment. There were no material foreign
exchange exposures identified.
27.7.2 Forward foreign exchange contracts
It is the policy of the Group to enter into FECs to cover certain specific foreign currency payments and
receipts based on the known exposure generated. The Group also enters into FECs to manage the risk
associated with anticipated sales and purchase transactions, with FECs ranging up to approximately
six months and with cover up to 100% of the anticipated exposure generated. Obligations under open
FEC contracts are detailed in Notes 27.4 and 27.5, as derivative financial assets and derivative financial
liabilities respectively.
27.8 Interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as entities in the Group borrow funds at both fixed and floating
interest rates. The risk is managed by the Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate
borrowings. The interest rate characteristics of new borrowings and the refinancing of existing borrowings
are positioned according to expected movements in interest rates and defined risk appetite (see Note 27.5).
Interest rate sensitivity analyses
The analyses below sets out the sensitivity of the Group’s variable rate financial assets and liabilities to movements
in the applicable interest rates based on an average outstanding asset or liability calculated for the year. The
applicable increase or decrease that represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates, is a 10% increase in the applicable variable interest rates across the Group.
Datatec Group
• Profit for the year ended 28 February 2019 would decrease by a net amount of US$0.94 million
(FY18: US$0.69 million decrease).
Westcon International
• Profit for the year ended 28 February 2019 would decrease by a net amount of US$0.76 million
(FY18: US$0.76 million decrease).
Logicalis
• Profit for the year ended 28 February 2019 would increase by a net amount of US$0.12 million
(FY18: US$0.30 million decrease).
Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services
• Profit for the year ended 28 February 2019 would decrease by a net amount of US$0.30 million
(FY18: US$0.37 million)
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation**
Adjustment for:
Unrealised foreign exchange (gains)/losses**
Share-based payments**
Share of equity-accounted investment losses
Depreciation and amortisation**
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of discontinued operations
Net movement in provisions
Loss on disposal of investment
Net movements on expected credit loss allowances**
Acquisition-related fair value adjustments
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure
Impairment of investment in joint venture
Cash payments to settle share-based payment obligations
Interest income**
Finance costs*, **
Other non-cash items

35 909

58 919

(7 467)
9 764
1 403
38 338
93
(11 694)
581
255
3 817
35
–
–
(1 513)
(9 568)
32 145
(3 167)

11 131
6 599
276
54 324
170
(136 341)
10 792
–
11 757
(48)
55 112
1 000
(5 043)
(9 078)
34 377
(2 672)

Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase in receivables
Increase in payables
Increase in revenue-related assets***
Increase in revenue-related liabilities***
Increase in finance lease receivables
Other non-current assets and liabilities

88 931
(21 228)
(95 518)
(90 937)
171 592
(17 234)
10 869
(1 408)
2 695

91 275
(60 184)
28 831
(258 056)
169 041
–
–
(18 378)
4 912

68 990

17 625

* Includes non-cash accruals.
** Includes both continuing and discontinued operations.
*** The Group has initially applied IFRS 15 at 1 March 2018. It has applied IFRS 15 using the cumulative effect method, under which the
comparative information is not restated.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

(6 069)
(199)
–
(38 523)
–
–
1 876
4 384

6 690
(592)
(9 927)
(31 123)
(13 720)
(721)
(122)
6 069

(38 531)

(43 446)

11 442
(15 826)

9 492
(15 561)

(4 384)

(6 069)

The fair value of assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
on the acquisition of subsidiary companies (Note 35) is:
Property, plant and equipment and software
Capitalised development expenditure
Provisions
Trade and other receivables
Inventories
Net cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Net taxation liability
Other non-current liabilities
Net deferred tax liability

4 560
734
(1 274)
23 212
3 538
390
(19 998)
(199)
(2 835)
(1 607)

2 129
–
–
17 978
11 882
1 931
(18 480)
(592)
(4 137)
(1 078)

Net fair value of tangible assets acquired
Goodwill arising on acquisitions
Intangible assets
Non-controlling interest acquired

6 521
13 090
8 070
459

9 633
5 955
6 892
(6 845)

Total fair value of acquisitions
Net cash acquired
Deferred purchase consideration
Subsidiary company shares

28 140
(390)
(2 300)
–

15 635
(1 931)
(858)
(2 097)

Net cash outflow for acquisitions

25 450

10 749

TAXATION PAID
Net taxation (liability)/asset – at the beginning of the year
Subsidiaries acquired
Subsidiaries disposed
Charge to profit or loss for continuing operations (excluding deferred tax)
Charge to profit or loss for discontinued operations (excluding deferred tax)
Charge to other comprehensive income
Other movements and translation differences
Net taxation liability – at the end of the year
Net taxation
Current tax assets
Current tax liabilities
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 554
8 932
3 712
8

3 301
5 428
5 253
14

279
8 078
872
334

1 522
9 052
1 434
–

23 769

26 004

(15 116)

4 099

ADDITIONS TO PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Maintenance of operations:
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Land and buildings
Expansion of operations:
Office furniture, equipment and motor vehicles
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Land and buildings

32.
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CASH FLOW ADDITIONAL NOTES
32.1 Translation difference on cash and cash equivalents
The translation difference on the net cash/(overdraft) position is calculated on the
combined cash resources and bank overdrafts of companies that hold cash in
currencies other than the US Dollar.
32.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
Non-cash changes

US$’000
Amounts owing to
vendors
Long-term interestbearing liabilities**
Unsecured loans
Liabilities under
capitalised finance
leases
Secured loans
Short-term interestbearing liabilities

Opening
balance as
at 1 March
2018

Financing
cash
(inflows)*

Financing
cash
outflows*

Acquisition
of subsidiary

Foreign
currency
and other
changes

Closing
balance
as at
28 February
2019

(1 240)

–

927

(2 300)

284

(2 329)

(81 608)
(39 365)

(13 366)
(5 663)

10 462
9 159

(2 835)
–

10 959
4 921

(76 388)
(30 948)

(25 109)
(17 134)

(7 703)
–

1 286
17

(2 835)
–

3 379
2 659

(30 982)
(14 458)

(86 114)

(65 203)

77 830

–

8 741

(64 746)

* The cash flows from bank loans and other borrowings make up the net amount of proceeds and repayments in terms of short-term
and long-term liabilities in the Group statement of cash flows under financing liabilities.
** Includes current position (US$45.0 million).

33.

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

344 400
(304 019)

476 242
(314 900)

40 381

161 342

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
Cash resources
Bank overdrafts
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SEGMENTAL REPORT
For management’s internal purposes, the Group is currently organised into three operating divisions which are the basis
on which the Group reports its primary segmental information.
Principal activities are as follows:
• Westcon International – distribution of security, collaboration, networking and data centre products;
• Logicalis – ICT infrastructure solutions and services; and
• Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services – includes strategic and technical consulting, capital/leasing business,
Group head office companies and Group consolidation adjustments.
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive directors that make strategic decisions.
Westcon International
2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2 544 774
5 565
–
–
18 248
10 836
4 905
(28 424)
(9 791)
–
–

2 316 650
(48 123)
–
–
6 620
3 004
(11 436)
(46 311)
(23 699)
(1 000)
(55 112)

Operating (loss)/profit
Interest income
Finance costs
Share of equity-accounted investment (losses)/earnings
Acquisition-related fair value adjustments
Other (expenses)/income
Loss on disposal of investment

(4 226)
1 491
(13 683)
(2 143)
–
(97)
(255)

(127 934)
1 609
(12 833)
(440)
–
–
–

(Loss)/profit before taxation
Taxation

(18 913)
(3 271)

(139 598)
(7 649)

(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations
(Loss)/profit for the year from discontinued operations

(22 184)
–

(147 247)
(433 629)

(Loss)/profit for the year

(22 184)

(580 876)

Condensed statement of comprehensive income
Revenue
EBITDA
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Datatec Group and divisional central costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment of investment in joint venture
Impairment of capitalised development expenditure

During FY19 and FY18, there were no customers that individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s revenue.
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Datatec Group total

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 741 064
93 366
21 898
55 801
8 265
20 156
(290)
(12 464)
(27 417)
–
–

1 563 714
86 165
16 516
46 943
15 496
16 769
(797)
(8 762)
(26 682)
–
–

46 543
(12 170)
(259)
109
619
196
440
(13 275)
(1 130)
–
–

43 351
(11 345)
(463)
170
668
438
314
(12 472)
(1 182)
–
–

4 332 381
86 761
21 639
55 910
27 132
31 188
5 055
(54 163)
(38 338)
–
–

3 923 715
26 697
16 053
47 113
22 784
20 211
(11 919)
(67 545)
(51 563)
(1 000)
(55 112)

65 949
1 693
(18 455)
468
(35)
–
–

59 483
1 444
(14 227)
(51)
48
–
–

(13 300)
6 384
(7)
272
–
159
–

(12 527)
5 617
(13)
215
–
257
–

48 423
9 568
(32 145)
(1 403)
(35)
62
(255)

(80 978)
8 670
(27 073)
(276)
48
257
–

49 620
(12 317)

46 697
(7 311)

(6 492)
(5 371)

(6 451)
(3 505)

24 215
(20 959)

(99 352)
(18 465)

37 303
–

39 386
26 340

(11 863)
11 694

(9 956)
566 897

3 256
11 694

(117 817)
159 608

37 303

65 726

(169)

556 941

14 950

41 791
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SEGMENTAL REPORT continued
Westcon International
2019
US$’000

North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Central

Total

Revenue
Revenue from product sales
Revenue from sales of
hardware/direct product sales
Revenue from sales of
software/fulfilment product
sales
Revenue from vendor resold
services and product
maintenance service
Inter-segmental

–
–

– 1 613 905
– 1 565 345

593 450
581 958

337 419
332 104

– 2 544 774
– 2 479 407

–

– 1 136 097

412 585

223 897

– 1 772 579

–

–

410 258

175 661

102 117

–

688 036

–
–

–
–

40 065
(21 075)

11 089
(17 377)

6 665
(575)

–
–

57 819
(39 027)

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

– 1 565 345
– 1 586 420
–
–
–
(21 075)

581 958
599 335
–
(17 377)

332 104
332 679
–
(575)

– 2 479 407
– 2 518 434
–
–
–
(39 027)

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

– 1 565 345
– 1 586 420
–
–
–
(21 075)

581 958
599 335
–
(17 377)

332 104
332 679
–
(575)

– 2 479 407
– 2 518 434
–
–
–
(39 027)

Revenue from services
Revenue from professional
services
Revenue from other services
Inter-segmental

–

–

48 560

11 492

5 315

–

65 367

–
–
–

–
–
–

48 560
–
–

11 492
–
–

4 376
939
–

–
–
–

64 428
939
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

48 560
48 560
–
–

11 492
11 492
–
–

5 315
5 315
–
–

–
–
–
–

65 367
65 367
–
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

48 560
48 560
–
–

11 492
11 492
–
–

5 315
5 315
–
–

–
–
–
–

65 367
65 367
–
–

Annuity revenue
Revenue from cloud services
Revenue from other annuity
services
Inter-segmental

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
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Westcon International
2018
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

–
–

– 1 479 710
– 1 423 777

497 521
459 678

339 419
322 258

– 2 316 650
– 2 205 713

–

– 1 044 323

343 254

241 265

(3 026) 1 625 816

–

–

356 664

126 557

75 190

–

558 411

–
–

–
–

39 113
(16 323)

13 552
(23 685)

6 077
(274)

–
3 026

58 742
(37 256)

–
–
–
–

– 1 423 777
– 1 440 100
–
–
–
(16 323)

459 678
483 363
–
(23 685)

322 258
322 532
–
(274)

– 2 205 713
(3 026) 2 242 969
–
–
3 026
(37 256)

–
–
–
–

– 1 423 777
– 1 440 100
–
–
–
(16 323)

459 678
483 363
–
(23 685)

322 258
322 532
–
(274)

– 2 205 713
(3 026) 2 242 969
–
–
3 026
(37 256)

–

–

48 319

10 748

7 062

–

66 129

–
–
–

–
–
–

17 329
30 990
–

3 144
7 604
–

1 676
5 386
–

–
–
–

22 149
43 980
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

48 319
48 319
–
–

10 748
10 748
–
–

7 062
7 062
–
–

–
–
–
–

66 129
66 129
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

48 319
48 319
–
–

10 748
10 748
–
–

7 062
7 062
–
–

–
–
–
–

66 129
66 129
–
–

–
–

–
–

7 614
7 614

27 095
27 095

10 099
10 099

–
–

44 808
44 808

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

7 614
7 614
–
–

27 095
27 095
–
–

10 099
10 099
–
–

–
–
–
–

44 808
44 808
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

7 614
7 614
–
–

27 095
27 095
–
–

10 099
10 099
–
–

–
–
–
–

44 808
44 808
–
–

Central

Total
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SEGMENTAL REPORT continued
Logicalis
2019
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Revenue
Revenue from product sales
Revenue from sales of
hardware/direct product sales
Revenue from sales of
software/fulfilment product
sales
Revenue from vendor resold
services and product
maintenance service
Inter-segmental

406 172
298 507

639 826
399 193

450 276
243 176

242 458
145 495

2 332
418

255 743

398 696

199 723

137 187

308

–

991 657

43 223

497

43 243

8 410

110

–

95 483

736
(1 195)

–
–

264
(54)

–
(102)

–
–

–
–

1 000
(1 351)

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

298 507
298 966
736
(1 195)

399 193
398 543
650
–

243 176
241 039
2 191
(54)

145 495
145 979
(382)
(102)

418
418
–
–

– 1 086 789
– 1 084 945
–
3 195
–
(1 351)

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

298 507
299 702
–
(1 195)

399 193
399 193
–
–

243 176
243 230
–
(54)

145 495
145 597
–
(102)

418
418
–
–

– 1 086 789
– 1 088 140
–
–
–
(1 351)

Revenue from services
Revenue from professional
services
Revenue from other services
Inter-segmental

39 939

115 689

82 675

30 456

315

–

269 074

39 939
–
–

115 689
–
–

82 675
–
–

30 456
–
–

315
–
–

–
–
–

269 074
–
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

39 939
39 939
–
–

115 689
115 677
12
–

82 675
82 675
–
–

30 456
30 456
–
–

315
315
–
–

–
–
–
–

269 074
269 062
12
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

39 939
–
39 939
–

115 689
–
115 689
–

82 675
–
82 675
–

30 456
–
30 456
–

315
–
315
–

–
–
–
–

269 074
–
269 074
–

Annuity revenue
Revenue from cloud services
Revenue from other annuity
services
Inter-segmental

67 726
18 932

124 944
1 031

124 425
11 486

66 507
11 941

1 599
659

–
–

385 201
44 049

48 794
–

123 913
–

112 939
–

54 566
–

940
–

–
–

341 152
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

67 726
51 223
16 503
–

124 944
124 238
706
–

124 425
110 136
14 289
–

66 507
63 119
3 388
–

1 599
1 418
181
–

–
–
–
–

385 201
350 134
35 067
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

67 726
–
67 726
–

124 944
–
124 944
–

124 425
–
124 425
–

66 507
–
66 507
–

1 599
–
1 599
–

–
–
–
–

385 201
–
385 201
–

US$’000

Central

Total

– 1 741 064
– 1 086 789
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Logicalis
2018
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

382 637
284 732

536 652
362 627

432 742
226 205

211 705
121 973

(22)
(1 621)

– 1 563 714
–
993 916

240 178

361 049

198 524

117 802

(1 621)

–

915 932

43 436

1 578

27 301

4 171

–

–

76 486

1 118
–

–
–

380
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

1 498
–

284 732
278 674
6 058
–

362 627
362 627
–
–

226 205
224 267
1 938
–

121 973
121 973
–
–

(1 621)
(1 621)
–
–

–
–
–
–

993 916
985 920
7 996
–

284 732
284 732
–
–

362 627
362 627
–
–

226 205
226 205
–
–

121 973
121 973
–
–

(1 621)
(1 621)
–
–

–
–
–
–

993 916
993 916
–
–

35 985

54 374

78 969

23 885

–

–

193 213

39 139
–
(3 154)

54 385
–
(11)

79 013
–
(44)

23 894
–
(9)

–
–
–

–
–
–

196 431
–
(3 218)

35 985
39 139
–
(3 154)

54 374
54 385
–
(11)

78 969
79 013
–
(44)

23 885
23 894
–
(9)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

193 213
196 431
–
(3 218)

35 985
–
39 139
(3 154)

54 374
–
54 385
(11)

78 969
–
79 013
(44)

23 885
–
23 894
(9)

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

193 213
–
196 431
(3 218)

61 920
16 377

119 651
852

127 568
7 068

65 847
11 187

1 599
–

–
–

376 585
35 484

45 543
–

118 799
–

120 500
–

54 660
–

1 599
–

–
–

341 101
–

61 920
45 708
16 212
–

119 651
119 166
485
–

127 568
111 977
15 591
–

65 847
64 013
1 834
–

1 599
1 599
–
–

–
–
–
–

376 585
342 463
34 122
–

61 920
–
61 920
–

119 651
–
119 651
–

127 568
–
127 568
–

65 847
–
65 847
–

1 599
–
1 599
–

–
–
–
–

376 585
–
376 585
–

Central

Total
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SEGMENTAL REPORT continued
Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services
2019
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Central

Total

4 285
–

1 944
–

24 530
–

7 939
–

7 845
–

–
–

46 543
–

(1 195)

–

(15 650)

(12 961)

(425)

–

(30 231)

–

–

(5 479)

(4 518)

(150)

–

(10 147)

–
1 195

–
–

–
21 129

–
17 479

–
575

–
–

–
40 378

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

–
(1 195)
–
1 195

–
–
–
–

–
(21 129)
–
21 129

–
(17 479)
–
17 479

–
(575)
–
575

–
–
–
–

–
(40 378)
–
40 378

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

–
(1 195)
–
1 195

–
–
–
–

–
(21 129)
–
21 129

–
(17 479)
–
17 479

–
(575)
–
575

–
–
–
–

–
(40 378)
–
40 378

Revenue from services
Revenue from professional
services
Revenue from other services
Inter-segmental

4 285

1 944

24 530

7 939

7 845

–

46 543

4 285
–
–

1 944
–
–

24 530
–
–

7 939
–
–

7 845
–
–

–
–
–

46 543
–
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

4 285
4 285
–
–

1 944
1 944
–
–

24 530
24 530
–
–

7 939
7 939
–
–

7 845
7 845
–
–

–
–
–
–

46 543
46 543
–
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

4 285
–
4 285
–

1 944
–
1 944
–

24 530
–
24 530
–

7 939
–
7 939
–

7 845
169
7 676
–

–
–
–
–

46 543
169
46 374
–

Annuity revenue
Revenue from cloud services
Revenue from other annuity
services
Inter-segmental

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

US$’000
Revenue
Revenue from product sales
Revenue from sales of
hardware/direct product sales
Revenue from sales of
software/fulfilment product
sales
Revenue from vendor resold
services and product
maintenance service
Inter-segmental
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Corporate, Consulting and Financial Services
2018
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Central

Total

3 238
–

3 053
–

23 300
–

8 123
–

5 637
–

–
–

43 351
–

–

–

(12 079)

(17 527)

(270)

3 026

(26 850)

–

–

(4 244)

(6 158)

(4)

–

(10 406)

–
–

–
–

–
16 323

–
23 685

–
274

–
(3 026)

–
37 256

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
(16 323)
–
16 323

–
(23 685)
–
23 685

–
(274)
–
274

–
3 026
–
(3 026)

–
(37 256)
–
37 256

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
(16 323)
–
16 323

–
(23 685)
–
23 685

–
(274)
–
274

–
3 026
–
(3 026)

–
(37 256)
–
37 256

3 238

3 053

23 300

8 123

5 637

–

43 351

84
–
3 154

3 042
–
11

23 256
–
44

8 114
–
9

5 637
–
–

–
–
–

40 133
–
3 218

3 238
84
–
3 154

3 053
3 042
–
11

23 300
23 256
–
44

8 123
8 114
–
9

5 637
5 637
–
–

–
–
–
–

43 351
40 133
–
3 218

3 238
796
(712)
3 154

3 053
–
3 042
11

23 300
321
22 935
44

8 123
281
7 833
9

5 637
–
5 637
–

–
–
–
–

43 351
1 398
38 735
3 218

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–

Page 181
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Notes to the Group consolidated
annual financial statements continued

2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

for the year ended 28 February 2019

34.

Page 182
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

SEGMENTAL REPORT continued
Datatec Group total
2019
US$’000

North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

Central

Total

Revenue
Revenue from product sales
Revenue from sales of
hardware/direct product sales
Revenue from sales of
software/fulfilment product
sales
Revenue from vendor resold
services and product
maintenance service
Inter-segmental

410 457
298 507

641 770 2 088 711
399 193 1 808 521

843 847
727 453

347 596
332 522

– 4 332 381
– 3 566 196

254 548

398 696 1 320 170

536 811

223 780

– 2 734 005

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental
Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

43 223

497

448 022

179 553

102 077

–

773 372

736
–

–
–

40 329
–

11 089
–

6 665
–

–
–

58 819
–

298 507
297 771
736
–

399 193 1 808 521
398 543 1 806 330
650
2 191
–
–

727 453
727 835
(382)
–

332 522
332 522
–
–

– 3 566 196
– 3 563 001
–
3 195
–
–

298 507
298 507
–
–

399 193 1 808 521
399 193 1 808 521
–
–
–
–

727 453
727 453
–
–

332 522
332 522
–
–

– 3 566 196
– 3 566 196
–
–
–
–

Revenue from services
Revenue from professional
services
Revenue from other services
Inter-segmental

44 224

117 633

155 765

49 887

13 475

–

380 984

44 224
–
–

117 633
–
–

155 765
–
–

49 887
–
–

12 536
939
–

–
–
–

380 045
939
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

44 224
44 224
–
–

117 633
117 621
12
–

155 765
155 765
–
–

49 887
49 887
–
–

13 475
13 475
–
–

–
–
–
–

380 984
380 972
12
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

44 224
–
44 224
–

117 633
–
117 633
–

155 765
48 560
107 205
–

49 887
11 492
38 395
–

13 475
5 484
7 991
–

–
–
–
–

380 984
65 536
315 448
–

Annuity revenue
Revenue from cloud services
Revenue from other annuity
services
Inter-segmental

67 726
18 932

124 944
1 031

124 425
11 486

66 507
11 941

1 599
659

–
–

385 201
44 049

48 794
–

123 913
–

112 939
–

54 566
–

940
–

–
–

341 152
–

Nature of revenue
Principal
Agent
Inter-segmental

67 726
51 223
16 503
–

124 944
124 238
706
–

124 425
110 136
14 289
–

66 507
63 119
3 388
–

1 599
1 418
181
–

–
–
–
–

385 201
350 134
35 067
–

Timing of revenue
At a point in time
Over time
Inter-segmental

67 726
–
67 726
–

124 944
–
124 944
–

124 425
–
124 425
–

66 507
–
66 507
–

1 599
–
1 599
–

–
–
–
–

385 201
–
385 201
–
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Datatec Group total
2018
North
America

Latin
America

Europe

AsiaPacific

MEA

385 875
284 732

539 705 1 935 752
362 627 1 649 982

717 349
581 651

345 034
320 637

– 3 923 715
– 3 199 629

240 178

361 049 1 230 768

443 529

239 374

– 2 514 898

Central

Total

43 436

1 578

379 721

124 570

75 186

–

624 491

1 118
–

–
–

39 493
–

13 552
–

6 077
–

–
–

60 240
–

284 732
278 674
6 058
–

362 627 1 649 982
362 627 1 648 044
–
1 938
–
–

581 651
581 651
–
–

320 637
320 637
–
–

– 3 199 629
– 3 191 633
–
7 996
–
–

284 732
284 732
–
–

362 627 1 649 982
362 627 1 649 982
–
–
–
–

581 651
581 651
–
–

320 637
320 637
–
–

– 3 199 629
– 3 199 629
–
–
–
–

39 223

57 427

150 588

42 756

12 699

–

302 693

39 223
–
–

57 427
–
–

119 598
30 990
–

35 152
7 604
–

7 313
5 386
–

–
–
–

258 713
43 980
–

39 223
39 223
–
–

57 427
57 427
–
–

150 588
150 588
–
–

42 756
42 756
–
–

12 699
12 699
–
–

–
–
–
–

302 693
302 693
–
–

39 223
796
38 427
–

57 427
–
57 427
–

150 588
48 640
101 948
–

42 756
11 029
31 727
–

12 699
7 062
5 637
–

–
–
–
–

302 693
67 527
235 166
–

61 920
16 377

119 651
852

135 182
14 682

92 942
38 282

11 698
10 099

–
–

421 393
80 292

45 543
–

118 799
–

120 500
–

54 660
–

1 599
–

–
–

341 101
–

61 920
45 708
16 212
–

119 651
119 166
485
–

135 182
119 591
15 591
–

92 942
91 108
1 834
–

11 698
11 698
–
–

–
–
–
–

421 393
387 271
34 122
–

61 920
–
61 920
–

119 651
–
119 651
–

135 182
7 614
127 568
–

92 942
27 095
65 847
–

11 698
10 099
1 599
–

–
–
–
–

421 393
44 808
376 585
–

Page 183
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

Datatec Integrated Report 2019

Notes to the Group consolidated
annual financial statements continued
for the year ended 28 February 2019

34.

2–6
7 – 19
20 – 57
58 – 95
96 – 195
196 – 209

Page 184
Overview
Value creation
Delivering value
Value protection
Our financial results
Notices and references

SEGMENTAL REPORT continued
Westcon International
Condensed statement of financial position
Total assets
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Non-current assets (excluding financial instruments
and deferred tax assets)
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Net cash resources
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Inventories
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Trade accounts receivable
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Total liabilities
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Trade and other payables and short-term
interest-bearing liabilities
North America
Latin America
Europe
Asia-Pacific
MEA
Number of employees at the end of the year*
* Includes both permanent employees and contractors.

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 226 057
37 792
–
758 520
273 016
156 729

1 088 316
(211 537)
–
890 635
258 985
150 233

29 995
12 644
–
11 444
3 649
2 258
(94 360)
18 657
–
(171 792)
53 559
5 216
239 955
–
–
175 919
44 947
19 089
768 932
(41)
–
494 429
153 408
121 136
(1 046 305)
(6 808)
–
(706 106)
(198 327)
(135 064)

26 200
(193 785)
–
203 042
13 607
3 336
(113 818)
12 114
–
(162 774)
21 545
15 297
172 663
500
–
107 445
45 791
18 927
715 538
–
–
466 124
135 088
114 326
(957 802)
(13 976)
–
(626 897)
(186 430)
(130 499)

(792 174)
(4 551)
–
(497 772)
(190 556)
(99 295)
3 171

(681 249)
(26 443)
–
(420 868)
(155 839)
(78 099)
2 930
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Datatec Group total

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

1 318 226
276 961
602 503
245 504
187 455
5 803

1 253 824
242 541
537 380
303 037
169 877
989

178 024
4 982
328
123 634
4 112
44 968

319 458
2 824
404
207 929
3 768
104 533

2 722 307
319 735
602 831
1 127 658
464 583
207 500

2 661 598
33 828
537 784
1 401 601
432 630
255 755

296 969
133 725
49 831
86 920
22 886
3 607
16 443
(20 145)
(2 328)
32 015
6 103
798
92 301
5 367
55 285
9 944
21 659
46
478 273
83 038
252 285
94 676
47 616
658
(943 441)
(191 291)
(414 968)
(204 098)
(131 533)
(1 551)

286 751
155 623
35 517
68 461
26 988
162
7 122
(18 343)
(10 419)
35 460
(115)
539
65 874
3 212
29 990
13 465
19 207
–
467 142
81 257
251 208
93 387
41 290
–
(890 820)
(162 138)
(392 162)
(247 871)
(88 249)
(400)

21 727
34
–
21 636
17
40
118 298
2 548
–
76 564
1 199
37 987
–
–
–
–
–
–
11 648
714
149
5 764
1 677
3 344
(20 331)
5 479
(75)
(24 051)
(1 207)
(477)

21 155
7
–
21 084
(35)
99
268 038
1 328
–
167 753
1 252
97 705
–
–
–
–
–
–
9 557
438
120
6 177
1 452
1 370
(22 156)
5 802
(186)
(28 354)
(828)
1 410

348 691
146 403
49 831
120 000
26 552
5 905
40 381
1 060
(2 328)
(63 213)
60 861
44 001
332 256
5 367
55 285
185 863
66 606
19 135
1 258 853
83 711
252 434
594 869
202 701
125 138
(2 010 077)
(192 620)
(415 043)
(934 255)
(331 067)
(137 092)

334 106
(38 155)
35 517
292 587
40 560
3 597
161 342
(4 901)
(10 419)
40 439
22 682
113 541
238 537
3 712
29 990
120 910
64 998
18 927
1 192 237
81 695
251 328
565 688
177 830
115 696
(1 870 778)
(170 312)
(392 348)
(903 122)
(275 507)
(129 489)

(657 628)
(139 365)
(287 345)
(166 368)
(63 379)
(1 171)
6 690

(600 751)
(117 667)
(264 089)
(153 541)
(65 112)
(342)
5 446

(18 877)
(3 955)
–
(17 579)
(654)
3 311
269

(23 383)
(2 150)
(234)
(24 432)
(350)
3 783
240

(1 468 679)
(147 871)
(287 345)
(681 719)
(254 589)
(97 155)
10 130

(1 305 383)
(146 260)
(264 323)
(598 841)
(221 301)
(74 658)
8 616
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ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Principal
activity

Date of
acquisition

Proportion of
shares
acquired
%

Consulting
ICT solutions
ICT solutions
ICT solutions

17/07/2018
03/09/2018
03/09/2018
08/10/2018

100
100
100
100

Coasin
Fair value on
acquisition
US$’000

Clarotech
Fair value on
acquisition
US$’000

CNI and other
acquisitionrelated
adjustments
Fair value on
acquisition
US$’000

Total
Fair value on
acquisition
US$’000

Subsidiaries acquired
Access Markets International Partners, Inc. (US) (“AMI Partners”)
Coasin Chile S.A. (“Coasin”)
Clarotech Holdings(Pty) Limited (“Clarotech”)
Computer Network Integration Pty Ltd (“CNI”)

AMI Partners
Fair value on
acquisition
US$’000
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax assets
Trade receivables and other receivables
Inventories
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Software
Capitalised development expenditure
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets
Current liabilities
Provisions
Trade and other payables
Bank overdraft
Taxation liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

1 782
1 325
33
424
–
606
42
1
–
–
563
(386)
–
(386)
–
–
(118)
(118)
–

27 170
1 087
–
21 650
4 433
12 981
4 244
50
734
2 183
5 770
(22 616)
(1 274)
(18 373)
(2 969)
–
(6 013)
(3 178)
(2 835)

1 433
604
–
683
146
1 069
202
10
–
–
857
(942)
–
(829)
–
(113)
(240)
(240)
–

(243)
343
–
455
(1 041)
942
11
–
–
51
880
(529)
–
(410)
–
(119)
(305)
(305)
–

30 142
3 359
33
23 212
3 538
15 598
4 499
61
734
2 234
8 070
(24 473)
(1 274)
(19 998)
(2 969)
(232)
(6 676)
(3 841)
(2 835)

Goodwill on acquisition
Non-controlling interests recognised

1 884
1 621
–

11 522
5 816
–

1 320
2 085
–

(135)
3 568
459

14 591
13 090
459

Fair value of acquisition

3 505

17 338

3 405

3 892

28 140

Add net (cash)/overdraft acquired
Deferred purchase consideration

(1 325)
(200)

1 882
–

(604)
–

(343)
(2 100)

(390)
(2 300)

Net cash outflow for acquisition

1 980

19 220

2 801

1 449

25 450

The above acquisitions represent the subsidiaries acquired during the year.
The revenue and EBITDA included from these acquisitions in FY19 were US$55.2 million and US$4.1 million respectively;
profit after tax included from these acquisitions was US$2.9 million. Had the acquisition date been 1 March 2018, the
revenue would have been approximately US$110 million. It is not practical to establish EBITDA and profit after tax that
would have been contributed to the Group if they had been included for the entire year.
The initial at acquisition accounting for all four of the acquisitions have been finalised at the date of the finalisation of these
consolidated financial statements.
None of the goodwill raised on the above acquisitions will be deductible for tax purposes.
All identifiable intangible assets have been recognised and accounted for at fair value.
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ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES continued
The following acquisitions were concluded during the financial year ended 28 February 2019 and included on the
previous page:
Logicalis Group
Effective 3 September 2018, Logicalis Chile S.A. acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Coasin for US$17.3 million
in cash, a Chilean ICT services and solutions provider, which also owns 100% of C2 Mining Solutions S.A.C. based in
Peru. The acquisition will bring significant capabilities and scale to Logicalis’ existing operations in Chile and Peru.
Coasin’s experience in the mining and financial services verticals creates opportunities for Logicalis to better serve its
multinational clients while broadening its services scope to new customer groups.
Effective 3 September 2018, Logicalis SA (Pty) Ltd acquired 100% of the share capital in Clarotech Holdings (Pty) Ltd
and its subsidiary Clarotech Consulting (Pty) Ltd for US$3.4 million cash. This acquisition enables Logicalis to combine
a focused managed services operation with its existing business in South Africa, to support SMBs as well as larger
corporates. Clarotech has been providing first rate solutions and services to its clients and will bring a strong capability
to Logicalis’ business and provide the opportunity to upsell an increased portfolio of services to our clients, not just in
South Africa but also around the globe.
Effective 8 October 2018, Logicalis’ subsidiary Thomas Duryea Logicalis Pty Ltd acquired 100% of the share capital
of CNI for a maximum of US$3.1 million (including US$1.3 million deferred purchase consideration), a Microsoft certified
gold partner based in Melbourne. The acquisition of CNI brings Logicalis a full suite of leading Microsoft cloud service
capabilities, significantly strengthening our position in this growing market segment and enabling us to deliver a broader
scope of services to new and existing customers.
Additional goodwill of US$1.3 million relating to Packet Systems Indonesia was raised in the current period (within its
measurement period of 12 months) as new information relating to inventory obsolescence and deferred consideration
of US$0.8 million were identified in terms of facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
Analysys Mason
Effective 17 July 2018, Analysys Mason Limited acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Access Markets
International Partners, Inc. (US) based in the US for US$3.5 million; a SMB ICT focused global research and consulting
firm that specialises in GTM opportunity assessment, tracking buying behaviour, customer segmentation, channel partner
ecosystem dynamics and sales enablement enhanced with predictive analytics. AMI Partners also own 100% of the
issued share capital of Access Markets International Partners Pte. Limited.

36.

NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Ownership rights
and voting rights
held by noncontrolling interests

PromonLogicalis Latin
America Limited
Westcon International,
Limited*
Westcon Southern Africa
Holdings (Pty) Ltd

Profit allocated
to non-controlling
interests

Accumulated
non-controlling
interests –
Datatec Group

Country of
incorporation

2019
%

2018
%

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

UK

35

35

8 113

6 631

47 649

45 977

UK

10

10

(4 043)

2 810

5 861

8 530

SA

40.005

40.005

133

20

(3 422)

406

* From 1 September 2018.

Summarised information in respect of the above subsidiaries is shown on the following page as at 28 February 2019 and
28 February 2018. The summarised financial information on the following page represents amounts before inter-group
eliminations.
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NON-WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
continued
PromonLogicalis Latin
America Limited

Westcon International
Limited

Westcon SA Holdings
(Pty) Ltd

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Equity attributable to equity
holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests
Revenue
Operating profit/(loss) before
interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”)
Profit/(loss) for the year
Attributable to the owners of
the parent
Attributable to non-controlling
interests

37 410
526 584
(14 783)
(411 661)

39 641
484 230
(18 021)
(372 881)

63 420
1 135 251
(184 234)
(973 692)

60 481
1 012 394
(127 551)
(871 417)

2 044
38 071
(9 893)
(50 649)

3 087
45 893
(18 901)
(46 379)

(88 727)
(48 823)
640 322

(85 626)
(47 343)
537 919

(45 001)
4 256
2 484 979

(74 120)
213
2 251 344

20 427
–
98 823

16 706
(406)
102 562

55 764
23 387

46 943
18 984

3 086
(27 334)

(69 502)
(467 832)

2 328
(6 391)

(7 868)
(12 554)

15 274

12 353

(23 291)

(470 642)

(6 524)

(12 574)

8 113

6 631

2 810

133

20

Total comprehensive loss
Attributable to the owners of
the parent
Attributable to non-controlling
interests
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from
investing activities
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

(4 257)

(12 897)

(4 043)
8 113
(33 162)

(410 288)

(3 918)

(14 040)

(2 993)

(8 288)

(29 119)

(411 136)

(3 995)

(14 097)

(1 264)
18 775

(4 609)
(28 381)

(4 043)
17 236

848
50 814

77
5 331

57
2 551

28 507

(113 416)

(28 975)

21 470

3 769

(3 867)

(37 103)

(5 816)

730

(53 681)

(231)

40

27 371

90 851

45 481

83 025

1 793

6 378

There are no other material non-controlling interests within the Group.
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2019
US$’000

2018
US$’000

11 694
–
–

–
23 267
136 341

11 694

159 608

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
Profit for the period from discontinued operations
Net earn-out receivable
Profit for the period – disposal group
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

The earn-out receivable is classified as a level 3 financial instrument. The fair value of the earn-out receivable was
determined based on unobservable data, after taking into consideration the probabilities of various outcomes.

38.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 1 March 2019, Analysys Mason Limited acquired AB Stelacon, a Swedish consulting company. This is a significant
further step in building a pan-Scandinavian presence, after Analysys Mason’s successful expansion into Norway. Stelacon
brings experience including smart cities, regional development, digital services, policy and regulation and telecoms and
digital communications.
Between 1 March and 14 May 2019, the Company repurchased 3.1 million shares at a cost of US$6.9 million, under
the terms of a fixed mandate to its broker, for cancellation.

39.

GOING CONCERN
Please refer to the directors’ report on page 103.
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Datatec Group effective
holding (%)

Subsidiary companies

Note

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

As at
28 February
2019

As at
28 February
2018

88.40
89.99
89.99
90.00
89.99
89.99
44.01
90.00
90.00
54.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

89.00
89.99
89.99
90.00
89.99
89.99
44.01
90.00
N/A
54.00
N/A
N/A
100.00

INCORPORATED IN AFRICA
Analysys Mason Limited (Mauritius)
Westcon Africa (Kenya) Limited
Westcon Africa (Mauritius) Limited
Westcon Africa (Morocco) SARL
Westcon Africa Angola Limited
Westcon Africa Distribution (Nigeria) Limited
WestconGroup SA (Pty) Ltd
Westcon Emerging Markets Group (Pty) Ltd
Westcon Group Shared Services (Pty) Ltd
Westcon Namibia Distribution (Pty) Ltd
Clarotech Consulting (Pty) Ltd
Clarotech Holdings (Pty) Ltd
Logicalis SA (Pty) Ltd

1

C
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
I
I
I

Mauritius
Kenya
Mauritius
Morocco
Angola
Nigeria
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa
Namibia
South Africa
South Africa
South Africa

C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
D

United Kingdom
Sweden
Norway
United Kingdom
Ireland
France
Spain
Italy
United Kingdom

88.40
88.40
88.40
88.40
88.40
88.40
88.40
88.40
89.99

89.00
89.00
89.00
89.00
89.00
N/A
89.00
89.00
89.99

D
D
D
D
D

Austria
United Kingdom
Germany
Italy
United Kingdom

90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00

90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00

D
D

Poland
Portugal

90.00
90.00

90.00
90.00

D
D

United Kingdom
Switzerland

90.00
90.00

90.00
90.00

INCORPORATED IN UK AND EUROPE
Analysys Limited
Analysys Mason AB
Analysys Mason AS
Analysys Mason Limited
Analysys Mason Limited
Analysys Mason SAS
Analysys Mason Spain S.L.
Analysys Mason S.R.L.
Westcon Group Africa Operations Limited (formerly
Westcon Africa (UK) Limited)
Westcon Group Austria GmbH
Westcon Group European Operations Limited
Westcon Group Germany GmbH
Westcon Group Italia S.R.L.
Westcon Group Middle East Holdings Limited
(formerly Westcon Emerging Markets Limited)
Westcon Group Poland Sp. Z.O.O.
Westcon Group Portugal, Sociedade Unipessoal,
Limitada
Westcon International, Limited
WGEO Switzerland GmbH
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Datatec Group effective
holding (%)
As at
28 February
2019

As at
28 February
2018

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Germany
Channel Islands
Germany
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
Channel Islands
Ireland
Channel Islands
Germany
Ireland
Spain
Ireland
Ireland
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

100.00
100.00
51.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
100.00
100.00

100.00
100.00
51.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
100.00
100.00

USA
USA
Canada
USA
USA
USA
USA
Cayman Islands
USA

88.40
90.00
90.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
100.00
33.15
65.00

N/A
90.00
90.00
100.00
100.00
65.00
100.00
33.15
65.00

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

continued
Datatec Financial Services Holdings Limited
Datatec Financial Services Limited
ITUMA GmbH
Logicalis Channel Islands Limited
Logicalis GmbH (formerly inforsacom Logicalis GmbH)
Logicalis Group Limited
Logicalis Group Services Limited
Logicalis Guernsey Limited
Logicalis Ireland Limited
Logicalis Jersey Limited
Logicalis Networks GmbH
Logicalis Solutions Limited
Logicalis Spain S.L.
Logicalis Technical Services Limited
Logicalis Technology Limited
Logicalis UK Limited
PromonLogicalis Latin America Limited
Datatec Group Finance Limited
Datatec plc

F
F
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
O
O

INCORPORATED IN US AND CANADA
Access Markets International Partners, Inc. (US)
WG Services, Inc.
Canada WGIT Services, Inc.
Datatec Financial Services, Inc.
Logicalis, Inc.
Logicalis South America, Inc.
Logicalis US Holdings, Inc.
NubeliU Limited
PLLAL International LLC.

C
D
F
F
I
I
I
I
I

Subsidiary companies

Note

INCORPORATED IN UK AND EUROPE

2
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Datatec Group effective
holding (%)

Subsidiary companies

Note

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

As at
28 February
2019

As at
28 February
2018

INCORPORATED IN LATIN AMERICA
C2 Mining Solutions S.A.C.
Coasin Chile S.A.
Logicalis Andina Bolivia LAB. Limitada
Logicalis Andina S.A.C.
Logicalis Argentina S.A.
Logicalis Chile S.A.
Logicalis Colombia S.A.S.
Logicalis Ecuador S.A.
Logicalis Inc. S.A.
Logicalis Mexico, S. de R.L. de C.V.
Logicalis Paraguay S.A.
Logicalis Puerto Rico Inc.
Logicalis Uruguay S.A.
NubeliU Argentina S.R.L.
NubeliU Consultoria e Licenciamento de Software
Limitada
PromonLogicalis Tecnologia e Participações Limitada
PTLS Serviços de Tecnologia e Assessoria
Técnica Limitada

2
2

I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
I

Peru
Chile
Bolivia
Peru
Argentina
Chile
Colombia
Ecuador
Uruguay
Mexico
Paraguay
Puerto Rico
Uruguay
Argentina
Brazil

65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
33.15
33.15

N/A
N/A
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
65.00
33.15
33.15

I
I

Brazil
Brazil

65.00
65.00

65.00
65.00

D
D
F
F
I
I
I

New Zealand
Australia
New Zealand
Australia
Australia
Australia
Australia

90.00
90.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

90.00
90.00
100.00
100.00
N/A
100.00
100.00

INCORPORATED IN AUSTRALIA AND
NEW ZEALAND
Westcon Group NZ Limited
Westcon Group Pty Ltd
Datatec Financial Services (NZ) Ltd
Datatec Financial Services Pty Ltd
Corporate Network Integration Pty Ltd
Thomas Duryea Logicalis Holdings Pty Ltd
Thomas Duryea Logicalis Pty Ltd
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Datatec Group effective
holding (%)

Subsidiary companies

Note

Nature of
business

As at
28 February
2019

As at
28 February
2018

British Virgin
Islands
British Virgin
Islands

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Singapore
United Arab
Emirates
India
Hong Kong
Singapore
Indonesia
Indonesia
Qatar
Thailand
Vietnam
Singapore
Kuwait
United Arab
Emirates
United Arab
Emirates
Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia
Hong Kong
Malaysia
China
Singapore
Philippines
Singapore
Hong Kong
Malaysia
China
China
Singapore
Indonesia
Malaysia

88.40
88.40

N/A
89.00

88.40
88.40
88.40
90.00
90.00
44.10
88.20
90.00
90.00
44.10
44.10

89.00
89.00
89.00
90.00
90.00
N/A
88.20
90.00
90.00
N/A
N/A

90.00

90.00

67.50

67.50

90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00
89.10
90.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
53.50
100.00

90.00
90.00
90.00
90.00
89.10
90.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
54.06
100.00

Country of
incorporation

INCORPORATED IN BRITISH VIRGIN
ISLANDS
NetStar Group Holding Limited

I

Datatec International Holdings Limited

O

INCORPORATED IN ASIA AND MIDDLE EAST
Access Markets International Pte. Limited
Analysys Mason FZ LLC

C
C

Analysys Mason India Pvt. Limited
Analysys Mason Limited
Analysys Mason Pte. Limited
PT. Westcon Group
PT. Westcon Solutions
Westcon Doha LLC
Westcon Group (Thailand) Co. Limited
Westcon Group (Vietnam) Co. Limited
Westcon Group Pte. Limited
Westcon Kuwait WLL
Westcon Middle East Equipments Trading LLC

C
C
C
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D

3

3
3

Westcon Middle East FZE

D

Westcon Middle East Limited

D

Westcon Solutions (HK) Limited
Westcon Solutions (M) Sdn. Bhd.
Westcon Solutions (Shanghai) Limited
Westcon Solutions IMH Pte. Limited
Westcon Solutions Philippines, Inc.
Westcon Solutions Pte. Limited
Logicalis Hong Kong Limited
Logicalis Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.
Logicalis Pte. Limited (Xiamen)
Logicalis Shanghai Limited
Logicalis Singapore Pte. Limited
PT. Packet Systems Indonesia
Thomas Duryea Logicalis Asia Pacific MSC Sdn. Bhd.

D
D
D
D
D
D
I
I
I
I
I
I
I
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Datatec Group effective
holding (%)

Equity-accounted associates and joint ventures

As at
28 February
2019

As at
28 February
2018

United Kingdom
Turkey
Turkey

44.74
45.00
45.00

44.74
45.00
45.00

D

Turkey

45.00

N/A

4

D

United Arab
Emirates

45.00

45.00

4
4

D
I

USA
USA

45.00
45.00

45.00
45.00

Nature of
business

Country of
incorporation

4
4
4

C
D
D

4

Note

INCORPORATED IN UK AND EUROPE
Mason Advisory Limited
Neteks Bilgisayar ve Dis Ticaret Limited Sti
Neteks íletişim Ürünleri Dağitim Anonim Şirketi
(50% JV)
Neteks Teknologi Urunleri

INCORPORATED IN ASIA
Neteks International FZE

INCORPORATED IN US AND CANADA
Westcon GDS LLC. (not material)
Esource Resources, LLC.
Only trading entities have been disclosed
C – Consulting Services
D – Distribution
F – Datatec Financial Services
I – ICT Solutions
O – Other holdings
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NOTES TO ANNEXURE 1
Subsidiary companies
The annexure on previous pages illustrates the effective percentage shareholding of the Datatec Group in its subsidiaries. There
are subsidiaries within the Group that have minority interests and a number of these subsidiaries hold further investments that
also have minority interests. These entities are controlled by the Group in accordance with IFRS 10 and consolidated.
Note 1
Datatec Limited (“the ultimate holding company”) owns 90% of Westcon Emerging Markets Group (Pty) Ltd (“WEMG”) and
WEMG holds 59.995% of the shares of Westcon Group SA (Pty) Ltd. WEMG and WestconGroup SA (Pty) Ltd are consolidated
in the Group consolidated financial statements.
Note 2
Datatec Limited owns 100% of the issued share capital of Logicalis Group Limited which has a 65% interest in PromonLogicalis
Latin America Limited (“PLLAL”). PLLAL owns a 51% interest in NubeliU Limited.
NubeliU Limited has a 100% interest in the share capital of each of the following:
• NubeliU I LLC. (inactive entity not included in subsidiary companies above); and
• NubeliU II LLC. (inactive entity not included in subsidiary companies above).
These two entities each own 50% of the share capital of NubeliU Argentina S.R.L. (50% each).
These two entities each own 50% of the share capital of NubeliU Consultoria e Licenciamento de Software Limitada.
Note 3
Westcon Doha and Westcon Kuwait are 100% consolidated as the minority shareholders have no rights to obtain a share
of profits.
Westcon International has full management control in terms of their shareholders’ agreement of both Westcon Doha as well as
Westcon Kuwait.
Westcon Middle East Equipments Trading LLC is 100% consolidated as Westcon International has full control over this entity in
terms of the shareholder agreement.
Note 4: Equity-accounted associates and joint ventures
Refer to Note 10 for material equity-accounted investments and joint ventures.
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DATATEC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
Registration number: 1994/005004/06
Share code: DTC
ISIN: ZAE000017745
(“Datatec” or “the Company” or “the Group”)
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (“Meeting”) of shareholders of Datatec will be held at the JSE, 1st Floor
Training Room, One Exchange Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown, Sandton, 2196, Republic of South Africa at 12:00 on Thursday,
29 August 2019 for the purpose of: (i) considering the following business to be transacted and voting on the resolutions, with or
without modification, in the manner required by the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, as amended (“Companies Act”), as read with
the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited (“Listings Requirements”), and (ii) deal with such other business as may lawfully
be dealt with at the Meeting:

1.

PRESENTATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
“To present Datatec’s audited annual financial statements for the year ended 28 February 2019, including the directors’
report, the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee report, and Group audited annual financial statements for the year
ended 28 February 2019; all of which are contained from pages 96 to 195 of the Integrated Report.”

2.

THE SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORT
“Please refer to page 60 of the Integrated Report for the Social and Ethics Committee report. The Chairman of the Social
and Ethics Committee is available to report to the shareholders at the Meeting.”

3.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
Ordinary Resolution Number 1
“Resolved that Mr JP Montanana who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation (“the MoI”) and
who offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected as a director of the Company.”
Please refer to page 12 of the Integrated Report for Mr Montanana’s brief curriculum vitae. On behalf of the Board of
directors (“the Board”), the Chairman of the Board (“the Chairman”) confirms that on the basis of the annual evaluation of
the Board and of the performance of individual directors, the performance and commitment of Mr Montanana throughout
his period of office was highly satisfactory.
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.

4.

RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
Ordinary Resolution Number 2
“Resolved that Mr IP Dittrich who retires in terms of the MoI and who offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby
re-elected as a director of the Company.”
Please refer to page 12 of the Integrated Report for Mr Dittrich’s brief curriculum vitae. On behalf of the Board, the
Chairman confirms that on the basis of the annual evaluation of the Board and of the performance of individual directors,
the performance and commitment of Mr Dittrich throughout his period of office was highly satisfactory.
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.
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RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
Ordinary Resolution Number 3
“Resolved that Mr MJN Njeke who retires in terms of the MoI and who offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby
re-elected as a director of the Company.”
Please refer to page 13 of the Integrated Report for Mr Njeke’s brief curriculum vitae. On behalf of the Board, the Chairman
confirms that on the basis of the annual evaluation of the Board and of the performance of individual directors, the
performance and commitment of Mr Njeke throughout his period of office was highly satisfactory.
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.

6.

ELECTION OF DIRECTOR
Ordinary Resolution Number 4
“Resolved that Ms M Makanjee, who has been appointed by the Board on 1 November 2018, be and is hereby elected
as a director of the Company.”
On behalf of the Board, the Chairman confirms that Ms Makanjee’s extensive independent non-executive director
experience will make a significant contribution to Datatec and bring a fresh perspective.
Please refer to page 13 of the Integrated Report for Ms Makanjee’s brief curriculum vitae. On behalf of the Board, the
Chairman confirms that on the basis of the annual evaluation of the Board and of the performance of individual directors,
the performance and commitment of Ms Makanjee throughout her period of office was highly satisfactory.
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.

7.

REAPPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Ordinary Resolution Number 5
“Resolved that Deloitte & Touche as auditors of the Company and Mr Mark Rayfield as the designated auditor, as
recommended by the current Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee of the Company, be and are hereby reappointed
until the conclusion of the next Meeting.”
The Company will initiate a process after the Meeting to appoint new auditors for the year ending 28 February 2021.
In this regard, the Company is therefore seeking one more reappointment for Deloitte & Touche, before new auditors are
appointed.
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.

8.

ELECTION OF AUDIT, RISK AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Ordinary Resolution Number 6
“Resolved that the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee be elected to serve from this Meeting to the 2020 Meeting
by separate election to the committee of the following independent non-executive directors:
6.1 Mr MJN Njeke (subject to resolution number 3 above);
6.2 Mr JF McCartney; and
6.3 Ms E Singh-Bushell.”
Please refer to page 13 of the Integrated Report for Mr Njeke’s, Mr McCartney’s and Ms Singh-Bushell’s brief curricula
vitae. On behalf of the Board, the Chairman confirms that each candidate for election to the Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee has the relevant knowledge and experience to discharge their role effectively and that the performance of each
candidate in the service of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee to the date of this notice has been highly
satisfactory.
In order for each of the above resolutions to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by
shareholders present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.
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NON-BINDING ADVISORY VOTES ON REMUNERATION POLICY AND
REMUNERATION IMPLEMENTATION
Ordinary Resolution Number 7
“Resolved that the remuneration policy of the Company as reflected on pages 78 to 85 of the Integrated Report, be and is
hereby endorsed through a non-binding advisory vote as recommended by King IVTM.”
Ordinary Resolution Number 8
“Resolved that the remuneration implementation report of the Company as reflected on pages 86 to 95 of the Integrated
Report, be and is hereby endorsed through a non-binding advisory vote as recommended by King IV™.”
Explanatory note on Ordinary Resolutions Number 7 and 8
In terms of principle 14 of King IVTM, the Company’s remuneration policy and remuneration implementation report should be
tabled to shareholders for separate non-binding advisory votes at the Meeting. These votes enable shareholders to express
their views on the remuneration policies adopted by the Company and on the implementation thereof. Shareholders are
requested to endorse the Company’s remuneration policy set out in the Integrated Report.

10. APPROVAL OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ FEES
Special Resolution Number 1
“Resolved that the Board and committee fees for non-executive directors for the financial year ending 28 February 2020,
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee and set out in the note below, be and are hereby authorised, in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, and that the Company may continue to pay directors’ fees at
the annual rates specified in the note below for the period from 28 February 2019 until the Company’s 2020 Meeting.”
Directors’ fees:
• Chairman of the Board: US$201 552 (total fee inclusive of all committee and subsidiary board work);
• Senior non-executive directors’ fee: US$74 256;
• Non-executive directors’ fee: US$63 648;
• Chairman of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee: US$31 824;
• Member of the Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee: US$15 912;
• Chairman of the Social and Ethics Committee: US$10 608;
• Chairman of the Remuneration Committee: US$15 912;
• Member of the Remuneration Committee: US$7 956;
• Member of the Nominations Committee: US$5 304; and
• Chair of Trustees of the Datatec Educational and Technology Foundation: US$12 000.
Reason for Special Resolution Number 1
The Companies Act requires shareholder approval of directors’ fees prior to payment of such fees. Except for the Chair of
Trustees of the Datatec Educational and Technology Foundation, the fees are unchanged from the levels approved at the
previous Meeting.
In terms of the Companies Act, 75% (seventy-five percent) of the votes cast by shareholders present or represented by
proxy at this Meeting must be cast in favour of this resolution for it to be adopted.
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11. AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO ANY GROUP COMPANY
Special Resolution Number 2
“Resolved that, to the extent required by sections 44 and/or 45 of the Companies Act, the Board may, subject to the
provisions of the Companies Act, the Company’s MoI and the requirements of any recognised stock exchange on which
the shares in the capital of the Company may from time to time be listed, authorise the Company to provide direct or
indirect financial assistance to any related or inter-related (as defined in the Companies Act) company or corporation of
the Company, on terms and conditions which the directors may determine, commencing on the date of passing of this
resolution and ending at the next Meeting.”
Reason for Special Resolution Number 2
In terms of the Companies Act, the Board may authorise the Company to provide any financial assistance in terms of
sections 44 and/or 45 of the Companies Act to any related or inter-related company or corporation of the Company,
subject to certain requirements set out in the Companies Act, including the Company meeting the solvency and liquidity
test. This general authority would greatly assist the Company inter alia with making inter-company loans to Group
companies as well as granting letters of support and guarantees in appropriate circumstances. The existence of a general
shareholder authority would avoid the need to refer each instance to members for approval which might impede the
negotiations and add time and expense. If approved, this general authority will expire at the next Meeting.
Notification
Written notice in terms of section 45(5) of the Companies Act of any such resolution by the Board shall be given to all
shareholders of the Company and any trade union representing its employees:
• within 10 business days after the Board adopts the resolution, if the total value of the financial assistance contemplated
in that resolution, together with any previous such resolution during the financial year, exceeds one-tenth of 1%
(one percent) of the Company’s net worth at the time of the resolution; or
• within 30 business days after the end of the financial year, in any other case.
In terms of the Companies Act, 75% (seventy-five percent) of the votes cast by shareholders present or represented by
proxy at the Meeting must be cast in favour of this resolution for it to be adopted. The Board will pass a similar financial
assistance resolution on or after the date of this Meeting.

12. GENERAL AUTHORITY TO REPURCHASE SHARES
Special Resolution Number 3
“Resolved that the Board be authorised by way of a general authority given as a renewable mandate, to facilitate the
acquisition by the Company and/or a subsidiary of the Company of the issued ordinary shares of the Company, upon such
terms and conditions and in such amounts as the directors of the Company may from time to time determine, but subject
to the MoI, the provisions of the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements, when applicable and provided that:
• an announcement giving such details as may be required in terms of the Listings Requirements be released on SENS
when the Company or its subsidiaries have cumulatively repurchased 3% (three percent) of the initial number of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the time the general authority was granted and for each 3% (three percent) in
aggregate of the initial number of shares acquired thereafter;
• the authorisation granted above shall remain in force from the date of passing of this special resolution for a period of
15 (fifteen) months or until the next Annual General Meeting, whichever period is shorter;
• at any point in time, the Company will only appoint one agent to effect any repurchase(s) on its behalf;
• the Company or its subsidiary shall not repurchase securities during a prohibited period as defined in paragraph 3.67 of
the Listings Requirements unless the repurchase is done in accordance with the provisions of the Listings Requirements,
including, but not limited to, a repurchase programme being in place, where dates and quantities of shares to be traded
during the prohibited period are fixed (not subject to any variation) and full details of the programme being disclosed to
the JSE in writing prior to the commencement of the prohibited period, as required and the Company having instructed
an independent third party, which makes its investment decisions in relation to the Company’s securities independently
of, and uninfluenced by, the Company, prior to the commencement of the prohibited period to execute the repurchase
programme submitted to the JSE;
• the repurchase of securities will be effected through the order book operated by the JSE trading system and done
without any prior understanding or arrangement between the Company and the counterparty (reported trades are
prohibited);
• the repurchase by the Company of its own securities above may not exceed 20% (twenty percent) of the Company’s
issued ordinary share capital in aggregate in any one financial year, as at the beginning of the financial year, or in
the case of acquisition by any of the Company’s subsidiaries, 10% (ten percent) of such issued ordinary share capital
in aggregate if such shares are to be held as treasury shares;
• any such repurchases are subject to exchange control approval at that point in time;
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• in determining the price at which the Company’s ordinary shares are acquired by the Company in terms of this general
authority, the maximum premium at which such ordinary shares may be acquired will be 10% (ten percent) of the
weighted average of the market price at which such ordinary shares are traded on the JSE, as determined over the
5 (five) trading days immediately preceding the date of the repurchase of such ordinary shares by the Company or a
subsidiary of the Company; and
• a resolution has been passed by the Board confirming that the Board has authorised the general repurchase, that the
Company has passed the solvency and liquidity test as required by the Companies Act and since the test was done
there have been no material changes to the financial position of the Group.”
At least 75% (seventy-five percent) of the votes cast by shareholders present or represented by proxy at the Meeting must
be cast in favour of this resolution in terms of the Listings Requirements in order for it to be adopted.
Additional disclosure
For purposes of considering Special Resolution Number 3 and in terms of the Listings Requirements, the information below
has been included in the Integrated Report, in which this notice of Meeting is included, at the places indicated:
• major shareholders (refer page 205 of the Integrated Report); and
• share capital of the Company (refer page 103 of the Integrated Report).
The Company will not commence a general repurchase of shares as contemplated above unless the following can be met:
• the Company and the Group will be able to repay its debts in the ordinary course of business for a period of 12 (twelve)
months following the date of the general repurchase;
• the Company and the Group’s assets will be in excess of the liabilities of the Company and the Group for a period of
12 (twelve) months after the date of the general repurchase. For this purpose, the assets and liabilities will be recognised
and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited consolidated annual financial
statements which comply with the Companies Act;
• the share capital and reserves of the Company and the Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes for
a period of 12 (twelve) months after the date of the general repurchase; and
• the working capital of the Company and the Group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes for a period of
12 (twelve) months following the date of the repurchase.
Any decision by the Board involving a repurchase by the Company of more than 5% (five percent) of the issued shares of
any class will be subject to the requirements of sections 48, 114 and 115 of the Companies Act, including the distribution
of a circular to the shareholders of the Company in compliance with the Companies Act and the Listings Requirements,
seeking the approval of the shareholders for such repurchase.
Reason and effect
The reason and effect for Special Resolution Number 3 is to authorise the Company and/or its subsidiary company by way
of a general authority to acquire its own issued shares on such terms, conditions and in such amounts as determined from
time to time by the directors of the Company subject to the limitations set out above.
Statement of Board’s intention
The Board intends to use the shareholder authority which this resolution would provide to undertake the repurchase having
regard to prevailing circumstances, market conditions as well as the Company’s liquidity requirements.
Directors’ responsibility statement
The directors, whose names are given on page 206 of the Integrated Report, collectively and individually accept full
responsibility for the accuracy of the information pertaining to Special Resolution Number 3 and certify that to the best of
their knowledge and belief there are no facts that have been omitted which would make any statement false or misleading,
and that all reasonable enquiries to ascertain such facts have been made and that this special resolution contains all
information required by law and the Listings Requirements.
Material changes
There have been no material changes in the affairs or financial position of the Company and/or the Group since the date
of signature of the audit report up to the date of this notice.
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13. AUTHORITY TO SIGN ALL DOCUMENTS REQUIRED
Ordinary Resolution Number 9
Any director of the Company or the Company Secretary shall be and is hereby authorised to sign all documents and
perform all acts which may be required to give effect to such Ordinary Resolutions Number 1 to 9 and Special Resolutions
Number 1 to 3 passed at the Meeting.”
In order for this resolution to be adopted, the support of more than 50% (fifty percent) of votes cast by shareholders
present or represented by proxy at the Meeting is required.

14. TO TRANSACT SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS MAY BE TRANSACTED AT AN
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
The record date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries
of the Company for the purposes of being entitled to receive notice of the Meeting is Friday, 21 June 2019.

VOTING AND PROXIES
The record date on which shareholders must be recorded as such in the register maintained by the transfer secretaries of
the Company for the purposes of being entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is Friday, 23 August 2019. Accordingly,
the last day to trade for the purposes of being entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is Tuesday, 20 August 2019.
Shareholders who have not dematerialised their shares or who have dematerialised their shares with “own name”
registration are entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting and are entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend, speak
and vote in their stead. The person so appointed need not be a shareholder of the Company. Proxy forms must be
forwarded to reach the registered office of the Company or The Meeting Specialists (Pty) Ltd, JSE Building, One Exchange
Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown, 2196 or posted to The Meeting Specialists (Pty) Ltd at PO Box 62043, Marshalltown,
2107, South Africa or emailed to proxy@tmsmeetings.co.za, so as to be received by them, for administrative purposes,
by no later than 12:00, on 27 August 2019. Any forms of proxy not lodged by this time must be handed to the chairperson
of the Meeting prior to the proxy exercising his/her rights at the Meeting.
Shareholders holding shares on the Jersey Branch register should forward the form of proxy sent with this notice to
Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited in accordance with the instructions on the proxy form.
Proxy forms must only be completed by shareholders who have dematerialised their shares with “own name” registration
or who have not dematerialised their shares.
Every member present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Meeting of the Company shall, on a show of hands,
have one vote only irrespective of the number of shares such member holds. In the event of a poll, every member shall be
entitled to that proportion of the total votes in the Company which the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the shares
held by such member bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the shares issued by the Company.
Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares, other than those shareholders who have dematerialised their shares
with “own name” registration, who are unable to attend the Meeting but wish to be represented thereat, should contact
their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker (as the case may be) in the manner and time stipulated
in their agreement entered into by such shareholder and the CSDP or broker (as the case may be) to furnish the CSDP
or broker (as the case may be) with their voting instructions and in the event that such shareholders wish to attend the
Meeting, to obtain the necessary authority to do so. Such shareholders who wish to attend the meeting in person must
obtain the necessary letter of representation from their CSDP or broker.
Shareholders holding depositary interests in shares on the Jersey Branch register should forward the form of instruction
sent to them with this notice to Computershare Investor Services (Jersey) Limited in accordance with the instructions on
the form of instruction.
Shares held by a share trust or scheme will not have their votes at meetings taken into account for the purposes of
resolutions proposed in terms of the Listings Requirements.
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Should any shareholder (or any proxy for a shareholder) wish to participate in the meeting by way of electronic participation,
the shareholder should make application in writing (including details as to how the shareholder or its representative
(including its proxy) can be contacted) to so participate to the transfer secretaries, at their address as reflected on
page 209, to be received by the transfer secretaries at least 5 (five) business days prior to the Meeting in order for the
transfer secretaries to arrange for the shareholder (or its representative or proxy) to provide reasonably satisfactory
identification to the transfer secretaries for the purpose of section 63(1) of the Companies Act, and for the transfer
secretaries to provide the shareholder (or its representative) with details as to how to access any electronic participation
to be provided. The cost of accessing any means of electronic participation provided by the Company will be borne by
the Company. It should be noted, however, that voting will not be possible via the electronic facilities and for shareholders
wishing to vote, their shares will need to be represented at the Meeting either in person, or by proxy or by letter of
representation, as provided for in the notice of Meeting.
All meeting participants will be required to provide identification reasonably satisfactory to the chairperson of the Meeting.
Forms of identification include valid identity documents, driver’s licences and passports.
By order of the Board

SP Morris
For and on behalf of
Datatec Management Services (Pty) Ltd
Company Secretary
Sandton
June 2019
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DATATEC LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
Registration number: 1994/005004/06
JSE code: DTC
ISIN: ZAE000017745
(“the Company” or “the Group”)
Please note that this form of proxy is only for use by members who have not dematerialised their ordinary shares or who have
dematerialised their ordinary shares and registered them with “own name” registration.
I/We
Telephone number:
Cell phone number:
Email:
of
being a member/members of the above mentioned Company, hereby appoint:
or failing him/her,
or failing him/her, the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 12:00 on Thursday, 29 August 2019 and at any adjournment of that
meeting.
Signed at

this

day of

2019

Signature

No.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Type
O1
O2
O3
O4
O5
O6

9A.
9B.
10.
11.
12.
13.

O7
O8
S1
S2
S3
O9

O = Ordinary
S = Special

Please indicate with an “X” in the appropriate space on the right
how you wish your votes to be cast. If you return this form duly
signed, without any specific direction, the proxy shall be entitled to
vote as he/she thinks fit.
Re-election of JP Montanana
Re-election of IP Dittrich
Re-election of MJN Njeke
Election of M Makanjee
Reappointment of independent auditors
Election of Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee members:
6.1 Election of MJN Njeke
6.2 Election of JF McCartney
6.3 Election of E Singh-Bushell
Non-binding advisory vote on remuneration policy
Non-binding advisory vote on remuneration implementation
Approval of non-executive directors’ fees
Authority to provide financial assistance to any Group company
General authority to repurchase shares
Authority to sign all documents required

In favour of
resolution

Against
resolution

Abstain
from voting
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A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak
and vote in his/her stead. A proxy need not be a registered member of the Company.
Every member present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company shall, on a show
of hands, have one vote only irrespective of the number of shares such member holds. In the event of a poll, every member shall
be entitled to that proportion of the total votes in the Company which the aggregate amount of the nominal value of the shares
held by such member bears to the aggregate amount of the nominal value of all the shares issued by the Company.
Members registered in their own name are members who elected not to participate in the Issuer-Sponsored Nominee Programme
and who appointed Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd as their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) with the
express instruction that their uncertificated shares are to be registered in the electronic subregister of members in their own
names.

Instructions on signing and lodging the form of proxy:
1.
A member may insert the name of a proxy or the names of two alternative proxies of the member’s choice in the space(s) provided
overleaf, with or without deleting “the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting’’, but any such deletion must be initialled by the
member. Should this space be left blank, the proxy will be exercised by the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting. The
person whose name appears first on the form of proxy and who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act
as proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow.
2.
A member’s voting instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of an “X”, or the number of votes exercisable by
that member, in the appropriate spaces provided overleaf. Failure to do so will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or to
abstain from voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she thinks fit in respect of all the member’s exercisable votes. A member
or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by him/her or by his/her proxy but the total number of votes cast, or
those in respect of which abstention is recorded, may not exceed the total number of votes exercisable by the member or by
his/her proxy.
3.
To be valid, the completed forms of proxy must be lodged with The Meeting Specialists (Pty) Ltd, JSE Building, One Exchange
Square, Gwen Lane, Sandown, 2196 or posted to The Meeting Specialists (Pty) Ltd at PO Box 62043, Marshalltown, 2107, South
Africa or emailed to proxy@tmsmeetings.co.za, or call The Meeting Specialists on +27 11 520 7952/0/1, so as to be received by
them, for administrative purposes, by no later than 12:00, on Tuesday, 27 August 2019. Any forms of proxy not lodged by this time
must be handed to the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting.
4.
Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be
attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded or waived by the chairperson of the Annual General Meeting.
5.
The completion and lodging of this form of proxy will not preclude the relevant member from attending the Annual General Meeting
and speaking and voting in person thereat to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, should such member wish to
do so.
The completion of any blank spaces overleaf need not be initialled. Any alterations or corrections to this form of proxy must be initialled
by the signatory(ies).
The chairperson of the Annual General Meeting may accept any form of proxy which is completed other than in accordance with these
instructions provided that he is satisfied as to the manner in which a member wishes to vote.
Members who have dematerialised their shares must inform their CSDP or broker of their intention to attend the Annual General Meeting
and request their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary authorisation to attend or provide their CSDP or broker with their
voting instructions should they not wish to attend the Annual General Meeting in person.
In terms of section 58 of the Companies Act, 2008 (“the Companies Act”):
• a shareholder may, at any time and in accordance with the provisions of section 58 of the Companies Act, appoint any individual
(including an individual who is not a shareholder) as a proxy to participate in, speak and vote at, a shareholders’ meeting on behalf
of such shareholder;
• a proxy may delegate his authority to act on behalf of a shareholder to another person, subject to any restriction set out in the
instrument appointing such proxy;
• irrespective of the form of instrument used to appoint a proxy, the appointment of a proxy is suspended at any time and to the extent
that the relevant shareholder chooses to act directly and in person in the exercise of any of such shareholder’s rights as a shareholder;
• any appointment by a shareholder of a proxy is revocable, unless the form of instrument used to appoint such proxy states otherwise;
• if an appointment of a proxy is revocable, a shareholder may revoke the proxy appointment by:
(a) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and
(b) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the Company; and
• a proxy appointed by a shareholder is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of such shareholder without
direction, except to the extent that the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company, or the instrument appointing the proxy,
provides otherwise.
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DTC share price record – FY19

Stock exchange performance

1 March 2018 to
28 February
2019

1 March 2017 to
28 February
2018

174 397
72.70
4 132

202 681
91.72
10 340

3 150
3 300
1 715

2 500
6 499
2 301

3 150
3 300
1 715

2 500
4 199
2 301

37.45
62.55

41.78
58.22

Total number of shares traded (‘000)
Shares traded as a percentage of issued shares (%)
Total value of shares traded (R million)
JSE Limited prices (SA cents)
Historical prices
Closing
High
Low
Adjusted for the special dividend of 2 300cps in January 2018
Closing
High
Low
Public/non-public shareholding
Percentage non-public shareholders (%)
Percentage public shareholders (%)

Listed below are analyses of holdings extracted from the register of ordinary shareholders at 28 February 2019:
Shareholders in SA
Shareholder type
Directors
Other holdings over 10%
Share trust (treasury shares)
Total non-public
Public
Total

Shareholders outside SA

Total shareholders

Number

Percentage
of shares

Number

Percentage
of shares

Number

Percentage
of shares

1
1
1
3
3 120
3 123

–
25.9%
–
25.9%
43.1%
69.0%

3
–
–
3
234
237

11.5%
–
–
11.5%
19.5%
31.0%

4
1
1
6
3 354
3 360

11.5%
25.9%
–
37.4%
62.6%
100.0%

56 690 652
24 004 634
20 218 412

25.9%
11.0%
9.2%

The following are the principal beneficial shareholders whose holding directly or indirectly
in the Company total more than 5% of the issued share capital as at 28 February 2019:
Government Employees Pension Fund (PIC)
Jens Montanana (Director)
Old Mutual Life Assurance Co Ltd

Black people and black female economic interest and voting rights
An analysis of black beneficiation through mandated investment schemes invested in Datatec as at 22 February 2019:

Total mandated investments identified
Voting rights deemed to be held by black people on a flow through basis
Voting rights deemed to be held by black women on a flow through basis
Economic interest deemed to be held by black people on a flow through basis
Economic interest deemed to be held by black women on a flow through basis

Number of
ordinary
shares

% of
issued
shares

134 869 203
53 950 278
25 870 999
33 764 714
16 789 973

59.65
23.86
11.44
14.93
7.43
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Name

Date of appointment

Position held at 28 February 2019

Executive directors
JP Montanana (British)+
IP Dittrich

6 October 1994
30 May 2016

Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Non-executive directors
SJ Davidson (British)^#+
M Makanjee^+
JF McCartney (American)^#*
MJN Njeke*^+
E Singh-Bushell (American)*#+

1 February 2007
1 November 2018
16 July 2007
1 September 2016
1 June 2018

Independent non-executive Chairman
Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executive director
Independent non-executive director
Senior independent non-executive director

Resignations/retirements during the year
O Ighodaro (Nigerian/British)*#
CS Seabrooke *^#

1 September 2010
6 October 1994

Resigned – 31 October 2018
Retired – 20 September 2018

NJ Temple (British)^

1 October 2002

Retired – 20 September 2018

* Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee
^ Remuneration Committee
#
Nominations Committee
+ Social and Ethics Committee

Shareholders’ diary
2019 Annual General Meeting
Reports
Interim results (half-year to August 2019)
Announcement of FY20 annual results
FY20 Integrated Report

29 August 2019
17 October 2019
21 May 2020
June 2020
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AGM

Annual General Meeting

LSE

London Stock Exchange

AIM

Alternative Investment Market, the London Stock
Exchange’s international market for smaller,
growing companies

LTI

Long-term incentive

MEA

Middle East and Africa

NASDAQ

National Association of Securities Automated
Quotations, a United States electronic securities
market

NGO

Non-governmental organisations

OECD

Organisation for Economic Co-operation and
Development

OHSAS 18001

Occupational Health and Safety Assessment
Series; a British Standard for occupational
health and safety management systems

Analysys Mason A global consultancy and research company
within Datatec’s Consulting division, specialising
in telecommunication, media and technology
and offers strategic, trusted advisory, modelling
and market intelligence services
ARCC

The Datatec Group Audit, Risk and Compliance
Committee

BBBEE

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

BPO

Business Process Outsourcing

CDP

Carbon Disclosure Project

SAICA

South African Institute of Chartered Accountants

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

SHE

Safety, health and environment

CFO

Chief Financial Officer

SMB

Small and medium business

CIO

Chief Information Officer

STI

Short-term incentive

CIPC

Companies and Intellectual Property Commission

The Board

Combined
figures

Figures include Westcon Americas and Logicalis
SMC, which were disposed of in the prior year
(the Disposal Group)

The Board of directors of Datatec Limited, as
set out on pages 12 and 13

The Code

The Datatec Group Code of Conduct

Consulting and
Financial
Services

Includes Analysys Mason, a specialist
telecommunications, media and technology
adviser and Datatec Financial Services, a
provider of financing/leasing solutions

The Company
or Datatec

Datatec Limited, listed on the JSE in the
“Computer Services” sector and its subsidiaries
as the context indicates

Continuing
operations

Figures exclude Westcon Americas and Logicalis
SMC, which were disposed of in the prior year
(the Disposal Group)

The year ended 28 February 2019

CPI

Consumer Price Index

The current
year, the year,
the year under
review or 2019

CRO

Chief Risk Officer

CSDP

Central Securities Depository Participant

The Disposal
Group

Westcon Americas and Logicalis SMC, which
were disposed of in the prior year

CSI

Corporate social investment, contributions
(monetary, employee time and resources),
external to normal business activities for the
purpose of benefiting and uplifting communities

The Companies South African Companies Act 71 of 2008, as
Act
amended

The Foundation The Datatec Educational and Technology
Foundation
The Group

The Datatec Group, Datatec Limited and its
subsidiaries

EDGE

Engage, Develop, Grow, Extend; Westcon
International’s global enablement programme
for new customer acceleration

The previous
year the prior
year or FY18

The year ended 28 February 2018

EMEA

Europe, Middle East and Africa

The register

The register of ordinary shareholders

EU

European Union

TMT

Telecommunications, Media and Technology

GTDC

Global Technology Distribution Council

GTM

Go-to-market

Westcon
International or
Westcon

A division of Datatec that provides distribution
of security, collaboration, networking and data
centre products

ICQ

Internal control questionnaire

IIRC

International Integrated Reporting Council

IRC

South African Integrated Reporting Committee

ISIN

International Securities Identification Number

JSE

The Johannesburg Securities Exchange, a
securities exchange operated by JSE Limited

King IVTM/The
King IVTM Code

The King IV Report on Corporate Governance
for South Africa, 2016

KPI

Key Performance Indicator

Logicalis or
A division of Datatec that supplies ICT
Logicalis Group infrastructure and solutions and managed
services
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FINANCIAL DEFINITIONS
The systematic allocation of the cost of an
intangible asset over its useful life

LIBOR

London Interbank offered rate

BBSY

Bank Bill Swap Bid Rate

LTIP

Long-Term Incentive Plan

CAGR

Compound annual growth rate

NACA

Nominal Amount Compounded Annually

CDI

A daily average of overnight interbank loans, used
as an investment benchmark in the Brazilian
financial system

P/E ratio

Price-earnings ratio

ROIC

CSP

Conditional Share Plan

Return on invested capital. This is calculated by
dividing net operating profit after tax by average
invested capital

DBP

Deferred Bonus Plan

SARs

Share Appreciation Rights

Depreciation

The systematic allocation of the cost of an asset,
less its residual value, over its useful life

SAR Scheme

The Datatec Limited Share Appreciation Rights
Scheme

EAP

Equity Appreciation Plan

SENS

Stock Exchange News Service

EBITDA

Earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and
amortisation

TSR

Total shareholder return

UEPS

EPS

Earnings per share, the portion of a Company’s
profit attributable (equally) to each outstanding
ordinary share

Underlying earnings divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the
financial year

Underlying
earnings

Earnings excluding impairments of goodwill and
intangible assets, profit or loss on sale of
investments and assets, amortisation of acquired
intangible assets, unrealised foreign exchange
movements, acquisition-related adjustments, fair
value movements on acquisition-related financial
instruments, restructuring costs relating to
fundamental reorganisations and the taxation
effect on all of the aforementioned

ERP

Enterprise resource planning systems integrate
internal and external management of information
across an entire organisation

Hardware

The machines, wiring and other physical
components or other electronic system

IaaS

Infrastructure as a Service, computer infrastructure
being delivered on an outsourced basis. Typically,
IaaS provides hardware, storage, servers and data
centre space or network components

Amortisation

FEC

Foreign exchange contract

FVTPL

Fair value through profit or loss

FY

Financial year; for Datatec, ending 28/29 February

HEPS

Headline earnings divided by the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the financial year

IFRS

International Financial Reporting Standards

TECHNICAL DEFINITIONS
aaS

As a Service; something being made available to
a customer as a service

API

Application Programming Interface – used for
building software applications

Big data

A collection of data sets so large and complex that
it becomes difficult to process using on-hand
database management tools or traditional
data-processing applications

CAT

Computer Applied Teaching

Cloud
computing

A generic term for flexible or hosted on the internet
IT-related services for consumers and business,
including storage, computing power, software
development and applications. These services
eliminate the need for in-house IT resources

ICT

Information and Communication Technology, an
umbrella term that includes any communication
device or application, encompassing radio,
television, mobile phones, computer and network
hardware and software and satellite systems

Cloud services

Services made available to users on demand via
the internet from a cloud computing provider’s
servers

Infrastructure

Refers to an entity’s entire collection of hardware,
software, networks and services required for the
operation and management of the IT environment

Collaboration

Collaboration refers to highly diversified teams
working together inside and outside a company
with the purpose of creating value by improving
innovation, customer relationships and efficiency
while leveraging technology for effective interaction
between the virtual and physical spaces

IoT

The internet of things. The network of physical
devices, vehicles, buildings and other items –
embedded with electronics, software, sensors and
network connectivity that enable these objects to
collect and exchange data

IPT

Data and
information
analytics

The process of examining raw data with the
purpose of drawing conclusions about that
information. Data analytics is used in many
industries to allow companies and organisations
to make better business decisions

Internet protocol telephony; the use of internet
protocol-based networks to build, provide and
access voice, data or other forms of telephonic
communications

IT

Information Technology

Mobility

The technology used for cellular communication

Networking

The construction, design and use of a network

PC

Personal computer

Data centre

A centralised storage facility by an application
service provider to retain database information

Contact details

REGISTRATION NUMBER
1994/005004/06

REGISTERED OFFICES
Datatec Limited
Ground Floor
Sandown Chambers
Sandown Village
16 Maude Street
Sandown, 2196
South Africa
Tel +27 (0) 11 233 1000
Fax +27 (0) 11 233 3300

Datatec Plc
110 Buckingham Avenue
Slough
Berkshire SL1 4PF
United Kingdom
Tel +44 (0) 1753 797 100
Fax +44 (0) 1753 797 150

COMPANY SECRETARY

Datatec Management Services (Pty) Ltd
(Managing Director – SP Morris)

OFFICE – UK
2nd Floor, Bush House
North West Wing
London
WC2B 4PJ
United Kingdom
Tel +44 (0) 207 395 9000
Fax +44 (0) 207 395 9001

OFFICE – USA
520 White Plains Road
Tarrytown
New York 10591
USA
Tel +1 914 829 7170
Fax +1 914 829 7184

SPONSOR

Rand Merchant Bank (a division of FirstRand
Bank Limited)
1 Merchant Place
Corner Fredman Drive and
Rivonia Road
Sandton, 2196
South Africa

TRANSFER SECRETARIES

Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd
Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank, 2196
South Africa
PO Box 61051
Marshalltown, 2107

CORPORATE LAW ADVISERS AND
CONSULTANTS
Bowman Gilfillan Inc.
11 Alice Lane
Sandton, 2196
South Africa

AUDITORS

Deloitte & Touche
Deloitte Place
The Woodlands
Woodlands Drive
Woodmead
Sandton, 2148
South Africa

PRINCIPAL BANKERS – SA

The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
Corporate and Investment Banking
30 Baker Street
Rosebank, 2196
South Africa

PRINCIPAL BANKERS – UK
HSBC U.K. Bank plc
26 Broad Street
Reading
Berkshire
RG1 2BU

www.datatec.com
www.westconcomstor.com
www.logicalis.com
www.analysysmason.com
www.datatecfinancialservices.com

